

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


PINOLE CITY COUNCIL  
MEETING AGENDA 


CITY COUNCIL 
 


Devin T. Murphy, Mayor  
Maureen Toms, Mayor Pro Tem 
Cameron Sasai, Council Member 
Anthony Tave, Council Member 


Norma Martínez-Rubin, Council Member 


 


TUESDAY 
September 19, 2023 


5:00 P.M 
Please note:  HYBRID MEETING FORMAT  


Attend in Person: PINOLE CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS - 2131 PEAR STREET  
OR 


Attend VIA ZOOM TELECONFERENCE – Details provided below 
 


 


 


 


How to Submit Public Comments: 


In Person:  Attend meeting at the Pinole City Council Chambers, fill out a yellow public comment 


card and submit it to the City Clerk. 


Via Zoom: 


Members of the public may submit a live remote public comment via Zoom video conferencing. Download 
the Zoom mobile app from the Apple Appstore or Google Play. If you are using a desktop computer, you 
can test your connection to Zoom by clicking here. Zoom also allows you to join the meeting by phone. 


From a PC, Mac, iPad, iPhone or Android:     


https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89335000272 


Webinar ID: 893 3500 0272 


By phone:   +1 (669) 900-6833  or  +1 (253) 215-8782  or  +1 (346) 248-7799    


• Speakers will be asked to provide their name and city of residence, although providing this 
is not required for participation. 


• Each speaker will be afforded up to 3 minutes to speak (subject to modification by the 
Mayor) 


• Speakers will be muted until their opportunity to provide public comment. 


 


When the Mayor opens the comment period for the item you wish to speak on, please use the 
“raise hand” feature (or press *9 if connecting via telephone) which will alert staff that you have 
a comment to provide and press *6 to unmute.  To comment with your video enabled, please let 
the City Clerk know you would like to turn your camera on once you are called to speak. 


Written Comments: All comments received before 3:00 pm the day of the meeting will 


be posted on the City’s website on the agenda page (Agenda Page Link) and provided to the 
City Council prior to the meeting.  Written comments will not be read aloud during the meeting.               


CORONAVIRUS ADVISORY 
INFORMATION: 


 
CLICK HERE for City Updates 


 
CLICK HERE for County Updates 


1 of 273



https://www.zoom.us/join

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89335000272

https://www.ci.pinole.ca.us/city_government/city_council/agendas_and_minutes

http://pinoleca.hosted.civiclive.com/city_government/coronavirus

https://www.coronavirus.cchealth.org/





City Council   


Agenda – September 19, 2023 


Page 2  


Email comments to comment@ci.pinole.ca.us Please indicate which item on the agenda you 


are commenting on in the subject line of your email. 


 


Please note:  Updated COVID-19 safety protocols will be posted outside the City Council 
Chambers.  Please review this information before entering the Council Chambers. 


 
OTHER WAYS TO WATCH THE MEETING 


 


LIVE ON CHANNEL 26.  They are retelecast the following Thursday at 6:00 p.m.  The Community TV Channel 26 
schedule is published on the city’s website at www.ci.pinole.ca.us.   
 
VIDEO-STREAMED LIVE ON THE CITY’S WEBSITE, www.ci.pinole.ca.us.  and remain archived on the site for five 
(5) years. 
 


If none of these options are available to you, or you need assistance with public comment, please 
contact the City Clerk, Heather Bell at (510) 724-8928 or hbell@ci.pinole.ca.us . 
 
 
Americans With Disabilities Act:  In compliance with the Americans With Disabilities Act of 1990, if you need 
special assistance to participate in a City Meeting or you need a copy of the agenda, or the agenda packet in an 
appropriate alternative format, please contact the City Clerk’s Office at (510) 724-8928.  Notification at least 48 hours 
prior to the meeting or time when services are needed will assist the City staff in assuring that reasonable 
arrangements can be made to provide accessibility to the meeting or service. 
 


Note:  Staff reports are available for inspection on the City Website at www.ci.pinole.ca.us.  You may also contact the 
City Clerk via e-mail at hbell@ci.pinole.ca.us . 


Ralph M. Brown Act.  Gov. Code § 54950.  In enacting this chapter, the Legislature finds and 
declares that the public commissions, boards and councils and the other public agencies in this 
State exist to aid in the conduct of the people's business.  It is the intent of the law that their 
actions be taken openly and that their deliberations be conducted openly.  The people of this State 
do not yield their sovereignty to the agencies, which serve them.  The people, in delegating 
authority, do not give their public servants the right to decide what is good for the people to know 
and what is not good for them to know.  The people insist on remaining informed so that they may 
retain control over the instruments they have created. 


2 of 273



mailto:comment@ci.pinole.ca.us

http://www.ci.pinole.ca.us/

http://www.ci.pinole.ca.us/

mailto:hbell@ci.pinole.ca.us

http://www.ci.pinole.ca.us/

mailto:hbell@ci.pinole.ca.us





 


Pinole City Council  


Agenda –September 19, 2023 


Page 3 


1. CALL TO ORDER & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE IN HONOR OF THE US MILITARY 
TROOPS 


 


2. LAND ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
Before we begin, we would like to acknowledge the Ohlone people, who are the traditional custodians of 
this land. We pay our respects to the Ohlone elders, past, present, and future, who call this place, Ohlone 
Land, the land that Pinole sits upon, their home. We are proud to continue their tradition of coming 
together and growing as a community. We thank the Ohlone community for their stewardship and 
support, and we look forward to strengthening our ties as we continue our relationship of mutual respect 
and understanding. 
 


3. ROLL CALL, CITY CLERK’S REPORT & STATEMENT OF CONFLICT 
An official who has a conflict must, prior to consideration of the decision: (1) publicly identify in detail the 
financial interest that causes the conflict; (2) recuse himself /herself from discussing and voting on the 
matter; and (3) leave the room until after the decision has been made, Cal. Gov't Code § 87105. 
 


4. CONVENE TO A CLOSED SESSION   
Citizens may address the Council regarding a Closed Session item prior to the Council adjourning 
into the Closed Session, by first providing a speaker card to the City Clerk.   


 
A.  CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS 
Gov. Code § 54957.6 
Agency designated representatives:  Greg Ramirez, IEDA 
Employee organization:  Management Compensation Plan (MCP) 
 


5. RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION TO ANNOUNCE RESULTS OF CLOSED SESSION 
 


6. CITIZENS TO BE HEARD (Public Comments) 
Citizens may speak under any item not listed on the Agenda.  The time limit is 3 minutes and is subject to 
modification by the Mayor. Individuals may not share or offer time to another speaker.  Pursuant to 
provisions of the Brown Act, no action may be taken on a matter unless it is listed on the agenda, or 
unless certain emergency or special circumstances exist.  The City Council may direct staff to investigate 
and/or schedule certain matters for consideration at a future Council meeting.  PLEASE SEE THE 
COVERSHEET OF THE AGENDA FOR INSTRUCTIONS ON HOW TO SUBMIT PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
 


7.          REPORTS & COMMUNICATIONS  
 


A. Mayor Report 
1. Announcements 


 


B. Mayoral & Council Appointments 
 1.   Contra Costa County – Advisory Council on Aging [Action:  Approve Lori 


Magistrado as Pinole Representative by Minute Order (Bell)]  
 
C.   City Council Committee Reports & Communications 


 
D. Council Requests for Future Agenda Items 
 


E. City Manager Report / Department Staff 
 


F. City Attorney Report 
 
 
 


3 of 273







City Council   


Agenda – September 19, 2023 


Page 4  


 
 
 


8. RECOGNITIONS / PRESENTATIONS / COMMUNITY EVENTS 
 
A. Proclamations  


 
1. Blood Cancer Awareness Month 
2. Centenarian - Bob Burmester 
3. Centenarian - Sam Campbell  
4. Centenarian - Jean Clark Ulversoy 
5. National Senior Center Day 
6. Recognizing Police Commander Matt Avery- Special Olympics  
 


B. Presentations  
 


None 
 


9. CONSENT CALENDAR 
All matters under the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine and noncontroversial.  These items 
will be enacted by one motion and without discussion.  If, however, any interested party or Council 
member(s) wishes to comment on an item, they may do so before action is taken on the Consent 
Calendar. Following comments, if a Council member wishes to discuss an item, it will be removed from 
the Consent Calendar and taken up in order after adoption of the Consent Calendar. 
 


A. Approve the Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting on September 5, 2023. 
 


B. Receive the September 2, 2023 – September 15, 2023 – List of Warrants in the 
Amount of $432,753.14, and the September 1, 2023, Payroll in the Amount of 
$501,049.23.  


 
C. Adopt A Resolution To Accept The Electric Vehicle Charging Stations Project 


(CIP Project # FA2002) As Complete And Approve Filing Of Notice Of 
Completion [Action: Adopt Resolution per Staff Recommendation (Kaur)]  


 
D. Fiscal Year (FY) 2022/23 Fourth Quarter Report on Status of Capital 


Improvement Plan (CIP) Projects [Action:  Receive Report (Mishra)] 
 


E. Receive The Quarterly Report On Implementation Of The Strategic Plan For 
Fiscal Year (FY) 2022-23 Fourth Quarter [Action:  Receive Report (Murray)] 


 


F. Appointment Of Pinole Police Chief Neil Gang as Interim City Manager [Action:  
Adopt Resolution per Staff Recommendation (Casher/Bell)] 


 
G. Adopt a Resolution to Accept the Playground Rubberized Surface Improvements 


Project (CIP Project # PA2203) as Complete and Approve Filing of Notice of 
Completion [Action:  Adopt Resolution per Staff Recommendation (Dhillon)] 


 


H. Receive The Quarterly Report On Implementation Of The Greenhouse Gas 
Inventory And Climate Action And Adaptation Plan For Fiscal Year (FY) 2022-23 
Fourth Quarter [Action:  Receive Report (Whalen)] 
 


I. Receive The Fiscal Year (FY) 2022/23 Fourth Quarter Financial Report [Action:  
Receive Report (Guillory)] 


4 of 273







City Council   


Agenda – September 19, 2023 


Page 5  


 


J. Receive the Quarterly Investment Report for the Fourth Quarter (Ending June 30, 
2023) [Action:  Receive Report (Guillory)] 


 
K. Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Execute The Fifth Amendment To 


The Agreement With Client First Technology Consulting To Provide Professional 
Support Services During The Upgrade And Migration Of The Permit Tracking 
And Online Application System And Appropriate Funding [Action:  Adopt 
Resolution per Staff Recommendation (Whalen)] 


 


L. Adopt a Resolution Correcting the Appropriations Limit for Fiscal Year (FY) 
2022/23 And FY 2023/24 [Action:  Adopt Resolution per Staff Recommendation 
(Guillory)] 


 


M. Resolution Declaring 2100 San Pablo Avenue (The Faria House) Surplus Land 
[Action:  Adopt Resolution per Staff Recommendation (Mishra)] 


 
 


10. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
Citizens wishing to speak regarding a Public Hearing item should fill out a speaker card prior to the completion of the 
Gann Limit Update presentation, by first providing a speaker card to the City Clerk.  An official who engaged in an 
ex parte communication that is the subject of a Public Hearing must disclose the communication on the 
record prior to the start of the Public Hearing. 


 


 None 


 
11. OLD BUSINESS 
 
  None 
 
12.       NEW BUSINESS 
 


A. Information On Establishing A Crime Prevention Through Environmental Design 
(CPTED) Grant/Rebate Program (Whalen)] 
 


B. Overview of City Boards and Commissions [Action:   Receive Report and Provide 


Direction (Bell)] 
 


13. CITIZENS TO BE HEARD (Continued from Item 6) (Public Comments)  
Open only to members of the public who did not speak under the first Citizens to Be Heard, 
Agenda Item 6 
Citizens may speak under any item not listed on the Agenda.  The time limit is 3 minutes for City Council items 
and is subject to modification by the Mayor. Individuals may not share or offer time to another speaker. Pursuant to 
provisions of the Brown Act, no action may be taken on a matter unless it is listed on the agenda, or unless certain 
emergency or special circumstances exist.  The City Council may direct staff to investigate and/or schedule certain 
matters for consideration at a future meeting. 
 
 


14. ADJOURNMENT to the Regular City Council Meeting of October 17, 2023 in 
Remembrance of Amber Swartz.  
 


I hereby certify under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing Agenda was 
posted on the bulletin board at the main entrance of Pinole City Hall, 2131 Pear Street 
Pinole, CA, and on the City’s website, not less than 24 hours prior to the meeting date set 
forth on this agenda.  
 


5 of 273







City Council   


Agenda – September 19, 2023 


Page 6  


 
 
 
_______________________ 
Heather Bell, CMC 
City Clerk 
POSTED:  September 14, 2023 at 5:00 pm 


6 of 273







7 of 273







8 of 273







9 of 273







 


Pinole City Council Regular Meeting  


September 5, 2023   


Page 1 
 


CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MINUTES 


September 5, 2023   
 


 
1. CALL TO ORDER & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE IN HONOR OF THE US MILITARY 


TROOPS 
 
The City Council Meeting was held in a hybrid format (in-person and via Zoom videoconference 
and broadcast) from the Pinole Council Chambers, 2131 Pear Street, Pinole, California.  Mayor 
Pro Tem Toms called the Regular Meeting of the City Council to order at 5:00 p.m. and led the 
Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
2. LAND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT  
Before we begin, we would like to acknowledge the Ohlone people, who are the traditional custodians of 
this land.  We pay our respects to the Ohlone elders, past, present and future, who call this place, Ohlone 
Land, the land that Pinole sits upon, their home.  We are proud to continue their tradition of coming together 
and growing as a community.  We thank the Ohlone community for their stewardship and support, and we 
look forward to strengthening our ties as we continue our relationship of mutual respect and understanding.  


 
3. ROLL CALL, CITY CLERK’S REPORT & STATEMENT OF CONFLICT 
An official who has a conflict must, prior to consideration of the decision: (1) publicly identify in detail the 
financial interest that causes the conflict; (2) recuse himself/herself from discussing and voting on the 
matter; and (3) leave the room until after the decision has been made, Cal. Gov. Code § 87105.   
 


A. COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT 
 
Devin Murphy, Mayor*  
Maureen Toms, Mayor Pro Tem   
Norma Martinez-Rubin, Council Member 
Cameron Sasai, Council Member 
Anthony Tave, Council Member 
*Arrived at 5:15 p.m. 


   
 B. STAFF PRESENT 
 
Andrew Murray, City Manager    
Eric Casher, City Attorney   
Heather Bell, City Clerk 
Markisha Guillory, Finance Director  
Roxane Stone, Deputy City Clerk 
 
City Clerk Heather Bell announced the agenda had been posted on Thursday, August 31, 2023 
at 3:30 p.m. with all legally required written notices.  Written comments had been received in 
advance of the meeting, distributed to the City Council, posted on the City website and made 
available to the public in the Council Chambers.   
 
Following an inquiry, the Council reported there were no conflicts with any items on the agenda.  
 
4. CONVENE TO A CLOSED SESSION:   


10 of 273







 


Pinole City Council Regular Meeting  


September 5, 2023   


Page 2 
 


Citizens may address the Council regarding a Closed Session item prior to the Council adjourning 
into the Closed Session, by first providing a speaker card to the City Clerk. 
  


A. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE APPOINTMENT   
Gov. Code § 54957 
Title:  Interim City Manager  


 
PUBLIC COMMENTS OPENED 
 
Deputy City Clerk Roxane Stone reported there were no comments from the public.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS CLOSED  


 
5. RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION TO ANNOUNCE RESULTS OF CLOSED SESSION 
 
At 6:21 p.m., Mayor Murphy reconvened the meeting into open session and announced there was 
no report from the Closed Session.     
 
6. CITIZENS TO BE HEARD (Public Comments) 
Citizens may speak under any item not listed on the Agenda.  The time limit is 3 minutes and is 
subject to modification by the Mayor. Individuals may not share or offer time to another speaker.  
Pursuant to provisions of the Brown Act, no action may be taken on a matter unless it is listed on 
the agenda, or unless certain emergency or special circumstances exist.  The City Council may 
direct staff to investigate and/or schedule certain matters for consideration at a future Council 
meeting. 
 
Bob Kopp, Pinole, asked the City Council to view the last televised Community Services 
Commission meeting given a discussion at that time that he stated should not have happened 
and which he found to be disgraceful.  He requested a call back from one of the five Council 
members after a review of that meeting.   
 
Irma Ruport, Pinole, also asked the City Council to view the last televised Community Services 
Commission meeting.  As a new member of the Commission, she stated things had been said 
which should not have been said and she had tried to correct misinformation provided during the 
meeting.  She urged the City Council to review the meeting and, in all fairness, also asked the 
Council to review the rules and procedures, code of conflict and guidelines for all City 
Commissions.  She stated some members had been on the Commission for years without 
consideration of term limits and the Chair had served as the Chair for some time.  She also noted 
that she had applied to serve on the Commission two years ago but had been told she was too 
political, although she had been appointed to some community groups.  She commented that she 
was fair, clear and true to herself and again urged the Council to review the video of the meeting.   
 
7. REPORTS & COMMUNICATIONS  
 


A. Mayor Report 
 
1. Announcements 


 


11 of 273







 


Pinole City Council Regular Meeting  


September 5, 2023   


Page 3 
 


Mayor Murphy presented the monthly Mayoral Update video for the month of September and 
thanked Pinole Community Television (PCTV) and City staff for their assistance with the video. 
 


B. Mayoral & Council Appointments:  None  
 


C.   City Council Committee Reports & Communications 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Toms reported she and Council member Tave had participated in the Municipal 
Code Update Subcommittee meeting with a discussion of an ordinance on Single-Use Plastics, 
with a review of a number of different ordinances from neighboring cities to be further discussed 
at the next meeting of the Subcommittee.   
 
Council member Tave confirmed that he had participated in the Municipal Code Update 
Subcommittee meeting when a lot of data had been provided by staff.    
 
Council member Sasai reported the City Seal Ad Hoc Subcommittee meeting had been 
rescheduled for September 6, 2023.   
 
Council member Martinez-Rubin referenced new construction at 811 San Pablo Avenue which 
would consist of 33-units of veterans housing and reported a ground breaking ceremony had been 
held last month at which time the work of City staff and prior and current City Councils had been 
acknowledged.  She invited the public to an event sponsored by the San Pablo and Pinole 
Historical Societies on September 8, 2023 at 6:30 p.m. at the Sportsman’s Club, with a program 
on the El Pinole Grant to be provided.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS OPENED  
 
City Clerk Bell reported there were no comments from the public. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS CLOSED  
 


D.   Council Requests for Future Agenda Items 
 
ACTION:  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Toms/Council member Tave for staff to prepare 
information on a bond measure for both a tax exempt and taxable bond measure to pay for 
infrastructure, with the taxable portion to consider whether there were any micro loans 
that could be offered to citizens to help pay for their lateral connections, to be considered 
on a March or November 2024 ballot.   
 
Vote:   Passed  5-0 


Ayes:   Murphy, Toms, Martinez-Rubin, Sasai, Tave  
Noes:   None  
Abstain: None  
Absent: None 
 


Council member Tave requested staff prepare information on any other micro loans or funding 
vehicles that may work for citizens or any other type of tax measures to be compared with a report 
as part of the upcoming Long-Term Financial Plan (LTFP) as a future agenda item.   
 


12 of 273







 


Pinole City Council Regular Meeting  


September 5, 2023   


Page 4 
 


Mayor Murphy reported the City Council had been provided a memorandum on August 10, 2023 
from the Assistant to the City Manager and the Finance Director with information on the process 
and timeline for placing a measure on the November 2024 ballot.  He understood both the Mayor 
Pro Tem and Council member Tave wanted to circle back to that memorandum as part of a future 
discussion for all items that could be considered on a future agenda for any issue related to the 
taxation topic, and Council member Tave confirmed that was the intent of his request.   
 
Council member Sasai requested a future discussion to consider renaming or naming a facility, 
park or specific part of Pinole to honor and educate the public about the Ohlone people.   
 
Mayor Pro Tem Toms stated the City had a Naming Subcommittee that considered such items.  
She supported a referral of the recommendation to the Naming Subcommittee.   
 
ACTION:  Motion by Council members Sasai/Tave to refer a request to consider renaming 
or naming a facility, park or specific part of Pinole to honor and educate the public about 
the Ohlone people to the Naming Subcommittee.   
 
Vote:   Passed  5-0 


Ayes:   Murphy, Toms, Martinez-Rubin, Sasai, Tave  
Noes:   None  
Abstain: None  
Absent: None 


 
PUBLIC COMMENTS OPENED  
 
Cordell Hindler, Richmond, requested that future agenda items include a presentation from Contra 
Costa County Supervisor John Gioia regarding a study to address the homeless population; a 
proclamation for Breast Cancer Awareness Month and a presentation from Danny Wan or 
representative on the Port of Oakland’s plans as it recovered from the pandemic.   
 
Anthony Vossbrink, Pinole, requested future agenda items include an invitation to the Public 
Health Department to provide a presentation on the latest COVID-19 variants, information on 
vaccines and a report from the Police Department on traffic numbers pre, during and post 
pandemic. 
 
Rafael Menis, Pinole, requested a report on a Utility User’s Tax (UUT) on water or wastewater as 
a future agenda item.  He read into the record information from Measure S (November 2010), a 
tax measure the City had considered in the past but which had failed and which he suggested 
would be worthwhile for the City to reconsider.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS CLOSED  
 
ACTION:  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Toms/Mayor Murphy to place on the calendar an invite 
for a representative from the Public Health Department to provide an update in the coming 
months.     
 
 
 
 


13 of 273







 


Pinole City Council Regular Meeting  


September 5, 2023   


Page 5 
 


Vote:   Passed  5-0 
Ayes:   Murphy, Toms, Martinez-Rubin, Sasai, Tave  
Noes:   None  
Abstain: None  
Absent: None 


 
E. City Manager Report / Department Staff 


 
City Manager Andrew Muray stated he had no report although the Finance Director had 
information in response to questions raised during a prior City Council meeting about the List of 
Warrants.   
 
Finance Director Markisha Guillory provided clarification in response to an inquiry from Council 
member Martinez-Rubin regarding the dates in the List of Warrants and why there were overlaps.   
She explained that there was a pattern of running the report to include the last day of the previous 
accounts payable cycle, and the system staff used allowed whatever dates were desired to be 
entered.  In this case, the last day as opposed to the first day of the previous cycle had been 
entered.  This issue had been corrected and there had been no double payments to vendors.  
She added there were good checks and balances in the system to ensure that did not happen.   


 
F. City Attorney Report    


 
City Attorney Eric Casher reported the Municipal Code Update Subcommittee had recently met 
with some outreach planned for the business community with respect to the Single-Use Plastic 
Ordinance, anticipated to be presented to the City Council in the fall of 2023 or early 2024.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS OPENED (Items 7E through 7F) 
 
Deputy City Clerk Stone reported there were no comments from the public.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS CLOSED  
 
8. RECOGNITIONS / PRESENTATIONS / COMMUNITY EVENTS  
 
Proclamations were taken out of order as they had been shown on the meeting agenda.   


 
A. Proclamations 


 
1. Acknowledging the Retirement of John Anderson  


 
The City Council read into the record a proclamation acknowledging the retirement of John 
Anderson as Public Works Maintenance Worker after more than 30 years of service to the City of 
Pinole.   
 
Public Works Maintenance Worker John Anderson stated that working for the City of Pinole had 
allowed him to achieve several goals and he thanked everyone for the honor and privilege of 
having served the City of Pinole for more than 30 years.   
 


14 of 273







 


Pinole City Council Regular Meeting  


September 5, 2023   


Page 6 
 


The City Council again expressed its appreciation and extended its deepest gratitude to Mr. 
Anderson for his service to the City. 
 
City Manager Murray added that he had enjoyed getting to know Mr. Anderson as a person and 
was pleased he had achieved his goals.  He wished him well on his retirement.   
 


2. Building and Code Staff Appreciation Day  
 
The City Council read into the record a proclamation recognizing September 1, 2023 as Building 
and Code Staff Appreciation Day, which was presented to the City’s Chief Building Officer Keith 
Marks.   
 
Chief Building Officer Keith Marks thanked the City Council and City staff, and looked forward to 
getting to know the residents of Pinole.   
 


3. California Firefighter Memorial Day 
 
The City Council read into the record a proclamation recognizing October 14, 2023 as California 
Firefighter Memorial Day, with more information on the event on the CAL FIRE website.  The 
Contra Costa County Fire Protection District (CCCFPD) Annual Fallen Firefighter Memorial 
Service had been scheduled for September 11, 2023 at 11:00 a.m. at Contra Costa Fire Station 
No. 11 located in the City of Clayton.    


 
CCCFPD Assistant Fire Chief Lon Goetsch thanked the City Council for the recognition, 
encouraged those interested to participate in all California Firefighter Memorial events, and also 
recognized the firefighters present in the Council Chambers.   


 
4. Constitution Day 


 
The City Council read into the record a proclamation recognizing September 17, 2023 as 
Constitution Day.   
 


5. National Suicide Prevention Week 
 
The City Council read into the record a proclamation recognizing September 10-16, 2023 as 
National Suicide Prevention Week.   
  


6. Suicide Prevention Day 
 
The City Council read into the record a proclamation recognizing September 10, 2023 as Suicide 
Prevention Day.   
 
Council member Tave reported that 9-8-8 was a 24-hour/7-day a week hotline for those in crisis 
and texting “home” would reach a crisis counselor when needed.   
 


7. National Punctuation Day 
 
The City Council read into the record a proclamation recognizing September 24, 2023 as National 
Punctuation Day.  The proclamation was presented to Council member Martinez-Rubin.   


15 of 273







 


Pinole City Council Regular Meeting  


September 5, 2023   


Page 7 
 


8. Rosh Hashanah 
 
The City Council read into the record a proclamation recognizing September 15-17, 2023 as Rosh 
Hashanah.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS OPENED (Item 8A, 1-8)  
 
Deputy City Clerk Stone reported there were no comments from the public.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS CLOSED  
 


B. Presentations 
 


1. ConFire 
 
CCCFPD Deputy Chief Brian Helmick provided a detailed PowerPoint presentation entitled Fire, 
Rescue, EMS Update City of Pinole City Council, the first of planned quarterly updates that 
included an overview of CCCFPD (ConFire), which provided countywide fire, rescue, EMS and 
ambulance services and which was one of the largest special fire districts in the state dedicated 
to the preservation of resident life and property.  An overview of the CCCFPD crews and facilities 
and a detailed list of projects and programs that had been completed or were planned was also 
provided.   
 
CCCFPD Deputy Chief Helmick highlighted Calls for Service for the City of Pinole over the period 
of March through July 2023; incidents responded to by Fire Stations 73 and 74 and non-Station 
73 and 74 units; Calls for Service related to wildfire threat and details on fire safety for residents.  
More information was available on the CCCFPD website @cccfpd.org.   
 
Council member Martinez-Rubin asked where people were being transported if responding to a 
medical emergency and the time of transport. 
 
CCCFPD Deputy Chief Helmick explained it would depend on the circumstances.  He described 
an incident this date in the driveway at Fire Station 73, which involved an infant with a partial 
obstruction.  He detailed the steps involved in responding to the incident from the call to dispatch 
and the collaborative emergency response chain between law enforcement, fire and EMS, and 
reported the infant was expected to make a full recovery.  He commended all emergency 
responders involved and clarified that in a case involving an infant, the infant would be transported 
to Children’s Hospital in the City of Oakland.  If a trauma, the patient would be transported to John 
Muir Hospital in the City of Walnut Creek.  For regular medical aid, such as a stroke or cardiac 
arrest, the patient would be transported to the nearest medical facility able to treat the situation.  
Additional specifics on the criteria for patient transportation could be discussed with Council 
members off-line.   
 
CCCFPD Deputy Chief Helmick further responded to Council member Martinez-Rubin on how to 
deal with a call to 911 dispatch and dealing with stressful situations.  He explained why 911 
dispatch asked certain questions and while redundant and systematic those questions were 
important to provide the information needed for how emergency responders prepared to respond 
to a specific call.   
 


16 of 273







 


Pinole City Council Regular Meeting  


September 5, 2023   


Page 8 
 


Council member Sasai asked for more information on the Calls for Service in the City of Pinole 
and what made certain areas of Pinole more susceptible to wildfires than others. 
 
CCCFPD Deputy Chief Helmick again walked through the Calls for Service for Pinole which 
provided information on the types of calls with a trend in Pinole for medical aid.  He also 
highlighted the Community Risk Assessment (CRA) for wildfire trends which was evaluated to 
determine trends in each community to allow preventative measures to be taken.   
 
Mayor Pro Tem Toms thanked CCCFPD Deputy Chief Helmick for the presentation and for the 
continued communication with the City.   
 
Council member Tave understood Pinole had a lot of medical calls and with two engines there 
would be more coverage to the Pinole community, but he continued to have concerns with 
individuals suffering from cardiac arrest, as an example, in terms of proximity to hospitals.  He 
asked about the number of Calls for Service that required an airlift to a nearby hospital.   
 
CCCFPD Deputy Chief Helmick detailed the response criteria for trauma-related patients who 
would go to John Muir Medical Center or other facilities such as U.C. Davis or U.C. Stanford, if 
burn patients.  Sometimes a patient was unable to be located other than via air resources due to 
many circumstances.  Criteria, time and distance were all evaluated with the goal to have patients 
who were airlifted with all related traumas to a hospital within an hour or sooner.   
 
CCCFPD Deputy Chief Helmick explained that air ambulance personnel were trained when to 
request air or ground resources.  It was important to have access to all medical facilities in that 
the current challenges were not locations but getting patients to a hospital, offloaded and in the 
transit care to the hospitals.  There was a statewide issue where patient offload times had been 
extended possibly up to hours and there had been difficulties transferring care, which in turn had 
resulted in difficulties getting the units back into service, ultimately increasing response times.  He 
reiterated that the current challenge was not location and quantity of hospitals, but getting the 
resources to the hospitals and getting the resources back into service on the street.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS OPENED   
 
Irma Ruport, Pinole, referenced the Firewise program, which was very important and had been 
recently implemented in the City of Lafayette.  She noted she had served on the Public Safety 
Committee in Pinole years ago and community partnership with Public Safety Officers was also 
very important.  She had also been a member of a Neighborhood Watch and planned to return.  
She referenced a fire incident in her neighborhood years ago and the proximity of a multi-unit 
apartment complex, also in the same neighborhood, where Police and Fire had worked hand-in-
hand to save structures in the neighborhood including her own home.  She emphasized the 
importance of all Public Safety Officers working together and expressed the willingness to assist 
in a Firewise program for the City of Pinole and surrounding areas.   
 
Ms. Ruport otherwise commented on the amount of misinformation in the community regarding 
the partnership between the City of Pinole and the CCCFPD and that the CCCFPD was unable 
to attend and participate in City events, not because the CCCFPD was not allowed to participate 
but that the City had not extended an invitation to attend community events.  She asked how that 
communication could be opened up to allow participation from the CCCFPD in City events.   
 


17 of 273







 


Pinole City Council Regular Meeting  


September 5, 2023   


Page 9 
 


Vincent Wells, referenced the proclamation for California Firefighter Memorial Day and thanked 
the City Council for the recognition.  He also thanked CCCFPD Deputy Chief Helmick for the 
detailed presentation on the services provided and to be delivered by the CCCFPD to the City of 
Pinole.   He had worked with many of the elected officials to support the contract between the 
City of Pinole and the CCCFPD.  He was pleased with the resources being provided to the City 
and he thanked the City Council for its support, approval of the CCCFPD contract and commented 
on the positive feedback from the personnel from Fire Stations 73 and 74 along with the 
community acceptance.  He added that Assembly Bill (AB) 40 would try to deal with the 
ambulance download times at hospitals and he asked the City Council to support AB 40.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS CLOSED  
 
CCCFPD Deputy Chief Helmick responded to the public comments and explained that the 
CCCFPD was supportive of Firewise communities and had worked with multiple jurisdictions 
throughout the CCCFPD to establish Firewise communities.  He understood there were ongoing 
grassroots efforts in Pinole and neighboring communities to establish a Firewise community and 
he asked the City Council to ask City staff for his contact information so he could provide direct 
contact information for the Program Coordinators.   
 
CCCFPD Deputy Chief Helmick also clarified in terms of CCCFPD participation in community 
events that as the CCCFPD had grown and its scope of work had increased, one of the challenges 
was providing the grassroots effort of a volunteer organization where people lived and worked in 
town and provide that community relationship.  There were challenges with current resources to 
cover all community events in the 12-city CCCFPD coverage area and the CCCFPD could not 
dedicate engines to all community events.  The CCCFPD made an effort to make resources 
available, when possible, for community events and wanted to be proactive and communicate.  
The CCCFPD website contained more information on Firewise communities and contacts, contact 
information for CCCFPD staff and a public education section on the website, which contained 
information for the CCCFPD to set up a booth during community events, subject to a two-week 
advance notice.   
 
CCCFPD Deputy Chief Helmick further stated with respect to AB 40 that he could work with City 
staff and the Mayor to forward background information and provide sample letters for City Council 
consideration.  He reported the California Special District Association was neutral on AB 40 but 
had been monitoring the topic and the Fire Department Associations and California Fire Chiefs 
were in full support of AB 40 and addressing the long-time issues.   
 
ACTION:  Motion by Mayor Murphy/Mayor Pro Tem Toms to direct staff to work with the 
CCCFPD to draft a letter of support for AB 40 for consideration at the next regularly 
scheduled City Council meeting.   
   
Vote:   Passed  5-0 


Ayes:   Murphy, Toms, Martinez-Rubin, Sasai, Tave  
Noes:   None  
Abstain: None  
Absent: None 


 
Mayor Murphy thanked CCCFPD Deputy Chief Helmick for his partnership and continued work 
for the City of Pinole and Contra Costa County.   


18 of 273







 


Pinole City Council Regular Meeting  


September 5, 2023   


Page 10 
 


2. Car Show Committee  
 
Bob Kopp, representing the Pinole Car Show Committee, reported that donations to PCTV and 
the Pinole Senior Center would involve the Car Show Committee purchasing items from a list both 
entities needed to be shipped to them.  Checks from the Car Show Committee were also 
presented to representatives from Pinole Swim Team, Bay Area Peacekeepers, Meals on 
Wheels, Pinole-Hercules Little League and Police Explorers, with some representatives of those 
organizations present in the Council Chambers.  He also individually thanked each of the 29 
sponsors for the event and encouraged the public to support each business.  In addition, he 
expressed his appreciation to the Pinole Police and Public Works Departments for their 
assistance during the Car Show along with the owner of the parking lot, where over 320 vehicles 
had participated in the event.  He also thanked the City Council for providing funds and for 
participating in the event.  He announced that in 2024, the Car Show would be held the last 
Sunday of the month of June.   
 
Tom, a member of the Bay Area Peacekeepers Program, described their work in the City of 
Richmond where around $12,000 had been donated for toy drives over the years.  He thanked 
the Car Show Committee for the donation.   
 
Mayor Murphy thanked Mr. Kopp for his service and commended all of the sponsors.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS OPENED  
 
Cordell Hindler, Richmond, thanked Mr. Kopp for his involvement in the Pinole Car Show and the 
committee for an outstanding job.  He noted the positive feedback he had received in the 
community and looked forward to the 2024 event.   
 
Mr. Kopp identified the event website at pinoleclassiccarshow.com.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS CLOSED  
 
9. CONSENT CALENDAR 
All matters under the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine and noncontroversial.  These 
items will be enacted by one motion and without discussion.  If, however, any interested party or 
Council member(s) wishes to comment on an item, they may do so before action is taken on the 
Consent Calendar.  Following comments, if a Council member wishes to discuss an item, it will 
be removed from the Consent Calendar and taken up in order after adoption of the Consent 
Calendar. 
 


A. Approve the Minutes of the Special City Council Meeting on August 8, 2023 and 
the Regular City Council Meeting on August 15, 2023 
 


B. Receive the August 12, 2023 – September 1, 2023 – List of Warrants in the Amount 
of $1,017,849.94, the August 18, 2023 Payroll in the Amount of $587,293.34 
($527,212.41 Regular Payroll: $60,081.00 Local 1 Retention Payments) and the 
September 1, 2023 Payroll in the Amount of $501,049.23 


 
C. Approve an Amendment to the Employment Agreement for the City Clerk [Action:  


Adopt Resolution per Staff Recommendation (Shell)] 


19 of 273







 


Pinole City Council Regular Meeting  


September 5, 2023   


Page 11 
 


D. Appoint Councilmembers as Voting Delegates to Represent Pinole at League of 
CA Cities Annual Conference General Assembly [Action:  Appoint Voting 
Delegates by Minute Order per Staff Recommendation (Bell)] 


 
E. Adopt Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Award Two-Year Contracts to 


Townsend Public Affairs and Evan Brooks Associates for Grant Research, Writing 
and Management Services and Authorizing the Finance Director to Amend the 
Adopted Budget to Allocate Funds from the General Fund Unencumbered Fund 
Balance [Action:  Adopt Resolution per Staff Recommendation (Guillory)] 


 
F. Authorize Response to Grand Jury Report No. 2306 “Affordable Housing:  A Plan 


Without a Home” [Action:  Approve and Authorize the Mayor to Sign the 
Response to the Grand Jury Report on Affordable Housing per Staff 
Recommendation (Whalen)] 
 


G. Award a Contract to Tetra Tech to Complete an Energy Conservation, Generation 
and Storage Assessment in an Amount Not to Exceed $47,938 [Action:  Adopt 
Resolution per Staff Recommendation (Mishra)] 


 
H. Ordinance Amending Pinole Municipal Code Section 2.04.200 Council-Manager 


Relations and Section 2.12.010 Time of Regular City Council Meetings [Action:  
Adopt Ordinance on Second Read per Staff Recommendation (Casher)] 


 
I. Adopt a Resolution Authorizing the Application to and Participation in the California 


Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD) Prohousing 
Designation Program [Action:  Adopt Resolution per Staff Recommendation 
(Whalen)] 


 
Council member Sasai requested that Item 9A be removed from the Consent Calendar for a 
correction.   


 
PUBLIC COMMENTS OPENED  
 
Rafael Menis, Pinole, spoke to Item 9F, Page 233 of 322 of the agenda packets, Grand Jury 
Finding, F1, and the City’s response, as shown.  While he understood the City’s response, he 
also understood to the extent Pinole took responsibility for achieving the Regional Housing Needs 
Allocation (RHNA) permitting targets, that responsibility ultimately fell on the Community 
Development Director, which should be noted in the response and which clarification would be 
helpful.   
 
Mr. Menis referenced Item 9I and encouraged the City Council to adopt the resolution as shown 
since it would make it easier for the City to gain grants, get buy-in from developers for new 
projects, make the process of developing housing easier and act as a signal to the community 
and to broader entities interacting with Pinole to actually implement all of the RHNA and other 
projects.   It would also show the City was taking concrete steps to make that happen and would 
continue to do so in the future.    
 
 


20 of 273







 


Pinole City Council Regular Meeting  


September 5, 2023   


Page 12 
 


Cordell Hindler, Richmond, referenced Item 9C and expressed his appreciation for the hard work 
of the City Clerk who ensured agendas were distributed in a timely manner.  He encouraged the 
City Council to approve the item as shown.  For Item 9D, he supported the item as shown.  For 
Item 9H, he supported the revisions that would allow City Council direction to the City Manager 
to bring items forward in the long term.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS CLOSED  
 
Mayor Murphy referenced Item 9C and reported pursuant to Government Code Section 
54953(c)(3), Item 9C was a recommendation to provide the City Clerk with a four percent Cost of 
Living (COLA) adjustment in accordance with the employment agreements.  The item had no 
fiscal impact on the General Fund as the COLA had already been incorporated into the fiscal year 
2023/24 budget.   
 
Council member Sasai requested an amendment to Item 9A, the Minutes for the Regular City 
Council meeting of August 15, 2023, as follows:   
 


Page 18 of 322 of the agenda packet, the first paragraph under Item C. City Council 
Committee Reports and Communications, to be revised as follows: 


 
Council member Sasai reported he had attended the WestCAT Board of Directors meeting 
and briefed the Council on the discussions; and had met with representatives from the 
State Civil Rights Department to discuss an anti-hate initiative sponsored by the 
Governor’s Office, which he detailed and which discussion he hoped to advance to the 
City Council. He also reported a resident of Pinole Shores had recently reached out to him 
about the collapsed portion of the Bay Trail. He had recently walked that portion of the trail 
with that individual and had reached out to the Ward 1 Boardmember of the East Bay 
Regional Park District (EBRPD). He hoped a presentation from the EBRPD would be 
made to the City Council to allow questions to be asked and solutions to be discussed 


 
ACTION:  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Toms/Council member Martinez-Rubin to approve 
Consent Calendar Item 9A (as amended by Council member Sasai) and Items 9B through 
9I, as shown.   
 
Vote:   Passed  5-0 


Ayes:   Murphy, Toms, Martinez-Rubin, Sasai, Tave  
Noes:   None  
Abstain: None  
Absent: None 


 
10. PUBLIC HEARINGS:   None  
Citizens wishing to speak regarding a Public Hearing item should fill out a speaker card prior to 
the completion of the presentation, by first providing a speaker card to the City Clerk. An official 
who engaged in an ex parté communication that is the subject of a Public Hearing must disclose 
the communication on the record prior to the start of the Public Hearing. 


 
11. OLD BUSINESS:  None  
 
12. NEW BUSINESS  


21 of 273







 


Pinole City Council Regular Meeting  


September 5, 2023   


Page 13 
 


A. Background Information on Commercial Cannabis Tax [Action:  Receive Report 
and Provide Direction (Guillory)] 


 
Finance Director Guillory provided a PowerPoint presentation on Background Information on a 
Commercial Cannabis Tax, which included an overview of Proposition 64, the Adult Use of 
Marijuana Act (AUMA) that legalized the use of nonmedicinal cannabis for adults over the age of 
21 where the state had developed statewide regulations for recreational cannabis, allowing 
licenses for adult-use businesses effective January 1, 2018.  She also defined Commercial 
Cannabis Tax, as a tax imposed on the purchasers of cannabis and cannabis products from 
cannabis retailers, which tax may be a general tax (simple majority vote) or special tax (2/3 voter 
approval).  If a special tax, the proceeds generated from the position of the tax required the funds 
to be placed in a separate fund outside of the General Fund earmarked for specific uses.   
 
Finance Director Guillory clarified the Pinole Municipal Code (PMC) currently prohibited marijuana 
dispensaries and commercial marijuana cultivation.  Voters may impose a tax on cannabis 
businesses if the City permitted them to operate by amending the PMC.  She highlighted the 
considerations for the City to consider a Commercial Cannabis Tax, including the type of tax, 
general or special tax or revenue sharing agreement; type of retail, storefront or non-storefront; 
selection of cannabis retailers, requests for proposals for open application process; tax rate, 
appropriate tax rate to impose on retail cannabis sales and tax receipts; and the amount of 
revenue to be generated from the cannabis sales with the tax receipts as a percentage of the 
revenue budget and tax receipts compared to the total General Fund revenue budget.   
 
Additional considerations included the rate in which the retail cannabis sales were taxed at the 
state and local levels, with the state imposing a 15 percent excise tax on gross receipts and with 
many jurisdictions having decreased and suspended their cannabis tax rates.  There was a fair 
amount of experience with local commercial cannabis taxes, with an estimate for the City of Pinole 
required to make certain assumptions about retail business activity.   
 
Finance Director Guillory highlighted the statistics of jurisdictions with Commercial Cannabis Tax 
measures from the cities of Benicia, Berkeley, El Cerrito, Emeryville, Hayward and Martinez, 
which included the type of tax for each jurisdiction and the percentage of General Fund Revenue 
Budget, as outlined in the September 5, 2023 staff report.   
 
Finance Director Guillory recommended the City Council receive the report and provide direction 
as appropriate on next steps.  She advised that staff would continue to work with consulting firm 
Baker Tilly to assist to identify local tax options.   
 
Council member Sasai asked whether the City of Pinole was currently capturing any taxes from 
online retail sales for cannabis delivery to Pinole residents. 
 
Finance Director Guillory stated she would have to review that since she currently did not believe 
the City taxed businesses that delivered cannabis to Pinole residents.   
 
Council member Sasai understood the PMC currently prohibited marijuana dispensaries and 
commercial marijuana cultivation and asked whether a ballot measure would be required to 
change the PMC.   
 


22 of 273







 


Pinole City Council Regular Meeting  


September 5, 2023   


Page 14 
 


City Attorney Casher clarified that action would be done separately from a ballot measure via 
amendment to the current ordinance.  He suggested the City Council wait for the results of a ballot 
measure to determine whether that amendment would be necessary.  He clarified there were 
some permitted recreational grows available under state law, he was unsure of the number of 
plants residents may have, but the PMC restricted what was not permitted under state law.   
 
Council member Sasai asked whether the City would engage with a consultant firm to assist with 
a fiscal analysis of a Commercial Cannabis Tax and conduct research and public outreach, and 
whether it would be feasible for a ballot measure to be included in the 2024 General Election, and 
Finance Director Guillory suggested 2024 would be feasible.   
 
In response to the Mayor Pro Tem, Finance Director Guillory again clarified the statistics for the 
jurisdictions with commercial cannabis tax measures, particularly the information for the City of 
Berkeley.  As to whether increased police services may be required by allowing commercial 
cannabis in the City, she was uncertain of the costs but noted that working out the regulatory 
structure would be a big part of the ballot measure, a question she could pose to the consultant. 
 
Council member Tave commented that when he had been a member of the Planning 
Commission, there had been serious concern with the use of cash involved with commercial 
cannabis retailers and the policing that may be involved.  He appreciated the information provided 
from other jurisdictions and asked whether the PMC prevented the City from generating any 
revenue from the cannabis industry. 
 
City Attorney Casher advised there was nothing explicit in the PMC that would prevent the City 
from collecting tax revenue generated from commercial cannabis.  
 
Council member Tave asked for more information on the Request for Proposal (RFP) process to 
select operators if the City were to consider the RFP process.    
 
Finance Director Guillory described the RFP process as one that varied greatly, was a highly 
selective process with established criteria, applicable for a very short period of time where some 
cities had set up selection committees comprised of staff, elected officials and the public.  She 
did not have specific examples of the RFPs used by the jurisdictions staff had researched.   
 
City Attorney Casher added that typically the RFP process would involve the City Council directing 
staff to select numbers on the permits to be issued with the RFP to seek proposals from that 
number of operators, subject to specific criteria and there could be restrictions placed on zoning, 
conditions on the types of security involved and conditions to address safety concerns.   
 
Mayor Murphy appreciated the statistical information from other jurisdictions in a chart form.  He 
was interested in policing costs and estimates for the tax rate for staff time overall that would be 
involved depending on the tax rate option provided.  He reported the Department of Health and 
Human Services had recently sent a letter to the Drug Enforcement Administration (DEA) to 
reclassify marijuana and cannabis as a Schedule 2 Drug, with cannabis open to medical and 
university research and income and state tax deductions.  As the nationwide conversation 
progressed on this topic, he was curious how those changes in classification may impact the City 
of Pinole or change the City’s relationship with Contra Costa College.  He also understood a 
commercial cannabis business would be unable to bank in the City of Pinole.   
 


23 of 273







 


Pinole City Council Regular Meeting  


September 5, 2023   


Page 15 
 


City Attorney Casher explained that since the federal government regulated and treated marijuana 
as a controlled substance, most Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) banks approved 
by the federal government would not accept dispensaries as clients, which was part of the reason 
the state was considering the establishment of state level banking operations for dispensaries 
and why there was primarily cash involved in such businesses.   
 
Mayor Murphy commented that as the City Council considered possible changes to the PMC, 
there needed to be further discussion on how to keep business owners and the community safe 
and understand the banking and financial aspect of the businesses.  He also clarified with the 
Finance Director that there was some proprietary information involved from other jurisdictions that 
staff was unable to include in the statistical information provided from other jurisdictions and the 
reasons why that information was proprietary, such as the taxable sales from a specific 
dispensary as an example. 
 
Mayor Murphy understood that a Commercial Cannabis Tax would be different from the cost of a 
business license and he clarified with the Finance Director the business license fee would fall in 
line with the business license structure.  The City of Pinole’s business license tax was different 
for different types of businesses and that would be evaluated for a commercial cannabis business 
to determine the business license fee rate.     
 
Council member Martinez-Rubin understood that tax receipts were proprietary and smaller 
businesses in the City that were non-cannabis related were unable to determine their contribution 
to the overall sales tax revenue to the City.  She asked whether there was an alternative way 
beyond volume of production, sales, square footage or other method that may appropriately 
include cannabis dispensaries.  She suggested there was an incomplete discussion on the 
possible consequences of a commercial cannabis business, and finding the nexus between the 
proposed tax and the benefits to the City, remained to be discussed.   
 
City Manager Murray commented that one of the difficulties of taking another jurisdiction’s tax 
receipts and using it as a proxy for the City of Pinole was that there would be some cannibalization 
of sales from other areas.  How many taxed commercial cannabis businesses that were located 
in each jurisdiction and how much they were earning overall in receipts was public information, 
but they could not link it to specific businesses, and they had to review the geography and demand 
to determine the likely sales.   
 
Council member Martinez-Rubin stated the City Council needed to discuss what direction they 
wanted economic development to take and determine the benefits to the City.  In addition to an 
actual retail outlet for such a product, she wanted to know the types of products available in a 
dispensary, such as anything that contained cannabis and what such a business needed to have 
in order to survive.  She also wanted to know what made a cannabis business successful and 
sustainable in a small town and suggested there was historical information from the State of 
Colorado, the first state to allow cannabis to be legalized, which was worth checking out.    
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS OPENED  
 
Rafael Menis, Pinole, asked whether the order in which the tax options were being presented as 
part of agenda Items 12A and B had been based on the likely amount of revenue to be generated 
or based on when things were ready, and asked whether there was a list of what would be 
presented.  


24 of 273







 


Pinole City Council Regular Meeting  


September 5, 2023   


Page 16 
 


Referencing the information for the City of Martinez, Mr. Menis found that the City of Martinez had 
a disproportionate rate of income based on its population size and raw percentage of budget, and 
with the exception of the City of El Cerrito, every other city had taxes shown as a general tax on 
gross profits.  He noted the City of Martinez had a community benefits agreement that was non-
public and not a tax required to be voted on by voters.   
 
As to the public safety concerns with commercial cannabis businesses, Mr. Menis recalled in 2018 
the reason the then-City Council had not moved forward with any potential taxes was that it 
wanted to wait to see the overall outcome with regard to safety concerns and implementation of 
the tax.  He suggested there was currently enough data to address those issues and the public 
safety costs in order to make those decisions.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS CLOSED  
 
Council member Martinez-Rubin referenced the statistical information provided for the City of El 
Cerrito and clarified with the Finance Director the actual cannabis tax. 
 
Finance Director Guillory acknowledged that based on the information the percentage had 
decreased even though the annual gross receipts had increased.  She had no explanation for that 
and would try to get more information from El Cerrito.   
 
Mayor Murphy asked how to consider the land use policies around permitting and asked whether 
that had been explored with the samples provided from other jurisdictions.  He referenced a 
current referendum that separated refineries and other uses such as nursing homes, schools and 
other public places from cannabis businesses, and asked whether that would be part of 
Proposition 64 and whether staff had explored that issue.   
 
City Attorney Casher confirmed there were restrictions and limitations where commercial 
cannabis dispensaries could be located under state law.  The City may amend and update its 
zoning code to allow such a business as a permitted use in certain zones permitted under state 
law and in an area the City Council determined appropriate, which were typically industrial areas 
away from schools and community centers.   
 
Mayor Murphy asked about the City’s viability to actually have such businesses and where they 
could be located suggesting Fitzgerald Drive may be the only conducive location based on state 
law restrictions.  He wanted more information from staff on that topic and prior to consideration of 
an update to the PMC.   
 
City Attorney Casher reiterated the staff recommendation and stated the consulting firm would 
conduct that level of analysis, part of which would include the areas in the City where a cannabis 
dispensary may operate, which would inform the appropriate number and the sales tax revenue 
that could be generated from the different options.  If the City Council wanted to move forward 
with that it could discuss the zoning code amendments that would be needed, amendments to 
the PMC and then the ballot measure itself.   
 
Mayor Pro Tem Toms understood a Community Benefits Agreement would not go to the voters.  
She noted the cities of El Cerrito and Martinez had such an agreement which had shown a good 
amount of tax going to those jurisdictions. 
   


25 of 273







 


Pinole City Council Regular Meeting  


September 5, 2023   


Page 17 
 


Council member Sasai asked of the approximate cost for a consultant firm to conduct the fiscal 
analysis, to which Finance Director Guillory explained that HdL, the consulting firm the City had 
worked with on its sales and property taxes, had a unit dedicated to this topic and she could get 
quotes from the firm.  She otherwise had no idea on the specific costs.   
 
Council member Sasai suggested having that fiscal analysis information would be a good way to 
drive the conversation forward and also weigh the pros and cons of having cannabis in the City.   
  
ACTION:  Motion by Council members Sasai/Tave to direct staff to engage with a 
consulting firm to assist with a fiscal analysis on a potential cannabis tax.   
 
Vote:   Passed  4-1 


Ayes:   Murphy, Toms, Sasai, Tave  
Noes:   Martinez-Rubin  
Abstain: None  
Absent: None 


 
Mayor Murphy recommended staff consider partnership and collaboration with the Contra Costa 
County District Attorney’s Office and the Contra Costa County National Organization for the 
Reform of Marijuana Laws (NORML).  He reported in 2022, the District’s Attorney’s Office, 
NORML and some elected leaders had done a Town Hall presentation on cannabis consumption 
and commercial retail use, and he wanted to know the findings and whether anything had been 
done since that conversation.  He was also interested in working with health partners, such as 
Kaiser Permanente and asked whether there was a way to help with the PMC update and where 
and how those health organizations would encourage a cannabis tax to be used, what programs 
the tax could be used for and coordinate efforts with the other jurisdictions staff had referenced.   
 


B. Background Information on Vacant Parcel Tax [Action:  Receive Report and 
Provide Direction (Guillory)] 


 
Finance Director Guillory provided a PowerPoint presentation with background information on a 
Vacant Parcel Tax, a special, non-value based tax on real property generally based on either a 
flat pre-parcel rate or a variable rate depending on size, use or number of units on a parcel; levied 
on residential, condominium, nonresidential/commercial, undeveloped land; allowed uses to be 
broad or narrow; the tax must identify which services or facilities the tax proceeds may be used 
to fund; possible uses included police and fire services, parks and open space, infrastructure 
improvement and libraries; and because the vacant parcel tax was a special tax, it must be 
approved by a two-thirds vote of the electorate.   
 
The City Council would need to determine the services to be funded by the tax, decide if the 
purpose of the tax was to raise money or make sure property was put to use, consider experience 
with vacant parcel taxes was limited and there would be significant lag in collecting the tax, and 
there would be exemptions related to financial hardships, non-profit organizations and land that 
may have underlying issues such as soil contamination where the land could not be developed.   
 
Finance Director Guillory highlighted the details of other jurisdictions with a Vacant Parcel Tax 
that included the cities of Oakland and Berkeley, as outlined in the September 5, 2023 staff report.   
 


26 of 273







 


Pinole City Council Regular Meeting  


September 5, 2023   


Page 18 
 


Finance Director Guillory recommended the City Council receive the report and provide direction, 
as appropriate.  She added as with the prior presentation, the City was currently working with 
consulting firm Baker Tilly to identify potential revenue generating opportunities and would provide 
recommendations on various local tax options. If the City Council desired, it could consider 
engaging a consulting firm to conduct a study to identify vacant parcels in the City and determine 
what the potential revenue could be if a vacant parcel tax was established in Pinole. 
 
Council member Tave clarified the Vacant Parcel Tax used for the City of Berkeley.  He 
commented on the number of vacant parcels in Pinole and he wanted some incentive for vacant 
properties and commented on the process of land banking.  He understood a single-family 
residence may sit vacant for some time as well.  He asked the number of vacant single-family 
homes in Pinole.   
 
Finance Director Guillory stated she did not have that information and a similar question had been 
raised by a member of the public.  Staff was working with the Community Development and Public 
Works Directors to identify those properties and capture that information for both residential and 
nonresidential properties.   
 
Mayor Pro Tem Toms explained that the County Assessor’s Office had a list with use codes that 
included vacant lots, vacant lots zoned for multifamily and commercial but she was uncertain how 
to know when a built condominium or single-family residence was vacant since PG&E would likely 
not inform the City of non-service to the property.  She would be curious to know how many lots 
in Pinole had a use code of vacant lot.  She added she had been contacted by some property 
owners of vacant land in Pinole, who were not necessarily land banking, but who did not want to 
sell the property at a loss given that construction costs had risen to the point the property was not 
feasible for development.  Taxing those properties may force a sale that may result in a loss to 
the property owner.   
 
Council member Sasai asked whether the Vacant Parcel Tax could be designed to be proportional 
to the parcel size, to which Finance Director Guillory reiterated a Vacant Parcel Tax was a -special 
tax, a non-value-based tax on real property generally based on either a flat pre-parcel rate or a 
variable rate depending on size, use or number of units on a parcel.   
 
Council member Sasai asked what other cities had done to close loopholes and address those 
who were land banking or who owned adjacent vacant parcels. 
 
Finance Director Guillory explained she had not conducted that level of detail and would have to 
follow up.  The City of Oakland had a detailed program with a lot of literature and she could review 
it further.   
 
Council member Martinez-Rubin understood Council member Tave had requested this discussion 
as a future agenda item some time ago.  She asked whether it was intended as a potential option 
to create revenue for the City or to increase the housing stock.   
 
Referring to information provided for the Vacant Parcel Taxes in Oakland and Berkeley, Council 
member Martinez-Rubin commented on the shift in the anticipated volume of units available for 
housing and the tax revenue generated, with the revenue having decreased over time specifically 
in the City of Oakland, as an example.   


27 of 273







 


Pinole City Council Regular Meeting  


September 5, 2023   


Page 19 
 


Council member Martinez-Rubin also spoke to the unknown of available vacant lots in Pinole and 
the reason to consider any policy changes and consider the unintended consequences and risks 
to more than one segment of the community with a policy shift and the fact that this tax had been 
directed to property owners.  She emphasized that taking the pulse of property owners was 
something that would have to be done.  She asked about the minimum number of units over a 
range of tax levels that would make it cost beneficial to the City relative to the administrative costs 
associated with monitoring the fluctuation of vacancy rates of parcels and homes.   
 
Mayor Murphy agreed there was a need for an answer at some point.  He clarified with the Finance 
Director the City had a current process for property owners and tenants when a property had been 
rented with a tenant, where the property owner was required to disclose that information and 
obtain a business license from the City.  Monitoring and ensuring vacancy and length of vacancy 
would be part of the proposed Vacant Parcel Tax, which staff described as a self-reporting model.   
 
City Manager Murray advised some firms audited business licensees and if the City were to 
impose a Vacant Parcel Tax it may be a cost benefit for the City to engage a firm to provide that 
audit.  The consulting firm HdL had worked with the City in the past and provided such services 
for different taxes with options to be more proactive with the City.   
 
Mayor Murphy understood Oakland and Berkely wanted to not only ensure housing units but 
ensure stores had storefronts.  He wanted more information on what the vacant parcel tax funds 
could be used for and more detail on the definition of vacant parcel taxes.   
 
Finance Director Guillory explained that a vacant parcel tax was a special revenue tax based on 
vacant parcels.  For the City of Berkely, its vacant parcel tax had been based only on residential 
units whereas Oakland’s vacant parcel tax applied to commercial, undeveloped land, residential 
and condominiums.   
 
Mayor Murphy also sought more information from out of state options that may have done similar 
vacant parcel taxes, and Finance Director Guillory stated she had not done a nationwide search 
although there was a similar vacant parcel tax used in Vancouver.   
 
Mayor Murphy sought more information based on a global model and other options outside of the 
two provided for Oakland and Berkeley.  He wanted more information on the administrative costs 
and working with the County Assessor’s Office on their determination of vacant lots and more 
detail on the types of exemptions and the consequences good and bad related to the significant 
lag in the collection of the taxes with comparable models provided.   
 
Finance Director Guillory clarified if the City were to put a measure on the ballot for 2024, 
information would have to be collected on the number of vacant parcels, length of vacancy, and 
what would be subject to the vacant parcel tax and it would then have to go on the tax roll.  
Revenue would not be realized until December 2026 or January 2027 based on the timing of how 
the tax rolls worked.   
 
Mayor Pro Tem Toms reported the County Assessor’s Office included a data point in its database 
that included an exemption if one lived in their home and where they could take that exemption, 
and if not and if a built residence, it was likely to be a rental and those were the people that should 
have a business license.  A residential unit without a tenant was not reported to the County 
Assessor’s Office and was not a data point that was collected.   


28 of 273







 


Pinole City Council Regular Meeting  


September 5, 2023   


Page 20 
 


Council member Martinez-Rubin read into the record census data for the cities of Oakland and 
Berkely, jurisdictions with populations larger than Pinole, while the information for those 
jurisdictions offered an inkling of what may be possible, they were not comparable to Pinole in 
terms of the taxes that could be yielded or generated for vacant lots.  She emphasized that needed 
to be kept in mind.   
 
Council member Sasai suggested a vacant parcel tax in Pinole would serve as a disincentive for 
property owners to hold on to undeveloped parcels for years and decades leading to sites used 
for illegal dumping and blight and would make Pinole a more livable city for all, and he offered 
some examples of undeveloped sites along the San Pablo Avenue Corridor.  As the City checked 
the pulse of the property owners holding on to undeveloped parcels, the City should also check 
the pulse of small business owners and property owners of single-family properties adjacent to 
some of the City’s undeveloped parcels.   
 
Council member Martinez-Rubin suggested they should also keep in mind a problem that may be 
a code enforcement issue with a solution as opposed to changing an ordinance and levying taxes 
on private property.  She did not recommend going the route of proposing a Vacant Parcel Tax 
without first knowing they had done all they could with the current PMC and staff available.   
 
Mayor Murphy clarified the City Council was not imposing taxes but discussing the options with 
staff to return with more answers to questions.  He pointed out the City’s significant deferred 
maintenance and stated there was a need to discuss all viable options.   
 
Council member Martinez-Rubin looked forward to future discussions on possible options.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS OPENED  
 
Deputy Clerk Stone reported there were no comments from the public.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS CLOSED  
 
Council member Tave spoke to his intent for this agenda item and cited the number of vacant lots 
in the City, vacant storefronts and the City’s housing needs and the direction developers were 
going.  In his opinion, some of the vacant undeveloped parcels in the City needed vision and if 
that vision took years, the community was losing since these properties could be leased, changed 
to something different or provide parking while being sold.  The City’s Strategic Plan stated the 
City needed to be vibrant, and needed to ensure properties were moving.  He understood this 
topic required more discussion and while he understood Oakland and Berkeley had Vacant Parcel 
Taxes that worked for those jurisdictions, he was confident there was a model for Pinole that 
would be fair to people.  He commented there has been some potential seen in Pinole from 
realtors and developers and again suggested a vacant parcel tax could not only generate revenue 
but ensure an undeveloped parcel was put to use, and he again referenced the number of vacant 
parcels currently in Pinole.   
 
Council member Martinez-Rubin emphasized the need to know who they were targeting and 
focusing on that, the yield to be obtained and the incentive to whom.  She wanted to see what 
could be done prior to imposing or levying a tax on a certain sized lot and property owner.   
 


29 of 273







 


Pinole City Council Regular Meeting  


September 5, 2023   


Page 21 
 


Council member Tave suggested the concept of incentives had driven some recent development.   
He suggested penalties should also be discussed, suggested they were not targeting anyone and 
again suggested undeveloped vacant parcels were not benefitting the City.   
 
Mayor Murphy commented that safety was another issue that should be kept in mind when 
considering vacant lots and how in some ways a vacant lot may have divided a community due 
to the lack of action and possibly sitting vacant for years.  He suggested they should consider all 
financing options and ensure public properties in the City were set to good use and that residents 
felt safe in the community.  He thanked the Finance Director for the options provided for 
discussion to set the tone for increasing the standards for a vibrant Pinole they were trying to 
build.    
 
Mayor Pro Tem Toms suggested a database search of vacant parcels only could be done though 
ParcelQuest.  She suggested property owners could be sent a postcard survey with a QR code 
indicating the City was considering a Vacant Parcel Tax and asking why the land was vacant so 
the City had a better understanding of the vacancy.  She recognized some property owners may 
have purchased a lot as an investment, and there were likely different circumstances, but she 
would like to know the reasons.  While a Vacant Parcel Tax was one tool to get these properties 
developed, she preferred an option that did not involve the cost of an election and the cost of 
collecting a tax.  She noted a single-family residence or single-structure home, would not be 
reported as vacant other than stopping PG&E service, and PG&E did not share that information.   
 
Council member Martinez-Rubin offered a motion, seconded by Council member Tave for staff to 
proceed as mentioned in the staff report, carry on and blend in this idea as part of an option the 
consultant was looking at as part of the LTFP the consultant was preparing for the City.   
 
Council member Martinez-Rubin restated her motion when asked by Council member Sasai, to 
direct staff to approve the staff recommendation, as presented in the staff report, to work with the 
consultant involved with to take a look at the LTFP and consider what was presented today as 
one of the revenue-generating options.   
 
Council member Sasai commented the motion, as stated, had not included the entire staff 
recommendation as shown in the staff report.   
 
Council member Martinez-Rubin stated her motion had not included the second half of the staff 
recommendation unless that was what staff had in mind.  She wanted to avoid additional costs 
and just go along with the work the consultant had already been engaged in doing. 
 
Given some confusion with the staff recommendation and the motion as stated, Finance Director 
Guillory clarified the staff recommendation was to include a recommendation for possible local 
tax options, with staff to return with a list of recommendations but it did not include a 
recommendation to engage another consultant to do a fiscal analysis on this topic specifically.   
 
Mayor Murphy understood the staff recommendation was to identify future generating 
opportunities which the Finance Director confirmed.   
 
ACTION:  Motion by Council members Martinez-Rubin/Tave to direct staff to work with the 
consultant involved with taking a look at the LTFP and consider what was presented today 
as one of the revenue generating options.   


30 of 273







 


Pinole City Council Regular Meeting  


September 5, 2023   


Page 22 
 


Vote:   Passed  5-0  
Ayes:   Murphy, Toms, Martinez-Rubin, Sasai, Tave  
Noes:   None  
Abstain: None  
Absent: None 


 
Council member Sasai suggested there was an opportunity to craft and fine tune a model that 
worked for the City of Pinole specifically and to be fair for all.  He wanted to keep advancing the 
discussion and bring this possibility to the voters of Pinole to decide eventually but data was 
needed in order to do that.  He offered a motion to direct staff to engage a consulting firm to 
conduct a study to identify vacant parcels in the City and determine what the potential revenue 
could be if a Vacant Parcel Tax was established in Pinole. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Toms reiterated the City had a database to conduct a search to identify vacant 
parcels, and the Finance Director confirmed the City did not need a consultant to identify vacant 
parcels in the City.   
 
Council member Sasai rescinded his motion and offered a new motion to direct staff to engage a 
consulting firm to determine the potential for revenue with a Vacant Parcel Tax in Pinole. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Toms suggested that work could be done with an Excel spreadsheet.   
 
On the motion, Finance Director Guillory clarified staff had access to identify vacant parcels and 
had to make some assumptions.   
 
Mayor Murphy read into the record the staff recommendation as shown in the September 5, 2023 
staff report which read:  If the City Council desires, it could consider engaging a consulting firm to 
conduct a study to identify vacant parcels in the City and determine what the potential revenue 
could be if a vacant parcel tax were established in Pinole. Based on the staff recommendation, 
he understood a consultant would be hired to answer those questions, but he now understood an 
Excel spreadsheet could be prepared to answer those questions.  He requested clarification.   
 
Finance Director Guillory clarified the thought process for the next steps was whether the City 
Council desired a comprehensive study for a Vacant Parcel Tax, such as structure, fee structure 
and identification of vacant parcels that would require assistance from a consultant.  Staff had 
access to the database as part of ParcelQuest, for a quick estimated analysis, but a deeper dive 
for a full program and a more structured model required the engagement of a consultant.   
 
In response to Council member Sasai, Finance Director Guillory clarified staff could also provide 
the numbers for the revenue for the different tax levels.  It was also clarified the original motion 
from Council member Martinez-Rubin had not included that information.   
 
City Clerk Bell asked for staff clarification from the City Council on what action was actually taking 
place as part of the original approved motion.   
 
 
 
 


31 of 273







 


Pinole City Council Regular Meeting  


September 5, 2023   


Page 23 
 


Finance Director Guillory asked for direction from the City Council on what level of analysis the 
City Council wanted to see to help inform its decision.  She asked whether the City Council wanted 
a model on different tax rate levels or a comprehensive Vacant Parcel Tax that would include 
possible exemptions, the tax rate, the basic criteria around a program and direction around that 
which would determine whether or not to engage a consultant.   
 
Mayor Murphy referenced Page 304 of 322 of the agenda packets and again read into the record 
the staff recommendation under next steps.  The initial motion from Council member Martinez-
Rubin included the first sentence of the staff recommendation but not the second sentence of the 
staff recommendation which read:  If the City Council desires, it could consider engaging a 
consulting firm to conduct a study to identify vacant parcels in the City and determine what the 
potential revenue could be if a vacant parcel tax were established in Pinole. 
 
Council member Martinez-Rubin reconfirmed her motion and Council member Tave as the 
second to the motion commented on his understanding analysis would be done in-house.   
 
Mayor Murphy clarified based on the first motion the analysis would be done in-house but the 
team was currently working with the consulting firm Baker Tilly to identify potential revenue 
generating opportunities and would provide recommendations on various tax options as outlined 
in the staff report.  If the City Council desired, it could also consider engaging a consulting firm to 
conduct a study to identify vacant parcels in the City and determine what the potential revenue 
could be if a Vacant Parcel Tax was established in Pinole; however, based on the discussion, he 
understood staff could do that work fully in-house.   
 
City Manager Murray clarified there were some details where they would like to work with the 
consultant.  He clarified the City Council already provided direction to advance the work with 
Baker Tilly, which scope of work would come up with a rough estimate of revenues related to a 
mechanism like this and estimating that revenue for this type of mechanism was much less 
complicated than the prior mechanism for a Commercial Cannabis Tax.  He suggested the motion 
the City Council had already passed would be sufficient direction and staff would work with Baker 
Tilly to return with estimates they and City staff could do with the existing scope and in-house 
resources, and if the City Council wanted more information, it may provide direction at that time.  
 
13. CITIZENS TO BE HEARD (Continued from Item 6) (Public Comments)  
Only open to members of the public who did not speak under the first Citizens to be Heard, 
Agenda Item 6.   
Citizens may speak under any item not listed on the Agenda.  The time limit is 3 minutes and 
is subject to modification by the Mayor. Individuals may not share or offer time to another speaker.  
Pursuant to provisions of the Brown Act, no action may be taken on a matter unless it is listed on 
the agenda, or unless certain emergency or special circumstances exist.  The City Council may 
direct staff to investigate and/or schedule certain matters for consideration at a future Council 
meeting. 
 
Rafael Menis, Pinole, suggested if the City were to continue to ignore unpaid pension liabilities, 
backfilled sewer lines, storm drains and roads there would still be more imminent consequences 
from actions the City Council had already taken.  As an example, on August 15, 2023 the City 
Council had taken action to change the COLA for various bargaining units with various associated 
costs, some of which had been budgeted and some which carried consequences.    


32 of 273







 


Pinole City Council Regular Meeting  


September 5, 2023   


Page 24 
 


Mr. Menis suggested the increased spending would also trigger increased spending of the City’s 
reserves.  Even if the City Council did not want to raise taxes there were already impending 
consequences from past actions the City Council had taken which would require some action to 
redress, either taxes raised to pay for it, cuts to offset needed revenues needed to offset raises 
and increased reserve requirements, which was why he had brought up a request for a future 
agenda item for the LTFP to consider taxes besides those under discussion.  He asked whether 
the taxes presented had been based on revenue or because they were ready.  He asked the 
Mayor to request that staff identify the taxes being considered by the City.   
 
Anthony Vossbrink, Pinole, referenced a recent traffic accident on Pinole Valley Road across the 
Ellerhorst Elementary School playground next to Station 74, which had damaged several feet of 
the guardrail that protected traffic from Pinole Creek, but nothing had been done and there were 
no warning barriers, signage or cones.  A temporary guardrail on Appian Way and I-80 had also 
never been repaired.  He suggested the City Council should direct the City Manager to get basic 
infrastructure needs met prior to his retirement such as the replacement of numerous street light 
bulbs along Henry Avenue, Pinole Valley Road and San Pablo Avenue.  He also expressed 
concern with the City continuing to use the Adobe Trail as a dumping ground.   
 
Cordell Hindler, Richmond, invited the City Council to the Council of Industries Shoreline Boat 
Tour on October 6, 2023 at 1:00 p.m. at the Harbormaster’s Building.  He suggested the meeting 
could have been shortened and objected to the lengthy discussion on taxes not fair to the public 
waiting to provide comments.  He questioned the number of proclamations on one agenda and 
suggested proclamations should be broken up between meetings, and he objected to Mr. 
Vossbrink’s comments being unfairly cut off and suggested the City Council should also be limited 
to the same time restrictions as citizens to help conclude City Council meetings.   
 
In response to the Mayor, Finance Director Guillory clarified that agenda Items 12A and B had 
been brought forward as future agenda item requests some time ago, with the LTFP to include a 
menu of tax options and possible extension of existing taxes, and the consultant would review a 
wide variety of options to help inform the City Council’s decision.   The LTFP was anticipated to 
be brought to the City Council on October 17, 2023.   
 
Mayor Murphy asked staff to provide the City Council a status update on the Pinole Valley Road 
accident and identify the infrastructure improvements needed in the area.   
 
14. ADJOURNMENT to the Regular City Council Meeting of September 19, 2023 in 


Remembrance of Amber Swartz.     
 
At 10:40 p.m., Mayor Murphy adjourned the meeting to the Regular City Council Meeting of 
September 19, 2023 in Remembrance of Amber Swartz.   
 
Submitted by: 
 
_________________________________ 
Heather Bell, CMC 
City Clerk 
 
Approved by City Council: 
  


33 of 273







34 of 273







35 of 273







36 of 273







37 of 273







38 of 273







39 of 273







40 of 273







41 of 273







42 of 273







43 of 273







44 of 273







45 of 273







  


 
   


 


 CITY COUNCIL 


 REPORT 9C 


  
 


 
DATE:   SEPTEMBER 19, 2023 
 
TO:    MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 
FROM: MISHA DHILLON, CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT AND ENVIRONMENTAL 


PROGRAM MANAGER 


 
SUBJECT: ADOPT A RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT THE ELECTRIC VEHICLE 


CHARGING STATIONS PROJECT (CIP PROJECT # FA2002) AS 
COMPLETE AND APPROVE FILING OF NOTICE OF COMPLETION 


 


RECOMMENDATION 
 


Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a resolution to accept the Electric Vehicle 
Charging Stations project (CIP Project # FA2002, the “Project”) as complete and approve 
filing of Notice of Completion (NOC). 
 
BACKGROUND 
 


The Project is an approved project in the City of Pinole’s current adopted Capital 
Improvement Plan (CIP) and involves installation of a Level II dual-port EV-Charging 
Station at the parking lot serving the Public Safety Building.  
 
In October 2020, the City reserved a charging rebate in the amount of $6,000 with Marin 
Clean Energy (MCE) for installation of publicly available charging infrastructure and 
technical assistance. Technical assistance provided by MCE covers a site assessment 
which includes a review of the Americans With Disabilities Act (ADA) standards and 
options for charging station placement, a load study to understand the proposed site’s 
electrical capacity and if electrical upgrades are necessary, and an EV charger planning 
report.  
 
City staff worked with the technical assistance provider to select a publicly accessible site 


where installation of charging infrastructure was feasible. A load study was conducted at 


the public parking lot serving the Public Safety Building located at 880 Tennent Ave. The 


results of the load study indicated that the site could support charging infrastructure.  


 


In April 2022, the City retained a Consultant to develop plans and specifications for the 


Project. On October 17, 2022, City staff released the Project bid and bids were due on 


November 2, 2022.  


 


46 of 273







City Council Report  
September 19, 2023   2 


On November 15, 2022, City Council adopted Resolution 2022-105 to award a 


construction contract to the lowest responsive and responsible bidder, Lord’s Electric 


(Contractor) for the Project.  


 


In January 2023, the City also entered into an agreement with West Contra Costa 


Transportation Advisory Committee (WCCTAC) for reimbursement of up to $4,000 for the 


Project. Per the agreement, the Contractor was required to complete an  Electric Vehicle 


Infrastructure Training Program (EVITP) certification.  


 


After contract execution, the Contractor began the EVITP certification process. Due to 


supply chain issues, there was a twelve-week lead time on the charging equipment. The 


Contractor completed the EVITP certification in January 2023 and was issued a Notice to 


Proceed on January 24, 2023.  


 


REVIEW & ANALYSIS 
 


The building code requires that the EV charging stations are constructed to be ADA-


compliant which includes adequate space for exiting and entering the vehicle, 


unobstructed access to the charger, free movement around the charger and connection 


point on the vehicle. A side access aisle is also required to allow space for wheelchair 


and equipment in and out of the space. The Project involves concrete removal and 


demolition, concrete placement, striping, signage, conduit installation, conductor 


installation, general electrical work, and installation of electric vehicle charger. While 


waiting for the charging equipment, the Contractor completed work related to the 


sidewalk, curb ramp, and installed electrical conduit.   


 


In June 2023, the Contractor installed the dual port Level II charging station and striping.  


Staff performed the final inspection and determined that all work was satisfactory. Staff 


recommends that the City Council accept the Project as complete and authorize staff to 


file a Notice of Completion with the Contra Costa County Clerk Recorder. The filing of the 


Notice of Completion is required to start the clock for stop notice claims as detailed in the 


Public Contract Code.  


 
Further, upon acceptance, staff will furnish the Contractor with the agreed upon 5% 
retention amount. 
 
The Contractor is required to correct any defects for the Project that arise within one year 
and the Contractor has submitted the required bond to secure this obligation.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 


47 of 273







City Council Report  
September 19, 2023   3 


The adopted CIP has $80,630 programmed for the Project. The total cost of construction 
for the Project was $72,450 which includes 5% retention. Staff expects to receive a 
reimbursement totaling $10,000 for the Project. Reimbursement requests have been 
submitted to MCE and WCCTAC for $6,000 and $4,000, respectively.  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
 
A. Resolution 


 
B. Notice of Completion 


48 of 273







RESOLUTION NO. 2023-___ 


RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PINOLE, 
COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, ACCEPTING THE 


ELECTRIC VEHICLE CHARGING STATOIN PROJECT (CIP PROJECT # FA2002) AS 
COMPLETE AND APPROVING THE FILING OF THE NOTICE OF COMPLETION 


WHEREAS, the City of Pinole (“City”) adopted the FY 2022/23 through FY 2026/27 
Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) which includes the Electric Vehicle Charging Station 
project (CIP Project # PA2203, the “Project”) as a funded project; and 


WHEREAS, the Project involves concrete removal and demolition, concrete 
placement, striping, signage, conduit installation, conductor installation, general electrical 
work, and installation of a level II dual port Electric Vehicle Charging Station at the parking 
lot (APN 401-164-002) serving the Pinole Public Safety Building located at 836 Tennent 
Ave.; and 


WHEREAS, on October 17, 2022, staff released the Project bid and bids were due 
on November 2, 2022 ; and  


WHEREAS, on November 15, 2022, City Council adopted Resolution 2022-105 to 
award a construction contract to the lowest responsive and responsible bidder, Lord’s 
Electric (Contractor) for the Project; and 


WHEREAS, City staff reserved rebates from Marin Clean Energy and West Contra 
Costa Transportation Authority for the Project; and 


WHEREAS, the conditions of the rebates required the Contractor to obtain a 
Electric Vehicle Infrastructure Training Program (EVITP) certification; and 


WHEREAS, the obtained the required EVITP certification in January 2022 and 
subsequently was issued a Notice to Proceed on January 24, 2023; and  


WHEREAS, in June 2023, the Contractor completed the Project; and 


WHEREAS, staff has performed the final inspection and determined that all work 
was satisfactory; and 


WHEREAS, the Notice of Completion has been prepared for recordation in 
accordance with the California Public Contract Code.  


NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of 
Pinole does hereby accept the Electric Vehicle Charging Station project (CIP Project # 
FA2002) as complete and approves the filing of the Notice of Completion.  


ATTACHMENT A


49 of 273







PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Pinole City Council held on 
the 19th of September by the following vote, to-wit: 


 
AYES:  COUNCILMEMBERS:  
  
NOES: COUNCILMEMBERS:  
  
ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS:  
  
ABSTAIN: COUNCILMEMBERS:  


 
I hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was regularly introduced, passed, and 
adopted on the 19th day of September 2023.  
 
 
____________________________ 
Heather Bell 
City Clerk 


50 of 273







Recording Requested By and Return To: 


City of Pinole 
Public Works 
2131 Pear Street 
Pinole, CA 94564 


NOTICE OF COMPLETION 


NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN of completion of the following public work, generally described as Electric 
Vehicle Charging Station: 


1. Description of public work improvement:


Name of project: Electric Vehicle Charging Station
Contract No. FA2002
Location of Work: 836 Tennent Ave., Pinole, CA 94564 (APN: 401-164-002)
Scope of Work: Installation of a level II dual port electric vehicle charging station at the parking lot
serving the Public Safety Building. Work also involves concrete removal and demolition, concrete
placement, striping, signage, conduit installation, conductor installation, and general electrical
work at the project site.


2. Contract for the performance of such work was awarded to:


Lord’s Electric Inc.  
1513 Sport Dr., Suite 100A 
Sacramento, CA 95834 


3. Value of the work is: $72,450


4. Project Owner:


City of Pinole 
2131 Pear Street 
Pinole, CA 94564 


5. The real property described herein is owned by the City of Pinole in fee.


6. Construction Lender: None


7. Date of Completion: July 10, 2023


I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct. 


Recording of this document is requested for and on behalf of the City of Pinole pursuant to Section 6103 
and 27383 of the Government Code.  


CITY OF PINOLE 
A Municipal Corporation 


______________________ 


Sanjay Mishra, P.E. 
Public Works Director 


ATTACHMENT B


51 of 273







CITY COUNCIL 


REPORT 


9D 


DATE: SEPTEMBER 19, 2023 


TO: MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 


FROM: SANJAY MISHRA, PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR 
MISHA DHILLON, CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT AND ENVIRONMENTAL 
PROGRAM MANAGER 


SUBJECT: FISCAL YEAR (FY) 2022/23 FOURTH QUARTER REPORT ON STATUS 
OF CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (CIP) PROJECTS 


RECOMMENDATION 


Staff recommends that the City Council receive the Fiscal Year (FY) 2022/23 Fourth 
Quarter Report on the status of Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) projects.  


BACKGROUND 


The CIP is a multi-year plan/forecast of the City’s capital improvement projects. The first 
year of the CIP is the proposed capital project plan and capital budget for that fiscal year. 


The City creates an updated CIP each year based on the condition of the City’s current 
capital assets, the desire for new capital assets, and available funding. Projects in the 
CIP address the City’s major types of capital assets: facilities, parks, sanitary sewer 
collection and treatment infrastructure, stormwater infrastructure, and roads. The City 
owns considerable capital assets in other classes as well, including streetlights, traffic 
control devices, sidewalks, street trees, trash capture devices, waste bins and 
enclosures, traffic/wayfinding signage, benches, bike racks, monument signs, fleet, and 
fiber optic conduit.  


The CIP serves as a tool for staff to plan, implement, and manage improvements and 
ongoing upgrades to the City’s infrastructure. The Administration and Engineering 
Division in the Public Works Department is responsible for identifying and completing City 
capital projects. 


REVIEW & ANALYSIS 


The City’s adopted CIP (Attachment A) contains construction projects and infrastructure 
assessments. The infrastructure assessments included in the CIP will aid the City in 
identifying and prioritizing construction projects and will identify funding opportunities for 
future projects. 


52 of 273







City Council Report  
September 19, 2023   2 


Attachment B is a summary of the CIP project lifecycle and a status of each project 
programmed for FY 2022/23 in the CIP as of the end of the fourth quarter of FY 2022/23.  
 
Fourth Quarter CIP Highlights 
 


• Hazel Street Storm Drain Improvements (SW1901) 
On June 6, 2023, City Council awarded a construction contract to the lowest 
responsive and responsible bidder, W.R. Forde Associates Inc. (Contractor), to 
construct a new storm drain with connections to existing storm water facilities on 
Hazel Street. The existing stormwater collection is an open trench system and 
needs to be converted to an underground conveyance system to facilitate 
construction of a through road (CIP Project # RO1802). The Contractor satisfied 
the insurance, business license, and bonding requirements and was issued a 
Notice to Proceed (NTP) on June 21, 2023.  A pre-construction meeting was held 
on July 17, 2023. Due to supply chain issues, there was an extensive lead time on 
an essential material required for the project. The Contractor expects to receive 
the material by the end of September and anticipates completion of work by the 
end of the calendar year.  


 


• Playground Rubberized Surface Improvements (PA2203) 
In January 2023, the play surface was renovated at Pinole Valley Park with pour-
in-place playground surfacing. This project also involves installation of new 
rubberized surface at Fernandez Park. All work was completed on May 4, 2023. 
Staff performed a final inspection and determined all the work has been completed 
to satisfaction.  


 


• Safety Improvements at Tennent Ave./Pear & Plum St. (RO2304) 
On June 20, 2023, City Council awarded a construction contract to the lowest 
responsive and responsible bidder, Xcel Engineering (Contractor) to install high 
visibility continental crosswalks on all legs of both intersections, and interim curb 
extensions using pavement markings and flexible delineator posts. In addition, 
Rectangular Rapid Flashing Beacons will be installed at the Tennent Ave. and 
Plum St. intersection. Due to supply chain issues, there is an 8-week lead time on 
the Rectangular Rapid Flash Beacon. The estimated project completion date is 
October 31, 2023. The goal of these improvements is to reduce traffic speed and 
offer shorter crossing distances for pedestrians crossing the crosswalks.  
 


• Electric Vehicle (EV) Charging Stations (FA2002)  


On November 15, 2022, City Council awarded a contract to Lord’s Electric for 
installation of a Level II dual port charging station at the parking lot serving the 
Public Safety Building. However, due to supply chain issues, there was a twelve-
week lead time on the charging equipment. The building code requires that the EV 
charging stations are constructed to be ADA-compliant which includes adequate 
space for exiting and entering the vehicle, unobstructed access to the charger, free 
movement around the charger and connection point on the vehicle. A side access 
aisle is also required to allow space for wheelchair and equipment in and out of the 


53 of 273







City Council Report  
September 19, 2023   3 


space. The project involves concrete removal and demolition, concrete placement, 
striping, signage, conduit installation, conductor installation, general electrical 
work, and installation of electric vehicle charger. The project was completed in 
June 2023. Staff performed a final inspection and determined all the work has been 
completed to satisfaction. 
 


• Municipal Broadband Feasibility (IN2102) 
On April 11, 2023, City staff released a Request for Proposals (RFP) soliciting 
proposals to complete a Broadband Opportunities Assessment. On June 20, 2023, 
City Council awarded a contract to CSW/ST-2 to complete a Broadband 
Opportunities assessment. This project is intended to understand the high-speed 
connectivity available to community residents, businesses, and other 
organizations in terms of speed, coverage, and cost. The study will also evaluate 
whether there are gaps relative to modern standards, and if so, the study will 
identify and assess potential City interventions including public-private 
partnerships. This project is expected to be complete before the end of the 
calendar year and the final report will be presented to City Council.  
 


• Recycled Water Feasibility (IN2103) 
On April 11, 2023, City staff released a Request for Proposals (RFP) soliciting 
proposals to assess opportunities to reuse the water outputted by the Pinole-
Hercules Water Pollution Control Plant. On June 20, 2023, City Council awarded 
a contract to West Yost to complete a Water Reuse Opportunities Assessment. 
This project involves reviewing current and projected future trends in water reuse 
in Norther California and includes a condition assessment and opportunities 
analysis. The final report will be presented to City Council.  
 


• Storm Drain Master Plan (IN1703) 
On June 1 , 2023, City staff released a Request for Proposals (RFP) soliciting 
proposals to develop the City’s Storm Drain Master Plan to identify, analyze, and 
prioritize the capital improvement needs of the City’s storm water management 
system to reduce flood risks, enhance public safety, and protect City assets.  


 


• Energy Conservation, Generation, & Storage Assessment (IN2201) 
On June 6, 2023, City staff released a Request for Proposals (RFP) soliciting 
proposals to complete an Energy Conservation, Generation, & Storage 
Assessment. This project will identify steps that the City could take to conserve, 
generate, and store energy at City facilities. This project involves an assessment 
of the City’s energy usage in its facilities and infrastructure, and identification of 
cost effective and environmentally responsible investments in energy 
conservation, generation, and storage. This project also includes identification of 
investments that will make the City more resilient during power outages, natural 
disasters and impacts of climate change.   
 


FISCAL IMPACT 


 


54 of 273







City Council Report  
September 19, 2023   4 


Projects have budgeted sources of funds which have been previously approved by City 
Council. There is no fiscal impact associated with this status update. 
 


ATTACHMENT(S) 
 
A. Adopted Capital Improvement Plan for FY 2022/23 through FY 2026/27 


 
B. CIP Project Lifecycle and Project Status Summary 
 


55 of 273







          CITY OF PINOLE              


CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 


FY 2022/23 – 2026/27 


Adopted: June 21, 2022


ATTACHMENT A


56 of 273







 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 


CAPITAL 
IMPROVEMENT PLAN
FY 2022/23 – 2026/27 


 


 


CITY COUNCIL 
Vincent Salimi, Mayor 


Devin T. Murphy, Mayor Pro Tem 


Anthony L. Tave, Council Member 


Maureen Toms, Council Member 


Norma Martínez-Rubin, Council Member 


 


CITY MANAGER 
Andrew Murray 


 


PUBLIC WORKS 
DIRECTOR  
Sanjay Mishra 


 


CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT 
& ENVIRONMENTAL 
PROGRAM MANAGER 
Misha Kaur  


 


 


 
57 of 273







 
 


CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN: FY 2022/23 THROUGH FY 2026/27 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 


 


 
Introduction ................................................................................................................................. 1 


Next Steps in Capital Planning .................................................................................................. 2 


Project Funding ........................................................................................................................... 2 


Funding Sources ......................................................................................................................... 3 


Grants .......................................................................................................................................... 4 


Overview of Recommended Capital Budget ............................................................................ 5 


Funding Summary ...................................................................................................................... 6 


Project Description Sheets – Facilities ............................................................................. 9-17 


Project Description Sheets –  Parks ............................................................................... 18-22 


Project Description Sheets – Sanitary Sewer ................................................................. 23-29 


Project Description Sheets – Stormwater ....................................................................... 30-32 


Project Description Sheets – Roads ............................................................................... 33-44 


Project Description Sheets – Infrastructure Assessments .............................................. 45-53 


Unfunded and Unprogrammed Project List ........................................................................... 55 


Project Description Sheets  ............................................................................................ 56-67 


 


 


 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


58 of 273







 
 


Introduction 
 
The Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) is a multi-year planning tool used to identify and implement 
the City’s capital needs over the upcoming five-year period. The CIP aligns the needs with 
appropriate funding, scheduling, and implementation. This document is a working blueprint for 
building and sustaining publicly funded physical infrastructure. Capital improvements refer to 
physical assets and include the design, purchase, construction, maintenance, or improvement 
of public resources (i.e. parks public infrastructure, equipment, public spaces). These 
improvements influence Pinole’s built and natural environment and help guide the trajectory of 
future growth or change.  
 
The projects in the CIP fall into the following broad categories: facility maintenance, parks, 
sewer collection and treatment, stormwater, streets and roads. These projects are developed in 
collaboration with department heads, and division managers under the direction of the City 
Manager to ensure all department needs are represented.  
 
The CIP is reviewed and updated annually for capital projects and programs that support City 
goals and objectives including priorities identified in the 2020-2025 Strategic Plan of developing 
a disciplined approach to funding infrastructure maintenance and improvements. The City seeks 
to enhance its focus on the state of the infrastructure throughout the community by first 
inventorying all the assets, assessing their contributions to a safe and vibrant Pinole, assessing 
their current conditions, and creating a disciplined investment approach resulting in a strong and 
purpose driven Capital Investment Plan.  
 
The preparation and adoption of the CIP is an important part of Pinole’s financial planning and 
budgeting process. Proposed projects are reviewed by the Planning Commission for 
consistency with the General Plan. The Finance Subcomittee also reviews and analyzes all 
aspects of the CIP and makes recommendations. Project priority and selection is based on 
specific criteria, such as: 


 Consistency with community plans and policies; 
 Regulatory compliance; 
 Public and political support; 
 Sustainability; 
 Cost savings or revenue generation; 
 Project demand, determined by inventory of existing land, equipment, and facility 


conditions; 
 Economic, environmental, aesthetic or social impacts; and 
 Public health, safety or other legal concerns. 


The process for developing the CIP involves the following steps: 


 


 


 


Identify projects 
for CIP budget


Prioritize projects 
and identify 


funding


Prepare budget 
for CIP


CIP Review by 
Finance 


Subcommittee 
and Planning 
Commission 


City Council 
adoption


Implementation of 
approved projects 


in CIP


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 1 of 6759 of 273







 
 


Next Steps in City Capital Planning 
 
The City will complete condition assessment of all the City’s capital assets and identify the 
funding levels required to maintain these assets. The City will continue to integrate capital 
planning information into the Long-Term Financial Plan, so City decision makers are aware of 
the City’s capital needs when they consider allocation of the City’s limited financial resources 
and consider possibly pursuing additional sources of City revenue.  
 


Project Funding  


A variety of funding sources support projects listed in the CIP. The first year’s program in the 
CIP is adopted by the City Council as the Capital Budget, as a counterpart to the annual 
Operating Budget. The fiscal resources are appropriated only in the first year, the subsequent 
four years of the CIP are important for long term planning and subject to further review and 
modification.  


The CIP is funded primarily with funds restricted for specific purposes. The next page descibes 
various funding sources and their restrictions. Some projects are entirely or partially funded by 
grants and reimbursements from state and federal government and other agencies.  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 2 of 6760 of 273







 
 


Funding Sources 


Fund # Fund Name 
(restriction) 


Description 


100 General Fund 
(unrestricted) 


The General Fund is the main operating fund for the City. 
It accounts for sources and uses of resources that 
(primarily) are discretionary to the City Council in the 
provision of activities, programs and services deemed 
necessary and desirable by the community. 


106 
Measure S 2014 
(unrestricted) 


Accounts for 2014 voter-approved half-cent Local Use Tax 
which levies 0.5% each on all merchandise. Although these 
are unrestricted General Fund revenues, the 2014 Use 
Taxes have been allocated by the City Council to fund 
Infrastructure Projects as their highest funding priority.  


200 
Gas Tax - RMRA 
(roads and right-of-
way) 


Accounts for the Highway Users Tax (HUTA) State imposed 
excise taxes on gasoline and diesel fuel sales within the 
City limits. Gas Tax funds are restricted for use in the 
construction, improvement and maintenance of public 
streets. The taxes are allocated to Pinole through the Road 
Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account (RMRA) 
established by the Road Repair and Accountability Act of 
2017.  


214 Solid Waste 


Accounts for special revenue received from Republic 
Services from a surcharge assessed on customer rates for 
solid waste services. These funds are set aside for future 
solid waste capital and for a rate stabilization fund.   


215 
Measure J 
(roads only) 


Accounts for special sales tax revenues collected by Contra 
Costa Transportation Authority (CCTA) and reapportioned 
to cities for local street projects.  This fund also accounts 
for return to source funds and grant funds.  


276 
Growth Impact Fees 
(nexus identified 
needs) 


Accounts for development fees collected to mitigate the 
impact of new development. Provides funds for nexus 
identified needs only. 


325 
City Street 
Improvements  
(roads only) 


Accounts for funds set aside by the City of Pinole to fund 
street improvement projects. The Measure S 2014 funding 
plan allocates $250k annually to this fund.  


327 
Park Grants 
(parks only) 


Accounts for grants and reimbursements from the state and 
federal government and other agencies related to parks. 


377 
Arterial Street 
Rehabilitation  
(roads only) 


Accounts for funds set aside by the City of Pinole to fund 
arterial street rehabilitation projects. The Measure S 2014 
funding plan allocates $250k annually to this fund. 


500 
Sewer Enterprise 
(sewer only) 


Accounts for fees charged to residents and businesses for 
sewer utilities.  Fees are used to operate the Pinole-
Hercules Water Pollution Control Plant which services the 
Pinole and Hercules areas.


 
 


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 3 of 6761 of 273







Grants  


Certain projects are eligible to receive grant funds from state, federal, or other agencies. Road 
projects listed in the CIP receive grant funding from a variety of sources such as: 


 California Department of Transportation (Caltrans)
o Highway Bridge Program (HBP) – funds to improve bridge structural safety.


 Project: RO1710


o Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) – funds projects that significantly
reduce fatalities and injuries on all public roads.


 Project: IN2104


 West Contra Costa Transportation Advisory Committee (WCCTAC)
o Subregional Transportation Mitigation Program (STMP) – funds projects that provide


congestion relief and mitigate traffic impacts on regional routes through capacity
improvements on those routes, improved transit services for subregional and
regional travel, and improved facilities that allow West County residents to more
efficiently access regional routes and transit service.


 Projects: RO2105, RO1902, and RO1710


 Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC)
o One Bay Area Grant 2 (OBAG2) – policy framework for MTC’s distribution of


federal State Transportation Program and Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality
Improvement Program funds. The OBAG2 program provides funding for local
street and road maintenance, streetscape enhancements, bicycle and pedestrian
improvements, Safe Route to School projects, Priority Conservation Areas, and
Transportation planning.
 Project: RO1714


o Transportation Developlment Act (TDA) Article 3 – funds construction and/or
engineering of bicycle or pedestrian capital or quick build projects, maintenance
of Class I or Class IV separated bikeways, bicycle and/or pedestrian safety
education projects, development of a comprehensive bicycle or pedestrian
facilities plans, and restriping Class II bicycle lanes and buffered bicycle lanes.


 Project: RO1714


The receipt of certain grants and reimbursements typically follow the award of contracts; 
therefore, other City funding is programmed for front-end financing of the total estimated project 
costs.  


City of Pinole
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 4 of 6762 of 273







Overview of Recommended Capital Budget 


The FY 2022/23 – 2026/27 CIP contains 36 planned public improvement projects, which 
includes 10 new projects. In addition, there are 9 infrastructure assessments programmed for 
FY 2022/23 – 2026/27. The CIP also contains information for 24 unfunded and unprogrammed 
projects. A funded project is one that has identified specific funding, including on-going existing 
resources to fully implement the project. A partially funded project has funding to accomplish 
various phases of the project but lacks sufficient funding to complete the project. An unfunded 
project is one that has been identified in the CIP as a need but no funding secured to implement 
the project. Should funding become available through grant or other sources, the unfunded list 
can be reviewed to determine if it is suitable to seek such funding.  


CIP projects fall into the following categories: Facilities, Parks, Sanitary Sewer, Stormwater, 
Streets & Roads, and Infrastructure Assessments. The nomenclature for the project number is 
derived as follows:  


Project numbers begin with the abbreviation of the project 
category, followed by the year the project was first 
programmed, and then a unique sequence number. For 
example, FA2001 refers to a facilities project which was first 
programmed in 2020 with a unique sequence number of 01. 
Unfunded projects begin with UF and are followed by a unique 
sequence number. 


In FY2022/23, there are 23 public improvement projects and 8 
infrastructure assessments programmed. Below is a summary 
of the various funding sources based on project category.  


FY 2022/23 PROJECT CATEGORIES
FY 2022/23


TOTALS 
BY FUND 


Funding 
Sources 


Fund Facilities 


FA 


Parks 


PA 


Sanitary 
Sewer 


SS


Storm-
water  


SW


Streets & 
Roads 


RO 


Infrastructure 
Assessments 


IA
General Fund  100 $170,000 $165,000 $335,000
Measure S 
2014 


106 $834,931 $112,440 $418,460 $149,328 $210,000 $1,725,159 


Gas Tax 200 $528,910 $528,910
Solid Waste 214 $425,000 $425,000
Measure J 215 $350,000 $350,000
Growth Impact 
Fees 


276 $58,000 $58,000 


City Street 
Improvements 


325 $1,685,563 $20,650 $1,706,213 


Park Grants 327 $189,758 $189,758
Arterial Street 
Rehabiliation 


377 $758,624 $758,624 


Sewer 
Enterprise 


500 $2,300,00 $10,382 $89,853 $2,400,235 


FY 2022/23 TOTALS 
BY PROJECT 
CATEGORY 


$834,931 $727,198 $2,300,000 $476,460 $3,652,807 $3,652,807 $8,476,899 


Category Abbreviation
Facilities FA
Parks PA
Sewer SS
Stormwater SW
Streets & 
Roads


RO 


Infrastructure 
Assessments 


IA 


Unfunded UF


City of Pinole
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 5 of 6763 of 273







 


 
 


 


CITY OF PINOLE 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN: FY 2022/23 THROUGH FY 2026/27 


FUNDING SUMMARY 
           


 
 


SOURCES BY FUND FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 5-Year Total 


100 – General Fund $      435,000 $      310,000 $          745,000 


106 – Measure S 2014 $   1,625,159 $   1,990,860 $      890,000  $      100,000 $        4,606,019 


200 – Gas Tax $      528,910 $      381,082  $           909,992 


200 – Solid Waste $      425,000 $           425,000 


215 – Measure J $      350,000 $           350,000 


276 – Growth Impact Fees $        58,000 $        30,000 $      520,000  $           608,000 


325 – City Street Improvements $   1,706,213 $      890,000 $      727,321  $      890,000 $        4,213,534 


327 – Park Grants $      189,758 $           189,758 


377 – Arterial Streets Rehabilitation $      758,624 $        32,250 $           790,874 


500 – Sewer Enterprise Fund $   2,400,235 $   2,000,000 $      906,597  $      800,000 $   3,800,000 $        9,906,832 


Sources Total  $   8,476,899  $   5,253,110  $   3,425,000   $   1,790,000  $   3,800,000  $      22,745,009 


Unfunded Total  $ 16,293,235  $   9,231,700   $   8,439,200  $      970,000  $      34,934,135 


Total Sources Required  $   8,476,899  $ 21,546,345  $ 12,656,700   $ 10,229,200  $   4,770,000  $      57,679,144 


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 6 of 6764 of 273







SOURCES BY FUND FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 5-Year Total


100 - General Fund 435,000$       310,000$       745,000$            


106 - Measure S 2014 1,625,159$    1,990,860$    890,000$       100,000$       4,606,019$         


200 - Gas Tax 528,910$       381,082$       909,992$            


214 - Solid Waste 425,000$       425,000$            


215 - Measure J 350,000$       350,000$            


276 - Growth Impact Fees 58,000$         30,000$         520,000$       608,000$            


325 - City Street Improvements 1,706,213$    890,000$       727,321$       890,000$       4,213,534$         


327 - Park Grants 189,758$       189,758$            


377 - Arterial Streets Rehabilitation 758,624$       32,250$         790,874$            


500 - Sewer Enterprise Fund 2,400,235$    2,000,000$    906,597$       800,000$       3,800,000$    9,906,832$         


Sources Total 8,476,899$    5,253,110$    3,425,000$    1,790,000$    3,800,000$    22,745,009$       


Unfunded Total 16,293,235$  9,231,700$    8,439,200$    970,000$       34,934,135$       


Total Sources Required 8,476,899$    21,546,345$  12,656,700$  10,229,200$  4,770,000$    57,679,144$       


PRJ # USES BY PROJECT FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 Account #
FY 2022-23 


Funds
Funding Source


FA2302 Plum St. Parking Lot Improvements $80,000


FA2301 Public Safety Building Modernization $100,000 $100,000 $100,000


FA2202 Senior Center Modernization $60,000 $100,000 $100,000 106-343-47201 $60,000  Measure S 2014 


FA2201 Faria House Renovations $420,000 106-343-47201 $420,000  Measure S 2014 


FA2002 Electric Vehicle Charging Stations $50,000 106-343-47201 $50,000  Measure S 2014 


FA1902 Energy Upgrades $120,811 106-343-47201 $120,811  Measure S 2014 


FA1901 Senior Center Auxiliary Parking Lot                         $184,120 $1,088,860 106-343-47201 $184,120  Measure S 2014 


FA1703 City Hall Modernization                                               $125,000 $125,000


FA1702 Citywide Roof repairs and replacement $272,000 $140,000


PRJ # USES BY PROJECT FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 Account #
FY 2022-23 


Funds
Funding Source


106-343-47201 $47,440 Measure S 2014


327-345-47203 $189,758 Park Grants


PA2202 Skatepark Rehabilitation $150,000


PA2201 Pocket Parks - Galbreth Rd. $65,000 106-343-47201 $65,000  Measure S 2014 


PA2101 Installation of high-capacity trash bins $425,000 214-345-47203 $425,000  Solid Waste Fund 


PA1901 Pinole Valley Park Soccer Field Rehabilitation $200,000


PRJ # USES BY PROJECT FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 Account #
FY 2022-23 


Funds
Funding Source


SS2203 Effulent Outfall* $150,000 $3,000,000 500-641-47201 $150,000 Sewer Enterprise


SS2202 Replacement of Diesel Tank* $150,000 500-641-47201 $150,000 Sewer Enterprise


SS2201 Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation $1,500,000 $800,000 $800,000 $800,000 $800,000 500-642-47201 $1,500,000 Sewer Enterprise


SS2101 Secondary Clarifier - Center Column Rehabilitation* $350,000 500-641-47201 $350,000 Sewer Enterprise


SS2102 Air Release Valve Replacements* $50,000 500-641-47201 $50,000 Sewer Enterprise


SS2002 Water Pollution Control Plant Lab Remodel* $100,000 500-641-47201 $100,000 Sewer Enterprise


SS1702 Sewer Pump Station Rehabilitation $1,200,000


PRJ # USES BY PROJECT FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 Account #
FY 2022-23 


Funds
Funding Source


SW2001 Roble Road Drainage Improvements $30,000 $320,000


SW2002 Adobe Road Repair and Drainage Improvements $30,000 $200,000


106-344-47206 $418,460  Measure S 2014 


276-344-47206 $58,000  Growth Impact Fees 


PRJ # USES BY PROJECT FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 Account #
FY 2022-23 


Funds
Funding Source


RO2501 Residential Slurry Seal $890,000


RO2401 Cape Seal $560,000


RO2301 Residential Slurry Seal $890,000


200-342-47205 $428,910  Gas Tax - RMRA 


377-342-47205 $758,624  Arterial Rehabilitation 


RO2102 Tennent Ave. Rehabilitation $10,382 $655,000 500-641-47201 $10,382  Sewer Enterprise 


RO2105 Appian Way Complete Streets $100,000 $970,000 325-342-47205 $100,000  WCCTAC - STMP Fees  


RO2107 Brandt St. Improvements $170,000 100-342-47205 $170,000  General Fund 


RO1902 Pedestrian Improvements at Tennent Ave. near R X $61,556 $800,000 325-342-47205 $61,556  WCCTAC - STMP Fees  


RO1802 Hazel Street Gap Closure (Sunnyview) $200,000


325-342-47205 $1,223,746  WCCTAC - STMP Fees  


325-342-47205 $80,000  CCTA Measure J 


325-342-47205 $81,717  Caltrans - HBP 


RO1708 Pinole Valley Road Improvements $100,000 200-342-47205 $100,000  Gas Tax - RMRA 


325-342-47205 $9,144  City Street Improvements 


215-342-47205 $350,000  MTC/OBAG2 


325-342-47205 $129,400  MTC/TDA Article 3 


106-344-47206 $149,328  Measure S 2014 


PRJ # USES BY PROJECT FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 Account #
FY 2022-23 


Funds
Funding Source


IN2201 Energy Audit $50,000 106-344-47206 $50,000  Measure S 2014 


IN2101 Emergency Power for Critical Facilities $30,000 $170,000 100-343-47201 $30,000  General Fund 


IN2102 Municipal Broadband Feasibility $60,000 106-118-47201 $60,000  Measure S 2014 


IN2103 Recycled Water Feasibility $60,000 $140,000 100-341-42101 $60,000  General Fund 


IN2104 Local Road Safety Plan $20,650 325-342-47205 $20,650  Caltrans - HSIP 


IN2106 Active Transportation Plan $75,000 100-341-42101 $75,000  General Fund 


IN2001 Sanitary Sewer Collection System Master Plan $89,853 500-642-47201 $89,853  Sewer Enterprise 


IN1703 Storm Drainage Master Plan $75,000 $75,000


IN1704 Park Master Plan $100,000 106-344-47206 $100,000  Measure S 2014 


Uses by Project Total $8,476,899 $21,546,345 $12,656,700 $10,229,200 $4,770,000


LEGEND:


• Project numbers: FA = Facilities; PA = Parks; SS = Sanitary Sewer; SW = Storm Water; RO = Streets & Roads; IN = Infrastructure Assessments


* Project cost to be split 50% with the City of Hercules


RO2101 Arterial Rehabilitation $1,187,534 $32,250


$237,198PA2203 Playground Rubberized Surface Improvements


RO1714
Safety Improvements at Appian Way & Marlesta Rd. 
formerly known as HAWK at Appian Way and Marlesta


$637,872


$8,439,200RO1710 San Pablo Ave. Bridge over BNSF Railroad $1,385,463 $16,293,235 $8,431,700


INFRASTRUCTURE ASSESSMENTS


CITY OF PINOLE


CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN: FY 2022/23 THROUGH FY 2026/27


 FUNDING SUMMARY


FACILITIES


PARKS


SANITARY SEWER


STORMWATER


SW1901 Hazel Street Storm Drain Improvements $476,460


STREETS & ROADS


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 7 of 6765 of 273







 


 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 


 
 
 
 
 


PROJECT DESCRIPTION SHEETS 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 
 
 


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 8 of 6766 of 273







   


 


FA2302 - Plum St. Parking Lot Improvements 


FACILITIES 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2023 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2024 


Revised Project Start:     


Revised Project Completion:   


Project Origin:     Staff Recommendation  


Multi-year Project:    No 


Description: To provide a secure parking area for Police vehicles in the Plum St. parking lot. The parking lot will remain open for the public. A 
portion of the parking lot, approximately 25 spaces will be secured with a chain-link fence with security gates for Police vehicles. The layout of the 
parking lot is in the preliminary design phase.  


Supplemental Information:  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                          
Budget: 


 


 


 


 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Construction 106  $      80,000 


Subtotal  $      80,000 


80,000$   Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 9 of 6767 of 273







   


 


FA2301 - Public Safety Building Modernization 


FACILITIES 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2023 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2026 


Revised Project Start:     


Revised Project Completion:   


Project Origin:     Staff Recommendation  


Multi-year Project:    Yes 


Description: To extend the useful life of the Public Safety building, there are several items that require attention including but not limited to              
replacement of the HVAC system, carpet, flooring, water heaters, light fixtures, fans, etc. In addition, the building requires painting (interior and 
exterior), and the locker rooms also require renovation.  


Supplemental Information:  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                            
Budget: 


 


 


 


 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Construction 106  $     100,000  $     100,000  $     100,000 


Subtotal  $     100,000  $     100,000  $     100,000 


300,000$ Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 10 of 6768 of 273







   


 


FA2202 - Senior Center Modernization 


FACILITIES 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2022 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2025 


Revised Project Start:     


Revised Project Completion:   


Project Origin:     Council Request  


Multi-year Project:    Yes 


Description: The project includes a facilities condition assessment and design and construction of improvements to modernize the existing              
Senior Center building located at 2525 Charles Avenue. Work will include upgrades to energy system, roof replacement, and interior renovations.  


Supplemental Information:  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Budget: 


 


 


 


 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Construction 106  $      60,000  $     100,000  $     100,000 


Subtotal  $      60,000  $     100,000  $     100,000 


260,000$ Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 11 of 6769 of 273







   


 


FA2201 - Faria House Renovations 


FACILITIES 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2022 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2023 


Revised Project Start:     


Revised Project Completion:   


Project Origin:     Council Request  


Multi-year Project:    No 


Description: The building commonly referred to as the “Faria House” is a two-story residence constructed in about 1890 and originally located at 
what is now 1301 Pinole Valley Road. In 2005, the Faria House was relocated to 2100 San Pablo Avenue. On June 7, 2022, City Council directed 
staff pursue hazard remediation and renovations to create a lower-level office, and upper-level warm shell. The first step is the site remediation to 
removal all hazardous materials (i.e., asbestos and/or lead based paint) from the first and second floors. This will involve removal of all interior 
baseboard, door, window trim, lath and plaster (from the ceilings and walls). This will also include removal of all lighting and plumbing fixtures, 
kitchen “built-in-place” cabinets. Once the site remediation is complete, the lower level of the structure will be ready for tenant improvement for an 
office use. The upper level will be a warm shell, which means that the upper level will be fully insulated, with walls open and ceiling covered with 
wallboard, but no other improvements beyond the hazard mitigation work. The upper level would be separated from the lower level with secured 
“temporary” framing and wallboard partition wall built at the top of the stairs. The lower level will have rough electrical, plumbing, and mechanical 
installation for an office use. All lower-level rooms would have new wall and ceiling insulation installed and covered with new drywall. The kitchen 
would remain in the same location, the dining room, which would become the conference room/meeting room would include low-voltage, data, 
communications for teleconferencing, meetings, the existing bathroom would become a single All Gender restroom, renovated to meet ADA com-
pliance, the existing rooms would become office suites with new electrical sub-panel, rough electrical, rough plumbing and rough mechanical         
installed. Lower-level rooms will have renewed (or new) flooring, baseboard, and doors etc. 


Supplemental Information:  


                                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Budget: 


 


 


 


 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Construction 106  $     420,000 


Subtotal  $     420,000 


420,000$ Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 12 of 6770 of 273







   


 


FA2002 - Electric Vehicle Charging Stations 


FACILITIES 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2020 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2021 


Revised Project Start:     


Revised Project Completion:  December 30, 2022 


Project Origin:     Council Request 


Multi-year Project:    Yes 


Description: This project will install a level II dual port electric vehicle charging station at the parking lot serving the Public Safety  Building.  


Supplemental Information: City staff continue to assess other public locations throughout Pinole for opportunities to incorporate EV charging 
infrastructure. An energy audit (Project IN2201) of City owned facilities will inform future installations of electric vehicle charging stations.  


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                         


 


 


 


 


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                       
Budget: 


 Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Design 106  $        6,235 


Construction 106  $      50,000 


Subtotal  $        6,235  $      50,000 


56,235$   Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 13 of 6771 of 273







   


 


FA1902 - Energy Upgrades 


FACILITIES 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2020 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2021 


Revised Project Start:     


Revised Project Completion:  June 30, 2023 


Project Origin:     End of life cycle  


Multi-year Project:    No 


Description:  The heating, ventilation, and cooling (HVAC) systems at City Hall and Senior Center have reached the end of their useful life and 
need to be replaced. A portion of the roof at the Senior Center will also need to be replaced.  


Supplemental Information: In October 2020, City staff began working with Marin Clean Energy’s (MCE’s) Energy Efficiency program to        
explore opportunities for energy conservation and generation at City owned facilities by replacing the HVAC systems and upgrading streetlights. It 
was determined that the MCE program could not incentivize HVAC replacement project or the upgrade of the streetlights. This project was        
formerly known as FA1706 and FA1801. In April 2021, the AC unit at City Hall broke down and was replaced.  


 


 


 


 


 


 


Budget:  


 


 


 


 


 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Construction 106  $      99,189  $     120,811 


Subtotal  $      99,189  $     120,811 


220,000$ Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 14 of 6772 of 273







   


 


FA1901 - Senior Center Auxiliary Parking Lot 


FACILITIES 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2020 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2021 


Revised Project Start:     


Revised Project Completion:  June 30, 2024 


Project Origin:     Fowler Lot Re-Use Committee 


Multi-year Project:    Yes 


Description: On April 16, 1990 City Council adopted Resolution 2380 authorizing the purchase of 2548 Charles Street. At the time of purchase, 
City Council determined that construction of a Senior Center was necessary, and that this property was needed to provide sufficient parking for the 
Center. The parcel is surrounded by municipal parking lots which serve the Senior Center and Old Town Pinole. On February 2, 2021 City Council 
adopted Resolution 2021-07 and awarded a contract to a consultant for the preliminary engineering and design for the parking lot. The parking lot 
will be designed to be a multi-benefit project that includes pavement structural section, striping, lighting, bicycle parking, electric vehicle charging 
stations, stormwater capture and retention, and drought tolerant landscaping. The final design will offer the maximum number of parking spaces 
while allowing access for both vehicles and pedestrians and include aesthetic design components. On June 7, 2022, City Council directed staff to 
incorporate the installation of a solar canopy at the site.  


Supplemental Information: The Fowler House tenants remained in the properly till 2010 and many discussions took place to determine the 
best use of the property. It was determined that the house had asbestos and lead paint. On July 17, 2018, City Council adopted Resolution 2018-
67 to create the Fowler Lot Re-use Committee to evaluate the reuse and redevelopment of the property. The Committee evaluated uses for the lot 
and determined the best use of the property is a parking lot. On October 16, 2018, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 2018-93 to approve a 
contract with a construction company to abate and demolish the Fowler house.  The property demolition was completed on March 11, 2019. On 
July 21, 2020, City Council adopted Resolution 2020–68 to accept the final recommendation of the Committee.                                                                 


Budget: 


 


 


 


 


 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Design 106  $      42,535  $     184,120 


Construction 106  $  1,088,860 


Subtotal  $      42,535  $     184,120  $  1,088,860 


Total Cost Estimate: $1,315,515


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 15 of 6773 of 273







   


 


FA1703 - City Hall Modernization (formerly known as Paint City Hall) 


FACILITIES 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2021 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2022 


Revised Project Start:   July 1, 2022  


Revised Project Completion:  June 30, 2024 


Project Origin:     End of life cycle  


Multi-year Project:    No 


Description:  To extend the useful life of the City hall building, there are several items that require attention including but not limited to carpet, 
flooring, window coverings, light fixtures, etc. The interior and exterior surfaces of the building require repainting as the paint system has reached 
the end of its useful life. Exterior painting is necessary to maintain external protection from the environment. Fading, chipping paint, along with    
water and mildew damage necessitates the painting project. 


Supplemental Information:  


 


 


 


 


 


                                                


 


Budget: 


 


 


 


 


 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Construction 106  $     125,000  $     125,000 


Subtotal  $     125,000  $     125,000 


250,000$ Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 16 of 6774 of 273







   


 


FA1702 - Citywide Roof repairs and replacement 


FACILITIES 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2020 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2022 


Revised Project Start:   July 1, 2022  


Revised Project Completion:  June 30, 2024 


Project Origin:     End of life cycle 


Multi-year Project:    Yes 


Description:  In 2015, comprehensive visual roof inspections were completed by a contractor on various City owned facilities. The purpose of 
the inspection was to identify the extent, if any, of moisture intrusion into the existing roof assemblies, document observed roof system              
deficiencies, determine the overall condition of the existing roof systems and to estimate the service life of the in-place roof assemblies. The roof 
inspection identified several roofs which need to be repaired or replaced. The roofs at City hall and the Public Safety building need to be replaced. 


Supplemental Information:  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Budget: 


 


 


 


 


 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Construction 106  $     272,000  $     140,000 


Subtotal  $     272,000  $     140,000 


412,000$ Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 17 of 6775 of 273







   


 


PARKS 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2022 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2024 


Revised Project Start:    


Revised Project Completion:  June 30, 2023 


Project Origin:     Staff Recommendation 


Multi-year Project:    Yes 


Description: Replacement of panel rubberized surfaces at Fernandez Park and Pinole Valley Park. Fernandez Park involves replacement of 
rubberized surface improvements at tot lot and replacement of existing engineered mulch with rubberized surface at older age play equipment. 
The rubberized surfaces around the play equipment will also be replaced at Pinole Valley Park. These improvements are grant funded through the 
State of California Department of Parks and Recreation Per Capita funds.  


Supplemental Information:                                                                                                                                                                                             


 


 


 


                                           


                                                                                                                                                                                            


                                                                                                                                                                                                                     


Budget: 


 


 


 


 


 


 


PA2203 - Playground Rubberized Surface Improvements 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


327  $     189,758 


106  $        7,640  $      47,440 


Subtotal  $        7,640  $     237,198 


244,838$ 


Construction


Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 18 of 6776 of 273







   


 


PARKS 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2024 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2025 


Revised Project Start:    


Revised Project Completion:   


Project Origin:     Council Request 


Multi-year Project:    No 


Description: Settling of ramps 


Supplemental Information:                                                                                                                                                                                             


 


 


 


 


                                                


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                            


                                                                                                                                                                                                                     


 


Budget: 


 


 


 


 


 


PA2202 - Skatepark Rehabilitation 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Construction 106  $     150,000 


Subtotal  $     150,000 


150,000$ Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 19 of 6777 of 273







   


 


PARKS 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2022 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2023 


Revised Project Start:    


Revised Project Completion:  June 30, 2024 


Project Origin:     Council Request 


Multi-year Project:    No 


Description: Installation of two ADA compliant benches and waste receptacles within two pocket parks at a suitable location on Galbreth Ave.  


Supplemental Information: To develop the pocket parks, a lot line adjustment may be required.   


 


 


 


 


                                                


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                            


                                                                                                                                                                                                                     


 


Budget: 


 


 


 


 


 


PA2201 - Pocket Parks - Galbreth Rd. 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Construction 106  $      65,000 


Subtotal  $      65,000 


65,000$   Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 20 of 6778 of 273







   


 


PARKS 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2021 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2022 


Revised Project Start:    


Revised Project Completion:  June 30, 2023 


Project Origin:     Beautification Ad Hoc Committee 


Multi-year Project:    No 


Description: Installation of high capacity, solar powered compacting trash bins at City parks.  To get the best value and uniformity at City parks, 
a RFP will be released to solicit proposals from qualified vendors to provide these bins. Exact costs will not be known until the bidding  is complete 
however staff estimates that 40 bins will be procured for the budgeted project cost.  


Supplemental Information: In 2019, the City Council established a Beautification Ad Hoc Committee to analyze options for, and to make              
recommendations to the Council regarding clean-up and beautification projects in Pinole. Among other projects, the Committee recommended the 
installation of high capacity, solar powered compacting trash bins at City parks.  


 


 


 


 


                                                


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                            


                    


PA2101 - Installation of high capacity trash bins 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Construction 214  $     425,000 


Subtotal  $     425,000 


425,000$ Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 21 of 6779 of 273







   


 


PARKS 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2020 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2021 


Revised Project Start:   July 1, 2023 


Revised Project Completion:  June 30, 2024 


Project Origin:     Council Request 


Multi-year Project:    No 


Description:  There are two soccer fields at Pinole Valley Park which are utilized on an annual basis, the Wright Avenue Soccer Field at the 
southerly end, and Savage Avenue Soccer Field at the northern end. Both fields are heavily used by soccer leagues and the general public. The 
Savage Avenue Soccer Field requires substantial rehabilitation which includes: upgrading the irrigation system and ongoing turf maintenance. Turf 
maintenance includes mowing, fertilizing, aeration, overseeding, and topdressing.   


Supplemental Information: This project has been delayed pending the development of a Park Master Plan (CIP Project# PA1704). 


 


 


 


 


 


                                                


 


Budget: 


PA1901 - Pinole  Valley Park Soccer Field Rehabilitation 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Construction 106  $     200,000 


Subtotal  $     200,000 


200,000$ Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 22 of 6780 of 273







   


 


SANITARY SEWER 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2022 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2027 


Revised Project Start:    


Revised Project Completion:   


Project Origin:     Regulatory Requirement  


Multi-year Project:    Yes  


Description:  Effluent pumping capacity of the treatment plant is limited by the capacity of the pipe size at the effluent outfall in Rodeo.              
Increasing the pipe size at the Effluent Outfall Eductor Station will increase the wet weather effluent pumping capacity and increase the lifespan of 
the effluent pipe by reducing the pressure in the line during storm events. Project requires coordination with Rodeo.  


Supplemental Information: The City of Hercules will be reimburse the Sewer Enterprise fund for 50% of the total project cost.  


 


                                             


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                           


 


 


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                            
Budget: 


 


 


 


 


 


SS2203 - Effluent Outfall 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Construction 500  $        150,000  $  3,000,000 


Subtotal  $        150,000  $  3,000,000 


3,150,000$ Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 23 of 6781 of 273







   


 


SANITARY SEWER 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2022 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2023 


Revised Project Start:    


Revised Project Completion:   


Project Origin:     End of life cycle  


Multi-year Project:    No 


Description:  In-kind replacement of a 4,000 gallon diesel storage tank used to supply fuel to standby generators and City vehicles. The existing 
tank is compromised. 


Supplemental Information: The City of Hercules will be reimburse the Sewer Enterprise fund for 50% of the total project cost.  


 


                                             


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                            


 


 


 


 


Budget: 


 


 


 


 


 


SS2202 - Replacement of Diesel Tank 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Construction 500  $     150,000 


Subtotal  $     150,000 


150,000$ Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 24 of 6782 of 273







   


 


SANITARY SEWER 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2022 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2027 


Revised Project Start:    


Revised Project Completion:   


Project Origin:     Master Plan  


Multi-year Project:    Yes  


Description:  Various improvements to the Sanitary Sewer collection system, as identified in the Sanitary Sewer Collection System Master Plan. 


Supplemental Information:  


 


                                             


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                            


 


 


 


 


 


Budget: 


 


 


 


 


 


SS2201 - Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Construction 500  $     1,500,000  $     800,000  $     800,000  $     800,000  $     800,000 


Subtotal  $     1,500,000  $     800,000  $     800,000  $     800,000  $     800,000 


4,700,000$ Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 25 of 6783 of 273







   


 


SANITARY SEWER 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2021 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2022 


Revised Project Start:   July 1, 2022 


Revised Project Completion:  June 30, 2023 


Project Origin:     End of life cycle  


Multi-year Project:    No 


Description:  The Secondary Clarifier #5 has reached the end of its useful life. The project will involve removal and replacement of catwalk, 
drive mechanism, center column, and rake arm.   


Supplemental Information: The City of Hercules will be reimburse the Sewer Enterprise fund for 50% of the total project cost.  


 


                                             


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                            


 


 


 


 


Budget: 


 


 


 


 


 


SS2101 - Secondary Clarifier—Center Column Rehabilitation  


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Construction 500  $     350,000 


Subtotal  $     350,000 


350,000$ Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 26 of 6784 of 273







   


 


SANITARY SEWER 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2021 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2022 


Revised Project Start:   July 1, 2022 


Revised Project Completion:  June 30, 2023 


Project Origin:     Staff Recommendation 


Multi-year Project:    No 


Description:  There are four air relief valves at various locations on the WPCP Effluent Pipeline between the WPCP and the Rodeo treated     
water discharge point. This project includes removal and replacement of the pipe saddle, short pipe section, isolation valve, and air relief valve. 
The four locations are: 1) across from the WPCP at 11 Tennent Ave., near the entrance of the SF Bay Trail, 2) On the SF Bay Trail near the cor-
ner of Santa Fe and Railroad Ave., 3) At the intersection of Mariposa St. and Railroad Ave. (Rodeo), 4) Outside the gate of Rodeo Sanitary District 
at 800 San Pablo Ave. (Rodeo).  


Supplemental Information: The City of Hercules will be reimburse the Sewer Enterprise fund for 50% of the total project cost.  


                                             


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                            


 


 


 


Budget: 


 


 


 


 


 


SS2102 - Air Release Valve Replacements 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Construction 500  $      50,000 


Subtotal  $      50,000 


50,000$   Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 27 of 6785 of 273







   


 


SANITARY SEWER 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2020 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2021 


Revised Project Start:   July 1, 2022 


Revised Project Completion:  June 30, 2023 


Project Origin:     Regulatory Requirement 


Multi-year Project:    No 


Description:  The California Environmental Laboratory Accreditation Program (ELAP) is responsible for accrediting environmental testing labs 
including the Pinole - Hercules WPCP. The 2019 ELAP inspection results indicated the lab apparatus, countertops, and the fume hood are past 
their useful life and recommended replacement.  


Supplemental Information: The City of Hercules will be reimburse the Sewer Enterprise fund for 50% of the total project cost.   
                                       


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                            


 


 


 


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                              


Budget: 


 


 


 


 


 


SS2002 - Water Pollution Control Plant Lab Remodel  


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Construction 500  $     100,000 


Subtotal  $     100,000 


100,000$ Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 28 of 6786 of 273







   


 


SANITARY SEWER 


Initial Project Start:    October 1, 2020 


Initial Project Completion:   August 31, 2022 


Revised Project Start:   July 1, 2023 


Revised Project Completion:  June 30, 2024 


Project Origin:     End of lifecycle  


Multi-year Project:    No 


Description:  The City owns and operates two lift stations to convey flow from low lying areas to high elevations where the flow continues by 
gravity to the wastewater treatment plant. Both pump stations have reached the end of their useful life and need to be rehabilitated.  


Supplemental Information: The two pump stations are located on San Pablo Ave. and Hazel St. In FY 2019/20, this project was renamed to 
include both pump stations. Previously, this project was titled, “Hazel Street Sewer Pump Rehabilitation.” 


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                           


                                                                                                                                                                                                                              


 


 


Budget: 


 


 


 


 


 


 


SS1702 - Sewer Pump Station Rehabilitation  


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Design 500  $      22,500 


Engineering 500  $     150,000 


Construction 500  $     884,000 


Contingency 500  $     143,500 


Subtotal  $  1,200,000 


 $1,200,000 Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 29 of 6787 of 273







   


 


STORMWATER 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2020 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2021 


Revised Project Start:   July 1, 2022 


Revised Project Completion:  June 30, 2024 


Project Origin:     Staff Recommendation  


Multi-year Project:    Yes 


Description:  The existing system appears to have capacity issues at Roble Ave. and Encina Ave. that warrant review and upgrade. This project 
will assess the collection system for capacity and hydraulic profile and upgrade the system as necessary.  


Supplemental Information:                                         


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                           


 


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                              


 


Budget: 


 


 


 


 


SW2001 - Roble Road Storm Drainage Improvements 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Engineering 276  $      30,000 


Construction 276  $     280,000 


Contingency 276  $      40,000 


Subtotal  $      30,000  $     320,000 


350,000$ Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 30 of 6788 of 273







   


 


STORMWATER 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2020 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2021 


Revised Project Start:   July 1, 2023 


Revised Project Completion:  June 30, 2025 


Project Origin:     Staff Recommendation  


Multi-year Project:    Yes 


Description:  Adobe Road experienced a failure due to drainage impacts. Installation of a culvert will be required to control the drainage in the 
area. The area will then be regraded and the road surface will be restored. This road serves only as a service access route.  


Supplemental Information:                                         


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                           


 


 


  


 


Budget: 


 


 


 


 


 


 


           


 


SW2002 - Adobe Road Storm Drainage Improvements 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Engineering 106  $      30,000 


Construction 106  $     175,000 


Contingency 106  $      25,000 


Subtotal  $      30,000  $     200,000 


230,000$ Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 31 of 6789 of 273







   


 


STORMWATER 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2020 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2021 


Revised Project Start:    


Revised Project Completion:  June 30, 2023 


Project Origin:     Development Driven 


Multi-year Project:    Yes 


Description:  The existing stormwater collection is an open trench system and needs to be converted to an underground conveyance system to 
facilitate construction of a through road. This project will include connecting the existing storm drain network within Hazel Street between 1087  
Hazel St (eastern limits) and 1081 Hazel St. (western limits). In January 2020, the City contacted with Schaff and Wheeler to prepare the              
preliminary design  which includes plan and profile of the pipe and technical specifications.  


Supplemental Information: This conversion also aids in compliance with the MSP4 by reducing the potential of contaminants including litter 
from entering the stormwater system.                                                                 


 


 


 


                                 
Budget: 


 


 


 


 


 


 


           


SW1901 - Hazel Street Storm Drain Improvements 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Design 106  $      54,910 


106  $     356,460 


276  $      58,000 


Contingency 106  $      62,000 


Subtotal  $      54,910  $     476,460 


 $   531,370 Total Cost Estimate:


Construction


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 32 of 6790 of 273







   


 


ROADS 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2025 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2026 


Revised Project Start:    


Revised Project Completion:   


Project Origin:     Pavement Management Program 


Multi-year Project:    No 


Description:  Based on the most current P-TAP report various segments will be recommended for slurry seal treatment. A slurry seal functions 
as a topcoat to existing asphalt pavement to preserve and protect the pavement. It is best suited for pavements with mild to moderate damage, 
such as narrow cracks, but not for severe damage such as potholes.  


Supplemental Information:                                         


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                          


 


 


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                       
Budget: 


 


 


 


 


 


 


RO2501 - Residential Slurry Seal  


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Engineering 325  $      10,000 


Construction 325  $     800,000 


Contingency 325  $      80,000 


Subtotal  $     890,000 


890,000$ Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 33 of 6791 of 273







   


 


ROADS 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2024 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2025 


Revised Project Start:    


Revised Project Completion:   


Project Origin:     Pavement Management Program 


Multi-year Project:    No 


Description:  Based on the most current P-TAP report, various pavement segments will benefit from a cape seal. A cape seal is applied when a 
slurry seal or  micro-surfacing will not adequately address the pavement deterioration. Cape seals are a multi-layered treatment pavement               
preservation treatment which can extend the life of a pavement by 6-8 years. 


Supplemental Information:                                         


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                          


 


 


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                       
Budget: 


 


 


 


 


 


 


RO2401 - Cape Seal 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Engineering 325  $      10,000 


Construction 325  $     500,000 


Contingency 325  $      50,000 


Subtotal  $     560,000 


560,000$ Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 34 of 6792 of 273







   


 


ROADS 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2023 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2024 


Revised Project Start:    


Revised Project Completion:   


Project Origin:     Pavement Management Program 


Multi-year Project:    No 


Description:  Based on the most current P-TAP report various segments will be recommended for slurry seal treatment. A slurry seal functions 
as a topcoat to   existing asphalt pavement to preserve and protect the pavement. It is best suited for pavements with mild to moderate damage, 
such as narrow cracks, but not for severe damage such as potholes.  


Supplemental Information:                                         


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                          


 


 


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                       
Budget: 


 


 


 


 


 


 


RO2301 - Residential Slurry Seal  


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Engineering 325  $      10,000 


Construction 325  $     800,000 


Contingency 325  $      80,000 


Subtotal  $     890,000 


890,000$ Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 35 of 6793 of 273







   


 


ROADS 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2020 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2023 


Revised Project Start:    


Revised Project Completion:  June 30, 2024 


Project Origin:     Pavement Management Program 


Multi-year Project:    Yes 


Description:  Based on the 2019  P-TAP report, various segments were recommended for treatment by StreetSaver®. The recommendations 
will be further validated through a comparative pavement analysis to explore additional treatment options which are not discussed in the P-TAP 
report. This will allow the City to optimize the available funding.  In February 2021, the City selected a consultant to complete the preliminary            
engineering for this project.   


 


Supplemental Information:                                         


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                 


 


 


Budget: 


 


 


 


 


 


 


RO2101 - Arterial Rehabilitation 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Engineering 377  $      18,606  $      39,874 


200  $     428,910 


377  $     625,000  $     215,000 


Contingency 377  $      93,750  $      32,250 


Subtotal  $      18,606  $  1,187,534  $     247,250 


Construction


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 36 of 6794 of 273







   


 


ROADS 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2020 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2023 


Revised Project Start:    


Revised Project Completion:  June 30, 2025 


Project Origin:     Pavement Management Program 


Multi-year Project:    Yes 


Description:  The construction impacts from the WPCP upgrade project resulted in pavement deterioration. This project will rehabilitate Tennent 
Ave. from San Pablo Ave. to WPCP. In February 2021, the City selected a consultant to complete the preliminary engineering for this project.   


Supplemental Information: In preparation of this project, the City retained a consultant to perform internal CCTV on this section of roadway. 
The inspection was completed in  early 2021. Coordinating collection system improvements with street resurfacing projects ensures that sewer                    
improvements are made prior to the resurfacing so that manholes and valve covers may be properly realigned, and repairs and replacements are 
made in a cost-effective manner. This also avoids cutting and patching recently paved streets. The City of Hercules will reimburse $86,430 for this 
project.  


 


 


Budget: 


 


 


 


 


 


RO2102 - Tennent Ave. Rehabilitation  


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Engineering 500  $      27,423  $      10,382 


200  $     381,082 


500  $      74,597 


325  $     167,321 


Contingency 500  $      32,000 


Subtotal  $      27,423  $      10,382  $     655,000 


 $   692,805 


Construction


Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 37 of 6795 of 273







   


 


ROADS 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2021 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2022 


Revised Project Start:    


Revised Project Completion:  June 30, 2023 


Project Origin:     Staff Recommendation 


Multi-year Project:    Yes 


Description:  Completion of preliminary engineering and design to provide continuous sidewalks and bike lanes along Appian Way beginning 
from unincorporated El Sobrante to about 1500 lineal feet north of the City limit within Pinole. In December 2021, City Council approved a              
Cooperative Funding Agreement with WCCTAC to receive STMP funds to complete preliminary design for this project.  


Supplemental Information: This project will connect with the Contra Costa County’s project to provide continuous sidewalks and bike lanes 
along Appian Way from San Pablo Dam Rd. in unincorporated El  Sobrante.  This project will involve coordination with Contra Costa County. The 
construction phase of this project is unfunded and appears in the Unfunded and Unprogrammed list. 


 


 


 


 


 


Budget: 


 


 


RO2105 - Appian Way Complete Streets  


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


325  $     100,000 


UF  $     970,000 


Subtotal  $     100,000  $     970,000 


 $1,070,000 Total Cost Estimate:


Engineering


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 38 of 6796 of 273







   


 


ROADS 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2021 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2023 


Revised Project Start:    


Revised Project Completion:   


Project Origin:     Council Request 


Multi-year Project:    No 


Description:  Provide improvements on Brandt St. including application of pavement treatments based on type and severity of distresses on  
existing pavement.  


Supplemental Information:  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Budget: 


 


 


RO2107 - Brandt St. Improvements  


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Engineering 100  $      50,000 


Construction 100  $     120,000 


Subtotal  $     170,000 


170,000$ Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 39 of 6797 of 273







   


 


ROADS 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2020 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2021 


Revised Project Start:    


Revised Project Completion:  June 30, 2025 


Project Origin:     Staff Recommendation 


Multi-year Project:    Yes 


Description:  In 2018, the East Bay Regional Park District completed a trail link to connect Pinole Shores Regional Shoreline to Bayfront Park 
trail. There remains one very small gap on Tennent Ave. from Bayfront Park to Railroad Ave. Improvements to Tennent Ave. at the Railroad 
Crossing will facilitate safe movement of bicycles and pedestrians. Since project inception, the scope of work has evolved to include                              
improvements that would maximize parking on Railroad Avenue for park users. In February 2021, the City selected a consultant to complete the 
preliminary engineering for this project.   


Supplemental Information: WCCTAC held its STMP Call for Projects in 2018 which committed $100k in funding for preliminary engineering 
from the 2006 STMP program for this project. This project is eligible to respond to future STMP Call for Projects to compete for funding to advance 
the project through construction.  


                                                                                                                                                                                                                                  


Budget: 


 


 


 


 


 


RO1902 - Pedestrian Improvements at Tennent Ave. near R x R 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Design 325  $      37,324  $      61,556 


325  $      19,700 


UF  $     680,000 


Contingency UF  $     100,300 


Subtotal  $      37,324  $      61,556  $     800,000 


898,880$ 


Construction


Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 40 of 6798 of 273







   


 


ROADS 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2021 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2022 


Revised Project Start:    


Revised Project Completion:  July 30, 2025 


Project Origin:     Development Driven 


Multi-year Project:    No 


Description:  A developer has proposed to develop on a vacant lot identified as APN 402-013-060 at the end of Hazel Street. The project pro-
poses the subdivision of the lot into four new parcels and development of single family residences on each new parcel, and execution of a devel-
opment agreement to make public improvements, including the extension of Hazel Street for roadway connection to Sunnyview Drive - West end 
of Hazel St. 


Supplemental Information: Completion of Project SW1901 prior to this project.  


 


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                         


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                            


                                                                                                                                                                                                                        
Budget: 


 


 


RO1802 - Hazel Street Gap Closure (Sunnyview) 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


276  $      50,000 


Developer  $     150,000 


Subtotal  $     200,000 


 $   200,000 


Construction


Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 41 of 6799 of 273







   


 


ROADS 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2017 


Initial Project Completion:   Beyond 5 year term 


Revised Project Start:    


Revised Project Completion:  June 30, 2026 


Project Origin:     End of life cycle 


Multi-year Project:    Yes 


Description:  The San Pablo Avenue bridge over the Burlington Northern Santa Fe Railroad is an integral part of the area’s transportation                
network. The age and condition assessment of the bridge supports replacement. The City was approved for initial funding from the Caltrans          
Highway Bridge Program (HBP). In February 2020, the City awarded a contract to a consultant for preliminary engineering (PE) to advance the 
project. The PE will be completed in two phases due to funding limitations. Completion of preliminary design is necessary to develop a final cost 
estimate for the project. Unfunded portions of this project appear in the Unfunded and Unprogrammed project list as Project UF022. 


Supplemental Information: The total budget identified to complete the PE exceeds the amount of funding Caltrans committed to the 
project of the State’s share in the current HBP.  


Budget: 


 


                    


 


                    


 


 


 


RO1710 - San Pablo Avenue Bridge over BNSF Railroad 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


PM 325  $     257,061  $        80,000  $      42,439 


325  $     537,176  $   1,225,463  $     (42,439)  $       (7,500)


STMP  $     (91,089)  $  (1,223,746)  $    (285,165)


HBP  $    (708,856)  $       (81,717)


UF


STMP


UF  $16,578,400  $  8,439,200  $  8,439,200 


Subtotal  $       (5,709)  $               -    $16,293,235  $  8,431,700  $  8,439,200 


Planning & 
Design


Construction


Total Cost Estimate: $33,158,426


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 42 of 67100 of 273







   


 


ROADS 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2020 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2021 


Revised Project Start:   July 1, 2022 


Revised Project Completion:  June 30, 2023 


Project Origin:     Council Request 


Multi-year Project:    No 


Description:  As part of the high school construction project WCCUSD provided road improvements along the school frontage. Improvements to 
Pinole Valley Road - from Shea Dr. to Helena Ct. will extend the useful life of the pavement. The existing pavement score is high in this area, so a 
slurry seal may be the recommended treatment. 


Supplemental Information:  


 


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                         


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                            


                                                                                                                                                                                                                        
Budget: 


 


 


 


RO1708 - Pinole Valley Road Improvements 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Engineering 200  $        5,000 


Construction 200  $      87,000 


Contingency 200  $        8,000 


Subtotal  $     100,000 


 $   100,000 Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 43 of 67101 of 273







   


 


ROADS 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2024 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2025 


Revised Project Start:   July 1, 2020 


Revised Project Completion:  June 30, 2023 


Project Origin:     TAPS 


Multi-year Project:    Yes 


Description:  The key elements affecting the safety of pedestrians and cyclists at the Appian Way and Marlesta Way intersection is speed and 
reduced visibility of approaching traffic due to the topography of the  project area. Safety improvements are required to improve crossing                        
conditions for pedestrians and bicyclists. In February 2021, the City selected a Consultant to complete the preliminary engineering for this project.   


Supplemental Information: The City secured grant funds to install a traffic signal at this intersection instead of a HAWK. 


 


 


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                           
Budget: 


 


                    


 


                    


                    


RO1714 - Safety Improvements at Appian Way and Marlesta Rd. (formerly known as HAWK at Appian Way and Marlesta Rd.) 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Design 325  $      25,193  $        9,144 


OBAG2  $     350,000 


TDA  $     129,400 


106  $      67,278 


Contingency 106  $      82,050 


Subtotal  $      25,193  $     637,872 


 $   663,065 


Construction


Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 44 of 67102 of 273







   


 


IN2201 - Energy Audit 


INFRASTRUCTURE ASSESSMENTS 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2022 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2023 


Revised Project Start:    


Revised Project Completion:   


Project Origin:     Staff Recommendation 


Multi-year Project:    No 


Description:  


Supplemental Information:  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Budget: 


 


 


 


 


 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Planning 106  $      50,000 


Subtotal  $      50,000 


50,000$   Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 45 of 67103 of 273







   


 


IN2101 - Emergency Power for Critical Facilities 


INFRASTRUCTURE ASSESSMENTS 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2021 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2023 


Revised Project Start:   July 1, 2022 


Revised Project Completion:  June 30, 2024 


Project Origin:     Council Request 


Multi-year Project:    Yes 


Description: During severe natural hazard events, it is highly likely that utility power will not be available for an extended period of time. Critical 
facilities will need reliable sources of sustained electrical power to continue operations. This project will: 1) identify critical facilities in need of              
back-up power in coordination with an Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) , 2) assess power loads in each critical facility that requires back-up 
power, 3) determine the costs and technology options including solar battery storage, and 4) make any additional recommendations to Council 
before advancing to construction.  


Supplemental Information: The Public Safety Building, Fire Station 74, and the Water Pollution Control Plant have stand by generators.  


 


 


 


 


 


                             
Budget: 


 


 


 


 


 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Design 100  $      30,000 


Construction 100  $     170,000 


Subtotal  $      30,000  $     170,000 


200,000$ Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 46 of 67104 of 273







   


 


IN2102 - Municipal Broadband Feasibility 


INFRASTRUCTURE ASSESSMENTS 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2021 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2024 


Revised Project Start:   July 1, 2022  


Revised Project Completion:  June 30, 2023 


Project Origin:     Council Request  


Multi-year Project:    No 


Description: A feasibility study will determine a successful deployment strategy and associated costs for implementing municipal broadband      
service in Pinole.   


Supplemental Information:  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


                                  
Budget: 


 


 


 


 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Planning 106  $      60,000 


Subtotal  $      60,000 


60,000$   Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 47 of 67105 of 273







   


 


INFRASTRUCTURE ASSESSMENTS 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2022 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2023 


Revised Project Start:    


Revised Project Completion:  June 30, 2024 


Project Origin:     Council Request 


Multi-year Project:    Yes 


Description:  A feasibility study will allow the City to plan and phase the construction of future recycled water distribution system infrastructure. 
The study will identify potential recycled water customers, evaluate the quantity, quality, and recycled water distribution system options to address 
the needs of potential users in surrounding areas, seek opportunities to phase the construction of a recycled water delivery system, and develop 
planning-level cost options for the phased system.  


Supplemental Information: Recycled water delays or eliminates the need to construct more potable water facilities, sustains the economy with 
increased water supply reliability, protects the environment, safeguards investments in parks and landscaping with drought proof or drought              
resistant water supply, and contributes to a green and healthy environment. In 2019, East Bay Municipal Utility District (EBMUD) prepared an              
Updated Recycled Waster Plan which considered the potential for potable reuse in EBMUD’s water service area. The development of a new              
recycled water supply for the Phillips 66 refinery in Rodeo using effluent from the Pinole-Hercules and Rodeo wastewater treatment plants was 
among the recommended non-potable reuse projects. This project is estimated to deliver up to 3.67 MGD of recycled water to the refinery for use 
in their boilers and cooling towers. The combined final disinfected effluent from both plants would be pumped at the Rodeo Pump Station to the 
refinery for treatment a new advanced recycled water treatment plan. This project was recommended by EBMUD because it would deliver a large 
amount of water to a single customer, with comparatively few pipelines required due to the short distance between the sources of wastewater and 
the Phillips 66 Refinery          


Budget: 


                    


 


 


 


 


 


IN2103 - Recycled Water Feasibility 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Design 100  $      60,000 


Construction 100  $     140,000 


Subtotal  $      60,000  $     140,000 


200,000$ Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 48 of 67106 of 273







   


 


INFRASTRUCTURE ASSESSMENTS 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2020 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2022 


Revised Project Start:    


Revised Project Completion:  December 30, 2022 


Project Origin:     Staff Recommendation 


Multi-year Project:    Yes 


Description:  Development of a Local Road Safety Plan (LRSP) which will include an existing conditions assessment, development of traffic 
measures in areas of engineering, education, encouragement, enforcement, emerging technologies along with associated evaluation. The LRSP 
will include a prioritized list of roadway infrastructure improvements.   


Supplemental Information: In July 2020, staff submitted a grant application to Caltrans for funding to develop and implement an LRSP for the 
City of Pinole. LRSP’s allow local governments to identify, analyze, and prioritize roadway safety improvements on roads within their jurisdiction. 
In the future, an LRSP or its equivalent, will be required for agencies to apply for federal Highway Safety Improvement Plan funds. In October 
2020, the City was selected for funding and implementation of an LRSP. In December 2020, the City released a Request for Proposals to seek 
professional services from licensed engineering firms to develop a LRSP. A contract was awarded to a consultant in April 2021.  


 


 


 


 


 


Budget: 


 


IN2104 - Local Road Safety Plan  


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Planning 325  $      19,013  $      20,650 


Subtotal  $      19,013  $      20,650 


39,663$   Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 49 of 67107 of 273







   


 


INFRASTRUCTURE ASSESSMENTS 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2021 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2022 


Revised Project Start:   July 1, 2022 


Revised Project Completion:  June 30, 2023 


Project Origin:     TAPS 


Multi-year Project:    No 


Description:  Development of an Active Transportation Plan will act as a guide for active mobility within and around Pinole. The Plan will identify 
an integrated network of walkways and bikeways that connect Pinole neighborhoods and communities to employment, education, commercial, 
recreational, and tourist destinations. The plan will prioritize a set of connected projects, that when fully implemented, will increase active                
transportation opportunities and make it safe and more convenient for people to walk, bike, and use non-auto forms of travel.  


Supplemental Information:  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Budget: 


 


IN2106 - Active Transportation Plan  


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Planning 100  $      75,000 


Subtotal  $      75,000 


75,000$   Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 50 of 67108 of 273







   


 


INFRASTRUCTURE ASSESSMENTS 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2020 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2022 


Revised Project Start:    


Revised Project Completion:  December 30, 2022 


Project Origin:     Staff Recommendation  


Multi-year Project:    Yes 


Description:  In September 2020, the City Council awarded a contract to Carollo Engineers, Inc. to develop a Sanitary Sewer Collection System 
Master Plan (Plan). The Plan will provide a condition assessment of the sewer collection assets to inform capital planning and effectively serve the 
wastewater needs of residents and businesses.  This plan will also provide a capacity analysis to identify pipes that need to be upsized. Master 
planning is critical to identify when and where infrastructure upgrades or improvements will be needed to accommodate growth.  


Supplemental Information:                                         


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                           


 


 


  


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                    
Budget: 


 


 


 


 


 


IN2001 - Sanitary Sewer Collection System Master Plan 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Planning 500  $     359,147  $      89,853 


Subtotal  $     359,147  $      89,853 


449,000$ Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 51 of 67109 of 273







   


 


INFRASTRUCTURE ASSESSMENTS 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2020 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2023 


Revised Project Start:   July 1, 2023 


Revised Project Completion:  June 30, 2025 


Project Origin:     Staff Recommendation  


Multi-year Project:    Yes 


Description:  Preparation of a storm drain master plan will provide an analysis of the existing collection system. The plan will identify system  
deficiencies related to capacity, functionality, and permit compliance. The plan can serve to guide future budget allocations for improvements to 
the system. 


Supplemental Information:                                         


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                           


 


 


  


 


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                       
Budget: 


 


 


 


 


 


IN1703 - Storm Drainage Master Plan 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Planning 106  $      75,000  $      75,000 


Subtotal  $      75,000  $      75,000 


150,000$ Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 52 of 67110 of 273







   


 


INFRASTRUCTURE ASSESSMENTS 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2020 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2021 


Revised Project Start:   July 1, 2021 


Revised Project Completion:  June 30, 2023 


Project Origin:     Staff Recommendation 


Multi-year Project:    No 


Description: Preparation of a park master plan will aid the City in developing a strategic approach to park maintenance and operation. The   
master plan will allow the City to quantify and qualify the existing park system, identify deficiencies, and develop a financial analysis of the cost to  
maintain and operate park assets.  


Supplemental Information: This project was added to the CIP in 2017 as an unfunded project; Council approved funding in 2020.  


 


 


 


 


                                                


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                            


                                                                                                                                                                                                                    
Budget: 


 


 


 


 


 


 IN1704 - Park Master Plan 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Planning 106  $     100,000 


Subtotal  $     100,000 


100,000$ Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 53 of 67111 of 273







 


 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 


 
 
 
 
 


UNFUNDED AND UNPROGRAMMED PROJECTS 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 
 
 


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 54 of 67112 of 273







 


 
 


CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN: FY 2022/23 THROUGH FY 2026/27 
UNFUNDED AND UNPROGRAMMED PROJECTS 


 


#  Unfunded/Unprogrammed Projects 


UF001 Railroad Avenue Bridge Removal and Replacement


UF002 Electric Vehicle Charging Stations in City lots


UF003 Parking lot resurfacing  


UF004 LLAD Landscape Restoration and Improvement


UF005 Dog Park Restroom Replacement


UF006 Dog Park resurfacing and fencing improvements


UF007 Eucalyptus Grove Restoration


UF008 Fernandez Park Baseball grandstand improvement


UF009 Repave Trails 


UF010 ADA Ramps  


UF011 Appian Complete Streets 


UF012 Bridge Maintenance  


UF013 Installation of High intensity Activated crossWALK (HAWK)


UF014 Pavement Maintenance  


UF015 I-80/Pinole Valley Rd. Interchange Improvements


UF016 Shale Hill Retaining wall and sidewalk gap


UF017 Sidewalks gaps  


UF018 Signal System Upgrades 


UF019 San Pablo Sewer Lift Station Upgrade


UF020 Sewer Collection Systemwide Rehabilitation


UF021 Tree Master Plan 


UF022 San Pablo Avenue Bridge over BNSF Railroad


UF023 Installation of Solar at City Facilities


UF024 All weather access roads 
 


 
 


 


 


 


 


 
 


 


 


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 55 of 67113 of 273







 


  


UF001 - Railroad Avenue Bridge Removal and Replacement 


Project Information             


The Contra Costa County Flood Control and 


Water Conservation District has advised         


removal of the Railroad Avenue Bridge. The 


bridge is a flood barrier. The first step is to                 


determine if the City of Pinole is the responsible 


agency for this project.   


UF002 - Electric Vehicle Charging Stations in City lots 


Project Information      


Origin: Staff Recommendation 


 


Budget Unit: Roads/Sanitary Sewer/


Stormwater 


 


Cost Estimate:  


  


Potential Funding Sources:   


The City desires to promote and encourage the 


use of electric vehicles. With increased adoption 


of alternative fuel vehicles, the need for                 


charging infrastructure is growing. The City 


wishes to install charging stations in city owned 


parking lots. The first step is to complete a load 


study at City owned parking lots to determine 


the electrical capacity at each site. There may 


be significant electrical upgrades necessary to 


install charging stations. Electrical capacity and 


siting determine ultimately determine the cost of 


each project. There are incentives available for 


the charging equipment.  


Origin: Council Request 


 


Budget Unit: Facilities 


 


Cost Estimate:  


   


Potential Funding Sources:  Bay Area 


Air Quality Management District, West 


Contra Costa Transportation Authority, 


Marin Clean Energy 


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 56 of 67114 of 273







 


  


UF003 - Parking lot resurfacing 


Project Information             


This project is to maintain and enhance 


existing City owned parking facilities and 


infrastructure, to increase parking supply, 


and to support ongoing multi-modal and 


streetscape improvements. Improvements 


include saw cutting and demolition,             


pavement removal, earthwork, pavement 


installation, curb and gutter, striping, and 


signage.  


UF004 - LLAD Landscape Restoration and Improvement 


Project Information      


Origin: Staff Recommendation 


 


Budget Unit: Facilities 


 


Cost Estimate:  


  


Potential Funding Sources:  Economic 


stimulus funding 


The Pinole Valley Road Landscape and Lighting 


Assessment District was formed in 2008. The 


City installed various improvements on Pinole 


Valley Road between Henry Avenue and          


Ramona Street. The district provides                          


maintenance to traffic signals, streetlights,                


median landscaping, irrigation for landscaping, 


electricity to traffic signals and streetlights, and 


graffiti removal. This project will maintain and 


restore turf, shrubs, plants and trees within the 


District.  


Origin: LLAD Report 


 


Budget Unit: LLAD 


 


Cost Estimate:  


   


Potential Funding Sources:  Fund 345 


& 348 


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 57 of 67115 of 273







 


  


UF005 - Dog Park Restroom Replacement 


Project Information             


The existing restroom located at the Dog 


Park is beyond its useful life and requires 


replacement.  


UF006 - Dog Park resurfacing and fencing improvements 


Project Information      


Origin: Staff Recommendation 


 


Budget Unit: Parks 


 


Cost Estimate:  


  


Potential Funding Sources:  - 


Resurfacing and fencing improvements 


Origin: Staff Recommendation 


 


Budget Unit: Parks 


 


Cost Estimate:  


   


Potential Funding Sources:   


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 58 of 67116 of 273







 


  


UF007 - Eucalyptus Grove Restoration 


Project Information             


The open space located between the Old Town 
area between John St. and Pinole Valley Road 
is forested with Eucalyptus trees. In 2014, a 
Safety Inspection was conducted by a                 
consultant. A total of 8 trees were                         
recommended for removal, and root crown          
excavation was recommended for 3 trees. 2 
trees were determined to be hollow and                            
recommended for further investigation to            
evaluate the level of internal decay. In 2018, the 
City hired a company to remove 20 Eucalyptus 
trees in the area. There are still many trees left 
and many of the prior trees were felled with the 
trunks remaining on site. This project will        
remove the remaining trees, both standing and, 
on the ground, and regreen this area with native 
trees.  


UF008 - Fernandez Park Baseball grandstand improvement 


Project Information      


Origin: Council Request 


 


Budget Unit: Parks 


 


Cost Estimate:  


  


Potential Funding Sources:   


The current grandstand is aging and                


requires increased maintenance to               


maintain its serviceability.  


Origin: Staff Recommendation 


 


Budget Unit: Parks 


 


Cost Estimate:  


   


Potential Funding Sources:   


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 59 of 67117 of 273







 


  


UF009 - Repave Trails 


Project Information             


The City’s goal is to develop safe,                   


connected, and comfortable bicycle and 


pedestrian facilities for people of all ages 


and abilities. Repaving trails will enhance 


trail access from the City ’s roadway                   


network to encourage alternative modes of 


transportation.  


UF010 - ADA Ramps 


Project Information      


Origin: Staff Recommendation 


 


Budget Unit: Parks 


 


Cost Estimate:  


  


Potential Funding Sources:   


This project involves removing barriers to 


accessibility for persons using wheelchairs 


or other personal assistance devices and 


improving pedestrian accessibility and 


safety by reconstructing or upgrading curb 


ramps at various locations throughout the 


City.  


Origin: Staff Recommendation 


 


Budget Unit: Roads 


 


Cost Estimate:  


   


Potential Funding Sources:   


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 60 of 67118 of 273







 


  


UF011 -  Appian Complete Streets 


Project Information             


This project will provide continuous side-


walks and bike lanes along Appian Way 


from San Pablo Dam Rd. in unincorporated 


El Sobrante to about 1500 lineal feet north 


of the city limit within the City of Pinole. 


The City will seek 2019 STMP funds                 


from West Contra Costa Transportation 


Authority for preliminary design.  


UF012 - Bridge Maintenance  


Project Information      


Origin: Staff Recommendation 


 


Budget Unit: Roads 


 


Cost Estimate: $970,000 


  


Potential Funding Sources:  - 


Maintenance of vehicular and pedestrian 


bridges as identified in the Caltrans Bridge 


Inspection Reports and Pedestrian Bridge 


Inspection Reports completed by Quincy 


Engineering, Inc.  


Origin: Staff Recommendation 


 


Budget Unit: Roads 


 


Cost Estimate:  


   


Potential Funding Sources:   


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 61 of 67119 of 273







 


  


UF013 - Installation of High intensity Activated crossWALK (HAWK) 


Project Information             


A High Intensity Activated crossWALK 


(HAWK) beacon is a traffic control device 


used to stop road traffic and facilitate                       


pedestrians to cross more safely. HAWKS 


are candidate treatments for roads with 


three or more lanes and generally have an                    


annual average daily traffic above 9,000. 


HAWKS are considered for all midblock 


and intersection crossings where roadway 


speed limits are equal or greater than 40 


mph. The safety of various crossings can 


be improved in Pinole through the                           


installation of a HAWK.  


UF014 - Pavement Maintenance  


Project Information      


Origin: Staff Recommendation 


 


Budget Unit: Roads 


 


Cost Estimate:  


  


Potential Funding Sources:   


The City uses a pavement management 


software known as StreetSaver to                  


strategize the most cost effective method 


to extend the pavement life. Pavement 


Maintenance is necessary to maintain the 


City’s pavement network. Deferred           


maintenance results in increased costs 


over time.  


Origin: Staff Recommendation 


 


Budget Unit: Roads 


 


Cost Estimate: $42,000,000 


   


Potential Funding Sources:  Fund 200 


and Fund 106 


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 62 of 67120 of 273







 


  


UF015 - I-80/ Pinole Valley Rd. Interchange Improvements  


Project Information             


This project will widen Pinole Valley Road 


ramp terminal intersections at I-80 to                   


provide a dedicated right turn lane to the 


eastbound and westbound I-80 on ramps. 


This project will also provide crossing                  


enhancements at the Pinole Valley Road 


and I-80 intersection.  


UF016 - Shale Hill Retaining wall and sidewalk gap  


Project Information      


Origin: Staff Recommendation 


 


Budget Unit: Roads 


 


Cost Estimate: $10,959,000 


  


Potential Funding Sources:   


Shale Hill is located on San Pablo Ave. 


near Oak Ridge Road. The cut slope 


above the pavement is comprised of shale 


which is loose and sloughs onto the road. 


There is no sidewalk in this area because 


the toe of the embankment is uncontrolled 


and there is inadequate space to                      


accommodate a sidewalk. Staff has not 


been successful in securing grant funds for 


this project.  


Origin: Staff Recommendation 


 


Budget Unit: Roads 


 


Cost Estimate:  


   


Potential Funding Sources:   


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 63 of 67121 of 273







 


  


UF017 - Sidewalk gaps 


Project Information             


This project will address sidewalk gaps by 


installing public sidewalks where sidewalks 


are missing on one or both sides of the 


street. This work will be coordinated with 


other construction projects. Sidewalk gaps 


often exist in places with site constraints 


(i.e. right of way, grade/slopes, or utility 


conflicts) or are adjacent to properties that 


have been required to provide sidewalks in 


the past due to land uses or ownerships. 


Locations for repair will be selected based 


on site conditions, pedestrian safety, and 


adjacent property attributes.  


UF018 - Signal System Upgrades  


Project Information      


Origin: Staff Recommendation 


 


Budget Unit: Roads 


 


Cost Estimate:  


  


Potential Funding Sources:   


This project will upgrade various aspects 


of the City’s traffic signal system including: 


traffic signal controller equipment, vehicle 


detection, traffic signal arms and heads, 


battery backup systems, and                          


communications  systems to reduce                 


congestion and improve safety for the                


Pinole community.  


Origin: Staff Recommendation 


 


Budget Unit: Roads 


 


Cost Estimate:  


   


Potential Funding Sources:   


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 64 of 67122 of 273







 


  


UF019 - San Pablo Sewer Lift Station Upgrade  


Project Information             


This project involves upgrading the                 


structural and electrical needs of the San 


Pablo Ave. lift station to address the safety 


and operational deficiencies.   


UF020 - Sewer Collection Systemwide Rehabilitation   


Project Information      


Origin: Sanitary Sewer Master Plan 


 


Budget Unit: Sewer 


 


Cost Estimate:  


  


Potential Funding Sources:   


In 2020, the City contracted with a                 


consultant to prepare a sanitary sewer col-


lection system master plan. The Master 


Plan will provide condition assessment of 


sewer collection assets that will inform 


capital planning.  


Origin: Sanitary Sewer Master Plan 


 


Budget Unit: Sewer 


 


Cost Estimate:  


   


Potential Funding Sources:   


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 65 of 67123 of 273







 


  


UF021 - Tree Master Plan  


Project Information             


In 2019, the City Council established a 


Beautification Ad Hoc Committee to                 


analyze options for, and to make                          


recommendations to Council regarding 


clean-up and beautification projects in                  


Pinole. Among other projects, the                     


Committee recommended the development 


of a Tree Master Plan to inventory the                  


existing trees, and to develop a plan for 


managing the tree inventory, including 


finding tree planting opportunities.  


UF022 - San Pablo Avenue Bridge over BNSF Railroad 


Project Information      


Origin: Beautification AdHoc Committee  


 


Budget Unit:  


 


Cost Estimate: $375,000 


  


Potential Funding Sources:  Cal Fire 


Urban and Community Forestry Grant 


Program 


This project will replace the existing               


thirteen span reinforced concrete span 


structure over the Burlington Northern 


Santa Fe Railroad adjacent to San Pablo 


Avenue at the easterly limits of the City. 


On 02/18/20, Council awarded a contract 


to a Consultant to begin the preliminary 


engineering (PE) for this project (CIP               


Project RO1710). The PE will be                       


completed in two phases due to funding 


limitations. The first phase was necessary 


to develop a   final cost estimate to                           


facilitate pursuing additional funding                        


required to complete all phases including 


construction.  


Origin: End of life cycle 


 


Budget Unit: Roads 


 


Cost Estimate: $35,582,665 


   


Potential Funding Sources:  Fund 213, 


Fund 214, and Economic Stimulus funds.  


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 66 of 67124 of 273







 


  


UF023 - Installation of Solar at City Facilities 


Project Information             


This project involves procurement and               


installation of solar panels at City owned 


facilities to offset the City ’s electricity  


consumption and  reduce the greenhouse 


gas impacts.  


UF024 - All access weather roads 


Project Information      


Origin: Council Request 


 


Budget Unit: Facilities 


 


Cost Estimate:  


  


Potential Funding Sources:   


The General Plan, Chapter 8 discusses  


improvement of open space management 


to reduce wildfire risks. There is a desire 


to have improved, all-weather access 


roads through open space to improve ac-


cess to and from Hercules and El Sobrante 


to shorten response times and improve              


mutual aid.  


Origin: General Plan  


 


Budget Unit: Roads 


 


Cost Estimate:  


   


Potential Funding Sources:    


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 67 of 67125 of 273







CIP Project Lifecycle and Project Status Summary 


CIP projects usually have five major phases of their lifecycle, described below. 


• Initiation: Projects in the CIP are selected and prioritized based on specific criteria
such as consistency with master plans and policies, regulatory requirements,
health and safety impacts, and community benefits. The funding is identified for
projects and a capital budget is presented to Council for consideration. Once the
CIP is adopted by City Council, staff is responsible for project implementation. The
initiation phase involves determining whether the project will be managed by City
staff or a consultant, assigning the project to a manager, and assembling the
project team.


• Planning: The assigned project manager develops the scope, preliminary
schedule, and funding requirements, and identifies stakeholders.


Construction projects can be completed through several delivery methods, 
including design-build and design-bid-build. In design-build, the same firm/team 
of firms is selected to design and build the project, whereas in design-bid-build 
one firm designs the project, then the construction is bid, and a construction firm 
builds the project. Depending on the delivery method, a construction project can 
involve several steps which may include design, bid, award, construction, and 
closeout.  


For non-construction projects such as master planning, staff defines the initial 
project by identifying major goals and objectives. 


Throughout the project lifecycle, coordination and engagement with various 
stakeholders is necessary. Stakeholders can include the community, business 
owners, utilities, funding partners, and other interested and affected parties. 


• Execution: For construction projects, the project plans and specifications, and
preliminary costs estimates, are prepared. Typically, there are three levels of
design review which allow opportunity for coordination and input with stakeholders,
utilities, funding partners, and regulatory agencies. The design review usually
occurs at 35, 65, and 90 percent of design completion. As the design progresses
through each level, the cost estimate becomes more precise. The completed
design is reviewed and approved by the City Engineer.


For a design-bid-build project, the final approved design goes out to bid. The 
project cost estimate and source of project funding govern which procurement 
policies and procedures will apply. The City’s procurement policy establishes the 
standards for purchase of goods, services, and supplies. Projects involving 
federal or State grant funds typically involve stricter and more formalized 
procedures. In addition, high value public works projects must adhere to 


ATTACHMENT B


126 of 273







processes established in the California Public Contract Code. A contract is 
awarded to the most qualified and responsible vendor.   


After a contract is awarded and executed with the appropriate insurance and 
bonds, project construction can begin. The project size and complexity dictate 
the length of the construction phase.  


For master plans, stakeholders are engaged, and links are identified among 
other infrastructure plans, the General Plan, and other applicable City plans. 
Next, solutions including conceptual alternatives are developed. Viable solutions 
are evaluated to ensure they meet the goals and needs of the project. The 
master plan is a final document which contains a recommended program and/or 
capital project list. 


• Monitoring: Throughout the project lifecycle, staff oversees and monitors the
project. Construction projects involve construction management, contract
compliance, and project management services, which include technical and
administrative tasks. Staff is also responsible for grant administration for projects
that are funded by grants.


• Closure: Once construction projects are complete, the as-built drawings are filed
for future reference. Closeout activities involve completing project related
paperwork including filing the notice of completion with the Contra Costa County
Recorder’s office. For master plans, the final plan is presented to City Council.


127 of 273







ea


te  CITY OF PINOLE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN Legend:


EntSTATUS OF SCHEDULED PROJECTS FOR FY 2022/23 THRU JUNE 30, 2023 Delayed due to limited resources Closure/Complete Execution Planning


e 


Di


lls       SCHEDULED
is 


ro
PRJ. # NAME OF PROJECT PROGRESS START END J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J PHASE


ESTIMATED 
COMPLETION


ll 


B8  FACILITIES


FA2202 Senior Center Modernization 20% 7/1/22 6/30/25 P 6/30/25


FA2002 Electric Vehicle Charging Stations 100% 7/1/20 6/30/23 C 6/30/2023


FA1902 Energy Upgrades 65% 7/1/20 6/30/23 P 6/30/24


FA1901 Senior Center Auxiliary Parking Lot 45% 7/1/20 6/30/24 E 6/30/24


e 


ce PARKS


PA2203 Playground Rubberized Surface Improvements 100% 7/1/21 6/30/22 C 5/4/2023


PA2201 Pocket Parks ‐ Galbreth Rd. 10% 7/1/22 6/30/23 D


PA2101 Installation of High‐Capacity Trash Bins 35% 7/1/21 6/30/23 E 8/15/23


Sam
SANITARY SEWER


SS2203 Effulent Outfall 0% 7/1/22 6/30/27 P 6/30/27


SS2202 Replacement of Diesel Tank 100% 7/1/21 6/30/23 C 11/17/2022


SS2201 Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation 25% 7/1/22 6/30/27 E 6/30/24


SS2101 Secondary Clarifier ‐ Center Column Rehabilitation 15% 7/1/20 6/30/23 E 6/30/23


SS2102 Air Release Valve Replacements 100% 7/1/21 6/30/23 C 6/21/2023


SS2002 Water Pollution Control Plant Lab Remodel 0% 7/1/20 6/30/23 D


STORMWATER


SW1901 Hazel Street Storm Drain Improvements 50% 7/1/20 6/30/23 E 12/31/23


Sam
STREETS AND ROADS


RO2101 Arterial Rehabilitation 25% 7/1/20 6/30/24 E 6/30/24


RO2102 Tennent Ave. Rehabilitation 20% 7/1/20 6/30/25 E 6/30/25


RO2105 Appian Way Complete Streets Project 10% 7/1/21 6/30/23 D


RO2107 Brandt St. Improvements 0% 7/1/21 6/30/23 D


RO1902 Pedestrian Improvements at Tennent Ave. Near R X R 40% 7/1/20 6/30/24 E 6/30/25


RO1802 Hazel Street Gap Closure (Sunnyview) 0% 7/1/21 6/30/25 D


STATUS AS OF 06/30/23


FY 2018‐19 FY 2019‐20 FY 2020‐21 FY 2021‐22 FY 2022‐23


128 of 273







e 


Di


lls       SCHEDULED
is 


ro
PRJ. # NAME OF PROJECT PROGRESS START END J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J PHASE


ESTIMATED 
COMPLETION


STATUS AS OF 06/30/23


FY 2018‐19 FY 2019‐20 FY 2020‐21 FY 2021‐22 FY 2022‐23


RO1708 Pinole Valley Road Improvements  0% 7/1/20 6/30/26 D


RO1710 San Pablo Ave. Bridge Over BNSF Railroad 10% 7/1/17 6/30/26 E 6/30/28


RO1714 Safety Improvements at Appian Way & Marlesta Rd. 55% 7/1/20 6/30/23 E 12/31/23


INFRASTRUCTURE  ASSESSMENTS


IN2201 Energy Audit 10% 7/1/22 6/30/23 E 12/31/23


IN2101 Emergency Power for Critical Facilities 10% 7/1/21 6/30/24 P 6/30/24


IN2102 Municipal Broadband Feasibility 15% 7/1/21 6/30/23 E 12/31/23


IN2103 Recycled Water Feasibility 15% 7/1/22 6/30/24 E 6/30/24


IN2104 Local Road Safety Plan 100% 7/1/20 6/30/23 C 2/21/23


IN2106 Active Transportation Plan (RO2106) 25% 7/1/21 6/30/23 E 6/30/24


IN2001 Sanitary Sewer Collection System Master Plan 100% 7/1/20 12/30/22 C 9/30/22


IN1704 Park Master Plan 20% 7/1/20 6/30/23 E 6/30/24 `


This is an empty row


Page 2 of 2 129 of 273







   
 CITY COUNCIL  


 REPORT 9E  
 
 
DATE  SEPTEMBER 19, 2023 
 
TO:  MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 
FROM: ANDREW MURRAY, CITY MANAGER 
 
SUBJECT: RECEIVE THE QUARTERLY REPORT ON IMPLEMENTATION OF THE 


STRATEGIC PLAN FOR FISCAL YEAR (FY) 2022-23 FOURTH 
QUARTER 


 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
City staff recommends that the City Council receive the quarterly report on 
implementation of the Strategic Plan. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
In February 2020, the City Council adopted the City of Pinole Strategic Plan 2020 – 2025. 
The Strategic Plan identified four goals for the City (safe and resilient, financially stable, 
vibrant and beautiful, and high performance) and 22 individual strategies (special 
projects) to complete over a five-year timeframe. 
 
In August 2020, the City created the Strategic Plan Implementation Action Plan (IAP), 
which identified the timeframe on which each Strategic Plan strategy would be 
implemented. The City Council revisited the IAP in January 2021 and approved an 
updated version, which specified completion dates for each of the strategies. During the 
January 2021 discussion of the IAP, staff recommended a quarterly report on the status 
of the implementation of the Strategic Plan strategies, akin to the quarterly reports that 
staff provides to the Council on the City budget and City investments. Council agreed to 
this recommendation. The City Council updated two Strategic Plan strategies and added 
a new strategy in April 2023, as part of a special strategic planning Council meeting. 
 
REVIEW & ANALYSIS 
 
Below find a table listing the four goals and 23 strategies contained within the Strategic 
Plan, along with the start and completion dates for each agreed upon in the January 2021 
IAP. Each strategy has been coded with a green, yellow, or red dot to indicate whether 
the City is on track to achieve the beginning and completion dates specified in the January 
2021 IAP. Green indicates that the City is on track to achieve both the beginning and 
completion dates; yellow indicates that the City is on track to achieve either the beginning 
or completion date; and red indicates that the City is not on track to achieve either the 
beginning or completion date. Note that “Year 1” is FY 2020-21. Those strategies that 
have been completed are shaded gray in the table below. The City has completed eleven 


130 of 273







City Council Report  
September 19, 2023  2 


of the strategies and is currently on track to achieve the beginning and completion dates 
of many of the remaining strategies. 
 


Goal and Strategy Year to 
Begin  
Strategy 
(January 
2021 IAP) 


Year to 
Complete  
Strategy 
(January 
2021 IAP) 


Current 
Status 


Notes on Status 


Goal 1: Safe and 
Resilient Pinole 


       


Strategy 1. Conduct a 
citywide asset condition 
assessment. 


Year 1 Year 5  


 


The City is in the midst of 
multiple asset condition 
assessments and master 
plans, which are reflected 
in the Capital 
Improvement Plan (CIP). 
At the end of Year 5, the 
City will have current 
assessments for all major 
capital assets. 


Strategy 2. Update the 
emergency preparedness 
and response plan 
(including results of the 
facilities and equipment 
assessment). 


Year 1 Year 1  


 


Staff presented a draft 
updated Emergency 
Operations Plan (EOP) to 
the City Council in August 
2022. Staff expects to 
present a final updated 
EOP incorporating City 
Council’s feedback and 
other changes for Council 
adoption in FY 2023-24. 
The Pinole Fire 
Department had 
previously been 
responsible for 
emergency planning in 
Pinole. Given the new 
arrangement with Con 
Fire, the Pinole Police 
Department is now 
responsible for 
emergency planning, 
including the EOP. 


Strategy 3. Explore 
restoring the community 
emergency response 
team (CERT) program 
and conducting annual 
tabletop exercises and 
community drills. 


Year 3 Year 3  


  
Complete 


CCCFPD began 
providing emergency 
medical and fire response 
service in Pinole in March 
2023. CCCFPD does not 
operate CERT programs. 
The Pinole Police 
Department intends to re-
start the CERT program 
in FY 2023-24. 


131 of 273







City Council Report  
September 19, 2023  3 


Goal and Strategy Year to 
Begin  
Strategy 
(January 
2021 IAP) 


Year to 
Complete  
Strategy 
(January 
2021 IAP) 


Current 
Status 


Notes on Status 


Strategy 4. Review, 
prioritize, and implement 
as appropriate the 2019 
fire service study 
recommendations. 


Year 1 Year 2  


 
Complete 
   


City staff presented its 
assessment of the fire 
study and its 
recommendations 
regarding next steps to 
bolster fire service in April 
2021. City Council 
approved staff’s 
recommendations, which 
staff is now implementing. 


Goal 2: Financially 
Stable Pinole 


       


Strategy 1. Develop a 
long-term financial plan 
(LTFP) and use it to 
guide budget and 
financial decisions 
(including policies 
regarding reserves and 
management of 
liabilities). 


Year 1 Year 1  
       
Complete  


The City adopted a LTFP 
in June 2021. The City 
adopted a second LTFP, 
for the following fiscal 
year, in June 2022, and 
will adopt a third LTFP in 
fall 2023. 


Strategy 2. Conduct a 
comprehensive fee study 
to ensure cost recovery of 
current and potential 
service fees. (Evaluate 
implementing an online 
payment platform.) 


Year 1 Year 2  
 
Complete  


Staff presented a 
proposed updated Master 
Fee Schedule, based on 
a comprehensive fee 
study and cost allocation 
plan, to Council in June 
2022, which Council 
approved. Staff will 
complete a fee study and 
recommend updates if 
appropriate to 
development impact fees 
in FY 2023-24. City staff 
has implemented options 
for online payments for 
certain services. 


Strategy 3. Establish a 
program to evaluate grant 
opportunities and 
capacity. 


Year 2 Year 2  


 


City staff will complete 
the selection process for 
grant research, writing, 
and management 
consulting firms in 
summer 2023, which will 
provide a framework to 
evaluate and pursue 
appropriate grant 
opportunities. 


Strategy 4. Explore an 
array of revenue 
generation opportunities 
to recover costs. 


Year 2 Year 3  
 
Complete  


Staff has supported the 
City Council in exploring 
various revenue 
generation opportunities, 


132 of 273







City Council Report  
September 19, 2023  4 


Goal and Strategy Year to 
Begin  
Strategy 
(January 
2021 IAP) 


Year to 
Complete  
Strategy 
(January 
2021 IAP) 


Current 
Status 


Notes on Status 


most significantly when 
the City Council 
considered placing an 
increased real property 
transfer tax (RPTT) 
measure on the 
November 2022 ballot. 
The LTFP that will be 
adopted in fall 2023 will 
provide information on a 
number of revenue 
generation opportunities 
the City could pursue in 
the future. 


Strategy 5. Develop a 
disciplined approach to 
funding infrastructure 
maintenance and 
improvements. 


Year 1 Year 5   This is an ongoing effort 
in which staff is currently 
engaged, and which 
involves the asset 
condition assessments, 
master plans, and annual 
capital planning process. 


Goal 3: Vibrant and 
Beautiful Pinole 


       


Strategy 1. Update the 
General Plan and Three 
Corridors Specific Plan. 


Year 1 Year 4   Updates to the General 
Plan Housing and Health 
& Safety Elements in 
addition to a new 
Environmental Justice 
Element are underway, 
Staff will consider the 
need to update other 
aspects of the General 
Plan and the Three 
Corridors Specific Plan 
Environmental Impact 
Report so that high-
density residential 
projects could utilize the 
EIR for project-specific 
environmental 
clearances, which would 
encourage streamlining 
the rehabilitation and re-
use of undeveloped or 
under-developed 
properties. 


Strategy 2. 
Develop/create a 
comprehensive strategy 
to encourage streamlining 
the rehabilitation and re-


Year 4 Year 4   Staff expects to initiate 
and complete this effort 
on schedule. 


133 of 273







City Council Report  
September 19, 2023  5 


Goal and Strategy Year to 
Begin  
Strategy 
(January 
2021 IAP) 


Year to 
Complete  
Strategy 
(January 
2021 IAP) 


Current 
Status 


Notes on Status 


use of undeveloped or 
under-developed 
properties. 


Strategy 3. Partner with 
regional for- and non-
profit housing 
organizations to provide 
an array of housing 
options consistent with 
community income levels. 


Year 1 Year 1  
 
Complete 


The City has partnered 
with nonprofit housing 
organizations to explore 
and develop affordable 
housing projects, 
particularly the Satellite 
Affordable Housing 
Associates (SAHA) 
project at 811 San Pablo 
Avenue. Staff also 
processed an application 
for a 179-unit, 100% 
affordable senior housing 
project at 600 Roble 
Avenue called Vista 
Woods. Although this is 
an ongoing effort, it was 
scheduled as a one-year 
project in the IAP, and is 
therefore marked as 
complete. 


Strategy 4. Develop a 
comprehensive economic 
development strategy that 
includes a focus on 
downtown redevelopment 
to activate the core of the 
community as a 
destination for the region 
(including gateway and 
wayfinding signage as 
well as branding). 


Year 1 Year 2  
 
Complete 


The City Council adopted 
the Pinole Economic 
Development Strategy 
(EDS) in October 2022. 


Strategy 5. Partner 
regionally to improve and 
enhance transportation 
circulation, 
including public transit, 
cars, bikes, and 
pedestrians, guided by 
the downtown Pedestrian 
Safety Plan, Active 
Transportation Plan, and 
other adopted plans. 


Year 2 Year 4    The City is engaged in 
several collaborations 
with other jurisdictions 
and agencies to enhance 
transportation. The City 
Council appropriated 
funding to create an 
Active Transportation 
Plan; the City received 
funding to collaborate 
with the County on an 
Appian Way complete 
streets project; and the 
City is requesting that 
new development 


134 of 273







City Council Report  
September 19, 2023  6 


Goal and Strategy Year to 
Begin  
Strategy 
(January 
2021 IAP) 


Year to 
Complete  
Strategy 
(January 
2021 IAP) 


Current 
Status 


Notes on Status 


projects have facilities to 
promote transit. 


Strategy 6. Conduct a 
review and update of the 
City’s code enforcement 
and property 
maintenance programs 
with a focus on increased 
beautification efforts and 
investment in community 
ecological and 
cultural amenities, 
business districts, and 
nuisance abatement. 


Year 1 Year 1  
  


This is an ongoing effort. 
City staff is continually 
updating code 
enforcement policies and 
procedures. 


Goal 4. High 
Performance Pinole 


       


Strategy 1. Develop an 
employee attraction, 
retention, and 
development plan. a. 
Analyze the City’s 
classification and 
compensation system 
and update as needed. 


Year 1 Year 2  
  
Complete 


Staff completed an 
employee attraction, 
retention, and 
development plan (Talent 
Management Plan) in 
June 2022. City staff 
continuously updates the 
classification system and 
seeks Council approval of 
appropriate 
compensation changes. 


Strategy 2. Conduct a 
citywide organization 
review to optimize 
efficiencies. 


Year 1 Year 1  
       
Complete  


The City completed a 
citywide organizational 
review (assessment) in 
March 2021. 


Strategy 3. Review 
citywide implementation 
of best practices and 
improve processes. 


Year 2 Year 5  
  


This is an ongoing effort 
in which staff is currently 
engaged. City staff have 
made many process 
improvements since the 
adoption of the Strategic 
Plan. 


Strategy 4. Develop a 
strategic communication 
plan (i.e., public 
information officer, 
messaging, marketing, 
technical 
implementation). 


Year 1 Year 2  
  
Complete 


The City Council adopted 
the City of Pinole 
Communication and 
Engagement Plan in 
October 2022. 


135 of 273







City Council Report  
September 19, 2023  7 


Goal and Strategy Year to 
Begin  
Strategy 
(January 
2021 IAP) 


Year to 
Complete  
Strategy 
(January 
2021 IAP) 


Current 
Status 


Notes on Status 


Strategy 5. Develop a 
public engagement plan. 
a.       Develop policies 
and practices that provide 
a framework for diverse 
community members to 
connect, interact, and 
proactively participate. 
b.       Explore 
opportunities for 
meaningful youth 
participation in city and 
community life. 
c.       Develop a robust 
volunteer and internship 
program. 


Year 1 Year 2  
  


The City Council adopted 
the City of Pinole 
Communication and 
Engagement Plan, which 
addresses public 
engagement, in October 
2022. The City is in the 
process of finalizing 
related communication 
and engagement policies 
and procedures. 


Strategy 6. Develop a 
comprehensive 
information technology 
Strategic Plan. 


Year 1 Year 1  
 
 Complete 


City staff completed a 
comprehensive IT Plan in 
June 2022. 


Strategy 7. Develop an 
interagency legislative 
advocacy program. 


Year 2 Year 2  
  


City staff expects 
complete this project in 
FY 2023-24. City staff will 
seek Council direction on 
a legislative advocacy 
framework in June 2023. 
City staff might 
recommend that the City 
hire a firm to assist the 
City in legislative 
advocacy. 


Strategy 8. Explore the 
use of the Government 
Access Channel/PCTV to 
implement the strategic 
communication plan. 


Year 4 Year 4  
  


City staff expects 
complete this project in 
FY 2023-24. PCTV has 
contributed to many new 
City communication and 
engagement efforts, 
including producing The 
Beat of Pinole monthly 
mayor’s video; producing 
other informational videos 
for the public; and 
producing videos of 
numerous community 
events. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
There is no fiscal impact related to receiving this report. 
 


136 of 273







City Council Report  
September 19, 2023  8 


ATTACHMENTS 
 
None 


137 of 273







CITY COUNCIL 
REPORT 


DATE: SEPTEMBER 19, 2023 


TO: MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 


FROM: ERIC CASHER, CITY ATTORNEY 
HEATHER BELL, CITY CLERK 


SUBJECT: APPOINTMENT OF PINOLE POLICE CHIEF NEIL GANG AS 
INTERIM CITY MANAGER 


RECOMMENDATION 


Staff recommends the City Council adopt a resolution appointing Police Chief Neil 
Gang as Interim City Manager effective October 1, 2023. 


BACKGROUND 


On August 30, 2023 Pinole City Manager Andrew Murray announced that he would 
be leaving the City of Pinole at the end of September. Murray’s final day of 
employment will be September 30, 2023. 


At a special meeting on September 11, 2023, the City Council convened in a closed 
session to discuss the appointment of an interim City Manager. 


Following deliberations in closed session, the City Council directed staff to prepare 
a resolution appointing Police Chief Neil Gang as Interim City Manager effective 
October 1, 2023 until the City Council appoints a new permanent City Manager.    


The City intends to engage an executive recruitment firm to conduct a nationwide 
search for a permanent replacement to the City Manager position. 


REVIEW AND ANALYSIS 


The City Manager is a key administrative position, the duties of which are set forth 
by Chapter 2.04 of the Pinole Municipal Code.  The Interim City Manager will 
assume all duties of the City Manager. 


FISCAL IMPACT 


None 


9F


138 of 273







City Council Report  
September 19, 2023 2 


ATTACHMENTS 


A – Resolution  


139 of 273







1 


RESOLUTION NO. 2023-XX 


RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PINOLE APPOINTING 
POLICE CHIEF NEIL GANG AS INTERIM CITY MANAGER 


WHEREAS, on August 30, 2023, Pinole City Manager, Andrew Murray 
announced his resignation from the City of Pinole; and 


WHEREAS, Murray’s last day of employment will be September 30, 2023; and 


WHEREAS, the Pinole City Council convened in Closed Session at a Special 
Meeting on September 11, 2023 to discuss the appointment of an Interim City Manager 
effective October 1, 2023 to serve until such time as a new, permanent City Manager is 
hired; and  


WHEREAS, Chief Gang was hired as Police Chief on August 24, 2014, and with 
ten years of service, is the longest tenured Department Head; and  


WHEREAS, Chief Gang has served as Acting City Manager several times during 
Murray’s tenure, while Murray was out of the office and also served as Acting Fire Chief 
while the City was recruiting to fill the position; and 


WHEREAS, the Pinole Police Department is well structured and situated to move 
forward seamlessly throughout the transition; and  


WHEREAS, Chief Gang has well-established relationships within the community 
and with current staff and has developed regional partnerships in his current capacity as 
Police Chief; and 


WHEREAS, Chief Gang has demonstrated exceptional leadership ability over his 
department and as a highly recognized trainer and mentor in his field through his 
professional associations; and 


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Council of the City of Pinole 
hereby appoints Neil Gang as Interim City Manager, effective October 1, 2023. 


PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Pinole City Council held on 
the 19th day of September, 2023, by the following vote:  


AYES:  COUNCILMEMBERS:  
NOES: COUNCILMEMBERS: 
ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS:  
ABSTAIN: COUNCILMEMBERS: 


I hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was introduced, passed, and adopted on the 
19th day of September, 2023. 


ATTACHMENT A


140 of 273







2 
 


 
_________________________ 
Heather Bell, CMC 
City Clerk 
 
 


 


141 of 273







CITY COUNCIL 


REPORT 


9G 


DATE: SEPTEMBER 19, 2023 


TO: MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 


FROM: MISHA DHILLON, CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT AND ENVIRONMENTAL 


PROGRAM MANAGER 


SUBJECT: ADOPT A RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT THE PLAYGROUND 
RUBBERIZED SURFACE IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT (CIP PROJECT 
# PA2203) AS COMPLETE AND APPROVE FILING OF NOTICE OF 
COMPLETION 


RECOMMENDATION 


Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a resolution to accept the Playground 
Rubberized Surface Improvements project (CIP Project # PA2203, the “Project”) as 
complete and approve filing of Notice of Completion (NOC). 


BACKGROUND 


On October 6, 2020, City Council adopted Resolution No. 2020-89 to approve the 
submittal of grant application(s) for the State of California Department of Parks and 
Recreation Per Capita Grant funds. The Per Capita Grant Program originates from 
Proposition 68, the “Parks and Water Bond Act of 2018”, placed on the ballot via Senate 
Bill 5, and approved by California voters on June 5, 2018. The Per Capita Grant Program 
is a non-competitive grant program which provides funding for rehabilitation of existing 
infrastructure to address deficiencies in neighborhoods lacking access to outdoors. 


The Per Capita allocation for all cities and local districts, including the City of Pinole, is 
$177,952. In addition to this allocation, the City of Pinole is also eligible for $11,806 in 
Urban County Per Capita funds. There is a local match requirement of 20% based on the 
project amount which can be met through Federal, City or private funds, in-house 
employee services or volunteer labor. The grant program includes payment on 
reimbursement basis for expended eligible project costs.  


City staff identified surface improvement projects at Fernandez park and Pinole Valley 
park as projects that would meet the criteria of the Per Capita Grant Program. The 
proposed project involved replacement of the panel rubberized surface at the Tot Lot and 
replacement of engineered mulch with rubberized surface at the older age play equipment 
area at Fernandez park. Similarly, the proposed project involved the replacement of the 
rubberized surface around the play equipment at Pinole Valley park. Grant applications 
for both locations were submitted applications by the December 31, 2021, deadline. 


142 of 273







City Council Report  
September 19, 2023   2 


These projects were approved by the Office of Grants and Local Services (OGALS). This 
project was subsequently programmed in the Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) and 
referred to as Playground Rubberized Surface Improvements project (CIP Project # 
PA2203, the “Project”). 
 
On March 16, 2022, the grant contract between the City of Pinole and State of California 
Department of Parks and Recreation was executed.  
 
REVIEW & ANALYSIS 
 


Robertson Industries, Inc. completed the Project on May 4, 2023. Staff performed the 


final inspections and determined that all work was satisfactory. Staff recommends that 


the City Council accept the Project as complete and authorize staff to file a Notice of 


Completion with the Contra Costa County Clerk Recorder. The filing of the Notice of 


Completion is required to start the clock for stop notice claims as detailed in the Public 


Contract Code.  


 
Further, upon acceptance, staff will furnish the Contractor with the agreed upon 5% 
retention amount. 
 
The Contractor is required to correct any defects for the Project that arise within one year 
and the Contractor has submitted the required bond to secure this obligation.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
The adopted CIP has $237,198 programmed for the Project. The total cost of construction 
for the Project was $230,007 which includes 5% retention. After filing the Notice of 
Completion, staff will submit a reimbursement request to OGALS for $184,006. The City’s 
local match for the Project is $46,001 which represents 20% of the Project cost. 
 


ATTACHMENT(S) 
 
A. Resolution 


 
B. Notice of Completion 


143 of 273







RESOLUTION NO. 2023-XX 


RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PINOLE, 
COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, ACCEPTING THE 
PLAYGROUND RUBBERIZED SURFACE IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT (CIP 


PROJECT # PA2203) AS COMPLETE AND APPROVING THE FILING OF THE 
NOTICE OF COMPLETION 


WHEREAS, the City of Pinole (“City”) adopted the FY 2022/23 through FY 2026/27 
Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) which includes the Playground Rubberized Surface 
Improvements project (CIP Project # PA2203, the “Project”) as a funded project; and 


WHEREAS, the Project involves replacement of the panel rubberized surface at 
the Tot Lot and replacement of engineered mulch with rubberized surface at the older 
age play equipment area at Fernandez Park and replacement of the rubberized surface 
around the play equipment at Pinole Valley park; and 


WHEREAS, on October 6, 2020, City Council adopted Resolution No. 202-89 to 
approve the submittal of grant application(s) for the State of California Department of 
Parks and Recreation Per Capita Grant funds ; and  


WHEREAS, on December 28, 2021, the grant application packet was submitted 
to the Department of Parks and Recreation; and 


WHEREAS, on March 16, 2022, the grant contract was executed with the 
Department of Parks and Recreation; and 


WHEREAS, Robertson Industries, Inc. completed the Project on May 4, 2023 and 
staff performed the final inspections and determined that all work was satisfactory.  


WHEREAS, the final cost of the Project is $230,007; and 


WHEREAS, the Notice of Completion has been prepared for recordation in 
accordance with the California Public Contract Code.  


NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of 
Pinole does hereby accept the Playground Rubberized Surface Improvements project 
(CIP Project # PA2203) as complete and approves the filing of the Notice of 
Completion.  


PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Pinole City Council held on 
the 19th of September by the following vote, to-wit: 


AYES:  COUNCILMEMBERS: 
NOES: COUNCILMEMBERS: 


ATTACHMENT A


144 of 273







ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS:  
ABSTAIN: COUNCILMEMBERS:  


 
I hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was regularly introduced, passed, and 
adopted on the 19th day of September 2023.  
 
 
 
____________________________ 
Heather Bell, CMC 
City Clerk 


145 of 273







Recording Requested By and Return To: 


City of Pinole 
Public Works 
2131 Pear Street 
Pinole, CA 94564 


NOTICE OF COMPLETION 


NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN of completion of the following public work, generally described as 
Playground Rubberized Surface Improvements: 


1. Description of public work improvement:


Name of project: Playground Rubberized Surface Improvements
Contract No. PA2203
Location of Work: Fernandez Park and Pinole Valley Park
Scope of Work: Replacement of the panel rubberized surface at the Tot Lot and replacement of
engineered mulch with rubberized surface at the older age play equipment area at Fernandez
park. Work also includes replacement of the rubberized surface around the play equipment at
Pinole Valley park.


2. Contract for the performance of such work was awarded to:


Robertson Industries, Inc. 
2414 W. 12th St, Suite 5 
Tempe, AZ 85281 


3. Value of the work is: $230,007


4. Project Owner:


City of Pinole 
2131 Pear Street 
Pinole, CA 94564 


5. The real property described herein is owned by the City of Pinole in fee.


6. Construction Lender: None


7. Date of Completion: May 4, 2023


I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct. 


Recording of this document is requested for and on behalf of the City of Pinole pursuant to Section 6103 
and 27383 of the Government Code.  


CITY OF PINOLE 
A Municipal Corporation 


______________________ 


Sanjay Mishra, P.E. 
Public Works Director 


ATTACHMENT B


146 of 273







  


 
   


 


 


 CITY COUNCIL 


 REPORT 9H 


  
 


 
DATE:   SEPTEMBER 19, 2023 
 
TO:    MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 
FROM:   LILLY WHALEN, COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR 
 
SUBJECT: RECEIVE THE QUARTERLY REPORT ON IMPLEMENTATION OF THE 


GREENHOUSE GAS INVENTORY AND CLIMATE ACTION AND 
ADAPTATION PLAN FOR FISCAL YEAR (FY) 2022-23 FOURTH 
QUARTER 


 


 
RECOMMENDATION 
 


Staff recommends that the City Council receive this quarterly report on the 
implementation of the greenhouse gas (GHG) inventory and Climate Action and 
Adaptation Plan (CAAP) covering the months of April - June 2023. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 


On October 19, 2021, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 2021-93, which declared 
a climate emergency, directed staff to complete a GHG emissions inventory, and directed 
staff to prepare a CAAP that includes GHG emission reduction goals that align with the 
State’s GHG emission reduction goals of Senate Bill 32 and Executive Order B-55-181. 
The City Council also directed staff to present quarterly updates on the City’s progress 
on the GHG emissions inventory and CAAP. Staff last provided a quarterly update on 
June 6, 2023 that addressed staff and consultant activities for the third quarter of fiscal 
year (FY) 2022/23 (January – March 2023). 
 
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 
This is the fourth quarterly FY 2022/23 report on the City’s progress on the GHG 
emissions inventory and CAAP development. During this period, the focus was reviewing 
and refining preliminary greenhouse gas and adaptation measures and continuing to draft 
the CAAP. 
 
APRIL 2023 ACTIVITIES 


• Reviewing, revision, and development of preliminary CAAP draft measures  


• Initial planning of second community workshop 


 
1 Executive Order B-55-18 established a goal of achieving carbon neutrality by 2045 and was codified in 
2022 by AB 1279. 


147 of 273







City Council Report  
September 19, 2023  2 


 


• Earth Month activities, promotion, education, and rebate in alignment with CAAP 
sectors 


• Publicity of CAAP notifications signup and public review workshop at City of 
Pinole’s Earth Walk 


• Publicity of CAAP notifications signup and public review workshop at Farmer’s 
Market 
 


MAY 2023 ACTIVITIES 


• Revision and development of CAAP measures 


• Initial planning of public review workshop 


• Key findings of CAAP survey results shared to social media and assembled into 
a future press release 


• Publicity of CAAP notifications signup and public review workshop at Shoreline 
Festival in the City of Crockett 


 
JUNE 2023 ACTIVITIES 


• Revision and development of CAAP measures 


• Initial planning of public review workshop 


• Publicity of CAAP notifications signup and public review workshop at City of 


Pinole Car Show 


• Initial coordination with the County for a presentation/briefing to City Staff on 
CAAP background, how a CAAP may affect their duties and information to 
address public inquiries  


 
NEXT STEPS/TIMELINE 


The FY2023/24 first-quarter report covering July - September 2023 will highlight the 


following activities: 


• Internal staff meetings with key personnel in each Department to review and refine 
preliminary greenhouse gas and adaptation measures in advance of public review 


• Finalize the draft CAAP for public review 


• Design second community workshop (postposed from April 27, and anticipated in 
October/November 2023) 


 


It is anticipated that in the second quarter of FY2023/24 (October - December) the 


following activities will occur: 


• A second community workshop to discuss GHG emissions reduction and 
adaptation measures (October/November 2023) 


• Draft CAAP published for public review (December 2023) 
• Council review/adoption of the CAAP (late Calendar Year 2023/early 2024) 


 
FISCAL IMPACT 


 
There is no fiscal impact related to receiving this report. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 


148 of 273







City Council Report  
September 19, 2023  3 


 


 
None 


149 of 273







   


 


 CITY COUNCIL  
 REPORT 9I 


 


 


DATE: SEPTEMBER 19, 2023 
 
TO:  MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 
FROM: MARKISHA GUILLORY, FINANCE DIRECTOR 
 
SUBJECT: RECEIVE THE FISCAL YEAR (FY) 2022/23 FOURTH QUARTER 


FINANCIAL REPORT  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council receive the Fiscal Year (FY) 2022/23 Fourth 
Quarter Financial Report (unaudited) and adopt a resolution approving year-end 
budget adjustments. 
 


BACKGROUND 
 
The quarterly financial report is intended to provide the City Council, City staff and 
management, and the community a general update on the financial activities and 
condition of the City.  
 
The City operates on an annual budget cycle. Through the budget, the City Council 
approves revenue estimates and authorizes City staff to expend the City’s limited 
financial resources. As one of the many activities that the City undertakes to help 
ensure its financial soundness, staff provides quarterly financial reports on the City’s 
budget condition. 
 
The Fourth Quarter Financial Report covers financial activity through the fourth quarter 
of the FY 2022/23, ending June 30, 2023. It provides preliminary year-end results 
since the annual audit has not been completed. Further adjustments may be 
necessary as a result of the City’s year-end audit process.  
 
REVIEW & ANALYSIS 
 
General Fund Analysis 
 
The FY 2022/23 budget is a status quo budget, meaning that while it includes several 
economic adjustments, it does not include any fundamental changes to programs or 
service levels. The City remains in a stable financial position and is able to fund its 
operating and capital expenditures through annual, recurring funding sources. The 
budget does include the use of unassigned fund balance (residual, unrestricted funds) 
primarily for several one-time, Council-directed initiatives, which is an acceptable use 
of unrestricted funds. Additionally, the City maintains a separate General Reserve 


150 of 273







City Council Report 9I 
September 19, 2023  2 


 


Fund, which is required by the City’s Cash Reserve Policy to maintain a reserve 
balance equal to 50% of total on-going General Fund expenditures. The fund currently 
has a balance of $9.1 million and complies with the Policy. 
 
At its meeting on June 21, 2022, the City Council adopted the FY 2022/23 budget, 
which included the use of a portion of the General Fund’s substantial unassigned fund 
balance to fund several new critical positions as well as several Council-directed 
initiatives. The FY 2022/23 amended budget includes the use of General Fund 
(including Measure S 2006 and 2014) unassigned fund balance. 
 
The City is projecting to end FY 2022/23 with a net surplus of $622,647, with total 
revenues projected at $29.2 million and expenditures at $28.6 million. The projected 
year-end revenues include the $2 million transfer in from the pension trust. The 
projected year-end expenditures include a proposed adjustment of $582,870 to 
transfer funds to the Recreation Fund, Stormwater Fund, Parkland Dedication Fund, 
and the Cable Access TV Fund to clear projected negative fund balances. The table 
below summarizes the General Fund budget and actuals through the fourth quarter. 
 


 
 


General Fund Revenue (including Measure S 2006 and 2014) 
 


The City Council authorized revenues in the amount of $28,111,479 in the original FY 
2022/23 General Fund budget, including Measure S 2006 and 2014. No changes were 
made to the revenue budget since adoption. General Fund actual revenues were 
$27,034,027, 96% of the amended budget, before the $2 million transfer in from the 
pension trust. Projected year-end revenues, including the transfer in from the trust 
total $29,194,535, 104% of the amended budget. The table below summarizes the 
General Fund revenue budget and actuals through the fourth quarter. 
 


 
 
 


General Fund (including 


Measure S 2006 and 2014)


FY 2022/23 


Original 


Budget


FY 2022/23 


Revised 


Budget


Proposed 


Adjustments 


FY 2022/23 


Amended 


Budget


FY 2022/23   


YTD Actuals w/ 


Encumb.


% of 


Amended 


Budget


Projected      


Year-End


Revenues 28,111,479$    28,111,479$   -$                   28,111,479$   27,034,027$    96% 29,194,535$   


Expenditures 28,995,141      29,565,555     582,870          30,148,425     27,989,018      93% 28,571,888     


  Net surplus/deficit (883,662)          (1,454,076)      (582,870)        (2,036,946)      (954,990)$        622,647         


Beginning Fund Balance 10,613,156      10,613,156     10,613,156     10,613,156     


Ending Fund Balance 9,729,494$      9,159,080$     8,576,210$     11,235,803$   


Category FY 2022/23 


Original 


Budget


FY 2022/23 


Revised 


Budget


Proposed 


Adjustments 


FY 2022/23 


Amended 


Budget


FY 2022/23   


YTD Actuals


% of Amended 


Budget


Projected 


Year-End


Property Taxes 4,776,626$      4,776,626$     4,776,626$     5,055,790$      106% 5,055,790$    


Sales and Use Taxes 4,582,095        4,582,095       4,582,095       4,396,002        96% 4,396,002      


Sales and Use Taxes - Measure S 2006 2,451,000        2,451,000       2,451,000       2,467,529        101% 2,467,529      


Sales and Use Taxes - Measure S 2014 2,451,000        2,451,000       2,451,000       2,464,819        101% 2,464,819      


Utility Users Tax 1,934,150        1,934,150       1,934,150       2,312,830        120% 2,312,830      


Franchise Taxes 786,790           786,790          786,790          813,494           103% 813,494        


Other Taxes: TOT 440,000           440,000          440,000          456,288           104% 456,288        


Other Taxes: Business License 412,500           412,500          412,500          442,509           107% 442,509        


Intergovernmental Taxes 2,215,948        2,215,948       2,215,948       2,247,072        101% 2,247,072      


Public Safety Charges 1,405,108        1,405,108       1,405,108       1,599,372        114% 1,599,372      


Total Other Revenue 549,640           549,640          549,640          706,918           129% 706,918        


Revenue Total: 22,004,857      22,004,857     -                 22,004,857     22,962,623      104% 22,962,623    


Transfer In from Section 115 Trust 2,016,612        2,016,612       2,016,612       -                  0% 2,160,508      


Transfer In from ARPA Fund 4,090,010        4,090,010       4,090,010       4,071,404        100% 4,071,404      


Revenue/Sources Total: 28,111,479$    28,111,479$   -$                   28,111,479$   27,034,027$    96% 29,194,535$  


151 of 273







City Council Report 9I 
September 19, 2023  3 


 


Sales Tax  
 
Sales tax is the City’s largest general revenue stream. For FY 2022/23, sales tax, 
including Measure S funds, was budgeted at $9,484,095 of which the City collected 
$9,328,351, 98% of the amended budget. The City experienced a steady upward trend 
in sales tax receipts through 2022, but that growth rate has leveled off over the third 
and fourth quarters of FY 2022/23. Over both quarters, overall sales were down 
possibly attributable to speculation of a looming recession. The largest decline was in 
the service station category, primarily due to lower fuel prices and the temporary 
closure of a gas station. The two Measure Ss realized gains from strong new motor 
vehicle purchases by Pinole residents and online purchases.  
 
Property Tax 
 
Property tax is the City’s second largest revenue stream. It is received in three 
installments in December (55%), April (40%), and June of each year (5%).  Property 
tax revenue includes the basic 1% property tax, unsecured property tax, supplemental 
property tax, and documentary transfer tax. It also includes the Redevelopment 
Property Tax Trust Fund (RPTTF).  This is revenue that has resulted from the 
dissolution of the former Pinole Redevelopment Agency and represents the shift from 
the Agency receiving tax increment revenue to the various taxing entities receiving the 
tax revenue. The RPTTF revenue will convert to “normal” property tax revenue when 
all of the former Agency’s outstanding debt is paid off and the Successor Agency is 
formally dissolved. Dissolution is currently expected to occur sometime after the final 
debt service payment in FY 2023/24. The budgeted revenue for FY 2022/23 was 
$4,776,626, of which the City collected $5,055,790, 106% of the amended budget. 
The overage was mainly due to higher-than-projected RPTTF residual revenue.  
 
All Other General Fund Revenue  
 
Utility Users’ Tax (UUT) is levied on telecommunication, electricity, gas, and mobile 
telephones. For FY 2022/23, revenues were $2,312,830, 120% of the amended 
budget.  
 
Franchise Tax is levied on gas, electricity, cable, and refuse. For FY 2022/23, 
revenues were $813,494, 103% of the amended budget. 
 
Transient Occupancy Tax (TOT), also known as the “hotel tax,” is levied on persons 
staying 30 days or less in a motel or lodging facility within City limits. For FY 2022/23, 
revenues were $456,288, 104% of the amended budget. 
 
Business License Tax is assessed on all businesses doing business within City limits.  
For FY 2022/23, revenues were $442,509, 107% of the amended budget.  
 
Intergovernmental Taxes is comprised of the Motor Vehicle License Fee (VLF), which 
is the City’s share of motor vehicle license fees levied, collected, and apportioned by 
the State. This category also includes the Homeowners Property Tax Relief, which is 


152 of 273







City Council Report 9I 
September 19, 2023  4 


 


a reimbursement from the State to offset loss of property tax for the state-imposed 
homeowner exemption. For FY 2022/23, revenues were $2,247,072, 101% of the 
amended budget.  
 
Public safety charges are received for dispatch services provided to the cities of 
Hercules and San Pablo under an Intergovernmental Service Sharing agreement.  For 
FY 2022/23, revenues were $1,599,372, 114% of the amended budget.  
 
Other revenues include permits, fees, fines and forfeitures, rental income, proceeds 
from the sale of property, investment income, and grants. For FY 2022/23, all 
revenues combined in this category were $706,918, 129% of the amended budget.  
 
The transfer in comes from the Section 115 Trust to offset the increase in pension 
costs in the General Funds, taking the difference between the actual costs in FY 
2022/23 and the actual costs in FY 2018/19 (the baseline year). For FY 2022/23, 
transfer in is $2,160,508.  
 
General Fund Expenditures (including Measure S 2006 and 2014) 


 
The City Council authorized expenditures in the amount of $28,995,141 in the original 
FY 2022/23 General Fund budget. The revised budget was increased to $29,565,555. 
The amended budget is $30,148,425 which includes a proposed budget increase of 
$582,870 to clear projected negative fund balances in other funds. General Fund 
actual expenditures were $27,989,018, 93% of the amended budget. Projected year-
end expenditures, including the transfers out total $28,571,888, 95% of the amended 
budget. 
 
The table below summarizes the General Fund expenditure budget and actuals by 
category through the fourth quarter. 
 


 
  
Expenditures with significant variances that exceed budgeted amounts are explained 
below.  
 


• Professional/admin services were 125% of the amended budget. This was 
mainly due to the shift in costs from salaries and benefits to professional/admin 
services for the service charges under the City’s service agreement with the 
Contra Costa County Fire Protection District, effective March 1, 2023. 


Category FY 2022/23 


Original 


Budget


FY 2022/23 


Revised 


Budget


Proposed 


Adjustments


FY 2022/23 


Amended 


Budget


FY 2022/23   


YTD Actuals 


w/ Encumb.


% of 


Amended 


Budget


Projected     


Year-End


Salaries & Wages 11,492,312$  11,462,312$  11,462,312$  10,970,259$   96% 10,970,259$  


Benefits 7,496,535      7,496,535      7,496,535      6,880,759      92% 6,880,759$    


Professional/Admin Services 4,253,726      4,670,075      4,670,075      5,832,995      125% 5,832,995$    


Other Operating 286,311        286,311        286,311        359,695         126% 359,695$       


Materials and Supplies 229,200        229,200        229,200        291,123         127% 291,123$       


Interdepartmental Charges (689,039)       (603,740)       (603,740)       (451,071)        75% (451,071)$     


Asset/Capital Outlay 3,258,109      3,356,875      3,356,875      1,433,022      43% 1,433,022$    


Debt Service 596,107        596,107        596,107        600,356         101% 600,356$       


Other Financing Uses/Transfers Out2,071,880      2,071,880      582,870       2,654,750      2,071,880      78% 2,654,750$    


Expenditure Total: 28,995,141$  29,565,555$  582,870$      30,148,425$  27,989,018$   93% 28,571,888$  


153 of 273







City Council Report 9I 
September 19, 2023  5 


 


• Other operating expenditures were 126% of the amended budget mostly due 
to higher-than-expected electricity & power costs. 


• Materials and Supplies were 127% of the amended budget primarily due to 
higher-than-expected fuel costs.  


 
In addition to the summary of expenditures by category, a summary of General Fund 
expenditures by department is provided below.  
 


 
 
Most departmental spending was at or below 100% for the year. Those that exceeded 
the amended budget are detailed below.  
 


• City Council department expenditures were 111% of the amended budget 
mostly due to administrative expenses for broadcasting services.  


• City Attorney department expenditures were 103% of the amended budget for 
legal services provided.  


 
Overall, we are projecting to receive about $1.1 million more General Fund revenue 
than we budgeted; we are projecting expenditure savings of about $1.6 million due to 
lower-than-budgeted expenditures most of which were not carried forward; and 
therefore, we have an estimated ending unassigned fund balance of about $11.2 
million. 
 
Other Funds Analysis 
 
The following analysis provides detailed explanations of the financial activity for select 
non-general funds. The financial report (Attachment A) includes detailed financial 
information for all funds.     
 
Special Revenue Funds 
 
Gas Tax Fund (Fund 200) 
 
The Gas Tax Fund accounts for revenue from State excise taxes on gasoline and 
diesel fuel sales (referred to as the Highway Users Tax Account (HUTA)) as well as 
revenue from the Road Repair and Accountability Act of 2017 (SB1) (referred to as 


Department FY 2022/23 


Original 


Budget


FY 2022/23 


Revised 


Budget


Proposed 


Adjustments 


FY 2022/23 


Amended 


Budget


FY 2022/23   


YTD Actuals w/ 


Encumb.


% of 


Amended 


Budget


Projected 


Year-End


City Council 176,396$         188,396$        188,396$        209,502$         111% 209,502$       


City Manager 615,943           615,943          615,943          566,521           92% 566,521         


City Clerk 586,347           586,347          586,347          509,653           87% 509,653         


City Treasurer 8,662              8,662             8,662             8,233              95% 8,233             


City Attorney 321,057           321,057          321,057          330,354           103% 330,354         


Finance Department 632,747           754,180          754,180          670,639           89% 670,639         


Human Resources 768,472           768,472          768,472          748,108           97% 748,108         


Non-Departmental 3,629,942        3,629,942       582,870          4,212,812       4,084,377        97% 4,667,247      


Information Technology 102,600           102,600          102,600          -                  0% -                


Police Department 10,535,459      10,535,459     10,535,459     10,214,812      97% 10,214,812     


Fire Department 5,514,428        5,564,428       5,564,428       6,716,566        121% 6,716,566      


Public Works 5,099,752        5,441,300       5,441,300       3,160,147        58% 3,160,147      


Community Development 527,464           572,897          572,897          404,853           71% 404,853         


Community Services 475,872           475,872          475,872          365,253           77% 365,253         


Expenditure Total: 28,995,141$    29,565,555$   582,870$        30,148,425$   27,989,018$    93% 28,571,888$   


154 of 273







City Council Report 9I 
September 19, 2023  6 


 


the Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account (RMRA)). Gas Tax Fund resources 
are restricted for use in the construction and maintenance of public streets. These 
funds support both annual operating and capital projects. For FY 2022/23, revenues 
were $921,058, 92% of the amended budget. Expenditures were $618,319, 51% of 
the amended budget. Expenditures were lower than budget due to the timing of capital 
projects, which typically span several fiscal years. The unspent funds were carried 
over to the FY 2023/24 budget.   
 


 
 
Public Safety Augmentation Fund (Fund 203) 
 
The Public Safety Augmentation Fund (PSAF) accounts for monies allocated by the 
County Auditor-Controller under Proposition 172 from the statewide 0.5% sales tax 
based on a share of statewide taxable sales.  These funds are used exclusively for 
public safety personnel costs.  For FY 2022/23, revenues were $248,081, 144% of the 
amended budget. Expenditures were $187,468, 48% of the amended budget. 
Expenditures were low due to cost savings from an unfilled position.  
  


 
 
Supplemental Law Enforcement Services Fund (206) 
 
The Supplemental Law Enforcement Services Fund (SLESF) accounts for funds 
received from the County under AB 3229, which enacted the Citizens Option for Public 
Safety (COPS) Program, through which the City receives $100,000 annually. In 
addition to the $100,000 annual payment, the City receives a Growth Allocation 
payment. The funds are used to partially offset officer personnel costs. For FY 
2022/23, revenues were $172,547, 109% of the amended budget. Expenditures were 
$127,057, 114% of the amended budget.  
 


 
 
 
 


Gas Tax Fund FY 2022/23 


Original 


Budget


FY 2022/23 


Revised 


Budget


Proposed 


Adjustments


FY 2022/23 


Amended 


Budget


FY 2022/23   


YTD Actuals


FY 2022/23   


YTD Actuals 


w/ Encumb.


% of 


Amended 


Budget


Projected      


Year-End


Revenues 1,003,271$      1,003,271$     -$                     1,003,271$     921,058$          921,058$         92% 921,058$        


Expenditures 1,144,557         1,194,557       -                   1,194,557       606,311            618,319            51% 618,319          


  Net surplus/deficit (141,286)           (191,286)         -                   (191,286)         314,747$          302,739$         302,739          


Beginning Fund Balance 729,304            729,304          729,304          729,304          


Ending Fund Balance 588,018$          538,018$        538,018$        1,032,044$     


Public Safety Augmentation Fund FY 2022/23 


Original 


Budget


FY 2022/23 


Revised 


Budget


Proposed 


Adjustments


FY 2022/23 


Amended 


Budget


FY 2022/23   


YTD Actuals w/ 


Encumb.


% of Amended 


Budget


Projected      


Year-End


Revenues 172,766$         172,766$        -$                   172,766$        248,081$         144% 248,081$       


Expenditures 387,365           387,365          -                 387,365          187,468           48% 187,468        


  Net surplus/deficit (214,599)          (214,599)        -                 (214,599)        60,613$           60,613          


Beginning Fund Balance 517,190           517,190          517,190          517,190        


Ending Fund Balance 302,591$         302,591$        302,591$        577,803$       


Supplemental Law Enforcement 


Services Fund


FY 2022/23 


Original 


Budget


FY 2022/23 


Revised 


Budget


Proposed 


Adjustments


FY 2022/23 


Amended 


Budget


FY 2022/23   


YTD Actuals w/ 


Encumb.


% of Amended 


Budget


Projected      


Year-End


Revenues 158,327$         158,327$        -$                   158,327$        172,547$         109% 172,547$       


Expenditures 111,067           111,067          -                 111,067          127,057           114% 127,057        


  Net surplus/deficit 47,260             47,260           -                 47,260           45,490$           45,490          


Beginning Fund Balance 372,015           372,015          372,015          372,015        


Ending Fund Balance 419,275$         419,275$        419,275$        417,505$       


155 of 273







City Council Report 9I 
September 19, 2023  7 


 


NPDES Storm Water Fund (Fund 207) 
 
The NPDES Storm Water Fund accounts for assessments collected by the County via 
property tax bills and provided to the City for stormwater programs pursuant to the 
National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) regulations, a federally 
mandated program.  Assessments are levied at $35 per Equivalent Runoff Unit (ERU). 
For FY 2022/23, revenues were $257,069, 101% of the amended budget. 
Expenditures were $293,563, 87% of the amended budget. Staff recommends a 
$75,433 revenue adjustment to transfer funds from the General Fund to clear the 
negative balance. 
 


 
 
Recreation Department Fund (Fund 209) 
 
The Recreation Department Fund accounts for program fees, fundraising proceeds, 
and donations for Recreation programs. Resources are used towards staffing and 
maintenance costs to operate the programs. The fund receives a transfer from the 
General Fund to offset a recurring operating loss. For FY 2022/23, revenues, including 
program revenues and transfers in, were $1,151,296, 99% of the amended budget. 
Expenditures were $1,586,525, 75% of the amended budget. Staff recommends a 
$422,512 revenue adjustment increasing the transfer from the General Fund to 
balance the fund. 
 


 
 
Building & Planning Fund (Fund 212) 
 
The Building & Planning Fund accounts for funds received from fees and permits for 
building and planning services. Fees are collected to recover the cost primarily related 
to inspections and plan checks performed. For FY 2022/23, revenues were 
$1,216,842, 53% of the amended budget. Revenues were far below budget mostly 
due to review fee revenue. Also, the SB2 Grant was budgeted in the amount of 
$205,000 but will not be received until FY 2023/24. Expenditures were $2,329,132, 
98% of the amended budget. The projected negative fund balance is expected to be 
cleared with revenue from permit fees for several major housing developments.  
 


NPDES Storm Water Fund FY 2022/23 


Original 


Budget


FY 2022/23 


Revised 


Budget


Proposed 


Adjustments


FY 2022/23 


Amended 


Budget


FY 2022/23   


YTD Actuals w/ 


Encumb.


% of Amended 


Budget


Projected      


Year-End


Revenues 253,422$         253,422$        75,433$          328,855$        257,069$         101% 332,502        


Expenditures 336,938           336,938          336,938          293,563           87% 293,563        


  Net surplus/deficit (83,516)           (83,516)          75,433           (8,083)            (36,495)$          38,938          


Beginning Fund Balance (38,938)           (38,938)          (38,938)          (38,938)         


Ending Fund Balance (122,454)$        (122,454)$       (47,021)$        0$                 


Recreation Fund FY 2022/23 


Original 


Budget


FY 2022/23 


Revised 


Budget


Proposed 


Adjustments


FY 2022/23 


Amended 


Budget


FY 2022/23   


YTD Actuals 


w/ Encumb.


% of Amended 


Budget


Projected      


Year-End


Revenues


  Program Revenue 558,000$          488,220$        -$                     488,220$        475,465$          97% 475,465$       


  Transfers In 675,831            675,831          422,512          1,098,343       675,831            100% 1,098,343      


    Total Revenues 1,233,831         1,164,051       422,512          1,586,563       1,151,296         99% 1,573,808      


Expenditures 1,918,034         2,093,815       2,093,815       1,579,296         75% 1,579,296      


  Net surplus/deficit (684,203)           (929,764)         422,512          (507,252)         (428,000)$        (5,488)            


Beginning Fund Balance 5,488                5,488               5,488               5,488              


Ending Fund Balance (678,716)$        (924,277)$       (501,765)$       (0)$                  


156 of 273







City Council Report 9I 
September 19, 2023  8 


 


 
 
Refuse Management Fund (Fund 213) 
 
The Refuse Management Fund accounts for resources received from the City’s 
franchise waste hauler, Republic Services, from a monthly fee imposed under AB 939 
on all residential customers in Pinole. These revenues are restricted to programs and 
activities that promote recycling of solid waste and source reduction. For FY 2022/23, 
revenues were $68,580 104% of the amended budget. Expenditures were $122,104, 
73% of the amended budget.  
 


 
 
Solid Waste Fund (Fund 214) 
 
The Solid Waste Fund accounts for funds received from Republic Services from a 
monthly fee it assesses on customer rates for solid waste services. These funds are 
set aside for future solid waste capital projects and for a rate stabilization fund. For FY 
2022/23, revenues were $468,485, 127% of the amended budget. Expenditures were 
$195,991, 51% of the amended budget.  
 


 
 
Rate Stabilization Fund (Fund 216)  
 
The Rate Stabilization Fund was created to account for the excess revenues from the 
solid waste post collection contract with Republic Services. Twenty-five percent (25%) 
of the surplus funds, generated from prior years’ rate increases, are set aside to offset 
year-over-year rate fluctuations; thereby, leveling the annual rates paid by consumers. 
Per Resolution 2013-91, the City was required to establish a rate stabilization fund, 
separate from the Solid Waste Fund (214), for the excess revenues collected. For FY 
2022/23, revenues were $3,210 and there were no expenditures.  
 


Building and Planning Fund FY 2022/23 


Original 


Budget


FY 2022/23 


Revised 


Budget


Proposed 


Adjustments


FY 2022/23 


Amended 


Budget


FY 2022/23   


YTD Actuals 


w/ Encumb.


% of Amended 


Budget


Projected      


Year-End


Revenues 4,828,448$      2,288,552$     -$                     2,288,552$     1,216,842$      53% 1,216,842$    


Expenditures 2,410,793         2,379,760       -                   2,379,760       2,328,532         98% 2,328,532      


  Net surplus/deficit 2,417,655         (91,208)           -                   (91,208)           (1,111,691)$     (1,111,691)     


Beginning Fund Balance (532,755)           (532,755)         (532,755)         (532,755)        


Ending Fund Balance 1,884,900$      (623,963)$       (623,963)$       (1,644,446)$  


Refuse Management Fund FY 2022/23 


Original 


Budget


FY 2022/23 


Revised 


Budget


Proposed 


Adjustments


FY 2022/23 


Amended 


Budget


FY 2022/23   


YTD Actuals w/ 


Encumb.


% of Amended 


Budget


Projected      


Year-End


Revenues 66,060$           66,060$          -$                   66,060$          68,580$           104% 68,580$        


Expenditures 167,825           167,825          -                 167,825          122,104           73% 122,104        


  Net surplus/deficit (101,765)          (101,765)        -                 (101,765)        (53,524)$          (53,524)         


Beginning Fund Balance 150,843           150,843          150,843          150,843        


Ending Fund Balance 49,078$           49,078$          49,078$          97,319$        


Solid Waste Fund FY 2022/23 


Original 


Budget


FY 2022/23 


Revised 


Budget


Proposed 


Adjustments


FY 2022/23 


Amended 


Budget


FY 2022/23   


YTD Actuals w/ 


Encumb.


% of Amended 


Budget


Projected      


Year-End


Revenues 368,000$         368,000$        -$                   368,000$        468,485$         127% 468,485$       


Expenditures 682,778           382,778          -                 382,778          195,991           51% 195,991        


  Net surplus/deficit (314,778)          (14,778)          -                 (14,778)          272,494$         272,494        


Beginning Fund Balance 2,063,224        2,063,224       2,063,224       2,063,224      


Ending Fund Balance 1,748,446$      2,048,446$     2,048,446$     2,335,718$    


157 of 273







City Council Report 9I 
September 19, 2023  9 


 


 
 
Measure J Fund (Fund 215) 
 


The Measure J Fund accounts for special sales tax revenues collected by the Contra 
Costa Transportation Authority (CCTA) and reapportioned to the cities for local street 
projects. The City must submit a checklist each year to confirm compliance with a 
Growth Management Program in order to receive these funds. Estimates of annual 
funding are provided by the CCTA, and jurisdiction allocations are based on a formula 
that considers both population and road mileage. For FY 2022/23, revenues were 
$79,537, 20% of the amended budget. The remaining CCTA allocation is expected to 
be received in September. Expenditures were $270,964, 42% of the amended budget. 
They expenditures are lower than budgeted due to the timing of capital projects; the 
unspent funds were carried over to the FY 2023/24 budget.  
 


 
 
American Rescue Plan Act Fund (Fund 217) 
 
The American Rescue Plan Act Fund accounts for the $4.6 million allocated to the 
City from the federal government from the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) of 2021. 
In FY 2021/22, the City Council approved an appropriation of $300,000 to provide 
direct financial assistance to small businesses and $100,000 to support the 
community gift card program. Other expenditures included mandatory weekly COVID-
19 testing for public safety staff. The U.S. Treasury’s Final Rule gives recipient 
agencies the option to use their ARPA allocation for general municipal purposes if the 
allocation was less than $10,000,000. For FY 2022/23, Council approved the transfer 
of the remaining $4,071,404 into the General Fund for general purpose activities.  
 


 
 
Parkland Dedication Fund (275) 
 
The Parkland Dedication Fund accounts for fees collected from developers for 
residential impacts on parklands and recreation. These fees are collected pursuant to 


Rate Stabilization Fund FY 2022/23 


Original 


Budget


FY 2022/23 


Revised 


Budget


Proposed 


Adjustments


FY 2022/23 


Amended 


Budget


FY 2022/23   


YTD Actuals w/ 


Encumb.


% of Amended 


Budget


Projected      


Year-End


Revenues 15,000$           15,000$          -$                   15,000$          3,210$             21% 3,210$          


Expenditures -                  -                 -                 -                 -                  0% -                


  Net surplus/deficit 15,000             15,000           -                 15,000           3,210$             3,210            


Beginning Fund Balance 199,959           199,959          199,959          199,959        


Ending Fund Balance 214,959$         214,959$        214,959$        203,169$       


Measure J Fund FY 2022/23 


Original 


Budget


FY 2022/23 


Revised 


Budget


Proposed 


Adjustments


FY 2022/23 


Amended 


Budget


FY 2022/23   


YTD Actuals 


w/ Encumb.


% of Amended 


Budget


Projected      


Year-End


Revenues 390,848$          390,848$        -$                     390,848$        79,537$            20% 440,419$       


Expenditures 639,880            644,880          -                   644,880          270,964            42% 270,964         


  Net surplus/deficit (249,032)           (254,032)         -                   (254,032)         (191,428)$        169,455         


Beginning Fund Balance 2,325,449         2,325,449       2,325,449       2,325,449      


Ending Fund Balance 2,076,417$      2,071,417$     2,071,417$     2,494,903$    


American Rescue Plan Act Fund FY 2022/23 


Original 


Budget


FY 2022/23 


Revised 


Budget


Proposed 


Adjustments


FY 2022/23 


Amended 


Budget


FY 2022/23   


YTD Actuals w/ 


Encumb.


% of Amended 


Budget


Projected      


Year-End


Revenues 2,302,505$      2,302,505$     -$                   2,302,505$     4,071,404$      177% 4,071,404$    


Expenditures 4,090,010        4,090,010       -                 4,090,010       4,071,404        100% 4,071,404      


  Net surplus/deficit (1,787,505)       (1,787,505)      -                 (1,787,505)      -$                    -                


Beginning Fund Balance -                  -                 -                 -                


Ending Fund Balance (1,787,505)$     (1,787,505)$    (1,787,505)$    -$              


158 of 273







City Council Report 9I 
September 19, 2023  10 


 


the City’s Parkland Dedication Ordinance (Municipal Code 16.28) which requires as a 
condition of approval for the subdivision of land, the dedication of park land or payment 
of a fee in-lieu of dedication, pursuant to California Government Code 66477 (the 
“Quimby Act”). The revenue collected can be used primarily to provide for the 
acquisition and development of parks. The fund currently has a negative balance that 
resulted from a transfer out of funds that were initially deposited into the Parkland 
Dedication Fund but should have been deposited into the Impact Fee Fund (276). 
Staff recommends a $22,294 revenue adjustment to transfer funds from the General 
Fund to clear the negative balance.  
 


 
 
Growth Impact Fund (276) 
 
The Growth Impact Fund accounts for development fees collected to mitigate the 
impact of new development. Specifically, it provides for the expansion, design, 
construction, or upgrade to facilities, roadways, and equipment. The City collects 
impact fees for police, fire protection, municipal, community, wastewater, roadways, 
and drainage. For FY 2022/23, revenues were $621,472 ,126% of the amended 
budget. There are no expenditures in this fiscal year as the Hazel Street gap closure 
project will be carried forward to the FY 2023/24 budget.  
 


 
 
Housing Assets for Resale Fund (285) 
 
The Housing Assets for Resale Fund accounts for activities associated with 
administering housing programs of the former Pinole Redevelopment Agency, use of 
Housing Set Aside funds, and the provision of affordable housing within the 
community. For FY 2022/23, revenues were $1,894,742, 113% of the amended 
budget. The excess revenue resulted from proceeds received from the sale of 
property. Expenditures were $3,809,107, 106% of the amended budget, and include 
a loan to Satellite Affordable Housing Associates (SAHA) for the new housing 
development project. 
 


Parkland Dedication Fund FY 2022/23 


Original 


Budget


FY 2022/23 


Revised 


Budget


Proposed 


Adjustments


FY 2022/23 


Amended 


Budget


FY 2022/23   


YTD Actuals 


w/ Encumb.


% of Amended 


Budget


Projected      


Year-End


Revenues -$                       -$                     22,294$          22,294$          360$                 0% 22,654$         


Expenditures -                     -                   -                   -                     0% -                  


  Net surplus/deficit -                     -                   22,294             22,294             360$                 22,654           


Beginning Fund Balance (22,653)             (22,653)           (22,653)           (22,653)          


Ending Fund Balance (22,653)$           (22,653)$         (359)$               0$                   


Growth Impact Fund FY 2022/23 


Original 


Budget


FY 2022/23 


Revised 


Budget


Proposed 


Adjustments


FY 2022/23 


Amended 


Budget


FY 2022/23   


YTD Actuals w/ 


Encumb.


% of Amended 


Budget


Projected      


Year-End


Revenues 1,608,476$      493,000$        -$                   493,000$        621,472$         126% 621,472$       


Expenditures 58,000             58,000           58,000           -                  0% 58,000          


  Net surplus/deficit 1,550,476        435,000          -                 435,000          621,472$         563,472        


Beginning Fund Balance 2,701,825        2,701,825       2,701,825       2,701,825      


Ending Fund Balance 4,252,300$      3,136,824$     3,136,824$     3,265,296$    


159 of 273







City Council Report 9I 
September 19, 2023  11 


 


 
 
Lighting and Landscape District Fund (Fund 310)  
 
The Lighting and Landscape District Fund accounts for assessments to property 
owners to maintain median lighting and landscaping within the Pinole Valley Road 
North and South areas.  Revenue is received in December, April, and June with 
property tax assessments. For FY 2022/23, revenues were $52,256, 82% of the 
amended budget. Expenditures were $46,684, 75% of the amended budget.  
 


 
 
Capital Project Funds 
 
City Street Improvement (Fund 325) 
 
The City Street Improvements Fund accounts for an annual $250,000 transfer from 
Measure S 2014 for street improvement projects. Additionally, it accounts for various 
federal, state, and other grants. For FY 2022/23, revenues were $545,039, 33% of the 
amended budget. The reimbursement from the Subregional Transportation Mitigation 
Program was budgeted in FY 2022/23 but is expected to be received in FY 2023/24. 
Expenditures were $453,217, 27% of the amended budget. Expenditures are far 
below budget due to the timing of capital projects. The unspent funds for capital 
projects were carried over to the FY 2023/24 budget. 
 


 
 
Arterial Streets Rehabilitation (Fund 377) 
 
The Arterial Streets Rehabilitation Fund accounts for an annual $250,000 transfer 
from Measure S 2014 for street rehabilitation projects. For FY 2022/23, revenues were 
$791,463, 317% of the amended budget. The excess revenue is due to a 
reimbursement of $541,463 from the Department of Transportation’s Sustainable 
Transportation Planning Grant. Expenditures were $88,897, 11% of the amended 


Housing Assets for Resale Fund FY 2022/23 


Original 


Budget


FY 2022/23 


Revised 


Budget


Proposed 


Adjustments


FY 2022/23 


Amended 


Budget


FY 2022/23   


YTD Actuals 


w/ Encumb.


% of Amended 


Budget


Projected      


Year-End


Revenues 917,883$          917,883$        -$                     917,883$        1,039,776$      113% 1,889,792$    


Expenditures 327,475            3,588,685       -                   3,588,685       3,809,107         106% 3,809,107      


  Net surplus/deficit 590,408            (2,670,802)      -                   (2,670,802)      (2,769,331)$     (1,919,315)     


Beginning Fund Balance 7,746,133         7,746,133       7,746,133       7,746,133      


Ending Fund Balance 8,336,541$      5,075,331$     5,075,331$     5,826,818$    


Landscape and Lighting District 


Fund 


FY 2022/23 


Original 


Budget


FY 2022/23 


Revised 


Budget


Proposed 


Adjustments


FY 2022/23 


Amended 


Budget


FY 2022/23   


YTD Actuals w/ 


Encumb.


% of Amended 


Budget


Projected      


Year-End


Revenues 63,911$           63,911$          -$                   63,911$          52,256$           82% 52,256$        


Expenditures 62,125             62,125           -                 62,125           46,684             75% 46,684          


  Net surplus/deficit 1,786              1,786             -                 1,786             5,572$             5,572            


Beginning Fund Balance 43,110             43,110           43,110           43,110          


Ending Fund Balance 44,896$           44,896$          44,896$          48,682$        


City Street Improvement Fund FY 2022/23 


Original 


Budget


FY 2022/23 


Revised 


Budget


Proposed 


Adjustments


FY 2022/23 


Amended 


Budget


FY 2022/23   


YTD Actuals w/ 


Encumb.


% of Amended 


Budget


Projected      


Year-End


Revenues 1,651,210$      1,651,210$     1,651,210$     545,039$         33% 545,039$       


Expenditures 1,706,213        1,706,213       1,706,213       453,217           27% 453,217        


  Net surplus/deficit (55,003)           (55,003)          -                 (55,003)          91,822$           91,822          


Beginning Fund Balance 1,552,990        1,552,990       1,552,990       1,552,990      


Ending Fund Balance 1,497,987$      1,497,987$     1,497,987$     1,644,812$    


160 of 273







City Council Report 9I 
September 19, 2023  12 


 


budget. Expenditures are far below budget due to the timing of capital projects. The 
unspent funds for capital projects were carried over to the FY 2023/24 budget.   
 


 
 
Enterprise Funds 
 
Sewer Enterprise Fund (Fund 500) 
 
The Sewer Enterprise Fund accounts for fees charged to residents and businesses 
for sewer service provided by the City’s Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP). Fees 
are used to operate, maintain, and renew the WWTP. The cost of operations is shared 
between Pinole and Hercules using a cost sharing formula based on sewage inflows 
by each city. Revenues are received with the property tax payments in December, 
April, and June. For FY 2022/23, revenues were $8,183,989, 98% of the amended 
budget. Expenditures were $7,461,561, 63% of the amended budget. Expenditures 
are lower than budget due to the timing of capital projects, which typically span several 
fiscal years. The unspent funds for capital projects were carried over to the FY 2023/24 
budget.   
 


 
 
Cable Access TV Fund (Fund 505) 
 
The Cable Access TV Fund accounts for revenue received from cable franchise fees, 
video production and broadcast charges, and Public, Educational, and Governmental 
(PEG) access fees.  PEG access fees are designated for equipment purchases. 
Transfers from the General Fund also help support the operating costs. For FY 
2022/23, revenues were $444,334, 83% of the amended budget. Expenditures were 
$501,738, 78% of the amended budget. Staff recommends a $62,631 revenue 
adjustment increasing the transfer from the General Fund to balance the fund. 
 


 
 


Arterial Streets Rehabilitation Fund FY 2022/23 


Original 


Budget


FY 2022/23 


Revised 


Budget


Proposed 


Adjustments


FY 2022/23 


Amended 


Budget


FY 2022/23   


YTD Actuals w/ 


Encumb.


% of Amended 


Budget


Projected      


Year-End


Revenues 250,000$         250,000$        -$                   250,000$        791,463$         317% 791,463$       


Expenditures 810,312           810,312          -                 810,312          88,897             11% 88,897          


  Net surplus/deficit (560,312)          (560,312)        -                 (560,312)        702,566$         702,566        


Beginning Fund Balance 49,887             49,887           49,887           49,887          


Ending Fund Balance (510,425)$        (510,425)$       (510,425)$       752,453$       


Sewer Enterprise Fund FY 2022/23 


Original 


Budget


FY 2022/23 


Revised 


Budget


Proposed 


Adjustments


FY 2022/23 


Amended 


Budget


FY 2022/23   


YTD Actuals w/ 


Encumb.


% of Amended 


Budget


Projected      


Year-End


Revenues 8,366,176$      8,366,176$     -$                   8,366,176$     8,183,989$      98% 8,183,989$    


Expenditures 11,258,624      11,815,405     -                 11,815,405     7,461,561        63% 7,461,561      


  Net surplus/deficit (2,892,448)       (3,449,229)      -                 (3,449,229)      722,428$         722,428        


Beginning Fund Balance 22,228,477      22,228,477     22,228,477     22,228,477    


Ending Fund Balance 19,336,029$    18,779,248$   18,779,248$   22,950,905$  


Cable Access TV Fund FY 2022/23 


Original 


Budget


FY 2022/23 


Revised 


Budget


Proposed 


Adjustments


FY 2022/23 


Amended 


Budget


FY 2022/23   


YTD Actuals w/ 


Encumb.


% of Amended 


Budget


Projected      


Year-End


Revenues 535,052$         535,052$        62,631$          597,683$        444,334$         83% 506,965$       


Expenditures 646,780           646,780          646,780          501,738           78% 501,738        


  Net surplus/deficit (111,728)          (111,728)        62,631           (49,097)          (57,404)$          5,227            


Beginning Fund Balance (5,227)             (5,227)            (5,227)            (5,227)           


Ending Fund Balance (116,956)$        (116,956)$       (54,325)$        (0)$                


161 of 273







City Council Report 9I 
September 19, 2023  13 


 


Information Systems Fund (Fund 525) 
 
The Information Systems Fund is an internal service fund used to account for activities 
that provide technology goods or services to other City funds and departments on a 
cost-reimbursement basis.  For FY 2022/23, revenues and expenditures were both 
$1,639,410, 84% of the amended budget. Expenditures were below the budget mostly 
due to a large technology project that was anticipated to be completed in FY 2022/23 
but was carried forward to FY 2023/24.  
 


 
 
The FY 2022/23 budget and actual revenue, expenditures, and ending fund balance 
for each City fund is listed in Attachment A. 
 
Next Steps 
 
Following City Council approval of the budget adjustments, staff will amend the budget 
and close the accounting books for FY 2022/23. The year-end financial audit is 
scheduled to begin in early October and will conclude in December. Finally, the year-
end financial statements, or the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR), will 
be issued by December 31, 2023.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
In this FY 2022/23 Fourth Quarter Financial Report, staff recommends the following 
year-end budget adjustments, summarized below, and detailed in Attachment A. 
 


• General Fund (100) expenditure budget increase totaling $582,870; 


• Storm Water Fund (207) revenue budget increase totaling $75,433; 


• Recreation Fund (209) revenue budget increase totaling $422,512; 


• Parkland Dedication Fund (275) revenue budget increase totaling $22,294; and 


• Cable TV Access Fund (505) revenue budget increase totaling $62,631. 
 


ATTACHMENTS 
 


A – FY 2022/23 Fourth Quarter Financial Report Summary by Fund 
B – Resolution approving FY 2022/23 year-end budget adjustments  
 


Information Technology Fund FY 2022/23 


Original Budget


FY 2022/23 


Revised 


Budget


Proposed 


Adjustments


FY 2022/23 


Amended 


Budget


FY 2022/23   


YTD Actuals w/ 


Encumb.


% of Amended 


Budget


Projected      


Year-End


Expenditures 1,482,335        1,956,100       -                 1,956,100       1,639,410        84% 1,639,410      


Indirect Cost Allocations (1,482,335)       (1,956,100)      -                 (1,956,100)      (1,398,588)       71% (1,639,410)    


  Net surplus/deficit 0                     -                 -                 -                 240,821           (0)                 


Beginning Fund Balance -                  -                 -                 -                


Ending Fund Balance 0$                    -$                   -$                   (0)$                


162 of 273







RESOLUTION NO. 2023-XX 


A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PINOLE, COUNTY OF 
CONTRA COSTA, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, AMENDING THE FISCAL YEAR 


2022/23 OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET TO INCORPORATE ADDITIONAL 
APPROPRIATIONS  


WHEREAS, the City Council did adopt the Fiscal Year (FY) 2022/23 Budget for 
City Operations by Resolution number 2022-46 on June 21, 2022; and 


WHEREAS, the City Manager has presented proposed recommendations for 
modification of the adopted budget and programs of service for the City of Pinole 
Operations for FY 2022/23 at the regular City Council Meeting held on September 19, 
2023; and 


WHEREAS, the City Council has considered these recommended changes, as to 
the matter of the City budget; and 


WHEREAS, the City Council has solicited public input on the proposed 
modifications to the FY 2022/23 Operations and Capital Budget; and 


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Pinole 
as follows: 


Modifications to the budget, including any requisite use of appropriate Fund 
Balance, for the City of Pinole for Fiscal Year 2022/23 commencing July 1, 2022 and 
ending June 30, 2023 are hereby approved and adopted as follows: 


1. FY 2022/23 Expenditure Budget Adjustment


General Fund (100): $582,870 


2. FY 2022/23 Revenue Budget Adjustments


Storm Water Fund (207): $75,433 
Recreation Fund (209): $422,512 
Parkland Dedication Fund (275): $22,294 
Cable TV Access Fund (505): $62,631 


PASSED AND ADOPTED this 19th day of September 2023, by the following vote: 


AYES:  COUNCILMEMBERS:  


NOES: COUNCILMEMBERS: 


ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS:  


ABSTAIN: COUNCILMEMBERS:  


ATTACHMENT A


163 of 273







 
I hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was introduced, passed and adopted on this 19th day 
of September, 2023. 
 
 
____________________________ 
Heather Bell, CMC 
City Clerk 
 


164 of 273







Projected


Year-End


4,776,626           4,776,626           4,776,626             5,055,790        5,055,790        279,164            106% 5,055,790           


4,582,095           4,582,095           4,582,095             4,396,002        4,396,002        (186,093)          96% 4,396,002           


2,451,000           2,451,000           2,451,000             2,467,529        2,467,529        16,529              101% 2,467,529           


2,451,000           2,451,000           2,451,000             2,464,819        2,464,819        13,819              101% 2,464,819           


1,934,150           1,934,150           1,934,150             2,312,830        2,312,830        378,680            120% 2,312,830           


786,790              786,790              786,790 813,494           813,494           26,704              103% 813,494              


852,500              852,500              852,500 898,797           898,797           46,297              105% 898,797              


440,000             440,000             440,000 456,288          456,288          16,288             104% 456,288              


412,500             412,500             412,500 442,509          442,509          30,009             107% 442,509              


2,215,948           2,215,948           2,215,948             2,247,072        2,247,072        31,124              101% 2,247,072           


40,000 40,000 40,000 43,442              43,442              3,442 109% 43,442 


47,026 47,026 47,026 43,793              43,793              (3,232) 93% 43,793 


68,700 68,700 68,700 191,017           191,017           122,317            278% 191,017              


28,000 28,000 28,000 50,279              50,279              22,279              180% 50,279 


43,194 43,194 43,194 38,593              38,593              (4,601) 89% 38,593 


36,000 36,000 36,000 30,193              30,193              (5,808) 84% 30,193 


22,050 22,050 22,050 17,939              17,939              (4,111) 81% 17,939 


1,405,108           1,405,108           1,405,108             1,599,372        1,599,372        194,264            114% 1,599,372           


150,000              150,000              150,000 150,002           150,002           2 100% 150,002              


89,896 89,896 89,896 87,966              87,966              (1,930) 98% 87,966 


18,674 18,674 18,674 36,554              36,554              17,880              196% 36,554 


5,100 5,100 5,100 5,059 5,059 (41) 99% 5,059 


1,000 1,000 1,000 12,080              12,080              11,080              1208% 12,080 


22,004,857        22,004,857        - 22,004,857           22,962,623     - 22,962,623     957,766           104% 22,962,623        


2,016,612           2,016,612           - 2,016,612             - - (2,016,612)       0% 2,160,508           


4,090,010           4,090,010           - 4,090,010             4,071,404        4,071,404        (18,606)             100% 4,071,404           


28,111,479        28,111,479        - 28,111,479           27,034,027     - 27,034,027     (1,077,452)       96% 29,194,535        


170,496              182,496              182,496 200,300           200,300           (17,804)             110% 200,300              


615,943              615,943              615,943 566,521           566,521           49,422              92% 566,521              


586,347              586,347              586,347 509,653           509,653           76,694              87% 509,653              


8,662 8,662 8,662 8,233 8,233 429 95% 8,233 


321,057              321,057              321,057 330,354           330,354           (9,297) 103% 330,354              


583,740             583,740             583,740 899,583          899,583          (315,843)          154% 899,583              


(262,683)            (262,683)            (262,683) (569,229)         (569,229)         306,546           217% (569,229)             


627,847              749,280              749,280 666,670           666,670           82,610              89% 666,670              


768,472              768,472              768,472 748,108           748,108           20,364              97% 748,108              


961,955              961,955              961,955 1,412,142        1,412,142        (450,187)          147% 1,412,142           


4,060,779          4,194,212          - 4,194,212             4,441,982        - 4,441,982        (247,770)          106% 4,441,982          


4,892,111           4,892,111           4,892,111             4,936,564        57,081              4,993,645        (101,534)          102% 4,993,645           


1,538,502           1,538,502           1,538,502             1,414,538        1,414,538        123,964            92% 1,414,538           


2,169,105           2,169,105           2,169,105             2,373,380        2,373,380        (204,275)          109% 2,373,380           


4,212,704           4,212,704           4,212,704             5,051,883        24,750              5,076,633        (863,929)          121% 5,076,633           


12,812,422        12,812,422        - 12,812,422           13,776,365     81,831              13,858,196     (1,045,774)       108% 13,858,196        


736,363              881,796              881,796 438,273           438,273           443,523            50% 438,273              
212,969              212,969              212,969 136,063           141,072            277,135           (64,166)             130% 277,135              
611,147              611,147              611,147 647,917           647,917           (36,770)             106% 647,917              
539,309              539,309              539,309 291,821           291,821           247,488            54% 291,821              


2,099,788          2,245,221          - 2,245,221             1,514,074        141,072            1,655,146        590,075           74% 1,655,146          


77,192 77,192 77,192 65,951              65,951              11,241              85% 65,951 


253,452              298,885              298,885 232,420           232,420           66,465              78% 232,420              


176,820              176,820              176,820 106,482           106,482           70,338              60% 106,482              


507,464              552,897              - 552,897 404,853           404,853           148,045           73% 404,853              


454,022              454,022              454,022 352,653           352,653           101,369            78% 352,653              


454,022              454,022              - 454,022 352,653           - 352,653           101,369           78% 352,653              


596,107              596,107              596,107 600,356           600,356           (4,249) 101% 600,356              


1,353,880           1,353,880           582,870           1,936,750             1,353,880        1,353,880        582,870            70% 1,936,750           


21,884,462        22,208,761        582,870           22,791,631           22,444,162     222,903            22,667,065     (124,566)          99% 23,249,935        


2,450 2,450 2,450 1,534 1,534 916 63% 1,534 


1,718,135           1,718,135           1,718,135             1,286,772        1,286,772        431,363            75% 1,286,772           


727,182              777,182              777,182 898,949           898,949           (121,767)          116% 898,949              


2,447,767          2,497,767          - 2,497,767             2,187,255        - 2,187,255        310,512           88% 2,187,255          


351- Fines and Forfeiture


361- Public Safety Charges


370- Interest and Investment Income


381- Rental Income


383- Reimbursements


384- Other Revenue


392- Proceeds from Sale of Property


Fund: 100- General Fund


           Division: 221- Police Operations Total:


Revenue Total:


Total Administrative:


399- Pension Trust 115 Transfer 


Expenditures


            Division: 116- Human Resources Total:


           Division: 222- Police Support Services Total:


           Division: 223- Dispatch WBCC Total:


            Division: 112- City Clerk Total:


City Attorney Services


City Attorney Indirect Cost Allocations


399- ARPA Fund Transfer


            Division: 110- City Council Total:


341- Review Fees


342- Other Fees


343- Abatement Fees


City of Pinole, CA Fourth Quarter Financial Report
For FY2022/23 Period Ending: 6/30/23


Variance


Favorable


(Unfavorable)


Original 


Budget Revised  Budget EncumbrancesYTD ActualAmended Budget Total


Percent


Used


Proposed 


Adjustments


General Fund (including Measure S 2006 and 2014)


Revenue


311- Property Taxes


315- Other Taxes


324- Other Grants


321- Intergovernmental Taxes


314- Franchise Taxes


312- Sales and Use Taxes


313- Utility Users Tax


 Other Tax/Transient Occupancy Tax


312- Sales and Use Taxes-Meas S 2006


312- Sales and Use Taxes-Meas S 2014


 Other Tax/Business License


            Division: 117- General Government Total:


            Division: 115- Finance Department Total:


Expenditures


            Division: 221- Police Operations Total:


            Division: 115- Finance Department Total:


            Division: 231- Fire Total:


Expenditures Total:


           Division: 341- Administration/Engineering Total:
           Division: 342- Road Maintenance Total:
           Division: 343- Facility Maintenance Total:
           Division: 345- Park Maintenance Total:


           Division: 461- Planning Total:


323- State Grants


332- Permits


Sources Total:


            Division: 114- City Attorney Total:


            Division: 113- City Treasurer Total:


Fund: 105 - Measure S -2006


           Community Services Total:


           Debt Service:


           Operating Transfer Out:


           Division: 465- Code Enforcement Total:


           Division: 466- Economic Development Total:


           Division: 551- Recreation Administration Total:


            Division: 111- City Manager Total:


           Division: 231- Fire Total:


Total Public Safety:


           Public Works Total:


           Community Development Total:


Expenditure Total:


ATTACHMENT B


165 of 273







Projected


Year-End


City of Pinole, CA Fourth Quarter Financial Report
For FY2022/23 Period Ending: 6/30/23


Variance


Favorable


(Unfavorable)


Original 


Budget Revised  Budget EncumbrancesYTD ActualAmended Budget Total


Percent


Used


Proposed 


Adjustments


5,900                   5,900                   5,900                     9,202                9,202                (3,302)               156% 9,202                   


2,450                   2,450                   2,450                     2,434                2,434                16                      99% 2,434                   


102,600              102,600              102,600                 -                    -                    102,600            0% -                       


110,950              110,950              -                    110,950                11,636             -                     11,636             99,314              10% 11,636                


110,000              110,000              110,000                 37,269              37,269              72,731              34% 37,269                


107,606              107,606              107,606                 109,208           109,208           (1,602)               101% 109,208              


574,542              574,542              574,542                 740,985           740,985           (166,443)          129% 740,985              


792,148              792,148              -                    792,148                887,461           -                     887,461           (95,313)            112% 887,461              


296,518              296,518              296,518                 70,569              20,791              91,360              205,158            31% 91,360                


627,512              872,997              872,997                 87,133              143,929            231,062           641,935            26% 231,062              


1,298,025           1,058,655           1,058,655             227,066           354,477            581,544           477,111            55% 581,544              


418,460              418,460              418,460                 2,626                334,565            337,191           81,269              81% 337,191              


359,449              549,449              549,449                 263,845           263,845           285,604            48% 263,845              


2,999,964          3,196,079          -                    3,196,079             651,239           853,763            1,505,001        1,691,078        47% 1,505,001          


20,000                20,000                20,000                   -                    -                    20,000              0% -                       


20,000                20,000                -                    20,000                   -                    -                     -                    20,000              0% -                       


7,000                   7,000                   7,000                     12,600              12,600              (5,600)               180% 12,600                


4,850                   4,850                   4,850                     -                    -                    4,850                0% -                       


10,000                10,000                10,000                   -                    -                    10,000              0% -                       


21,850                21,850                -                    21,850                   12,600             -                     12,600             9,250                58% 12,600                


3,944,912          4,141,027          -                    4,141,027             1,562,935        853,763            2,416,698        1,724,329        58% 2,416,698          


718,000              718,000              718,000                 718,000           718,000           -                     100% 718,000              


4,662,912          4,859,027          -                    4,859,027             2,280,935        853,763            3,134,698        1,724,329        65% 3,134,698          


28,995,141        29,565,555        582,870           30,148,425           26,912,352     1,076,666        27,989,018     2,159,407        93% 28,571,888        


(883,662)            (1,454,076)         (582,870)          (2,036,946)           121,675           (1,076,666)       (954,991)          (1,081,955)       47% 622,647              


Fund Balance July 1, 2022 10,613,156        10,613,156        10,613,156           10,613,156     10,613,156        


Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2023 9,729,494          9,159,080          8,576,210             10,734,831     11,235,803        


-                       -                       -                         181,770           181,770           181,770            0% 181,770              


-                       -                       -                    -                         181,770           -                     181,770           181,770           0% 181,770              


650,925              650,925              650,925                 650,925           650,925           -                     100% 650,925              


650,925              650,925              -                    650,925                832,695           832,695           181,770           128% 832,695              


Fund Balance July 1, 2022 8,192,602          8,192,602          8,192,602             8,192,602        8,192,602          


Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2023 8,843,527          8,843,527          8,843,527             9,025,297        9,025,297          


-                       -                       -                         -                    -                    -                     0% -                       


-                       -                       -                    -                         -                    -                     -                    -                    0% -                       


85,000                85,000                85,000                   85,000              85,000              -                     100% 85,000                


85,000                85,000                -                    85,000                   85,000             -                     85,000             -                    100% 85,000                


120,000              120,000              120,000                 39,434              -                     39,434              80,566              33% 39,434                


80,000                80,000                80,000                   -                    -                    80,000              0% -                       


5,000                   5,000                   5,000                     -                    -                    5,000                0% -                       


205,000              205,000              -                    205,000                39,434             -                     39,434              165,566           19% 39,434                


(120,000)            (120,000)            (120,000)               45,566             -                     45,566             165,566           -38% 45,566                


Fund Balance July 1, 2022 241,166              241,166              241,166                241,166           241,166              


Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2023 121,166              121,166              121,166                286,732           286,732              


990,635              990,635              990,635                 905,449           905,449           (85,186)             91% 905,449              


5,000                   5,000                   5,000                     14,193              14,193              9,193                284% 14,193                


7,636                   7,636                   7,636                     1,417                1,417                (6,219)               19% 1,417                   


1,003,271          1,003,271          -                    1,003,271             921,058           -                     921,058           82,213              92% 921,058              


-                       19,000                19,000                   4,889                4,889                14,111              0% 4,889                   


1,144,557           1,175,557           1,175,557             601,422           12,008              613,429           562,128            52% 613,429              


1,144,557          1,194,557          -                    1,194,557             606,311           12,008              618,319           576,238           52% 618,319              


(141,286)            (191,286)            (191,286)               314,747           (12,008)             302,739           494,025           -158% 302,739              


Fund Balance July 1, 2022 729,304              729,304              729,304                729,304           729,304              


Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2023 588,018              538,018              538,018                1,044,051        1,032,044          


           Division: 341- Admin/Engineering Total:


           Division: 231- Fire Total:


           Division: 110- City Council  Total:


Fund: 106 - Measure S-2014


           Operating Transfer Out:


321- Intergovernmental Taxes


           Community Development Total:


Expenditures


           Division: 342- Road Maintenance Total:


           Division: 341- Admin and Engineering Total:


           Public Works Total:


           Division: 461- Planning Total:


           Division: 552- Senior Center Total:


           Division: 553- Tiny Tots Total:


 Equipment Reserve Net Results:


 Sub-Total:


Fund: 150 - General Reserve


General Reserve Net Results:


Revenue Total:


           Division: 554- Youth Center Total:


General Fund and Measure S Net Results:


370- Interest and Investment Income


Revenue Total:


Gas Tax Fund Net Results:


Expenditures Total:


Expenditures Total:


           Division: 343- Facility Maintenance Total:


           Division: 344- NPDES Storm Drain Total:


           Division: 345- Park Maintenance Total:


           Division: 342- Road Maintenance Total:


           Division: 345- Park Maintenance Total:


           Division: 461- Planning Total:


399- Transfer In Total:


            Revenue Total:


392- Sale of Property


Sources Total:


Expenditures


                     399- Transfers In Total:


Fund: 160 - Equipment Reserve


General Fund and Measure S Expenditure Total:


Expenditure Total:


           Division: 115- Finance Department Total:


Expenditures


           Division: 118- Information Systems Total:


           Division: 221- Police Operations Total:


Total Administrative:


           Division: 222- Police Support Services Total:


Total Public Safety:


           Division: 342- Road Maintenance Total:


           Community Services Total:


Fund: 200 - Gas Tax Fund


370- Interest and Investment Income


383- Reimbursements


166 of 273







Projected


Year-End


City of Pinole, CA Fourth Quarter Financial Report
For FY2022/23 Period Ending: 6/30/23


Variance


Favorable


(Unfavorable)


Original 


Budget Revised  Budget EncumbrancesYTD ActualAmended Budget Total


Percent


Used


Proposed 


Adjustments


3,175                   3,175                   3,175                     475                   475                   (2,700)               15% 475                      


36,816                36,816                36,816                   -                    -                    (36,816)             0% -                       


-                       -                       -                         -                    -                    -                     0% -                       


39,991                39,991                -                    39,991                   475                   -                     475                   39,516              1% 475                      


26,000                26,000                26,000                   17,110              17,110              8,890                66% 17,110                


26,000                26,000                -                    26,000                   17,110             -                     17,110              8,890                66% 17,110                


13,991                13,991                13,991                   (16,635)            (16,635)            (30,626)            -119% (16,635)               


Fund Balance July 1, 2022 164,881              164,881              164,881                164,881           164,881              


Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2023 178,872              178,872              178,872                148,246           148,246              


170,266              170,266              170,266                 239,924           239,924           69,658              141% 239,924              


2,500                   2,500                   2,500                     8,156                8,156                5,656                326% 8,156                   


172,766              172,766              -                    172,766                248,081           -                     248,081           75,315              144% 248,081              


387,365              387,365              387,365                 187,468           187,468           199,897            48% 187,468              


387,365              387,365              -                    387,365                187,468           -                     187,468           199,897           48% 187,468              


(214,599)            (214,599)            (214,599)               60,613             60,613             275,212           -28% 60,613                


Fund Balance July 1, 2022 517,190              517,190              517,190                517,190           517,190              


Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2023 302,591              302,591              302,591                577,803           577,803              


45,000                45,000                45,000                   26,111              26,111              (18,890)             58% 26,111                


1,500                   1,500                   1,500                     4,152                4,152                2,652                277% 4,152                   


46,500                46,500                -                    46,500                   30,263             -                     30,263             (16,237)            65% 30,263                


21,059                21,059                21,059                   10,028              10,028              11,031              48% 10,028                


21,059                21,059                -                    21,059                   10,028             -                     10,028              11,031              48% 10,028                


25,441                25,441                25,441                   20,234             20,234             (5,207)               80% 20,234                


Fund Balance July 1, 2022 251,826              251,826              251,826                251,826           251,826              


Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2023 277,267              277,267              277,267                272,061           272,061              


156,727              156,727              156,727                 165,271           165,271           8,544                105% 165,271              


1,600                   1,600                   1,600                     7,276                7,276                5,676                455% 7,276                   


158,327              158,327              -                    158,327                172,547           -                     172,547           14,220              109% 172,547              


111,067              111,067              111,067                 127,057           127,057           (15,990)             114% 127,057              


111,067              111,067              -                    111,067                127,057           -                     127,057           (15,990)            114% 127,057              


47,260                47,260                47,260                   45,490             45,490             (1,770)               96% 45,490                


Fund Balance July 1, 2022 372,015              372,015              372,015                372,015           372,015              


Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2023 419,275              419,275              419,275                417,505           417,505              


253,272              253,272              253,272                 256,688           256,688           3,416                101% 256,688              


-                       -                       -                         1,200                1,200                1,200                0% 1,200                   


150                      150                      150                         (819)                  (819)                  (969)                  -546% (819)                     


-                       -                       75,433              75,433                   -                    -                    (75,433)             0% 75,433                


253,422              253,422              75,433             328,855                257,069           -                     257,069           (71,786)            78% 332,502              


12,005                12,005                12,005                   -                    -                    12,005              0% -                       


324,933              324,933              324,933                 293,563           293,563           31,370              90% 293,563              


336,938              336,938              -                    336,938                293,563           -                     293,563           43,375              87% 293,563              


(83,516)               (83,516)               (83,516)                 (36,495)            (36,495)            (28,412)            44% 38,938                


Fund Balance July 1, 2022 (38,938)               (38,938)               (38,938)                 (38,938)            (38,938)               


Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2023 (122,454)            (122,454)            (122,454)               (75,433)            0                          


323- State Grants


Expenditures


           Division: 227- Police Grants Total:


Expenditures


           Division: 221- Police Operations Total:


370- Interest and Investment Income


Restricted Real Estate Maint Fund Net Results:


Revenue Total:


Expenditures Total:


           Division: 343- Facility Maintenance Total:


Expenditures


Fund: 201 - Restricted Real Estate Maintenance Fund


Revenue Total:


370- Interest and Investment Income


Public Safety Augmentation Fund Net Results:


Fund: 203 - Public Safety Augmentation Fund


Expenditures Total:


NPDES Storm Water Fund Net Results:


Revenue Total:


Expenditures Total:


370- Interest and Investment Income


321- Intergovernmental Taxes


399- Operating Transfer In


           Division: 342- Road Maintenance Total:


           Division: 227- Police Grants Total:


           Division: 344- NPDES Storm Drain Total:


Expenditures


Fund: 207 - NPDES Storm Water Fund


Expenditures Total:


 Traffic Safety Fund Net Results:


Fund: 206 - Supplemental Law Enforcement Svc Fund


Fund: 205 - Traffic Safety Fund


Revenue Total:


 Sup Law Enforce Svc Fund Net Results:


351- Fines and Forfeitures


Revenue Total:


Expenditures Total:


Expenditures


342- Other Fees


381- Rental Income


384- Other Revenue


321- Intergovernmental Taxes


370- Interest and Investment Income


332- Licenses and Permits


167 of 273







Projected


Year-End


City of Pinole, CA Fourth Quarter Financial Report
For FY2022/23 Period Ending: 6/30/23


Variance


Favorable


(Unfavorable)


Original 


Budget Revised  Budget EncumbrancesYTD ActualAmended Budget Total


Percent


Used


Proposed 


Adjustments


70,268                77,268                77,268                   18,330              18,330              (58,938)             24% 18,330                


216,130              167,050              167,050                 172,373           172,373           5,323                103% 172,373              


172,021              138,539              138,539                 147,112           147,112           8,573                106% 147,112              


17,855                4,787                   4,787                     8,752                8,752                3,965                183% 8,752                   


7,560                   7,560                   7,560                     20,123              20,123              12,563              266% 20,123                


63,500                82,500                82,500                   108,666           108,666           26,166              132% 108,666              


10,316                10,316                10,316                   -                    -                    (10,316)             0% -                       


350                      200                      200                         110                   110                   (90)                     55% 110                      


558,000              488,220              -                    488,220                475,465           -                     475,465           (12,755)            97% 475,465              


675,831              675,831              422,512           1,098,343             675,831           675,831           (422,512)          62% 1,098,343           


1,233,831          1,164,051          422,512           1,586,563             1,151,296        -                     1,151,296        (435,267)          73% 1,573,808          


-                       -                       -                         7,068                7,068                (7,068)               0% 7,068                   


694,990              713,850              713,850                 536,645           536,645           177,206            75% 536,645              


579,673              715,143              715,143                 499,930           499,930           215,213            70% 499,930              


174,421              175,135              175,135                 159,521           159,521           15,614              91% 159,521              


247,067              241,921              241,921                 149,272           149,272           92,648              62% 149,272              


74,116                74,616                74,616                   33,561              33,561              41,055              45% 33,561                


126,917              153,900              153,900                 181,576           181,576           (27,676)             118% 181,576              


14,200                14,200                14,200                   7,173                7,173                7,027                51% 7,173                   


6,650                   5,050                   5,050                     4,550                4,550                500                    90% 4,550                   


1,918,034          2,093,815          -                    2,093,815             1,579,296        -                     1,579,296        514,520           75% 1,579,296          


(684,203)            (929,764)            422,512           (507,252)               (428,000)          -                     (428,000)          79,252              84% (5,488)                 


Fund Balance July 1, 2022 5,488                  5,488                  5,488                     5,488                5,488                  


Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2023 (678,716)            (924,277)            (501,765)               (422,512)          (0)                         


225,000              225,000              225,000                 20,000              20,000              (205,000)          9% 20,000                


2,427,800           551,383              551,383                 512,987           512,987           (38,396)             93% 512,987              


1,020,000           1,061,242           1,061,242             517,211           517,211           (544,031)          49% 517,211              


1,036,000           331,278              331,278                 175,504           175,504           (155,774)          53% 175,504              


19,600                19,600                19,600                   -                    -                    (19,600)             0% -                       


87,048                87,049                87,049                   402                   402                   (86,646)             0% 402                      


-                       -                       -                         8,902                8,902                8,902                0% 8,902                   


7,000                   7,000                   7,000                     (18,196)            (18,196)            (25,196)             -260% (18,196)               


-                       -                         32                     32                     32                      0% 32                        


6,000                   6,000                   6,000                     -                    -                    (6,000)               0% -                       


4,828,448          2,288,552          -                    2,288,552             1,216,842        -                     1,216,842        (1,071,710)       53% 1,216,842          


-                       -                       -                         -                    -                    -                     0% -                       


4,828,448          2,288,552          -                    2,288,552             1,216,842        -                     1,216,842        (1,071,710)       53% 1,216,842          


1,183,849           1,210,282           1,210,282             1,119,671        1,119,671        90,611              93% 1,119,671           


1,226,944           1,169,478           1,169,478             1,208,861        1,208,861        (39,383)             103% 1,208,861           


2,410,793          2,379,760          -                    2,379,760             2,328,532        -                     2,328,532        51,228              98% 2,328,532          


2,417,655          (91,208)               -                    (91,208)                 (1,111,691)      -                     (1,111,691)      (1,020,482)       1219% (1,111,691)         


Fund Balance July 1, 2022 (532,755)            (532,755)            (532,755)               (532,755)          (532,755)            


Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2023 1,884,900          (623,963)            (623,963)               (1,644,446)      (1,644,446)         


60,060                60,060                60,060                   66,948              66,948              6,888                111% 66,948                


6,000                   6,000                   6,000                     1,631                1,631                (4,369)               27% 1,631                   


66,060                66,060                -                    66,060                   68,580             -                     68,580             2,520                104% 68,580                


167,825              167,825              167,825                 122,104           122,104           45,721              73% 122,104              


167,825              167,825              -                    167,825                122,104           -                     122,104           45,721              73% 122,104              


(101,765)            (101,765)            (101,765)               (53,524)            (53,524)            48,241              53% (53,524)               


Fund Balance July 1, 2022 150,843              150,843              150,843                150,843           150,843              


Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2023 49,078                49,078                49,078                   97,319             97,319                


Expenditures Total:


Revenue Total:


Recreation Fund Net Results:


Expenditures Total:


Fund: 212 - Building & Planning


Operating Transfers In:


Fund: 209 - Recreation Fund


Division: 558- Memorial Hall


Sources Total 


Division: 551- Recreation Administration


Division: 552- Senior Center


           Division: 552- Senior Center Total:


           Division: 553- Tiny Tots Total:


           Division: 554- Youth Center Total:


           Division: 555- Day Camp Total:


343- Abatement Fees


351- Fines and Forfeiture


Expenditures


           Division: 117- General Government Total:


Sources Total 


Operating Transfers in:


 Building & Planning Net Results:


Fund: 213 - Refuse Management Fund


 Refuse Management Fund Net Results:


323- State Grants


384- Other Revenue


332- Permits


341- Review Fees


342- Other Fees


344- Impact Fees


370- Interest and Investment Income


           Division: 557- Swim Center Total:


           Division: 558- Memorial Hall Total:


Division: 553- Tiny Tots


Division: 554- Youth Center


Division: 555- Day Camp


Division: 557- Swim Center


Division: 559- Tennis


Expenditures Total:


323- State Grants


370- Interest and Investment Income


Revenue Total:


Expenditures


           Division: 559- Tennis Total:


           Division: 551- Recreation Administration Total:


Revenue Total:


           Division: 461- Planning Total:


           Division: 462- Building Inspection Total:


Expenditures


           Division: 346- Waste Reduction Total:


383- Reimbursements


168 of 273







Projected


Year-End


City of Pinole, CA Fourth Quarter Financial Report
For FY2022/23 Period Ending: 6/30/23


Variance


Favorable


(Unfavorable)


Original 


Budget Revised  Budget EncumbrancesYTD ActualAmended Budget Total


Percent


Used


Proposed 


Adjustments


-                       -                       -                         -                    -                    -                     0% -                       


8,000                   8,000                   8,000                     35,374              35,374              27,374              442% 35,374                


360,000              360,000              360,000                 433,111           433,111           73,111              120% 433,111              


368,000              368,000              -                    368,000                468,485           -                     468,485           100,485           127% 468,485              


257,778              257,778              -                    257,778                 182,952           38                      182,990           74,788              71% 182,990              


425,000              125,000              125,000                 13,001              13,001              111,999            10% 13,001                


682,778              382,778              -                    382,778                195,954           38                      195,991           186,787           51% 195,991              


(314,778)            (14,778)               (14,778)                 272,531           (38)                     272,494           287,272           -1844% 272,494              


Fund Balance July 1, 2022 2,063,224          2,063,224          2,063,224             2,063,224        2,063,224          


Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2023 1,748,446          2,048,446          2,048,446             2,335,755        2,335,718          


-                       -                       -                         27,825              27,825              27,825              0% 27,825                


382,848              382,848              382,848                 21,965              21,965              (360,883)          6% 382,848              


8,000                   8,000                   8,000                     29,747              29,747              21,747              372% 29,747                


390,848              390,848              -                    390,848                79,537             -                     79,537             (311,311)          20% 440,419              


-                       -                       -                         -                    -                    -                     0% -                       


186,999              186,999              186,999                 134,615           134,615           52,384              72% 134,615              


450,881              455,881              455,881                 136,349           136,349           319,532            30% 136,349              


2,000                   2,000                   2,000                     -                    -                    2,000                0% -                       


639,880              644,880              -                    644,880                270,964           -                     270,964           373,916           42% 270,964              


(249,032)            (254,032)            -                    (254,032)               (191,428)          (191,428)          62,604              75% 169,455              


Fund Balance July 1, 2022 2,325,449          2,325,449          2,325,449             2,325,449        2,325,449          


Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2023 2,076,417          2,071,417          2,071,417             2,134,021        2,494,903          


-                       -                       -                         3,210                3,210                3,210                0% 3,210                   


15,000                15,000                15,000                   -                    -                    (15,000)             0% -                       


15,000                15,000                -                    15,000                   3,210                -                     3,210                (11,790)            0% 3,210                  


-                       -                       -                         -                    -                    -                     0% -                       


15,000                15,000                15,000                   3,210                3,210                (11,790)            0% 3,210                  


Fund Balance July 1, 2022 199,959              199,959              199,959                199,959           199,959              


Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2023 214,959              214,959              214,959                203,169           203,169              


2,302,505           2,302,505           2,302,505             4,071,404        4,071,404        1,768,899        177% 4,071,404           


2,302,505          2,302,505          -                    2,302,505             4,071,404        -                     4,071,404        1,768,899        177% 4,071,404          


4,090,010           4,090,010           4,090,010             4,071,404        4,071,404        18,606              100% 4,071,404           


4,090,010          4,090,010          -                    4,090,010             4,071,404        -                     4,071,404        18,606              100% 4,071,404          


(1,787,505)         (1,787,505)         (1,787,505)           -                    -                    1,787,505        0% -                       


Fund Balance July 1, 2022 -                       -                       -                         -                    -                       


Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2023 (1,787,505)         (1,787,505)         (1,787,505)           -                    -                       


-                       -                       -                         632                   632                   632                    0% 632                      


-                       -                       -                    -                         632                   -                     632                   632                   0% 632                      


58,231                58,231                58,231                   22,348              22,348              35,883              38% 22,348                


58,231                58,231                -                    58,231                   22,348             -                     22,348             35,883              38% 22,348                


(58,231)               (58,231)               (58,231)                 (21,716)            (21,716)            36,515              37% (21,716)               


Fund Balance July 1, 2022 57,576                57,576                57,576                   57,576             57,576                


Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2023 (655)                    (655)                    (655)                       35,860             35,860                


Fund: 214 - Solid Waste Fund


           Division: 117- General Government Total:


           Division: 343- Facility Maintenance Total:


           Division: 341- Administration/Engineering Total:


           Division: 342- Road Maintenance Total:


Expenditures


                  499- Transfers Out


Revenue Total:


Revenue Total:


Fund: 215 - Measure C and J Fund


Solid Waste Fund Net Results:


Expenditures Total:


Expenditures Total:


323- State Grants


370- Interest and Investment Income


383- Reimbursements


322- Federal Grants


370- Interest and Investment Income


           Division: 345- Park Maintenance Total:


Expenditures


Fund: 216 - Rate Stabilization Fund


Revenue Total:


Expenditures Total:


 Rate Stabilization Fund Net Results:


Fund: 217 - American Rescue Plan Act Fund


Revenue Total:


Expenditures Total:


American Rescue Plan Act Fund Net Results:


370- Interest and Investment Income


383- Reimbursements


322- Federal Grants


370- Interest and Investment Income


Fund: 225 - Asset Seizure-Adjudicated Fund


Expenditures


           Division: 342- Road Maintenance Total:


Expenditures


           Division: 221- Police Operations Total:


Asset Seizure-Adjudicated Fund Net Results:


 Measure C and J Fund Net Results:


Expenditures Total:


Revenue Total:


324- Other Grants


169 of 273







Projected


Year-End


City of Pinole, CA Fourth Quarter Financial Report
For FY2022/23 Period Ending: 6/30/23


Variance


Favorable


(Unfavorable)


Original 


Budget Revised  Budget EncumbrancesYTD ActualAmended Budget Total


Percent


Used


Proposed 


Adjustments


-                       -                       -                         7,355                7,355                7,355                0% 7,355                   


-                       -                       -                    -                         7,355                -                     7,355                7,355                0% 7,355                  


-                       -                       -                    -                    -                     0% -                       


-                       -                       7,355                7,355                7,355                0% 7,355                  


Fund Balance July 1, 2022 35,590                35,590                35,590                   35,590             35,590                


Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2023 35,590                35,590                35,590                   42,945             42,945                


-                       -                       -                         360                   360                   360                    0% 360                      


-                       -                       22,294              22,294                   -                    -                    (22,294)             0% 22,294                


-                       -                       22,294             22,294                   360                   -                     360                   (21,934)            2% 22,654                


-                       -                       -                         -                    -                    -                     0% -                       


-                       -                       22,294             22,294                   360                   -                     360                   (21,934)            0% 22,654                


Fund Balance July 1, 2022 (22,653)               (22,653)               (22,653)                 (22,653)            (22,653)               


Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2023 (22,653)               (22,653)               (359)                       (22,294)            0                          


1,608,476           493,000              493,000                 577,389           577,389           84,389              117% 577,389              


-                       -                       -                         44,082              44,082              44,082              0% 44,082                


1,608,476          493,000              -                    493,000                621,472           -                     621,472           128,472           126% 621,472              


58,000                58,000                58,000                   -                    58,000              58,000              -                     100% 58,000                


58,000                58,000                -                    58,000                   -                    58,000              58,000              -                    100% 58,000                


1,550,476          435,000              435,000                621,472           621,472           128,472           143% 563,472              


Fund Balance July 1, 2022 2,701,825          2,701,825          2,701,825             2,701,825        2,701,825          


Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2023 4,252,300          3,136,824          3,136,824             3,323,296        3,265,296          


50,000                50,000                50,000                   84,260              84,260              34,260              169% 84,260                


-                       -                       -                         40                     40                     40                      0 40                        


-                       -                       -                         10,265              10,265              10,265              0% 10,265                


-                       -                       -                         932,344           932,344           932,344            0% 932,344              


867,883              867,883              867,883                 12,867              12,867              (855,016)          1% 862,883              


917,883              917,883              -                    917,883                1,039,776        -                     1,039,776        121,893           113% 1,889,792          


53,436                53,436                53,436                   50,289              50,289              3,147                94% 50,289                


274,039              3,535,249           3,535,249             558,818           558,818           2,976,431        16% 3,758,818           


327,475              3,588,685          -                    3,588,685             609,107           -                     609,107           2,979,578        17% 3,809,107          


590,408              (2,670,802)         (2,670,802)           430,669           430,669           3,101,471        -16% (1,919,315)         


Fund Balance July 1, 2022 7,746,133          7,746,133          7,746,133             7,746,133        7,746,133          


Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2023 8,336,541          5,075,331          5,075,331             8,176,802        5,826,818          


56,411                56,411                56,411                   52,256              52,256              (4,155)               93% 52,256                


7,500                   7,500                   7,500                     -                    -                    (7,500)               0% -                       


63,911                63,911                -                    63,911                   52,256             -                     52,256             (11,655)            82% 52,256                


32,315                32,315                32,315                   30,498              30,498              1,818                94% 30,498                


29,810                29,810                29,810                   16,186              16,186              13,624              54% 16,186                


62,125                62,125                -                    62,125                   46,684             -                     46,684              15,441              75% 46,684                


1,786                  1,786                  1,786                     5,572                5,572                3,786                312% 5,572                  


Fund Balance July 1, 2022 43,110                43,110                43,110                   43,110             43,110                


Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2023 44,896                44,896                44,896                   48,682             48,682                


15,000                15,000                15,000                   -                    -                    (15,000)             0% -                       


15,000                15,000                -                    15,000                   -                    -                     -                    (15,000)            0% -                       


15,055                15,055                15,055                   -                    -                    15,055              0% (983)                     


15,055                15,055                -                    15,055                   -                    -                     -                    15,055              0% (983)                    


(55)                       (55)                       (55)                         -                    -                    55                      0% 983                      


Fund Balance July 1, 2022 (983)                    (983)                    (983)                       (983)                  (983)                    


Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2023 (1,038)                 (1,038)                 (1,038)                   (983)                  (0)                         


342- Other Fees


Expenditures Total:


Fund: 310 - Lighting & Landscape Districts


Housing Land Held for Resale Net Results:


Revenue Total:


Expenditures Total:


 Lighting & Landscape Districts Net Results:


Expenditures Total:


Fund: 317 - Pinole Valley Caretaker Fund


321- Intergovernmental Taxes


383- Reimbursements


381- Rental Income


Revenue Total:


370- Interest and Investment Income


393- Loan/Bond Proceeds


384- Other Revenue


Fund: 285 - Housing Land Held for Resale


Expenditures Total:


CASp Certification and Training Fund Net Results:


Revenue Total:


Parkland Dedication Fund Net Results:


Fund: 226 - CASp Certification and Training Fund


Revenue Total:


Fund: 275 - Parkland Dedication Fund


370- Interest and Investment Income


399- Operating transfers in


344- Impact Fees


370- Interest and Investment Income


Expenditures Total:


Expenditures


           Division: 344- NPDES Storm Drain Total:


           Division: 464- Housing Administration Total:


Expenditures


           Division: 461- Planning Total:


Revenue Total:


Fund: 276 - Growth Impact Fund


Revenue Total:


 Growth Impact Fund Net Results:


Expenditures Total:


Expenditures


           Division: 347- Landscape & Lighting PVR North Total:


           Division: 348- Landscape & Lighting PVR South Total:


Expenditures


           Division: 345- Park Maintenance Total:


Pinole Valley Caretaker Fund Net Results:


383- Reimbursements


392- Sale of Property


170 of 273







Projected


Year-End


City of Pinole, CA Fourth Quarter Financial Report
For FY2022/23 Period Ending: 6/30/23


Variance


Favorable


(Unfavorable)


Original 


Budget Revised  Budget EncumbrancesYTD ActualAmended Budget Total


Percent


Used


Proposed 


Adjustments


60,000                60,000                60,000                   -                    -                    60,000              0% -                       


10,000                10,000                10,000                   -                    -                    10,000              0% -                       


70,000                70,000                -                    70,000                   -                    -                     -                    70,000              0% -                       


(70,000)               (70,000)               (70,000)                 -                    -                    70,000              0% -                       


Fund Balance July 1, 2022 541,649              541,649              541,649                541,649           541,649              


Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2023 471,649              471,649              471,649                541,649           541,649              


-                       -                       -                         216,875           216,875           216,875            0% 216,875              


97,747                97,747                97,747                   16,993              16,993              (80,753)             17% 16,993                


1,303,463           1,303,463           1,303,463             62,587              62,587              (1,240,876)       5% 62,587                


-                       -                       -                         -                    -                    -                     0% -                       


-                       -                       -                         (1,417)              (1,417)              (1,417)               0% (1,417)                 


1,401,210          1,401,210          -                    1,401,210             295,039           -                     295,039           (1,106,171)       21% 295,039              


250,000              250,000              250,000                 250,000           250,000           -                     100% 250,000              


1,651,210          1,651,210          -                    1,651,210             545,039           545,039           (1,106,171)       33% 545,039              


1,706,213           1,706,213           1,706,213             181,246           271,971            453,217           1,252,996        27% 453,217              


1,706,213          1,706,213          -                    1,706,213             181,246           271,971            453,217           1,252,996        27% 453,217              


(55,003)               (55,003)               -                    (55,003)                 363,793           (271,971)          91,822             146,825           -167% 91,822                


Fund Balance July 1, 2022 1,552,990          1,552,990          1,552,990             1,552,990        1,552,990          


Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2023 1,497,987          1,497,987          1,497,987             1,916,783        1,644,812          


189,758              189,758              189,758                 -                    -                    (189,758)          0% 189,758              


-                       -                       -                         (283)                  (283)                  (283)                  0% (283)                     


189,758              189,758              -                    189,758                (283)                  -                     (283)                  (190,041)          0% 189,475              


189,758              189,758              189,758                 184,191           184,191           5,567                97% 184,191              


189,758              189,758              -                    189,758                184,191           -                     184,191           5,567                97% 184,191              


-                       -                       -                         (184,474)          (184,474)          (184,474)          0% 5,284                  


Fund Balance July 1, 2022 25,236                25,236                25,236                   25,236             25,236                


Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2023 25,236                25,236                25,236                   (159,237)          30,521                


-                       -                       -                         541,463           541,463           541,463            0% 541,463              


-                       -                       -                    -                         541,463           -                     541,463           541,463           0% 541,463              


250,000              250,000              250,000                 250,000           250,000           -                     100% 250,000              


250,000              250,000              -                    250,000                791,463           -                     791,463           541,463           317% 791,463              


810,312              810,312              810,312                 80,213              8,684                 88,897              721,415            11% 88,897                


810,312              810,312              -                    810,312                80,213             8,684                88,897              721,415           11% 88,897                


(560,312)            (560,312)            -                    (560,312)               711,250           (8,684)               702,566           1,262,878        -125% 702,566              


Fund Balance July 1, 2022 49,887                49,887                49,887                   49,887             49,887                


Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2023 (510,425)            (510,425)            (510,425)               761,137           752,453              


8,266,176           8,266,176           8,266,176             7,894,228        7,894,228        (371,948)          96% 7,894,228           


100,000              100,000              100,000                 289,761           289,761           189,761            290% 289,761              


-                       -                       -                         -                    -                    -                     0% -                       


-                       -                       -                         -                    -                    -                     0% -                       


-                       -                       -                         -                    -                    -                     0% -                       


8,366,176          8,366,176          -                    8,366,176             8,183,989        -                     8,183,989        (182,187)          98% 8,183,989          


-                       -                       -                         33,588              33,588              (33,588)             0% 33,588                


6,229,371           6,289,371           6,289,371             4,763,681        4,763,681        1,525,690        76% 4,763,681           


3,417,629           3,914,410           3,914,410             1,624,895        463,025            2,087,920        1,826,490        53% 2,087,920           


1,611,624           1,611,624           1,611,624             576,372           576,372           1,035,252        36% 576,372              


11,258,624        11,815,405        -                    11,815,405           6,998,536        463,025            7,461,561        4,353,844        63% 7,461,561          


(2,892,448)         (3,449,229)         -                    (3,449,229)           1,185,453        (463,025)          722,428           4,171,657        -21% 722,428              


Fund Balance July 1, 2022 22,228,477        22,228,477        22,228,477           22,228,477     22,228,477        


Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2023 19,336,029        18,779,248        18,779,248           23,413,930     22,950,905        


Revenue Total:


Fund: 377 - Arterial Streets Rehabilitation Fund


Fund: 327 - Park Grants (Measure WW)


323- State Grant


363- Sewer Enterprise Charges


Expenditures


           Division: 345- Park Maintenance Total:


Expenditures


City Street Improvements Net Results:


322- Federal Grants


Revenue Total:


Fund: 325 - City Street Improvements


Expenditures


           Division: 345- Park Maintenance Total:


351- Fines and Forfeiture


Fund: 324 - Public Facilities Fund


Public Facilities Fund Net Results:


Expenditures Total:


           Division: 343- Facility Maintenance Total:


Sewer Enterprise Fund Net Results:


Expenditures Total:


Expenditures Total:


383- Reimbursements


           Division: 117- General Government Total:


           Division: 644- WPCP Equipment/Debt Service Total:


           Division: 641- Sewer Treatment Plant/Shared Total:


           Division: 642- Sewer Collections Total:


370- Interest and Investment Income


383- Reimbursements


392- Proceeds from Sale of Property


384- Other Revenue


           Division: 342- Road Maintenance Total:


Sources Total:


Expenditures


Expenditures Total:


322- Federal Grants


323- State Grants


324- Other Grants


Revenue Total:


Sources Total:


Operating transfers in Total:


Arterial Streets Rehabilitation Fund Net Results:


Fund: 500 - Sewer Enterprise Fund


Revenue Total:


Park Grants (Measure WW) Net Results:


Expenditures Total:


Operating transfers in Total:


Expenditures


           Division: 342- Road Maintenance Total:


370- Interest and Investment Income


171 of 273







Projected


Year-End


City of Pinole, CA Fourth Quarter Financial Report
For FY2022/23 Period Ending: 6/30/23


Variance


Favorable


(Unfavorable)


Original 


Budget Revised  Budget EncumbrancesYTD ActualAmended Budget Total


Percent


Used


Proposed 


Adjustments


-                       -                       -                         -                    -                    -                     0% -                       


-                       -                       -                         -                    -                    -                     0% -                       


-                       -                       -                    -                         -                    -                     -                    -                    0% -                       


-                       -                       -                         646,925           2,663                 649,587           (649,587)          0% 649,587              


-                       -                       -                    -                         646,925           2,663                649,587           (649,587)          0% 649,587              


-                       -                       -                         (646,925)          (2,663)               (649,587)          (649,587)          0% (649,587)            


Fund Balance July 1, 2022 1,658,044          1,658,044          1,658,044             1,658,044        1,658,044          


Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2023 1,658,044          1,658,044          1,658,044             1,011,119        1,008,457          


52,972                52,972                52,972                   18,756              18,756              (34,216)             35% 18,756                


316,956              316,956              316,956                 265,454           265,454           (51,502)             84% 265,454              


-                       -                       -                         -                    -                    -                     0% -                       


5,000                   5,000                   5,000                     -                    -                    (5,000)               0% -                       


374,928              374,928              -                    374,928                284,210           -                     284,210           (90,718)            76% 284,210              


160,124              160,124              62,631              222,755                 160,124           160,124           (62,631)             72% 222,755              


535,052              535,052              597,683                444,334           -                     444,334           (153,349)          74% 506,965              


444,432              444,432              444,432                 345,408           345,408           99,025              78% 345,408              


4,642                   4,642                   4,642                     72                     72                     4,570                2% 72                        


197,707              197,707              197,707                 156,258           156,258           41,448              79% 156,258              


646,780              646,780              -                    646,780                501,738           -                     501,738           145,042           78% 501,738              


(111,728)            (111,728)            (49,097)                 (57,404)            -                     (57,404)            (8,307)               117% 5,227                  


Fund Balance July 1, 2022 (5,227)                 (5,227)                 (5,227)                   (5,227)              (5,227)                 


Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2023 (116,956)            (116,956)            (54,325)                 (62,631)            (0)                         


-                       -                       -                    -                         -                    -                    -                     0% -                       


-                       -                       -                    -                         -                    -                     -                    -                    0% -                       


1,482,335           1,956,100           1,956,100             1,401,717        237,693            1,639,410        316,691            84% 1,639,410           


1,482,335          1,956,100          -                    1,956,100             1,401,717        237,693            1,639,410        (316,691)          84% 1,639,410          


(1,482,335)         (1,956,100)         (1,956,100)            (1,398,588)       (1,398,588)       557,512            71% (1,639,410)         


0 0 -                    -                         3,128                237,693            240,821           -                    0% (0)                         


Fund Balance July 1, 2022 -                       -                       -                         -                    -                       


Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2023 -                       -                       -                         3,128                (0)                         


1,140,017           1,140,017           1,140,017             820,773           820,773           (319,244)          72% 820,773              


1,140,017          1,140,017          -                    1,140,017             820,773           -                     820,773           (319,244)          72% 820,773              


40,000                40,000                40,000                   78,164              78,164              (38,164)             195% 78,164                


2,016,612           2,016,612           2,016,612             -                    -                    2,016,612        0% 2,160,518           


2,056,612          2,056,612          -                    2,056,612             78,164             78,164             (1,978,448)       4% 2,238,682          


(916,595)            (916,595)            (916,595)               742,608           742,608           1,659,203        -81% (1,417,910)         


Fund Balance July 1, 2022 16,045,223        16,045,223        16,045,223           16,045,223     16,045,223        


Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2023 15,128,628        15,128,628        15,128,628           16,787,831     14,627,313        


250,000              250,000              250,000                 171,210           171,210           (78,790)             68% 171,210              


-                       -                       -                         30,336              30,336              30,336              0% 30,336                


-                       -                         -                    -                    -                     0% -                       


5,000                   5,000                   5,000                     -                    -                    (5,000)               0% -                       


255,000              255,000              -                    255,000                201,546           -                     201,546           (53,454)            79% 201,546              


227,378              227,378              227,378                 199,353           199,353           28,025              88% 199,353              


227,378              227,378              -                    227,378                199,353           199,353           (28,025)            88% 199,353              


27,622                27,622                27,622                   2,193                2,193                (81,479)            8% 2,193                  


           Division: 118- Information Systems Total:


399- Operating Transfers In


Sources Total:


Fund: 525 - Information Systems


Cable Access TV Net Results:


Expenditures Total:


Revenue Total:


Expenditures Total:


Revenue Total:


Expenditures Total:


Operating transfers in Total:


Sources Total 


365- Cable TV Charges


370- Interest and Investment Income


384- Other Revenue


Expenditures


           Division: 119- Cable Access TV Total:


           Division: 121- Cable Access-Contract Services Total:


           Division: 120- Cable Access-Community Services Total:


Pension Fund Net Results:


Revenue Total:


Expenditures Total:


Indirect cost allocations Total:


 Information Systems Net Results:


Fund: 700 - Pension Fund


           Transfers Out Total:


           Division: 115- Finance Total:


370- Interest and Investment Income


Revenue Total:


Expenditures Total:


 Recognized Obligation Retirement Fund Net Results:


Fund: 750 - Recognized Obligation Retirement Fund


Expenditures


           Division: 463- Successor Agency to RDA Total:


392- Proceeds from Sale of Property


393- Loan/Bond Proceeds


311- Property Taxes


370- Interest and Investment Income


314- Franchise Taxes


Fund: 503 - Plant Expansion Fund


Expenditures


           Division: 643- Sewer Projects/Shared Total:


Plant Expansion Fund Net Results:


Fund: 505 - Cable Access TV


370- Interest and Investment Income


383- Reimbursements


Expenditures


Expenditures


172 of 273







CITY COUNCIL 


REPORT 


DATE: SEPTEMBER 19, 2023 


TO: MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 


FROM: MARKISHA GUILLORY, FINANCE DIRECTOR 
ROY SWEARINGEN, CITY TREASURER 


SUBJECT: RECEIVE THE QUARTERLY INVESTMENT REPORT FOR THE FOURTH 
QUARTER (ENDING JUNE 30, 2023) 


RECOMMENDATION 


Staff recommends that the City Council receive the Quarterly Investment Report for the 
fourth quarter (ending June 30, 2023). 


BACKGROUND 


The City of Pinole Investment Policy requires that a Quarterly Investment Report be 
submitted to the City Council. The City’s investments, as shown in the attached 
Investment Report for the quarter ending June 30, 2023, conform to the City’s Investment 
Policy as well as all applicable State and federal requirements, including California 
Government Code Section 53646. 


The funds that the City invests, and which are reported in the Quarterly Investment 
Report, are comprised of cash and investment balances that are held across all City 
funds. The cash and investment balances across all City funds are “pooled” for 
investment purposes, with the exception of the assets of the General Reserve, which is 
discussed further below. Cash is invested in accordance with the City’s Investment Policy. 
Interest earnings on investments are allocated to the various funds based on the cash 
and investment balances of those funds. 


The City also maintains a Section 115 Trust that was established for the purpose of setting 
aside resources to offset anticipated increases in future City pension costs. The cash and 
investments in the trust are designated as restricted fund balance in the City’s General 
Fund. These funds are invested according to the policy objectives and guidelines of the 
City’s Pension Investment Policy. 


REVIEW AND ANALYSIS 


Investment Policy 


All investments held at June 30, 2023 conform to the City’s Investment Policy and all 
applicable State and federal requirements. The City’s investment objectives, in order of 


9J


173 of 273







City Council Report  
September 19, 2023  2 


priority, are safety, which is investing in the highest quality securities; liquidity, which is 
the ability to convert the investment to cash as necessary to meet cash flow requirements; 
and yield, which is earning a higher return. 


Investment Strategy 


The City utilizes a passive investment management approach by buying and holding 
securities until maturity. Earnings on investments held until maturity typically fluctuate 
with market conditions and are considered “unrealized” prior to maturity. The City expects 
to yield a gain on all investments at maturity. A “laddered maturity” investment strategy is 
applied to the long-term portion of the City’s investment portfolio. A laddered portfolio is 
structured with securities that have different maturity dates. As securities are called or 
mature, proceeds are reinvested in a new security with another long term at the end of 
the ladder. Laddering helps to minimize interest-rate risk, increase liquidity, and diversify 
credit risk. 
 
Staff continues to monitor rates of return on City funds invested and make investments to 
best achieve the objectives laid out in the Investment Policy. 
 
Fourth Quarter Investment Summary 


As of June 30, 2023, total cash and investments increased by $3,420,232 from the 
previous quarter, from $54,776,008 to $58,196,240. Typically, the City experiences 
swings in cash inflow and outflow due to the seasonality of large receipts, such as 
property taxes, and large disbursements, like debt service that is paid semiannually. The 
City will have sufficient cash flow to meet the next six months of estimated expenditures. 


Investment Instruments 
 
The Finance Director, in consultation with the City Treasurer, selects the instruments in 
which to invest the City’s funds, in order to best meet the objectives laid out in the City’s 
Investment Policy. The balances held in different investment instruments at June 30, 2023 
are noted in Attachment A. The bulk of the City’s investment funds are invested in the 
State of California’s Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF), because of the safety and 
liquidity of that investment. 
 
Funds in the City’s General Reserve are maintained in an account that is separate from 
the rest of the pooled funds. This enables the Finance Director to implement a directed 
investment plan for the General Reserve funds. The City’s practice has been to invest 
these funds in instruments with longer duration, thereby yielding greater investment 
earnings. 
 
Investment Yield and Duration 
 
The aggregate yield of the City’s investment portfolio for the quarter ended June 30, 2023 
is summarized in Attachment A. The total investment portfolio yielded 2.469% for the 
fourth quarter (April through June 2023), up from the 2.168% yielded in the previous 
quarter (January through March 2023). 


174 of 273







City Council Report  
September 19, 2023  3 


 
For the fourth quarter, LAIF earned an average annual yield of 3.167%, up from an 
average annual yield of 2.831% for the third quarter. LAIF yields gradually decreased 
between June 2019 and November 2021 and were lower than long-term investment yields 
in most cases. However, LAIF has shown gradual growth in yield since December 2021.   
 
The General Reserve, which holds the longer-term investments, earned an average 
annual yield of 2.195%, up from the 1.888% average annual yield in the third quarter. 
Four certificates of deposit were purchased during the fourth quarter with an average 
annual interest rate of 5.113%. Additionally, three certificates of deposit matured, 
Goldman Sachs, Morgan Stanley Bank, and Morgan Stanly Private Bank, and were 
redeemed for cash. 
 
Section 115 Trust  
 
The Section 115 Trust is comprised of a diversified portfolio of investments consistent 
with the Trust’s objectives and liquidity requirements. The funds are invested on behalf of 
the City by Public Agency Retirement Services (PARS). The portfolio summary for the 
quarter ending June 30, 2023 is included in Attachment B to this report. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 


There is no fiscal impact as a result of receiving the Fourth Quarter Investment Report. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 


A- Investment Report - Quarter Ending June 30, 2023 


B- Section 115 Trust Investment Report – Quarter Ending June 30, 2023 


175 of 273







CITY OF PINOLE
INVESTMENT REPORT JUNE 2023
PORTFOLIO SUMMARY


Weighted
Days to Average


Investments Par Value Market Value Book Value % of Portfolio Maturity Yield Maturity


Investment Pool - LAIF 34,114,731                  33,597,160 33,597,160                  60.93% 1  3.167 1
Investment Pool - CalTrust 3,277,010 3,277,010  3,277,010 5.94% 1  4.795 0
Money Market Savings 9,247,906 9,247,906  9,247,906 16.77% 1  1.785 0
Mutual Funds 5,011,346 5,011,346  5,011,346 9.09% 1  3.345 0
Certificates of Deposit 2,730,000 2,626,689  2,626,689 4.76% 545 2.494 2
Medium-Term Corporate Notes 1,000,000 921,490     921,490    1.67% 1,169                2.200 20
Federal Agency Securities 500,000    457,675     457,675    0.83% 711 0.740 6


Subtotal Investments 55,880,993$                55,139,275$                55,139,275                  100.00% 405 2.469 5


Average Years: 1.1
Cash


Mechanics Bank - Vendor Checking * 1,622,002 1,622,002 1,622,002 1 
Bank of the West - Payroll Checking * 691,117    691,117     691,117 1 
Bank of the West - Checking (Credit Card Clearing) * 743,845    743,845     743,845 1


Subtotal Cash 3,056,965 3,056,965 3,056,965 1


Total Cash and Investments 58,937,957$                58,196,240$                58,196,240$               


*Not included in yield calculations


The above investments are consistent with the City's Investment Policy and allowable under current legislation of the State of California.  Investments were selected using safety,
liquidity and yield as the criteria.  The source of the market values for the investments are provided by US Bank in accordance with the California Government Code requirement.
The City has sufficient cash flow to cover anticipated expenditures through the next six months.


Investment Pool
67%


Money Market 
Savings


17%


Mutual Funds
9%


Certificates of Deposit
5%


Medium-Term 
Corporate Notes


1%


Federal Agency 
Securities


1%


CITY OF PINOLE - INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO
JANUARY 2022


 $-


 $10


 $20


 $30


 $40


 $50


 $60


0-3 mo 4-6 mo 7-12 mo 1-2 yr 2-3 yr 3-4 yr 5 yr +


M
ill


io
ns


MATURITY DISTRIBUTION


67%


17%


9%


5%


2%


1%


$0 $10,000,000 $20,000,000 $30,000,000 $40,000,000


Investment Pool


Money Market Savings


Mutual Funds


Certificates of Deposit


Medium-Term Corporate Notes


Federal Agency Securities


CITY OF PINOLE - INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO
JUNE 2023


ATTACHMENT A


176 of 273







CITY OF PINOLE


INVESTMENT REPORT JUNE 2023


PORTFOLIO DETAILS


Type / 


Account 


Number CUSIP Issuer Investment Description Manager GL Acct # Par Value Market Value Book Value Rate Yield


Days to 


Maturity


S&P 


Rating


Maturity 


Date


Weighted 


Average 


Maturity


Investment Pool


Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) Pooled Treasury - State of California LAIF 999-10201 34,114,731 33,597,160 33,597,160       3.167 3.167 1 N/A 1


CalTrust - Short Term Fund (City) Pooled Treasury - Joint Power Financing Authority CalTrust 999-10202 25,170 25,170 25,170 4.860 4.860 1 N/A 0


CalTrust - Medium Term Fund (City) Pooled Treasury - Joint Power Financing Authority CalTrust 999-10203 3,251,840 3,251,840 3,251,840         4.730 4.730 1 N/A 0


Subtotal and Average 37,391,742 36,874,170 36,874,170       4.252 4.252 1 0


Money Market Savings


Mechanics Bank Money Market Savings (City) City 999-10102 9,140,118 9,140,118 9,140,118         3.560 3.560 1 N/A 0


Bank of the West Money Market Savings - Police Evidence Trust City 999-10104 107,788 107,788 107,788 0.010 0.010 1 N/A 0


Subtotal and Average 9,247,906 9,247,906 9,247,906         1.785 1.785 1 0


Mutual Funds


19-516680 U.S. Bank Accrued Income - City Reserve US Bank 150-10110 30,781 30,781 30,781 1.980 1.980 1 N/A 0


19-516680 31846V203 1st American Government Obligation Fund Mutual Fund Shares - Class "D" - City Reserve US Bank 150-10110 4,980,564 4,980,564 4,980,564         4.710 4.710 1 N/A 0


Subtotal and Average 5,011,346 5,011,346 5,011,346         3.345 3.345 1 0


Certificates of Deposit


19-516680 01025RAG4 Alabama Cr Un Certificates of Deposit - City Reserves US Bank 150-10110 248,000 245,274 245,274 5.000 5.060 1,088       N/A 6/22/2026 5


19-516680 064520BG3 Bank of Princeton Certificates of Deposit - City Reserves US Bank 150-10110 250,000 232,210 232,210 0.500 0.540 549          N/A 12/30/2024 2


19-516680 05580A2H6 Bmw Bk North Amer Certificates of Deposit - City Reserves US Bank 150-10110 244,000 241,643 241,643 4.900 4.950 717          N/A 6/16/2025 3


19-516680 33651FAJ8 First Source Fed Cr Un Certificates of Deposit - City Reserves US Bank 150-10110 248,000 247,965 247,965 5.450 5.450 353          N/A 6/17/2024 2


19-516680 33715LFK1 First Technology Federal Credi Certificates of Deposit - City Reserves US Bank 150-10110 248,000 246,514 246,514 5.100 5.130 717          N/A 6/16/2025 3


19-516680 59013KCZ7 Merrick Bank Certificates of Deposit - City Reserves US Bank 150-10110 249,000 246,749 246,749 1.650 1.660 91 N/A 9/29/2023 0


19-516680 70212VAB4 Partners Bk helena Ark Certificates of Deposit - City Reserves US Bank 150-10110 247,000 224,483 224,483 0.600 0.660 731          N/A 6/30/2025 3


19-516680 84223QAN7 Southern Bankcorp Bank Certificates of Deposit - City Reserves US Bank 150-10110 250,000 234,240 234,240 0.500 0.530 483          N/A 10/25/2024 2


19-516680 856283N51 State Bk Indiana Chicago III Certificates of Deposit - City Reserves US Bank 150-10110 250,000 227,968 227,968 1.000 1.100 727          N/A 6/26/2025 3


19-516680 85916VDN2 Sterling Bank of Poplar Bluff Certificates of Deposit - City Reserves US Bank 150-10110 247,000 245,012 245,012 1.650 1.660 80 N/A 9/18/2023 0


19-516680 87164WC71 Synchrony Bank Certificates of Deposit - City Reserves US Bank 150-10110 249,000 234,630 234,630 0.650 0.690 458          N/A 9/30/2024 2


Subtotal and Average 2,730,000 2,626,689 2,626,689         2.455        2.494      545 2


Medium-Term Corporate Notes


19-516679 037833DN7 Apple Inc. 2.05% Corporate MTN 9/11/26 - City Reserves US Bank 150-10110 1,000,000 921,490 921,490 2.050 2.200 1,169       AA+ 9/11/2026 20


Subtotal and Average 1,000,000 921,490 921,490 2.050 2.200 1,169       20


Federal Agency Securities


19-516680 3133ELH80 Federal Farm Credit Bks .680% Agency Bond 6/10/25 US Bank 150-10110 500,000 457,675 457,675 0.680 0.740 711          AA+ 6/10/2025 6


Subtotal and Average 500,000 457,675 457,675 0.680 0.740 711          6


Investment Portfolio Total and Average 55,880,993$     55,139,275$    55,139,275$   2.428 2.469 405 5


Average Years : 1.1


177 of 273







Investments Market Value Book Value % of Market Yield


Cash and Equivalents 614,296             614,296          3.66% 5.010      
U.S. Government Issues 6,180,476         6,460,248       36.82% 3.770      
Corporate Issues 3,358,644         3,659,182       20.01% 4.400      
Foreign Issues 68,475               74,463            0.41% 5.150      
Municipal Issues 155,847             164,815          0.93% 4.470      
Mutual Funds-Equity 5,845,281         5,221,117       34.82% 1.340      
Mutual Funds-Fixed Income 491,133             493,167          2.93% 2.570      
Total Assets 16,714,152       16,687,289    99.56% 3.070      
Accrued Income 73,657               73,657            0.44%
Grand Total 16,787,810$     16,760,946$  100%


CITY OF PINOLE
INVESTMENT REPORT JUNE 2023
SECTION 115 TRUST PORTFOLIO SUMMARY


36.82%


34.82%


20.01%


3.66%


2.93%


0.93%


0.44%


0.41%


$0 $1,000,000 $2,000,000 $3,000,000 $4,000,000 $5,000,000 $6,000,000 $7,000,000


U.S. Government Issues


Mutual Funds-Equity


Corporate Issues


Cash and Equivalents


Mutual Funds-Fixed Income


Municipal Issues


 Accrued Income


Foreign Issues


Portfolio Summary


ATTACHMENT B


178 of 273







  


 
   


 


 


 CITY COUNCIL 


 REPORT 9K 


  
 


 
DATE: SEPTEMBER 19, 2023 
 
TO: MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 
FROM: LILLY WHALEN, COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR 
 
SUBJECT: RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE 


FIFTH AMENDMENT TO THE AGREEMENT WITH CLIENT FIRST 
TECHNOLOGY CONSULTING TO PROVIDE PROFESSIONAL 
SUPPORT SERVICES DURING THE UPGRADE AND MIGRATION OF 
THE PERMIT TRACKING AND ONLINE APPLICATION SYSTEM AND 
APPROPRIATE FUNDING 


 


 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt the attached resolution that: 
 


1. Authorizes the City Manager to execute the fifth amendment to the Consultant 
Services Agreement with Client First Technology Consulting to provide post go-
live support, assistance with roll out of the public portal and GIS data analysis and 
recommendations leading up to and following Go-Live of the new Community 
Development Suite software which allows for 24/7 public access to permitting and 
licensing; and 


2. Appropriate $10,000 from the Planning and Building Fund and $15,000 from the 
General Fund to support the project. 


 
BACKGROUND 
 
The City of Pinole was an early adopter of an electronic building and planning permit 
tracking system, acquiring permitting software from the firm CRW 23 years ago, in 1999. 
The City continues to use the software system TRAKiT to track the submittal, processing, 
and retention of building and planning permits, code enforcement cases, and business 
licenses. The software was last updated in 2015, is not web-based, and is currently 
outdated, unsupported, and in need of an upgrade. CentralSquare Technologies acquired 
the software in 2018 and now offers a secure cloud-based Community Development Suite 
of technology solutions that replaces TRAKiT. 
 
On June 7, 2022 the City Council authorized the approval of a number of contracts to 
upgrade the City’s current TRAKiT system to the secure cloud-based Community 
Development Suite which automates work processes, allows field staff remote access, 


179 of 273







City Council Report  
September 19, 2023  2 


 


and engages citizens and customers by providing 24/7 online access to apply for and 
track projects, permits and licenses. 
 
The City has contracted with Client First Technology Consulting (Client First) since 
February 2022 for assistance with the City’s contract negotiations with CentralSquare 
Technologies and help in configuring the new version of TRAKiT and migrating data to it. 
The original Client First contract amount was not to exceed $49,959. In June 2022, the 
City Council authorized a contract fee increase of $30,000 for Client First to provide 
continued support though implementation phase of the permitting system. In September 
2022, the City Council authorized a contract fee increase of $48,850 for Geographic 
Information Systems (GIS) services and the complete restructuring of all new user fees 
adopted by the Council in June 2022. In April 2023, the Council authorized a contract fee 
increase of $132,165 to support continued project management, configuration 
improvements and workflow updates.  
 
This fifth amendment is to provide additional budget for continued support though the 
implementation phase of the permitting system. The expected go-live date of the new 
system will be in the fall of 2023, however, work will occur up to and through the go-live 
date to ensure a smooth transition for the public.  
 
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 


 
ClientFirst has been and is able to help the City with the efforts to migrate to the newest 
version of the TRAKiT and to build out the public portal for online applications, online 
credit card payments, online inspection scheduling, online license renewals, and data 
searches. Additionally, ClientFirst is working with each department (Building, Planning, 
Public Works, Code Enforcement, and Finance) to reassess the current configuration with 
a smooth public portal experience and internal process streamlining in mind. These 
changes required a complete reconfiguration of the system, which ClientFirst is 
completing for the City. City staff leads are also working with ClientFirst to establish new 
internal processes, test the new configuration internally and from the public portal, update 
printed documents, and test the integrations to Laserfiche (archiving system), SelectTXT 
(text to schedule inspections), and CSLB (the State licensing board). ClientFirst has also 
been assisting the City with its fee schedule updates and fee finetuning in 2022 as well 
as 2023.       
 
The public’s use of the public portal has been top of mind for staff and ClientFirst. This 
includes working to accomplish the following improvements: 
 


1. Full utilization of the new software features like checklists, automations, auto email, 
etc.; 
2. Strategic streamlining of processes for all departments; 
3. Optimal reconfiguration for public portal usability; and 
4. Printed/Issued documents redesign and streamlining. 


 


180 of 273







City Council Report  
September 19, 2023  3 


 


With the exception of GIS services, which are on a fixed fee structure, Client First has 
been working on an as-needed time and materials basis to bring enhanced and 
streamlined permitting services to the Pinole community. Due to the extensive nature of 
the reconfiguration necessary, which was not anticipated at project initiation in September 
2022, all contracted funds have been expended on the implementation of the permitting 
system. A contract amendment is necessary at this time in order to continue receiving 
valuable support from Client First and meet the City’s projected go-live timeframe of fall 
2023.  
 
These additional funds will provide post go-live support, assistance with roll out of the 
public portal and GIS data analysis and recommendations leading up to and following 
Go-Live. Staff expects that this fifth contract amendment will be the last necessary to 
complete the implementation of the software. 
 
As a part of the FY22/23 budgeting process, the City Council approved a new staff 
position, the Administrative Coordinator, which will be filled soon. One responsibility of 
the Administrative Coordinator will be to maintain the new system in the future. After the 
position is filled, Staff will be working with Client First to identify needs for ongoing system 
administration and support on a fiscal year basis (see “Optional” section on page 7) and 
return to Council with a recommended budget. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 


The total additional cost (at a time and materials rate) to increase the contract is $25,000. 
These costs are to be allocated among the Planning and Building Fund ($10,000) and the 
General Fund ($15,000) to support the services from Client First. The specific allocations 
are as follows per Department:   
 


• Finance (100-115-46124): $5,000 


• Public Works (100-341-46124): $5,000 


• Planning (212-461-46124): $5,000 


• Building (212-462-46124): $5,000 


• Code Enforcement (100-465-46124): $5,000 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 


A. Draft Resolution 
Exhibit A- Contract Amendment 


B. Client First Proposal  


181 of 273







ATTACHMENT A 


 


RESOLUTION NO.  2023-XX 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PINOLE APPROVING AN 
AMENDMENT TO THE CONTRACT WITH CLIENT FIRST TECHNOLOGY 
CONSULTING AND AMENDS THE FY 23/24 BUDGET TO APPROPRIATE $25,000 
FROM THE GENERAL FUND AND PLANNING & BUILDING FUND    
 


WHEREAS, the City of Pinole was an early adopter of an electronic building and 
planning permit tracking system, acquiring current permitting software TRAKiT in 1999; 
and 


WHEREAS, the current TRAKiT system, which is offered by Central Square 
Technologies is outdated, unsupported by the vendor and must be updated to retain 
functionality; 


 
WHEREAS, the City engaged Client First to assist with the City’s Community 


Development permitting needs, contract negotiations with Central Square, and eventual 
implementation of an upgraded product to provide planning, permitting, inspections, code 
enforcement, business licensing, GIS management, and cashiering services with a focus 
on improving efficiency, project management, and customer service; and 


 
WHEREAS, to support the work of implementation of the new system, including 


project management, post go-live support, assistance with roll out of the public portal and 
GIS data analysis and recommendations leading up to and following Go-Live, additional 
IT consulting services from Client First is desired; and 


 
WHEREAS, additional funding will be required to support the project and meet the 


project schedule. 
 
          NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the above recitals are true and 
correct and made part of this resolution. 
 


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Pinole takes the 
following actions: 


 
1- The City Manager to amend a Consultant Services Agreement with First Client 


(Exhibit A, herein) in an amount not to exceed an additional $25,000 for 
continued project management, configuration improvement and workflow 
update services, in addition to fee update services, in a form approved by the 
City Attorney; and 


2- Amends the FY2324 budget to appropriate $10,000 from the Planning and 
Building Fund and $15,000 from the General Fund to support the services from 
Client First. 


 
  PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 
Pinole held on the ____ day of ______, 20__ by the following vote: 
 
AYES:     COUNCILMEMBERS: 


182 of 273







ATTACHMENT A 


 


 
NOES:    COUNCILMEMBERS: 
 
ABSENT:    COUNCILMEMBERS: 
 
ABSTAIN:    COUNCILMEMBERS: 
 
I, hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was regularly introduced, passed, and 
adopted on the ____ day of ______, 20__ 
 
 
____________________________________  
Heather Bell, CMC  
City Clerk 


183 of 273







  


 
AMENDMENT No. 5 TO THE 


CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF PINOLE AND 


CLIENT FIRST TECHNOLOGY CONSULTING 
 
This Amendment to the Consulting Services Agreement (the “Amendment”), is made by 
and entered into between the City of Pinole, a California municipal corporation, (“City”) 
and Client First Technology Consulting (“Consultant”) (together sometimes referred to 
as “Parties”) as of the date executed below. 


 
RECITALS  


 
 WHEREAS, the Parties previously entered into a Consulting Services Agreement 
dated February 22, 2022 (the “Agreement”) with a Scope of Services in Exhibit A and 
total compensation in Section 2, with the term of the contract to end on March 1, 2023 
unless otherwise extended as provided for in Section 8.2 of the Agreement; and  
 


WHEREAS, on August 25, 2022 the Parties agreed to modify the Scope of 
Services in Exhibit A and increase the total compensation in Section 2 from Forty-Four 
Thousand Nine Hundred and Fifty- Nine Dollars ($44,959), to a total not to exceed 
amount of Seventy-Four Thousand, Nine Hundred and Fifty-Nine Dollars ($74,959); and 
 


WHEREAS, on October 31, 2022 the Parties agreed to modify the Scope of 
Services in Exhibit A and increase the total compensation in Section 2 from Seventy-
Four Thousand, Nine Hundred and Fifty-Nine Dollars ($74,959) to a total not to exceed 
amount of One Hundred and Twenty-Four Thousand, Eight Hundred and Nine Dollars 
($124,809); and 


 
WHEREAS, on March 1, 2023 the Parties agreed to extend the term of the 


Agreement through December 31, 2023; and  
 
WHEREAS, on April 20, 2023 the Parties agreed to modify the Scope of Services 


in Exhibit A and increase the total compensation in Section 2 by One Hundred and Two 
Thousand, One Hundred and Sixty-Five Thousand Dollars ($132,165) to a total not to 
exceed amount of Two Hundred and Fifty-Six Thousand Nine Hundred and Seventy-
Four Dollars ($256,974); and 
 


WHEREAS, the Parties now wish to modify the Scope of Services and increase 
the total compensation in Section 2 by Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars ($25,000) to a 
total not to exceed amount of Two Hundred and Eighty-One Thousand Nine Hundred 
and Seventy-Four Dollars ($281,974); and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein and 
good and valuable consideration the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby 
acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows: 
 
Effect of Amendment.  The terms and conditions of this Amendment are intended by 
the Parties to modify the Agreement.  To the extent there is any inconsistency between 


184 of 273







  


the terms of this Amendment and the terms of the Agreement and/or its Appendix, the 
terms of this Amendment shall control. 
 


Exhibit A of the Agreement shall be amended to include the Consultant’s 
scope of work listed on page 4-5 of the Consultant’s proposal of September 
6, 2023 to provide post go-live support, assistance with roll out of the 
public portal and GIS data analysis and recommendations leading up to 
and following Go-Live; and 
 
Section 2 of the Agreement shall be amended to increase the total fee by 
Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars ($25,000) to a total not to exceed amount of 
Two Hundred and Eighty-One Thousand Nine Hundred and Seventy-Four 
Dollars ($281,974). 


   
With the exception of the foregoing, all other terms and conditions in the Service 
Agreement, as previously amended, remain in force and effect.  
 


The Parties have executed this Amendment to the Agreement as of the date signed 
by the City. 
 
City of Pinole  
 
___________________________ 
Andrew Murray, City Manager 
 
Dated: __________________ 
  


Contractor 
 
___________________________ 
David W. Krout, Managing Partner 
 
Dated: __________________ 
 


 
Attest:    
 
___________________________ 
Heather Bell, City Clerk 


 
Approved as to Form: 
 
___________________________ 
Eric S. Casher, City Attorney 


 


185 of 273







O
p


ti
m


a
l 


T
e


c
h


n
o


lo
g


y
 G


u
id


a
n


c
e


 


Proposal for 


ComDev System 
Administration Services 


September 6, 2023 


Client Locations 
Coast-to-Coast 


Practice Locations 
California 
Illinois 
North Carolina 
Texas 


800.806.3080 
www.clientfirstcg.com 


ATTACMENT B


186 of 273



http://www.clientfirstcg.com/





 OPTIMAL TECHNOLOGY GUIDANCE 


   


  California  •  Illinois  •  North Carolina  •  Texas  •  800.806.3080  •  Fax 888.478.0495 


2 | 18 


  


September 6, 2023


Ms. Fiona Epps 
Assistant to the City Manager 
City of Pinole 
2131 Pear Street 
Pinole, CA 94564 


RE: Proposal for Land Management System Post Go Live Assistance, eTRAKIT Roll 
Out, and GIS Data Assessment 


Dear Ms. Epps: 


ClientFirst appreciates the opportunity to present the City of Pinole with our proposal. Our 
consultants have decades of experience providing these services to agencies throughout the 
United States. Key qualifications include: 


TRAKiT Experience – The ClientFirst project team assigned to this engagement has combined 
experience with over 140 Land Management application projects, over 80 being specifically 
TRAKiT. 


Local Government ONLY Focus – ClientFirst Technology Consulting specializes in helping 
local government agencies with the evaluation and implementation of enterprise software 
solutions, including business process requirements, fostering buy-in and consensus across the 
organization, and providing the best value proposition. 


Expertise and Experience – ClientFirst has worked with hundreds of local governments 
throughout the United States. 


Why ClientFirst is the Best Choice 


• We pride ourselves on our ability to listen and communicate, affecting positive change at all 
personnel levels. 


• We truly put our client’s needs first. You are not just another project to us. 


• Our partners are hands-on and do not just provide high-level oversight or project 
management assistance. 


• We not only follow best practices but also educate staff at all levels on best practices in a 
manner that helps them understand the relevance to their organization and their role within 
the project. 


• We seek to partner with our clients as integrated subject-matter experts and advisors. 


• We work to help transform your organization, transfer knowledge, manage change, and 
ingrain best practices into your processes. 


The proposed price in this proposal will be valid for at least 90 days. Our office address is 980 
Montecito Drive, Suite 209, Corona, California 92879. 


For any questions, feel free to contact me at 951.739.7989 or via email at 
dkrout@clientfirstcg.com for additional information. We appreciate the continued opportunity of 
serving the City of Pinole. 


Sincerely, 


David W. Krout, CPA (inactive)  
Partner  
Management Consulting Practice Leader  


187 of 273







 ComDev System Administration Services 


CLIENTFIRST TECHNOLOGY CONSULTING   


OPTIMAL TECHNOLOGY GUIDANCE 


3 | 20 


Table of Contents 


BACKGROUND AND OBJECTIVES.................................................... 4 


Background and Objectives .................................................................................... 4 


Scope of Work ........................................................................................................ 4 


COST DATA .................................................................................. 7 


Fee Summary ......................................................................................................... 7 


Scope Changes and Management ......................................................................... 7 


Additional Services/Purchases by Other Seeking Public Agencies ........................ 7 


PROJECT ORGANIZATION AND STAFFING ....................................... 8 


Key Personnel ........................................................................................................ 9 


TRAKIT/COMDEV EXPERIENCE .................................................. 10 


Relevant Experience ............................................................................................. 10 


Primary Tasks Experience .................................................................................... 11 


KEY PERSONNEL ........................................................................ 13 


188 of 273







 ComDev System Administration Services 


CLIENTFIRST TECHNOLOGY CONSULTING   


OPTIMAL TECHNOLOGY GUIDANCE 


4 | 20 


Background and Objectives  


Background and Objectives  


The City requested ClientFirst assistance with the review of options available to them regarding 
their current permitting software system TRAKIT. The City decided to migrate to the latest 
version of TRAKIT, a software now called Community Development (or ComDev), with the 
assistance of ClientFirst. To increase the City’s use of its existing software, ClientFirst 
recommended improvements to the existing TRAKiT configuration to allow for applications 
online and a more streamlined process. The City also requested the addition of features, 
including credit card payments, online applications, online fee payments, inspection scheduling, 
and data searches. ClientFirst has provided project management and configuration assistance 
to the City to reconfigure every module to better utilize the software functionality and adapt 
setup to online applications. The go-live of ComDev is planned for October 2023.  


The City has limited in-house subject-matter expertise and resources to fully support this 
enterprise application system. It is thus seeking a third-party land management support 
specialist with extensive ComDev experience to assist the City until the in-house business 
analyst is trained and able to provide support as well. 


The City’s ComDev-related assistance needs include: 


• TRAKiT/Community development 
configuration improvements 


• eTRAKiT configuration improvements 


• Workflow analysis and reengineering 


• Training 


• Report development 


• Setup and Configuration 


• Integrations Issue Resolution 


Scope of Work 


Post Go-Live Support 


The ComDev systems assistance for the City of Pinole will be managed by Tatjana Meser, 
Cyndi Hoxie, and Michael Truncale. Their extensive TRAKiT/ComDev configuration, training, 
data conversion, integrations, and project management experience are the best suited to assist 
the City with system administration needs. They will be assisted, if necessary, by other subject-
matter experts, including database and technical support consultants. ClientFirst partners will 
provide quality assurance and oversight as needed.  


System Change Needs Assessment 


ClientFirst will work with the City departments to identify their specific needs and gaps in the 
system configuration, integrations, and other issues. Establishing a list of open issues will allow 
the City and ClientFirst to prioritize issues and map out a path to resolution, establish timelines, 
and set expectations with each department.  


Business Analysis and ComDev Improvements 


ClientFirst will work closely with the Functional Leads to review and identify any business 
process or ComDev configuration gaps. Based on assessment findings, ClientFirst will 
recommend and assist with ComDev and eTRAKiT improvements by utilizing new functionality 
to streamline the business process for the public and City staff. 


189 of 273







 ComDev System Administration Services 


CLIENTFIRST TECHNOLOGY CONSULTING   


OPTIMAL TECHNOLOGY GUIDANCE 


5 | 18 


Integrations 


Reviewing the current state of all integrations with City teams will allow ClientFirst to identify 
testing steps the City needs to take to validate each integration during the migration. These 
testing steps will be recorded and used as a testing script by the Functional Leads. ClientFirst 
can also assist with testing each integration and documenting errors or incorrect system 
behavior.  


Reports and Forms 


ClientFirst, with the assistance of the Functional Leads, will complete a review of the existing 
and missing forms, correspondences, letters, and reports the City utilizes. This will lead to a 
clear list of documents that need to be updated or created. ClientFirst will also assess each 
form, correspondence, letter, and report to determine if a merge document or SSRS form/report 
needs to be created and work with the Functional Leads to determine how to best deliver the 
form, correspondence, letter, or report in the Merge Document or SSRS format. 


eTRAKiT (Public Portal) Roll Out 


The main goal for this phase will be the roll out of online public services like online applications, 
online payments, inspection scheduling, and data searches. ClientFirst will work closely with the 
Functional Leads to complete the testing of eTRAKiT and work with the vendor on any issues 
that may arise before rollout. Process redefinition and streamlining will be the main objectives. 
ClientFirst will work with the City to recruit beta testers for the public portal for a soft launch and 
support the full Go Live of the public portal after a successful soft launch has been completed.   


GIS Data Analysis and Recommendations 


The City’s GIS data was imported into an ESRI Map without an analysis of the County and other 
source data. The main goal for this phase would be to conduct an analysis of all GIS data and to 
outline any discrepancies in the data that will need to be addressed.   


System Administration Assistance (Optional)  


The ClientFirst ComDev assistance and system changes include, but are not limited to: 


• Configuration updates (adding a status, adding a subtype, adjusting automatic fees, 
adjusting allowable fees, etc.)  


• Fee schedule adjustments 


• Quality assurance of configuration changes across all departments  


• User issues troubleshooting and resolution  


• Staff training (on-site or remote)  


• New reports, letters, scripting, and testing 


• Existing reports/letters modifications/adjustments  


• Existing reports/letters issues research and fixes 


• User rights adjustments (per City ComDev Administrator instruction)   


• Adding new users (per City ComDev Administrator instruction)   


• Configuration updates to utilize new functionality  


• Process redefinition and/or process translation into ComDev configuration  


Most training will be provided remotely (on-site training, considering COVID protocols, can be 
provided if necessary). Remote training will be conducted via the use of Teams. Agency training 
attendees will need to have access to PCs and PC or phone headsets. Agency training 
attendees will also need to be set up with a login to the ComDev Production and Test instances 
by the Agency ComDev Administrator (or ClientFirst). During the training, ClientFirst will share 


190 of 273







 ComDev System Administration Services 


CLIENTFIRST TECHNOLOGY CONSULTING   


OPTIMAL TECHNOLOGY GUIDANCE 


6 | 18 


their screen and conduct a walk-through of the application and process. Agency training 
participants will be able to follow along on their machines and share their screens with the other 
training participants, as well as ClientFirst, if questions arise. 


We will provide application consulting assistance but do not replace the software vendor’s 
technical support or the Agency’s ComDev administration role (optional). Our consultants work 
with multiple agencies on various similar types of projects, and most activities for this project will 
be planned and scheduled. Should the City need urgent assistance, you will have our assigned 
consultants’ cell phone numbers. They will contact you back as soon as possible, usually the 
same day. Furthermore, even for non-urgent matters, our policy is to respond to the client within 
24 hours. Our normal business hours are from 8:00 am to 5:00 pm PST. 


 


191 of 273







 ComDev System Administration Services 


CLIENTFIRST TECHNOLOGY CONSULTING   


OPTIMAL TECHNOLOGY GUIDANCE 


7 | 18 


Cost Data 


Fee Summary  


Our professional fees are based on the scope and approach outlined in this proposal, plus 
travel-related expenses, if necessary. Our standard billing rates for these types of services are 
dependent on the levels and skill sets of the consultant(s) assigned to specific aspects of the 
project. The consulting fees payable based on this agreement shall not exceed $24,999 and will 
be billed on a times and materials basis.  


Summary Rates 
Time-and-Materials or Optional Tasks 


Consultant Level Hourly Rate 


Project & Quality Assurance Director $ 210 


Applications Consultant/ Project Manager $ 195 


GIS Consultant $ 195 


  


Scope Changes and Management 


Alternative scope changes and fee adjustments are possible and depend on specific project 
needs, staff resources, and capabilities. Minor changes to the scope and methodology stated 
above will not result in a change in our fees. 


If the nature or scope of our work should change significantly during the project, we will discuss 
such matters and their effect on our fees and obtain written approval before proceeding. 


Additional Services/Purchases by Other Seeking Public Agencies  


ClientFirst acknowledges that other public agencies may seek to “piggyback” under the same 
terms and conditions of a resulting similar services contract and/or purchases being offered in 
this contract or proposal. ClientFirst has the option to agree or disagree to allow contract 
piggybacks on a case-by-case basis. ClientFirst agrees to extend the same pricing, terms, and 
conditions as stated in this contract or proposal to each and every political entity, special district, 
and related non-profit. It is understood that other entities shall make purchases in their own 
name, make payments, and be liable directly to ClientFirst. The agency shall in no way be 
involved or responsible to ClientFirst for other entities’ purchases. 


192 of 273







 ComDev System Administration Services 


CLIENTFIRST TECHNOLOGY CONSULTING   


OPTIMAL TECHNOLOGY GUIDANCE 


8 | 18 


Project Organization and Staffing 
ClientFirst’s primary consultants are employees, not subcontractors, and will be available 
throughout the project to maintain continuity. Full resumés for each key personnel can be found 
in the Key Personnel section. 


 


Project & Quality Assurance Director – Tatjana Meser 


The Project & Quality Assurance Director assures the support services delivered by ClientFirst’s 
assigned support team meet our standards. This role is performed by a ClientFirst Director 
and/or Partner due to the need for executive-level experience in delivering our services. This 
person also directs the ClientFirst project team consultants assigned to the project.  


Lead Applications Consultant – Cyndi Hoxie  


The Lead Applications Consultant oversees the day-to-day City requests and activities and 
management of the deliverables. This person also directs the ClientFirst project team 
consultants assigned to the project and is the primary day-to-day contact for the client. 


Application Consultants – Michael Truncale, Toby Soto 


ClientFirst assigns two or more Application Consultants to every project for continuity and 
backup. These consultants perform the business analysis and necessary tasks required to 
provide the deliverables defined in the project scope of work. These consultants are directed by 
the ClientFirst Project Manager described above. 


193 of 273







 ComDev System Administration Services 


CLIENTFIRST TECHNOLOGY CONSULTING   


OPTIMAL TECHNOLOGY GUIDANCE 


9 | 18 


Key Personnel  


Tatjana Meser – Director, Enterprise Applications Consulting 


Project Role:  Project Director/Quality Assurance 


Tatjana has over 13 years of experience with local government agency software systems and 
implementations. Her in-depth experience with TRAKiT/ComDev software configuration, 
business analysis, and user needs assessment allows Tatjana to successfully configure new 
modules, oversee software migrations, script reports, and implement customized 
scripts/integrations, as well as provide TRAKiT support and maintenance. In addition, her 
portfolio includes assessment, planning, implementations, configuration, integration, upgrades, 
customizations, testing, and documentation. Tatjana has experience with over 30 different 
agencies utilizing TRAKiT. 


Cyndi Hoxie – Management Consultant, Enterprise Applications Consulting 


Project Role:  Lead Applications Consultant  


Cyndi Hoxie has over 30 years of Public Sector experience, including 15 years with municipal 
government in Building and Code Enforcement. Cyndi has spent over 16 years assisting 
agencies with land management enterprise application systems, including project management, 
conversion, interfaces, workflow analysis, and systems configuration. Cyndi also has experience 
with dozens of other agencies utilizing the TRAKiT and ComDev systems. 


Michael Truncale – Management Consultant, Enterprise Applications Consulting 


Project Role:  Applications Consultant 


Michael has over 17 years of experience with local government agency software systems and 
implementations. His in-depth experience with software configuration, business analysis, and 
user needs assessment for over 50 TRAKiT/ComDev implementations allows Michael to 
successfully configure new modules, oversee software migrations, develop testing and go-live 
plans, script reports, and implement customized scripts/integrations, as well as provide 
TRAKiT/ComDev support and maintenance. In addition, Michael currently provides ongoing 
TRAKiT/ComDev systems administration assistance to two agencies.  


Toby Soto – GIS Consultant 


Project Role: GIS and Land/Parcel Data Specialist 


Toby has in-depth experience with GIS, land/parcel data, data conversion, and interface 
development for many local government agencies. Toby is also a form municipal IT Manager. 


194 of 273







 ComDev System Administration Services 


CLIENTFIRST TECHNOLOGY CONSULTING   


OPTIMAL TECHNOLOGY GUIDANCE 


10 | 18 


TRAKIT/ComDev Experience 


Relevant Experience 


The project team assigned to this engagement has combined experience with over 100 Land 
Management application projects, over 80 of which are or were specifically TRAKiT/ComDev. 
Our ComDev experience includes: 


• Process Reviews and Workflow 
Improvements 


• Functionality Requirements Definition 


• Contract Negotiations 


• Hands-on Implementation 


• User Training 


• Data Conversion Assistance 


• Project Management 


• Systems Maintenance 


• System Updates and Modifications 


• Integrations Assistance 


• Database Updates 


Our specific ComDev module and functionality experience includes, but is not limited to: 


• Land Management 


• Permitting 


• Projects and Planning 


• Code Compliance 


• CRM 


• Entity 


• Licensing  


• TimeTRAK  


• Reports 


• Workspace 


• eTRAKiT 


• iTRAKiT/Mobiles 


• GIS Integration 


• Electronic Plan Review Process and 
Integrations  


• Online payment integrations  


• At the Counter Credit Card Integrations  


Experience with Local Governments – Our Team’s experience working with local 
governments in California and across the country has provided our staff with the subject-matter 
expertise to quickly understand operational demands and opportunities and equate them to 
beneficial recommendations and improvements. 


Locally Based – Our California-based operations can react quickly to on-site project demands.  


Stable, Strong, and Growing – We are a financially stable and profitable firm serving local 
governments for over 19 years. We continue growing in both the addition of personnel and the 
expansion of new office locations. 


Quality of Experience of Our Consultants – Our Project Support Team for this project 
comprises consultants with a collective experience of over 100 years in IT consulting and 
software administration. The leaders and founders of our company come from IT consulting and 
management experience at a Top-Five national accounting and consulting firm. 


Commitment to the Project –ClientFirst has the expertise and commitment to provide 
excellent ComDev application and database-related services to the City of Pinole. Our team of 
consultants all have extensive backgrounds with ComDev and similar Land Management 
products, including scripting, data extracts, reporting, customization, workflow improvements, 
and implementation of new modules and software version migrations. 


195 of 273







 ComDev System Administration Services 


CLIENTFIRST TECHNOLOGY CONSULTING   


OPTIMAL TECHNOLOGY GUIDANCE 


11 | 18 


Primary Tasks Experience  


Business Process Analysis 


The ClientFirst team has a collective of 19 years of experience with business process reviews, 
assessments, analyses, and the documentation of configuration requirements.  


Improvements 


The assessment of existing configurations, processes, integrations, contracts, and other 
components of implementations and software, as well as improvement recommendations, is a 
service that ClientFirst SMEs have offered for over 20 years. 


Integrations  


ClientFirst has assisted many agencies with custom and standard integration with ComDev and 
other software solutions. Requirements gathering, review, and specification processes are key 
in implementing integrations, specifically for custom integrations.  


Data Conversion 


The ClientFirst team data conversion experience includes writing data conversion script(s), data 
mapping and analysis, data testing and validation, and data conversion testing training sessions 
with the project team. ClientFirst can also assist the project team in identifying and documenting 
any data conversion issues to ensure the resolution of the problems. The ClientFirst team has 
completed data conversion and data imports from different types of sources (Access, SQL, 
CSV, Excel, AS400) into various formats for conversions or interfaces. 


Reports and Forms 


ClientFirst has assisted many agencies with reviewing and classifying forms, correspondences, 
notices, letters, and permits/business certificates to determine if a merge document or custom 
SSRS form or report is the best solution. ClientFirst also has extensive experience creating 
specifications for custom forms and reports and scripting SSRS forms and reports for clients.  


The ClientFirst team has experience creating and modifying many report styles, ranging from 
simple data lists to managerial data summary reports to visual data representation via graphs 
and charts. We have provided the following types of report services: 


• Meetings with stakeholders 


• Discussions regarding the stakeholders’ reporting need 


• Advise and guide stakeholders through data and reporting capabilities 


• Document report specifications and layouts 


• Report scripting and follow-up communications 


• Report delivery and review/training with stakeholders 


• Any additional report modifications based on stakeholders’ feedback 


Testing 


The ClientFirst team has assisted with and conducted testing of the ComDev software and 
integrations to the ComDev software. The team also has extensive experience in test planning 
and oversight. Hands-on assistance with testing can also be provided if needed by the City.  


196 of 273







 ComDev System Administration Services 


CLIENTFIRST TECHNOLOGY CONSULTING   


OPTIMAL TECHNOLOGY GUIDANCE 


12 | 18 


Training 


The ClientFirst team members have participated in and led power-user and end-user trainings 
for over 40 agencies across all ComDev modules. Training for data conversion and integration 
testing is also an area of expertise.  


Ability to Work with Multiple Groups 


The ClientFirst approach to reviewing ongoing implementations and project assessments is all-
encompassing of the departments that are stakeholders of the software being implemented. 
Working with all stakeholders across all departments is the key to a successful project and Go-
Live.  


197 of 273







 ComDev System Administration Services 


CLIENTFIRST TECHNOLOGY CONSULTING   


OPTIMAL TECHNOLOGY GUIDANCE 


13 | 18 


Key Personnel 
The following pages contain detailed resumés for each key personnel member assigned to the 
project. 


198 of 273







 ComDev System Administration Services 


CLIENTFIRST TECHNOLOGY CONSULTING   


OPTIMAL TECHNOLOGY GUIDANCE 


14 | 18 


Tatjana Meser 
Director, Enterprise Applications Consulting 


Tatjana Meser has over 13 years of experience with local government 
agency software implementations. Her in-depth experience with 
software configuration, business analysis, and user needs assessment 
allows Tatjana to successfully oversee project implementations of 
standard and customized software.  


Skilled in all facets of the project life cycle for application software, she 
has experience with functional and technical requirements 
development, gap analysis, system analysis, design, specifications, 
unit and system testing, implementation planning, execution, lessons 
learned, and system documentation. 


These business improvement and process consistency efforts have 
created significant cost savings through move-efficient business 
processes and have reduced overall implementation costs. 


Having worked with numerous government agencies as a vendor, 
Tatjana also brings an understanding, perspective, and ability to 
manage all the parties necessary for delivering lasting operational 
success. 


Highlights 


• Project oversight and management services for multiple 
community development implementations with custom 
integration to financial, tax, and business licensing systems   


• Industry experience includes work with City and County 
agencies   


Agency Experience 


City of Batavia 
City of Beaumont   
City of Carlsbad 
City of Corona  
City of Coronado  
City of Escondido   
City of Fairfield   
City of Fontana   
City of Glendora 
City of Greenville 
City of Hesperia 
City of Idaho Falls   
City of Keller 
City of Key West  
City of Lakeland   
City of Larkspur  
City of Mill Valley 
City of Mission Viejo  
City of Monrovia  
City of Newark  
City of Oceanside   
City of Palm Desert   
City of Palmdale 
City of Piedmont 
City of Pinole 


City of Pismo Beach 
City of Rancho Palos Verdes   
City of Rocklin  
City of Salinas 
City of San Bernardino 
City of San Clemente 
City of St. Cloud   
City of St. Paul  
City of Vacaville 
City of Vallejo 
City of West Covina 
City of West Sacramento 
City of Wood Dale 
Town of Windsor 
Village of Lincolnwood 
Village of Oswego 
Village of River Forest 
Village of Westmont 
County of Butte 
County of Calaveras County  
County of Mendocino 
County of Shasta  
County of Yuba   
County of Hanover 


 


CREDENTIALS, DEGREES, 
AND AFFILIATIONS 


• Bachelor of Arts in International 
Studies – UC San Diego 


• Project Management Institute 
Member – Inland Empire Chapter   


SPECIALTIES 


• Project Management   


• Conversion, Interface Planning, 
and Implementation Support  


• Understanding of public sector 
departmental operations and 
application systems  


• Workflow analysis and mapping   


• Business Process Redesign  


• System Configuration and 
Training   


• Test and Go Live Plan Creation   


 


I just wanted to say that I thought 
the training sessions were very 
informative and clear, and I learned 
a lot from it. I appreciate your time 
spent to train us. Thank you so 
much! 


     —Account Clerk 
CA Municipality 


199 of 273







 ComDev System Administration Services 


CLIENTFIRST TECHNOLOGY CONSULTING   


OPTIMAL TECHNOLOGY GUIDANCE 


15 | 18 


Cyndi Hoxie 
Management Consultant 


Cyndi Hoxie has over 30 years of Public Sector experience, including 
15 years in municipal government in Building and Code Enforcement. 
She has spent over 19 years assisting agencies with land 
management enterprise application systems, with her last position as a 
product owner of a mid-tier land management software representing 
the software needs of government agencies nationwide.  


Cyndi’s applications experience ranges from being a frontline, daily 
land management software user to extensive applications support as 
well as software implementor and project manager of software 
implementations. Her diverse experiences allowed her to represent 
clients’ needs and drive the development of land management 
software with the end user in mind. Cyndi now utilizes her vast land 
management systems knowledge to provide agencies with hands-on 
applications support, maintenance, data management, reporting 
writing, training, and consulting advisory. 


Highlights 


• Experience with planning, permitting, inspections, code 
enforcement, and tax and licensing processes 


• Project oversight and management services for multiple 
community development implementations  


• Experience with custom integrations specifically for financial, 
tax, and business licensing systems   


• Business process gap analysis and workflow documentation  


• Extensive knowledge of business and technical processes 
pertaining to enterprise applications 


Agency Experience 


City of Aurora 
City of Aventura 
City of Bakersfield  
City of Boynton Beach 
City of Brentwood 
City of Broken Arrow 
City of Carlsbad 
City of Cary 
City of Champaign 
City of College Station 
City of Coral Springs 
City of Crestview 
City of Delray Beach 
City of Folsom 
City of Fresno 
City of Grand Prairie 
City of Greenville 
City of Gresham 
City of Las Vegas 
City of Los Altos 
City of Manchester 
City of Marietta 
City of Miami Springs 
City of Mission Viejo 
City of Newberg 
City of Norfolk 


City of North Port 
City of Oswego 
City of Pearland 
City of Piedmont 
City of Pinole 
City of Plano 
City of Pompano Beach 
City of Rio Rancho 
City of St. Cloud 
City of St. Petersburg 
City of Salinas 
City of San Clemente 
City of Solana Beach 
City of Tamarac 
City of West Palm Beach 
City of Winter Haven 
Town of Davie 
Town of Lady Lake 
Town of Los Altos Hills 
Town of Normal 
Town of Windsor 
Village of Lincolnwood 
County of Butte 
County of Hanover 
County of Mendocino 


CREDENTIALS 


• Certified Scrum Product Owner  


SPECIALTIES 


• Project Management   


• Conversion, Interface Planning, 
and Implementation Support  


• Understanding of public sector 
departmental operations and 
application systems  


• Workflow analysis and mapping   


• System Configuration and 
Training   


• Test and Go Live Plan Creation   


 


Cyndi, Thank you so much for 
accomplishing this huge task in a 
short period of time! We would not 
have been able to do this without you. 


—City Manager 
CA Municipality 


200 of 273







 ComDev System Administration Services 


CLIENTFIRST TECHNOLOGY CONSULTING   


OPTIMAL TECHNOLOGY GUIDANCE 


16 | 18 


Michael Truncale 
Enterprise Applications Senior Management Consultant 


Michael Truncale has over 17 years of experience working directly with 
municipalities and government agencies with software implementations. His 
experience includes business process assessments, project planning, 
software implementation, application configuration, custom integrations, 
scoping customization needs, managing multiple teams across disciplines, 
process documentation, and project management related to enterprise 
applications.  


Having worked for a leading local government enterprise software provider, 
Michael brings a strong understanding of software implementation, 
consulting, process knowledge, and functional knowledge, along with the 
customers’ needs and concerns throughout and post-implementation. 


Michael’s in-depth agency process knowledge, technical and functional 
background, and his passion for helping people enables him to easily identify 
gaps in processes and quickly provide quantifiable solutions.  


Highlights 


• Business process gap analysis 


• Multi-phased agency-wide software implementations 


• Extensive knowledge of business and technical processes pertaining to 
enterprise applications 


• Facilitator between C-level and functional roles 


Agency Experience 


City of Ann Arbor 
City of Bellingham 
City of Brentwood 
City of Bryan 
City of Canton 
City of College Station 
City of Colleyville 
City of East Palo Alto 
City of Edmond 
City of Emeryville 
City of Elk Grove 
City of Escondido 
City of Gladstone 
City of Golden 
City of Greeley 
City of Greer 
City of Helena 
City of Medford 
City of Norwalk 
City of Novato 
City of Pearland 
City of Pflugerville 
City of Poway 
City of Prescott 


City of Round Rock 
City of Sammamish 
City of San Marcos 
City of Tracy 
City of Tukwila 
City of Walla Walla 
City of Westminster 
City of Wildwood 
Glenn County 
Hanover County 
Lewis and Clark County 
Lincoln County 
Manatee County 
Nassau County 
Spotsylvania County 
Summit County 
Yuma County 
Town of Castle Rock 
Town of Flower 
Mound 
Town of Parker 
Town of Windsor 
Town of Woodside 


 


CREDENTIALS, DEGREES, 
AND AFFILIATIONS 


• Bachelor of Arts in Business 


Administration – California State 


University of San Marcos 


• Project Management Institute 
Member – San Diego Chapter 


SPECIALTIES 


• Project Management 


• Implementation Project 
Management 


• Business Process Reviews 


• Current System Needs Analysis 
and Improvement 


• Project Management Oversight 


• Conversion, Interface Planning, 
and Implementation Support  


• Understanding of public sector 
departmental operations and 
application systems  


• Workflow analysis and mapping   


• Business Process Redesign  


• System Configuration and 
Training 


• Test and Go-Live Plan Creation   


 


Michael…the speed of this delivery is 
amazing and the deliverable is just so 
clean. Well done. I’m looking forward to 
working more with you. 


     —Senior Information Systems 
Analyst 


CA Municipality 


 


First of all, great work. You are an elite 
communicator. It’s honestly your best 
skill and to be clear you are top notch in 
everything else. 


     —Senior Information Systems 
Analyst 


CA Municipality 


 


201 of 273







 ComDev System Administration Services 


CLIENTFIRST TECHNOLOGY CONSULTING   


OPTIMAL TECHNOLOGY GUIDANCE 


17 | 18 


Toby Soto 
Senior GIS Consultant 


Toby Soto has 26 years of GIS experience in the local government sector. 
Toby’s previous GIS positions in local government provides clients with 
tremendous GIS implementation and integration experience. He 
understands the link between Business Unit GIS needs, technical 
requirements, and a practical, cost-effective GIS strategy. Toby is 
considered an industry expert in GIS Leadership and Management and 
regularly publishes GIS-related articles and resources. He also hosts 
monthly webinars addressing GIS managers’ pain points and best practices. 


Highlights 


• Esri SAG Award with the City of Anaheim GIS 


• 2011 Implemented Project ViewFinder Application saving the City of Anaheim 
$100,000 per year in repaving cost 


• Extensive GIS presentations at Esri’s User Conferences, Meetups, User Groups, 
Podcasts, and Webinars 


• Former Orange County GIS Users Group Coordinator 


• Multiple Local Government GIS Implementations and Implementations 


• Former IT Manager, City of Lake Elsinore 


• Former Chief of Technical Information, Wester Riverside County Regional 
Conservation Authority 


Project Experience 


• Process Streamlining and Redefinition  


• Process Workflow Creation  


• Software Configuration and 
Troubleshooting  


• Project Management 


• GIS Strategy and Organization 
Development 


• GIS Policy Development 


• Open Data Strategy 
Development 


• Business Process Analysis 


• Web/Cloud-Based Technology 
and Workflow Optimization 


• GIS ROI Analysis 


• GIS Web App Development 


• Citizen Access GIS Web Maps 
Development 


• GIS Migration and Workflow 
Development 


• ETL Conversions 


• Cognos and Crystal Reports 


• GIS Enterprise Application 
Integrations 


• Implementation and Maintenance 
of Online GIS Services 


• Database Administration 


• GIS Budget Development 


• GIS Leadership Coaching and 
Mentoring 


• Server Management 


• Network Analysis and 
Maintenance 


• CIP Project Tracking


Agency Experience 


City of Anaheim 
City of Azusa 
City of Brisbane 
City of Carlsbad 
City of Diamond Bar 
City of Larkspur 
City of Lake Elsinore 
City of Pflugerville 
City of Piedmont 
City of Pinole 
City of Rancho 
Cucamonga 


City of Rancho Mirage 
City of Riverside 
City of Salinas 
City of San Clemente 
City of Sandpoint 
City of Simi Valley 
City of Vacaville 
City of West Sacramento 
City of Wood Dale  
Town of Windsor 
Village of Oswego 
Riverside County 


Mendocino County 
Four Rivers Sanitation 
Authority 


Western Riverside County 
Regional Conservation 
Authority 


Disneyland (GIS 
Programmer/Analyst – 
Water/Electric utilities) 


EDUCATION 


• CSU Fullerton 


SPECIALTIES 


• GIS Strategic Planning 


• GIS Implementation 


• GIS Integration 


• GIS Web Development 


• GIS Mobile Applications 


• Open Data/ Philanthropy 
 


 


202 of 273







 ComDev System Administration Services 


CLIENTFIRST TECHNOLOGY CONSULTING  


OPTIMAL TECHNOLOGY GUIDANCE 


18 | 18 


David W. Krout, CPA  ( Inact ive)  


Partner – Enterprise Applications Consulting Practice Leader  


David Krout has 25 years of experience assisting local governments with a 
broad scope of information technology needs. He specializes in working with 
organizations to identify their strategic, organizational, application, and 
functional requirements to determine which system and/or specific 
applications are a proper fit for both the agency and the vendor. 


David’s unique and diversified background in business management, 
accounting, and management consulting has given him the ability to 
collaborate with C-level executives and department staff from a practical, 
business-management perspective to maximize their technology utilization. 


Having also worked for a leading local government enterprise software 
provider, David brings a unique understanding of consulting, client 
representation, and vendor relationships to the collaboration between the 
agency and software vendors. 


Highlights 


• Served on the National Committee for Information Technology for the 
Institute of Management Accountants 


• Former President, Institute of Management Accountants, Inland 
Empire Chapter 


• Featured speaker for the California Society of Municipal Finance 
Officers (CSMFO), Municipal Information Systems Association of 
California (MISAC), and Texas Association of Government Information 
Technology Managers 


• Project lead with over 140 public-sector agencies throughout the 
United States 


Agency Experience 
City of Batavia 
City of Bloomington 
City of Brentwood 
City of Brisbane 
City of Burbank 
City of Burlington 
City of Carlsbad 
City of Camarillo 
City of Chino 
City of Clovis 
City of Colton 
City of Corona 
City of Coronado 
City of Dublin 
City of Foster City 
City of Gastonia 
City of Healdsburg 
City of Hemet 
City of Highland Park 
City of Indio 
City of La Habra 
City of La Puente 
City of Laguna Niguel 
City of Lake Forest 
City of Larkspur 
City of Lomita 
City of Manassas Park 
City of Menlo Park 
City of Mission Viejo 
City of Murrieta 
City of Pacifica 
City of Palm Desert 
City of Palmdale 
City of Pelham 
City of Piedmont 


City of Rancho Mirage 
City of Redlands 
City of Rialto 
City of Riviera Beach 
City of Rosemead 
City of Salisbury 
City of Sandpoint 
City of San Gabriel 
City of San Jacinto 
City of Shawnee 
City of Sierra Madre 
City of Simi Valley 
City of South Gate 
City of Tustin 
City of West Covina 
City of West Des 


Moines 
County of Butte 
County of Buncombe 
County of Denton  
County of Mendocino 
County of Orange 
County of Riverside 
County of San 


Bernardino  
Town of Danville 
Town of Groton 
Town of Hillsborough 
Town of Truckee 
Village of Glencoe 
Village of Lincolnwood 
Village of Northfield 
Village of Oswego 
Village of River Forest 


CA-NV American Water 
Works Association 


Castaic Lake Water 
Agency 


Castro Valley Sanitary 
District 


Colton Joint Unified 
School District 


Cucamonga Valley 
Water District 


Gastonia Water & Power 
Glendale Water and 


Power 
HIP Housing 
Lake Elsinore Unified 


School District 
Menifee Unified School 


District 
Mesa Water District 
Midpeninsula Regional 


Open Space District 
Ramona Municipal 


Water District 
Rincon del Diablo 


Municipal Water 
District 


Rock River 
Reclamation 
District 


Rosamond 
Community 
Services District 


Salisbury-Rowan 
Utilities 


San Bernardino 
Municipal Water 


Southern California 
Coastal Water 
Research (SCCWRP) 


Walnut Valley Water 
District 


West County 
Wastewater District 


Western Municipal 
Water District  


Mechoopda Indian Tribe 
Eastern Band of Cherokee 


Indian 


CREDENTIALS, DEGREES, 
AND AFFILIATIONS 


• Certified Public Accountant 
(CPA) (Inactive) 


• Bachelor of Science in 
Business Administration 
and Accounting – CSU 
San Bernardino 


SPECIALTIES 


• Business Process Reviews 


• Applications Requirements 
Definition 


• Enterprise Applications 
Architecture 


• Current System Needs 
Analysis and 
Improvement 


• New Software Selection 
Assistance 


• Technology Master 
Planning 


• Project Management and 
Oversight 


• Conversion Assistance and 
Planning 


• Contract Reviews and 
Negotiations 


 


It has been absolutely key to this 
project that ClientFirst, especially 
Dave, knows the governmental 
environment, its limitations and its 
opportunities. 


     —Director of Administrative 
Services 


CA Municipality 


 


(Inactive) 


203 of 273







CITY COUNCIL 
REPORT 


DATE:  SEPTEMBER 19, 2023 


TO:  MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 


FROM: MARKISHA GUILLORY, FINANCE DIRECTOR 


SUBJECT: ADOPT A RESOLUTION CORRECTING THE APPROPRIATIONS 
LIMIT FOR FISCAL YEAR (FY) 2022/23 AND FY 2023/24 


RECOMMENDATION 


Adopt a resolution correcting the Appropriations Limit for Fiscal Year (FY) 2022/23 
and FY 2023/24.    


BACKGROUND 


In November 1979, California voters passed Proposition 4 (the "Gann Limit” 
Spending Initiative), which added Article XIIIB to the California Constitution. The 
purpose of this law is to establish a limit on expenditure appropriations from tax 
sources that State and local governments are permitted to make in any given year. 


Pursuant to Article XIIIB, the City is required to establish an annual Appropriations 
Limit.  The appropriations subject to limitation are based on the 1978-79 
appropriations adjusted for changes in the cost of living and population. 


California Government Code Section 7910 requires each local government to 
establish its appropriations limit by resolution for each fiscal year.  


On June 20, 2023, the City Council adopted a resolution approving the 
Appropriations Limit for FY 2023/24. Following adoption, staff discovered a 
rounding error in the calculation for FY 2022/23 that has to be corrected. Since the 
subsequent year’s calculation begins with the prior year’s limit as the starting point, 
the FY 2023/24 also has to be corrected. Adoption of the attached resolution 
(Attachment A) will correct the City of Pinole’s Appropriations Limit for FY 2022/23 
and FY 2023/24. 


REVIEW AND ANALYSIS 


The factors used to compute the annual appropriations limit are: (1) either the 
percentage change in California per capita personal income or the percentage 
change in the local property tax assessment roll from the preceding year due to 
the addition of local nonresidential construction in the City, and (2) either the City’s 


9L


204 of 273







City Council Report  
September 19, 2023  2 


 
 


own population growth or the population growth of the entire County.Each year, 
the State of California Department of Finance provides data on the percentage 
change in California per capita personal income and the population growth of all 
cities and counties. 
 
The City uses the change in California per capita personal income and change in 
Contra Costa County population to compute the City’s Appropriations Limit.  
 
The Appropriations Limit applies to most tax revenues including property tax, sales 
tax, utility users’ tax, business license tax, transient occupancy tax, and vehicle in-
lieu fee. It does not apply to revenues such as fees that recover operating costs. 
By law, the City’s allocation of certain types of tax revenue is not allowed to exceed 
this authorized spending limit. Many of the City’s revenues are not subject to the 
Appropriations Limit; therefore, the City’s annual appropriations remain far below 
the limit. 
 
Following City Council adoption of the FY 2023/24 Appropriations Limit, staff 
discovered a rounding error in the calculation for FY 2022/23 that has to be 
corrected. Since the subsequent year’s calculation begins with the prior year’s limit 
as the starting point, the FY 2023/24 also has to be corrected. The original limit for 
FY 2022/23 was $157,628,644 and the corrected limit is $157,649,654, a 
difference of $21,010. The original limit for FY 2023/24 was $164,034,697 and the 
corrected limit is $164,056,561, a difference of $21,864.  Below are the 
calculations for the corrected Appropriations Limit for FY 2022/23 and FY 2023/24. 
 
The corrected FY 2022/23 Appropriations Limit is: 
 
Per capita personal income converted to ratio:   7.55 + 100 = 1.0755 
                     100 
 
Population change converted to a ratio:   -0.41 + 100 = 0.9959 
                        100 
 
Calculation of factor:          1.0755 X 0.9959 = 1.0711 
 
 City of Pinole FY 2021/22  


Appropriations Limit:   $147,186,126  
 
 FY 2022/23 factor:    x 1.07109045 
  
FY 2022/23 Appropriations Limit:   $157,649,654  
 
City of Pinole FY 2022/23 Appropriations  
Subject to the Limit:     $19,652,556  
 
Total Appropriations Under the Limit:  $137,997,098 


205 of 273







City Council Report  
September 19, 2023  3 


 
 


 
The corrected FY 2023/24 Appropriations Limit is: 
 
Per capita personal income converted to ratio:   4.44 + 100 = 1.0444 
                     100 
 
Population change converted to a ratio:   -0.36 + 100 = 0.9964 
                        100 
 
Calculation of factor:          1.0444 X 0.9964 = 1.0406 
 
 City of Pinole FY 2022/23  


Appropriations Limit:   $157,649,654  
 
 FY 2023/24 factor:    x 1.04064016 
 
FY 2023/24 Appropriations Limit:   $164,056,561 
 
City of Pinole FY 2023/24 Appropriations  
Subject to the Limit:     $20,702,978  
 
Total Appropriations Under the Limit:  $143,353,583 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
There is no fiscal impact created by the City Council’s adoption of this resolution 
to correct the City’s Appropriations Limit for FY 2022/23 and FY 2023/24. The 
amounts subject to the Appropriations Limit are far below that calculated limit for 
both years, therefore, there is no fiscal impact.    
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
A – Resolution Correcting the Appropriations Limit for Fiscal Year (FY) 2022/23 
and 2023/24 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 


206 of 273







RESOLUTION NO. 2023-XX 


RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PINOLE, COUNTY OF 
CONTRA COSTA, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, APPROVING THE CITY OF PINOLE’S 


APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT FOR FISCAL YEARS 2022/23 AND 2023/24 


WHEREAS, Article XIIIB of the Constitution of the State of California requires an 
Appropriations Limit for governmental agencies to be established annually; and 


WHEREAS, the appropriation subject to limitation for each fiscal year shall be 
based on the 1978-79 appropriation adjusted for changes in the per capita cost of living 
and population; and  


WHEREAS, the implementation of Article XIIIB requires the taxing agency to 
determine the Appropriations Limit according to the State of California; and  


WHEREAS, the City of Pinole calculated its Fiscal Years 2022/23 and 2023/24 
Appropriations Limit based on the percent of change in the population of the Contra Costa 
County, January 1, 2021 to January 1, 2022, and January 1, 2022 to January 1, 2023, 
and the change in the State of California’s per capita personal income; and  


 WHEREAS, City staff discovered that the resolution authorizing the Appropriations 
Limit for the Fiscal Year 2023/24 had an incorrect amount of $164,034,697 and it should 
have been $164,056,561; and the Fiscal Year 2022/23 had an incorrect of $157,628,644 
and it should have been $157,649,654.  


NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Pinole City Council does hereby 
resolve: 


For Fiscal Year 2022/23: 


1. That the Fiscal Year 2022/23 growth factor has been calculated as follows:
1.0755 x 0.9959 = 1.0711 


2. That said growth factor, 1.07109045, shall be used to adjust the Fiscal Year
2022/23 Appropriations Limit. 


3. That the Appropriations Limit for Fiscal Year 2022/23 is hereby established as
$157,649,654. 


For Fiscal Year 2023/24: 


1. That the growth factor for Fiscal Year 2023/24 has been calculated as follows:
1.0444 x 0.9964 = 1.0406 


2. That said growth factor, 1.04064016, shall be used to adjust the Fiscal Year
2023/24 Appropriations Limit. 


3. That the Appropriations Limit for Fiscal Year 2023/24 is hereby established as
$164,056,561. 


ATTACHMENT A


207 of 273







FURTHER, BE IT RESOLVED that the City of Pinole tax allocations for Fiscal Year 
2022/23 will be approximately $19,652,556, which is below the authorized spending limit 
of $137,997,098; and that the City of Pinole tax allocations for Fiscal Year 2023/24 will 
be approximately $20,702,978, which is below the authorized spending limit of 
$143,353,583. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Pinole City Council held on the 19th 


day of September 2023 by the following vote: 
 


AYES:  COUNCILMEMBERS: 
NOES:  COUNCILMEMBERS: 
ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS: 
ABSTAIN: COUNCILMEMBERS:  


 


I hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was introduced, passed and adopted on this 19th day 
of September, 2023. 
 
 
____________________________ 
Heather Bell, CMC 
City Clerk 


208 of 273







CITY COUNCIL 


REPORT 


9M 


DATE: SEPTEMBER 19, 2023 


TO: MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 


FROM: SANJAY MISHRA, PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR 
ALEX MOG, ASSISTANT CITY ATTORNEY 


SUBJECT: RESOLUTION DECLARING 2100 SAN PABLO AVENUE (THE FARIA 
HOUSE) SURPLUS LAND 


RECOMMENDATION 


Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a resolution declaring the Faria House 
Surplus Land and directing the City Manager to follow the procedures in the Surplus Land 
Act for disposition.  


BACKGROUND 


The Faria House (the “Faria House”) was donated to the City and was relocated at the 
expense of the former Redevelopment Agency (the “Agency”) to its current location at 
2100 San Pablo Avenue (the “Land”). The Land was purchased by the Agency with 
Agency low- and moderate-income housing funds (“Housing Funds”) as part of an 
affordable housing project known as Heritage Park. Three affordable housing units were 
constructed on three adjacent lots, fronting Buena Vista Drive, and the Property was 
intended to be used as a park. 


In 2012, redevelopment agencies were dissolved, and all properties purchased with 
Housing Funds were transferred to the City to be used for affordable housing.  Both the 
Faria House and the Land (collectively, the " Property”) were transferred to the City in 
August of 2012 as housing assets.  Thereafter, the City paid the fair market value of the 
Faria House to transfer the Faria House to the City out of the Housing Fund. Under the 
redevelopment dissolution law, if properties in the housing asset fund are sold or used for 
any reason other than affordable housing, the properties must be purchased at fair market 
value, and the funds received from the purchase must go back into the Housing Fund.  


At its meeting on July 18, 2023, the City Council directed staff to declare the Faria House 
and Property as Surplus Property and begin the process to sell them.  


REVIEW & ANALYSIS 


Under the Surplus Land Act (Gov. Code § 54220 et seq.) cities must declare property as 
either “surplus land” or “exempt surplus land” prior to disposing of the property. Property 
may be declared exempt surplus land only if it falls within one of several specific 


209 of 273







City Council Report  
Septmber 19, 2023   2 


exemptions. The Property does not meet any of those exemptions. Accordingly, the City 
Council must declare the Property as surplus land before it can be sold.  
 
Once the Property is declared as surplus land, the Act requires the City to send a written 
notice of availability regarding the Property to certain public agencies and non-profit 
housing sponsors that have requested notice. Any entity that receives the notice of 
availability has 60 days to notify the City that it is interested in purchasing the Property. If 
there are any responses, the City must then negotiate in good faith with the interested 
entities for at least 90 days. If any residential units are built on the site by an entity 
responding to the notice of availability, at least 25% of the units must be affordable for 
households with incomes of no greater than 80% of the Area Median Income. There is no 
requirement to change the zoning of the Property or sell the Property for less than fair 
market value.  
 
If no agreement is reached within the 90-day period (or no qualified entity expresses 
interest within the initial 60-day period), the City has the right to market and sell the 
Property to any interested entity. If any residential units are built on the Property as a 
result of this process, at least 15% of the units must be affordable for households with 
incomes of no greater than 80% of the Area Median Income pursuant to the City’s 
inclusionary housing requirement. 
 
The proposed resolution will declare the Property as surplus land and authorize staff to 
send the required notices of availability to qualifying entities. The City may retain a 
consultant to assist with reviewing proposals, if any are received in response to the notice, 
or to help market the property if no qualified entity expresses interest. The cost of such 
consultant, if one is retained, is anticipated to be within the City Manager’s purchasing 
authority.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 


There is no fiscal impact from declaring the Property as surplus land. Staff time will be 
required to prepare and send the notices of availability regarding the property.The cost of 
staff time, and any consultants retained, may be deducted from the proceeds from the 
sale of the Property. The portion of the sale proceeds attributable to the Faria House will 
be deposited in the General Fund, and the rest will be deposited in Housing Assets Fund  
 


ATTACHMENTS 
 


A. Resolution Declaring Faria House Surplus Land.  


 


210 of 273







1 


RESOLUTION NO. 2023-XX 


RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PINOLE DECLARING 


2100 SAN PABLO AVENUE (THE FARIA HOUSE) AS SURPLUS LAND AND 


DIRECTING THE CITY MANAGER TO FOLLOW THE PROCEDURES SET FORTH IN 


THE SURPLUS LANDS ACT FOR DISPOSITION 


WHEREAS, the Faria House was donated to the City and was relocated at the expense 
of the former Redevelopment Agency to its current location at 2100 San Pablo Avenue; 
and 


WHEREAS, the Faria House is owned by the City as an asset of the General Fund, and 
the land underneath the Faria House is owned by the City as a housing asset; and  


WHEREAS, the City Council desires to dispose of both the Faria House and the 
underlying property; and 


WHEREAS, the Surplus Lands Act, Government Code section 54220 et seq. (the “Act”) 
governs the sale of property by cities and other local agencies in California; and 


WHEREAS, the Act requires, with limited exceptions, cities and other public agencies to 
offer property to nonprofit housing providers and certain other entities before the City 
sells the property; and   


WHEREAS, the Act mandates a noticing process and a required negotiation period.  If 
no qualified entity wants the land, or the City and the qualified entity are not able to 
reach an agreement after good faith negotiations, the City is free to sell the property to 
any entity, subject to certain requirements; and 


WHEREAS, the City Council desires to declare 2100 San Pablo Avenue and the 
improvements located thereon, commonly known as the Faria House, as surplus land and 
direct the City Manager to comply with the notice and negotiation procedures set forth in 
the Surplus Lands Act for disposal of this property.  


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Pinole hereby 
declares as follows:  


1. 2100 San Pablo Avenue, and the improvements located thereon, are declared
as surplus land pursuant to the Surplus Lands Act.


2. The City Manager is authorized and directed to follow the procedures set forth
in the Surplus Lands Act for the disposal of surplus land.


3. The City Manager and City Attorney are authorized and directed to execute any
documents and take any steps necessary to comply with the purpose and intent
of this Resolution.


ATTACHMENT A


211 of 273







2 
 


 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Pinole City Council held on 
the 19th day of September, 2023, by the following vote:  


 
AYES:  COUNCILMEMBERS:  
NOES: COUNCILMEMBERS:  
ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS:  
ABSTAIN: COUNCILMEMBERS:  
 


I hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was introduced, passed, and adopted on the 
19th day of September 2023. 
 
 
____________________________ 
Heather Bell, CMC 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 


212 of 273







  


 
   


 


 


 CITY COUNCIL 


 REPORT 12A 


  
 


DATE:   SEPTEMBER 19, 2023 
 
TO:    MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 
FROM:   LILLY WHALEN, COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR 
 
SUBJECT: INFORMATION ON ESTABLISHING A CRIME PREVENTION THROUGH 


ENVIRONMENTAL DESIGN (CPTED) GRANT/REBATE PROGRAM 
 


 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends City Council receive this report and provide direction as appropriate. 
 
BACKGROUND 
At the June 20, 2023 City Council meeting Councilmember Sasai requested a future 
agenda item on how to establish a Crime Prevention through Environmental Design 
(CPTED) Rebate Program for small business owners and owners of commercial 
properties. 
 
CPTED is a set of strategies that have been proven to reduce criminal activity by 
addressing the physical environment. The idea of CPTED originated in the early 1960s 
with Jane Jacobs (author of The Death and Life of Great American Cities) who believed 
that the way we design our environment can help decrease crime and make people feel 
safer. In the 1970s, Professor C. Ray Jeffery made it into a term in his book Crime 
Prevention Through Environmental Design, and architect Oscar Newman expanded on 
the idea in his book Defensible Space. 
 
The main idea of CPTED is the way we design our physical spaces can either make it 
easier or harder for crime to happen, and can also affect how likely people are to commit 
crimes. By creating an environment that fosters a sense of community and territorial 
control, CPTED can significantly reduce the incidence of crime and improve the quality of 
life for residents. Typical CPTED strategies include increasing nighttime lighting, 
constructing barricades, and installing video surveillance cameras. The three main 
elements of CPTED are Territoriality, Surveillance, and Access Control (see Figure 1), 
which work together to strengthen overall premise security and personal safety.  
 
For existing built spaces, the City of Pinole Police Department’s Community Outreach 
Unit provides free CPTED evaluations for any business or residence upon request. 
Upon conclusion of the CPTED evaluation, the property owner may choose to make 
recommended improvements to their property. This may necessitate securing, among 
other approvals, building permits. 
 
 


213 of 273







 


 


Figure 1: Main Elements of Crime Prevention Through Environmental Design  


Natural Access Control  


 
 
Border definition wall - 
Photo by Steve Woolrich. 
Clear border definition wall 
concrete and glass with 
natural planting on both 
sides separating walkway 
from private residences. 


Territorial Reinforcement 


 
 
Steps leading up to private 
spaces from public 
sidewalk - Photo by Tom 
McKay. Walled garden 
marks the separation of 
public/private space. 
 


Natural Surveillance 


 
 
Boundary screen - Photo by 
Steve Woolrich. Decorative 
musical note boundary screen 
separates parking from passers 
by. 


Restricting or encouraging 
people to come into a 
space through the 
placement of entrances, 
exits, fencing, landscaping, 
and lighting. 
 
Examples include:  
 


 providing clear border 
definition of controlled 
space 


 limiting uncontrolled 
and/or unobserved 
access onto properties, 
buildings and private 
space 


 adding dense or thorny 
landscaping as a 
natural barrier to 
reinforce fences and 
discourage unwanted 
entry 


 using space to provide 
natural barriers to 
conflicting activities. 


The use of physical 
attributes to define 
ownership and separate 
public and private space. 
 
Examples include:  
 


 creating clearly marked 


transitional zones as 


persons move from 


public to semi-public 


and private space using 


paving patterns, 


symbolic barriers or 


markers, signs  and 


other visual cues 


 providing amenities in 


communal area that 


encourages activity and 


use 


 


The placement of physical 
features, activities, and people 
in a way that maximizes 
visibility.  
 
Examples include:  
 


 orienting driveways and 
paths towards natural forms 
of surveillance such as 
building entrances and 
windows 


 increasing visual 
permeability of vulnerable 
areas (e.g., building 
entrances, stairwells, 
playgrounds etc.) through 
the strategic use of 
windows, fencing material, 
landscaping  


 trimming back overgrown 
landscaping 


 strategically lighting 
pathways 


 developing uses that 
strategically generate 
activity (e.g., sidewalk 
patios, seating areas)  


 


214 of 273



https://cptedcanada.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/03/attachments.png





 


 


For new and rehabilitated buildings, the City’s Community Services and Facilities and 
Health and Safety Elements of the General Plan contain policies (CS.1.4 and HS.1.1) and 
actions (CS.1.4.1 and HS.1.1.4) related to the utilization of CPTED principles early on in 
design review to identify ways to increase safety. Additionally, the City’s adopted 
Economic Development Strategy contains Major Initiative 5, which is centered around 
development capacity and placemaking, and includes activities such as promoting 
placemaking initiatives and funding revitalization within special focus areas. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
Examples of CPTED and Façade Improvement Programs 
There are numerous jurisdictions in California that have established CPTED grant/rebate 
programs. These programs offer financial incentives for improvements that align with 
CPTED principles such as upgraded security systems, improved lighting, installation of 
landscaping and after-market window treatments to prevent breakage.  
 
Many jurisdictions also have Facade Improvement grant/rebate programs. These 
programs encourage property owners and businesses to enhance the external 
appearance of their buildings and storefronts by completing improvement projects such 
as exterior painting, new signage, and installation/upgrade of facia, canopies, awnings or 
parapets. Businesses with buildings that accurately reflect their character and are visually 
appealing attract more customers. Commercial districts can create a sense of place by 
reflecting unique styles of small business owners, drawing in local residents and outsiders 
as customers. Storefront improvements can enhance visual appeal of businesses on a 
modest budget and bring investment into disinvested neighborhoods. 
 
Although they share some similarities in their goals of promoting quality of life, it is 
important to note that CPTED and façade improvement programs are distinct from each 
other. CPTED programs are typically managed by a jurisdiction’s Police Department, in 
coordination with other Departments, and focused on reducing the incidence of crime. 
Façade improvement programs are typically managed by a jurisdiction’s Economic 
Development Department and focused on supporting broader economic development 
goals.  
 
In researching this topic, staff discovered some jurisdictions that have merged their 
CPTED program with a Facade Improvement program to enhance the appearance of 
properties as an economic development strategy, while simultaneously promoting 
building security and safety in line with CPTED principles. Some examples of different 
communities’ CPTED and Façade Improvement Programs are provided in Table 1. 
 


Table 1: Examples of CPTED and Façade Improvement Grant/Rebate Programs  


CPTED Grant/Rebate Program Examples: 


 City of Sacramento1 offers a Security Rebate Program and provides rebates of 
up to $4,000 per cannabis facility/premise for the purchase of new or upgrade of 


 
1 https://www.cityofsacramento.org/-/media/Corporate/Files/CMO/Cannabis/Security-Rebate-Request-
Form-V5-111822--Fillable.pdf  


215 of 273



https://www.cityofsacramento.org/-/media/Corporate/Files/CMO/Cannabis/Security-Rebate-Request-Form-V5-111822--Fillable.pdf

https://www.cityofsacramento.org/-/media/Corporate/Files/CMO/Cannabis/Security-Rebate-Request-Form-V5-111822--Fillable.pdf





 


 


its existing security equipment to reinforce the security around cannabis facilities 
and increase local compliance. 


 City of San Rafael2 offers a mini-grant program that funds projects at local 
business that propose viable, long-term solutions to address illegal dumping on 
public and private property and/or overall crime reduction for the property. An 
awardee can receive up to $1,000 for equipment/materials deemed appropriate 
for CPTED. 


 City of Riverside3 offers a Safety and Security Program to local business to assist 
with costs involved with improving safety and security. An awardee can receive 
up to $10,000 with no matching requirement. Eligible upgrades to businesses 
include improved lighting in parking lots and alleyways; improved landscaping 
and fencing and video camera systems. 


Façade Improvement Grant Program Examples: 


 City of Alameda4 offers a Façade Grant Program that provides business and 
property owners with matching grants to improve their storefronts and enhance 
the city’s retail districts. Under the Façade Grant Program, business and 
property owners may be eligible for 50:50 matching grants for exterior painting, 
new awnings and signs, and refurbishment of architectural features. Three levels 
of grant funding are available. Level one offers a maximum grant amount of 50% 
of the awardee’s cost up to $5,000 for signage and awnings.  Level two offers a 
maximum grant amount of 50% of the awardee’s cost up to $10,000 for paint 
and signage that is historic, large-scale, neon or marquee style. Level three 
offers a maximum grant amount of 50% of the awardee’s cost up to $15,000 for 
any level one or two improvements plus the restoration/refurbishment of 
architectural elements such as transom windows, cornices, trim and other 
architectural details.      


 City of Carson5 offers a Commercial Façade Improvement Program to improve 
storefronts and attract new visitors to major commercial corridors. Under the 
Commercial Façade Improvement Program, tenants and/or property owners 
may qualify for a reimbursement grant of $2,500 to $25,000 for storefront 
aesthetic improvements. A dollar-for-dollar matching is required for amounts 
over $2,500. For owners of multi-tenant centers, the maximum grant is $250,000 
based on a total expenditure of no less than $497,500 on eligible exterior 
improvements (subject to additional requirements). 


 City of Dublin6 offers a Commercial Façade Improvement Grant Program to 
leverage public funds and private investment to enhance the physical 
appearance and economic vitality of commercial businesses in specific areas. 
Eligible improvements include construction of outdoor dining/gathering spaces, 
exterior painting, removal of old signs/awnings, installation of new lighting, etc. 


 
2 https://www.cityofsanrafael.org/crime-prevention-through-environmental-design-mini-grant/  
3 https://riversideca.gov/press/apply-now-police-department%E2%80%99s-safety-security-program-grant  
4 https://www.alamedaca.gov/files/assets/public/v/1/departments/alameda/econ-dev-amp-comm-
services/public-art/fy-2023-24-facade-grant-program-guidelines-7-14-23.pdf  
5 https://ci.carson.ca.us/CommunityDevelopment/CommercialFacade.aspx  
6 https://www.dublin.ca.gov/DocumentCenter/View/1712/Facade-Improvement-Grant-Program-
Guidelines-PDF?bidId=  


216 of 273



https://www.cityofsanrafael.org/crime-prevention-through-environmental-design-mini-grant/

https://riversideca.gov/press/apply-now-police-department%E2%80%99s-safety-security-program-grant

https://www.alamedaca.gov/files/assets/public/v/1/departments/alameda/econ-dev-amp-comm-services/public-art/fy-2023-24-facade-grant-program-guidelines-7-14-23.pdf

https://www.alamedaca.gov/files/assets/public/v/1/departments/alameda/econ-dev-amp-comm-services/public-art/fy-2023-24-facade-grant-program-guidelines-7-14-23.pdf

https://ci.carson.ca.us/CommunityDevelopment/CommercialFacade.aspx

https://www.dublin.ca.gov/DocumentCenter/View/1712/Facade-Improvement-Grant-Program-Guidelines-PDF?bidId=

https://www.dublin.ca.gov/DocumentCenter/View/1712/Facade-Improvement-Grant-Program-Guidelines-PDF?bidId=





 


 


An awardee can receive up to $5,000 (no match) or $75,000 (applicant - 33% 
match) as well as up to a maximum of ten hours of architectural fees or five hours 
of design assistance to help cover design costs.  


 City of Long Beach7 offers a Commercial Corridor Façade Improvement 
Program that provides, in grant form, up to $25,000 per storefront for buildings 
with multiple tenant spaces and freestanding commercial buildings, with a single 
tenant. The cost for a multi-tenant building may not exceed $175,000. The 
Program doesn’t require matching funds from the participants. Eligible façade 
improvements (not limited to) include painting, awnings, signage, lighting, 
address plaques and removal/relocation of security bars (requires other exterior 
enhancements) and/or artwork.  


 City of Oakland8 offers a Façade and Tenant Improvement Program to improve 
the exterior and interior of commercial properties. An awardee can receive up to 
$25,000 with no match required. The program offers projects with additional 
costs over $25,000 to be reimbursed at 50% up to $30,000 (façade improvement 
only), $45,000 (Tenant Improvement Program), $75,000 (combined Façade 
Improvement and Tenant Improvement). Examples of eligible projects include 
interior and exterior paint, signage, landscaping, exterior lighting, permit fees, 
design work, ADA compliance and hazardous materials abatement. 


 City of Pismo Beach9 offers a Façade Improvement Rebate Program for 
commercial businesses in the City’s commercial areas to receive up to $5,000 
in matching reimbursement funds for pedestrian scale amenities that enhance 
the businesses “curb appeal. Eligible improvements include exterior decorative 
features visible from the street, such as paint, façade treatment, signage, fascia, 
canopies, awnings, parapets, and screening of roof-mounted equipment. 


 City of Roseville10 offers a Façade Improvement Rebate Program that provides 
financial assistance to cover the cost of materials and City permit fees, in the 
form of a rebate, to property and business owners committed to enhancing the 
aesthetic of their buildings and overall appearance of the downtown. An awardee 
can receive a minimum of $1,000 and a maximum of $10,000 for projects that 
enhance the exterior of a building and add value to the location. Eligible projects 
include signs, awnings, paint, lighting, tile and landscaping. 


 City of Hayward11 offers a Façade Improvement Program to visually improve 
storefronts and enhance prominent business locations in order to support 
businesses to recover from COVID disruptions by driving customers back to the 
businesses. 


 
 
 


 
7 https://www.longbeach.gov/lbds/hn/ccfip/  
8 https://www.oaklandca.gov/resources/ftip-program  
9 https://pismobeach.org/978/Faade-Improvement-Rebate-Program  
10 
https://www.roseville.ca.us/government/departments/economic_development/downtown_roseville_facade
_improvement  
11 https://www.hayward-ca.gov/your-government/programs/fa%C3%A7ade-improvement-program  


217 of 273



https://www.longbeach.gov/lbds/hn/ccfip/

https://www.oaklandca.gov/resources/ftip-program

https://pismobeach.org/978/Faade-Improvement-Rebate-Program

https://www.roseville.ca.us/government/departments/economic_development/downtown_roseville_facade_improvement

https://www.roseville.ca.us/government/departments/economic_development/downtown_roseville_facade_improvement

https://www.hayward-ca.gov/your-government/programs/fa%C3%A7ade-improvement-program





 


 


Combined CPTED and Façade Improvement Rebate/Grant Program Examples: 


 City of Campbell River (BC, Canada)12 offers a Downtown CPTED and Façade 
Improvement Program to promote downtown revitalization by encouraging 
investment in safety and crime prevention within a primary downtown shopping 
area. An awardee can receive up to 50% of the cost of eligible improvements or 
CPTED interventions (up to $10,000 per building). 


 City of Escondido13 offers a Small Business Improvement Grant Program which 
provides funding for façade improvements and/ or CPTED property 
enhancements. An awardee requesting funding for façade improvements can 
receive a grant up to $15,000, or 50% of the project, whichever comes first. An 
awardee requesting funding for CPTED property enhancements can receive a 
grant of up to $7,500 maximum or up to 50% of the project, whichever comes 
first. Eligible improvements for the façade improvement funding could include 
new windows, painting, masonry, siding, doors, awnings, and/or structural or 
design changes. Eligible improvements for CPTED property enhancements 
could include new lighting, increase lines of sight/visibility from the street and 
securing trash enclosures. 


 City of Eureka14 offers a Façade Improvement Rebate and CPTED Grant 
Program which provides funding for projects intended to improve the 
appearance of commercial buildings while promoting building security for 
businesses through the use of rebates for costs associated with improvements 
to building exterior. An awardee can receive a rebate of up to 25% of the total 
costs of approved façade improvements up to a maximum of $10,000 plus 100% 
of the costs of CPTED eligible security improvements up to a maximum of 
$2,500. Eligible improvements for the façade improvement funding could include 
exterior painting, decorative façade treatment, signage, facia canopies, awnings, 
parapets, screening of roof-mounted equipment visible from street and 
landscaping. Eligible improvements for CPTED property enhancements could 
include landscaping/planter, exterior lighting, security camera system, and after-
market window treatments to prevent breakage. 


 
Program Design/Components 
Table 2 on the following page provides some guidance, gleaned from staff research, on 
development of a CPTED and/or Façade Improvement Grant/Rebate Program. 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
12 https://www.campbellriver.ca/docs/default-source/planning-building-development/application-forms-
guidlines/faq_final.pdf?sfvrsn=9e6c6f08_0  
13 https://www.escondido.org/Data/Sites/1/media/images/FACADE/BusinessGrantNOFA1.pdf  
14 https://www.eurekaca.gov/DocumentCenter/View/824/Facade-Improvement-Rebate-Program-
PDF?bidId=  


218 of 273



https://www.campbellriver.ca/docs/default-source/planning-building-development/application-forms-guidlines/faq_final.pdf?sfvrsn=9e6c6f08_0

https://www.campbellriver.ca/docs/default-source/planning-building-development/application-forms-guidlines/faq_final.pdf?sfvrsn=9e6c6f08_0

https://www.escondido.org/Data/Sites/1/media/images/FACADE/BusinessGrantNOFA1.pdf

https://www.eurekaca.gov/DocumentCenter/View/824/Facade-Improvement-Rebate-Program-PDF?bidId=

https://www.eurekaca.gov/DocumentCenter/View/824/Facade-Improvement-Rebate-Program-PDF?bidId=





 


 


Table 2: CPTED/Façade Improvement Program Development Components and 
Considerations 


Component Purpose Considerations 


 


Program 
Goals 
 


Sets the stage 
for the program 
by determining 
the key focus. 


Is the primary goal to reduce crime? Is 
it about beautification and business 
support? Or is it about both?  
 
 
 


 


Participant 
Eligibility 
 


Defines who the 
eligible 
grantees are 
and sets 
standards for 
making award 
decisions. 


How will BIPOC-owned businesses 
(or other businesses with 
barriers/gaps that might limit 
participation) be prioritized? Consider 
setting a target for how much funding 
should be invested in this particular 
demographic. 
 
Will there be requirements around 
how long a business has been in 
operation (targeting “legacy” 
businesses versus startups)? An 
equal focus on both may attract new 
business while retaining older legacy 
business. 
 
Are property owners and small 
business tenants both eligible? 
Property owners may have more liquid 
cash for larger-scale projects, but 
storefront improvement can be a 
valuable attraction and retention tool 
for businesses. 
 
Will the program focus on small 
business, and if so, how is small 
business defined (less than 10 
employees?) 
 
Will there be businesses that are 
excluded, such as national franchises, 
home-based businesses, storefronts 
that do not face the public-right-of 
way? 
 


219 of 273







 


 


Component Purpose Considerations 


 


Geographic 
area 
 


Determine the 
priority target 
area eligible for 
grant funds 


Are there areas that have a history of 
disinvestment that could benefit from 
the program? Conversely, are there 
areas that have higher rates of crime 
that should be prioritized first?  
 
A windshield survey of commercial 
Areas could be considered to identify 
areas with a high concentration of 
buildings in disrepair and better 
understand local needs.  
 
A concentration of improved 
storefronts along one or two 
commercial corridors may have a 
more visible impact in the community 
than projects spread over a large 
area. Once there is a critical mass in 
a small area, the program can 
expand. 
 


 


Eligible 
Activities 
 


Decide what 
activities can be 
covered by 
grant funds and 
what activities 
are ineligible 


Will funds be eligible for external 
repairs only, or is any work on the 
interior of the business allowable?  
Specify eligible uses such as 
contractor materials and labor, and 
non-eligible uses such as equipment, 
business overhead or employee 
salaries. Are there amenities like bike 
racks, street furniture or planters that 
are eligible if part of a larger storefront 
project? 
 
Improvements must align with design 
priorities set by the program. Best 
design practices in façade 
improvement programs across the 
country include simple signage, 
keeping windows clear of obstructions 
and uncovering historic building 
details. 
 
How long will successful applicants 
have to complete their project? Three 
months? Six months? How often can 


220 of 273







 


 


Component Purpose Considerations 


an applicant apply? Can they apply for 
multiple projects at once? 
 
Similar to other programs, will 
awardees be exempt from planning 
and building permit fees (with 
exception of fees mandated by the 
State of California including, but not 
limited to, the Strong Motion 
Instrument program fee and the 
California Green Building fees)? 


 


Process 
 


Design a 
process for 
sharing 
program 
information, 
receiving 
applications, 
making funding 
decisions, 
distributing 
money, 
completing 
projects and 
following up 
with awardees 


How will applicants submit their 
information? Will they apply on paper 
or online? Consider the digital access 
and language needs for businesses in 
the area to ensure equitable access to 
the opportunity. 
 
What are the deadlines? How often 
applications be accepted? (On a 
rolling basis? Annually?) 
 
Who will collect and review 
applications? Who will make decisions 
about funding awards and amounts? 
Will the program lead be solely 
responsible for this or will there be a 
committee? If the latter, what are the 
parameters for when and how often 
they meet and how they make 
decisions? 
 
How will grants be paid? What 
documentation will be required to 
process grantee payments (e.g. 
detailed receipts, photographs, etc.) 
Will the City write physical checks or 
transfer funds? Will applicants access 
a portion of their funds upfront or on a 
reimbursement basis? 
 
Will the City connect participating 
businesses with local technical 
assistance providers? This support 
can help business owners plan their 


221 of 273







 


 


Component Purpose Considerations 


grant activities and improve their 
capacity to carry them out. 
 
What will be required of grantees 
beyond the initial application? Will 
they need to submit reports on their 
activities? What will the reports entail? 
 
Identify if, due to the source of City-
funding, applicants would be 
required to pay prevailing wage.  


 


Program 
Management 
 


Decide who in 
the City will fill 
various roles in 
running the 
program. 


Who will be the program lead? The 
program lead will need to spend 
significant time working one-on-one 
with businesses, managing program 
implementation and helping manage 
contractors and designers. 
 
Who will be in charge of application 
intake? The intake partner will need to 
promote and field initial interest in the 
program, help to assess eligibility, and 
acquire bids and other required 
materials from applicants. In some 
cases, this person may even assist 
businesses with writing their 
applications. 
 
Consider the time and effort it will take 
to run the program. Participants will 
vary in their experience. Some may 
have never worked with an architect 
or designer, completed a construction 
project or navigated local permitting 
and code requirements. They may 
require significant hands-on 
assistance. 


 


Budget 
 


The budget will 
be defined 
based on the 
overall goal of 
the program 
and the number 
of anticipated 
participants 


All costs including grant funding as 
well as the costs of running the 
program, such as administration, 
communications, outreach, technical 
assistance and design. 
 
Appropriate grant/rebate amounts, 
consider the overall program goals, 


222 of 273







 


 


Component Purpose Considerations 


the types of improvements applicants 
will be making and the cost of 
materials and labor. What can a 
business do with $2,000 versus 
$10,000? 
 
If applicants will be required to match 
grant funds. For CPTED programs 
alone, the best practice appears to be 
not requiring matching funds. The best 
practice in façade improvement 
initiatives is to include a match 
requirement. By contributing some of 
their own capital, businesses have a 
stake in making sure the project is 
completed on time. Some programs 
require a 50% match and some as low 
as 10%.  


 
NEXT STEPS 
Depending on Council’s interest and goals, the following may be considered by the 
Council as next steps: 


• Identify a set of goals and program area and direct staff to return with a draft 
program structure 


• Work with the City’s new grant writing consulting firm, Townsend PA, to identify 
grant funding opportunities that could support, implement and administer a CPTED 
or Façade Improvement Program 


• Explore a combined CPTED/façade improvement program during the 
implementation of the placemaking activities in the Economic Development 
Strategy 


 
FISCAL IMPACT 


There is no fiscal impact to receiving this report. 
 
If the Council decides to move forward with developing a CPTED and/or Façade 
Improvement Program staff will develop a recommended budget after receiving program 
parameter direction. For the Council’s information, program budget specifics from each 
of the example jurisdictions in Table 1 are provided on the next page in Table 3. 
 
Table 3: Example Jurisdiction’s Program Budgets* 


Jurisdiction  
(2021 
Population 
Size) 


Total 
Budget for 
Grants 


Source of 
Funding 


Max Grant Funding 
Per Business 
(number of grants) 


Cost to 
Administer  


Sacramento Research pending 


223 of 273







 


 


Jurisdiction  
(2021 
Population 
Size) 


Total 
Budget for 
Grants 


Source of 
Funding 


Max Grant Funding 
Per Business 
(number of grants) 


Cost to 
Administer  


(525,0410 


Riverside 
(317,261) 


$1,000,000 
total 


ARPA $10,000 max per 
business  
 
(100 grants 
anticipated over life 
of program) 


Administered 
as a part of the 
overall ARPA  
administration/ 
monitoring  for 
City 


San Rafael 
(60,769) 


$10,000 
annually 


Marin 
Sanitary 
Service rates 


$1,000 max  
 
(5-7 grants annually) 


Undetermined; 
program is a 
part of a larger 
program 
contracted out 
to administer  


Alameda 
(76,362) 


$125,000 
annually 


General 
Fund (was 
previously 
funded by 
movie ticket 
sales) 


$15,000 matching 
grant  
 
(20-25 grants 
anticipated annually) 


0.25 FTE 


Carson 
(93,535) 


Research pending 


Dublin  
(71,674) 


$70,000 
annually 


General 
Fund 


$75,000 (applicant - 
33% match) 
 
(1-2 granted 
annually) 


Administered 
as a part of the 
Economic 
Development 
function of City 


Long Beach  
(456,062) 


$1,000,000 
total 


HUD CDBG $25,000 per 
storefront and 
$175,000 per parcel; 
no matching 
requirements  
 
(40 grants 
anticipated over life 
of program) 


Research 
pending 


Oakland 
(433,823) 


Research pending 


Pismo Beach 
(8,036) 


Research pending 


Roseville 
(151,901) 


$100,000 
annually 


Economic 
Developmen
t Department 


$10,000 maximum  
 


$0; City staff 
contributed in 
kind services to 


224 of 273







 


 


Jurisdiction  
(2021 
Population 
Size) 


Total 
Budget for 
Grants 


Source of 
Funding 


Max Grant Funding 
Per Business 
(number of grants) 


Cost to 
Administer  


($50k) and 
Downtown 
Roseville 
Partnership 
($59k) 


(9 grants to date, 
$23k remains in 
budget) 


assist with 
implementation 
of the program, 
anticipated 50 
hours; grants 
administered in 
partnership 
with the 
Downtown 
Roseville 
Partnership 


Campbell 
River (BC, 
Canada) 
(35,138) 


 Partnership 
between City 
and 
Downtown 
Business 
Improvement 
Association 


Up to $10,000 
maximum match 


Grants 
administered 
by the 
Downtown 
Business 
Improvement 
Association 


Escondido 
(150,665) 


$500,000 ARPA 7,500 maximum or up 
to 50% of the project, 
whichever comes first 


Research 
pending 


Eureka 
(26,489) 


$150,000 
total 


General 
Fund 


Maximum of 75% 
maximum up to 
($10,000)-façade 
improvement; 100% 
of CPTED costs up to 
$2,500  
 
(20 grants to date) 


Research 
pending 


*Some research is still pending, as noted in the table 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 


None 


225 of 273







CITY COUNCIL 


REPORT 12B 


DATE: SEPTEMBER 19, 2023 


TO: MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 


FROM: HEATHER BELL, CITY CLERK 


SUBJECT: OVERVIEW OF CITY BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 


RECOMMENDATION 


Staff recommends that the City Council receive a report on the City’s boards and 
commissions and provide direction. 


BACKGROUND 


At its meeting of January 18, 2022 the City Council approved a future Council agenda 
item to receive information on the City’s boards and commissions, consider whether to 
provide a stipend to their members, and to review the authority and scope of each body. 


The City of Pinole has established several boards and commissions in its history to advise 
the City Council, advise City staff, and aide with City administration. This type of standing 
advisory body, comprised of volunteer residents who undergo an application process and 
are formally appointed by the City Council are referred to generally as “Boards and 
Commissions” in municipalities, although they can sometimes be named a “Committee” 
(i.e. TAPS and EDHAC). 


The City’s currently active and inactive boards and commissions are listed below. 


Active 


• Community Services Commission


• Planning Commission


• Traffic and Pedestrian Safety Committee (TAPS)


Inactive 


• Cable Television Access Commission


• Commission on Aging


• Design Review Board


• Economic Development and Advisory Housing Committee (EDHAC)


• Human Relations Commission


• Youth Commission


226 of 273







City Council Report  
September 19, 2023  2 


 
The following is a summary of each active and inactive body with details related to when 
and under what authority they were created, membership, terms, meeting times and 
scopes of work.   
 
As is common with Boards and Commissions, some of these volunteer bodies were 
dissolved because they were no longer needed, or become inactive or “sunsetted”. This 
can occur due to changes in staff capacity, City priorities or other reasons, as cited below. 
 
Included as attachments to this report are the ordinances, resolutions and bylaws related 
to the creation and governance of each body.  Boards and commissions rely on these 
guiding documents that inform their activity and relationship to City Council and staff.   
 


Active Commissions: 
 
Community Services Commission  
Codified in the Pinole Municipal Code, Chapter 2.36 
Created in 1958 
By: Ordinance 2008-01 and Resolution 2008-34 
 
Membership: 7 Member Body - Pinole Residents Appointed by the City Council  
Terms:  2 Years 
Meetings:  4th Wednesday of Each Month at 5:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers 
 
Role and Scope of Work 
The Commission serves in an advisory capacity to the City Council in matters pertaining 
to public recreation, parks, arts and cultural activities, historical activities, public access 
television activities, senior and youth activities, and community services. The Commission 
reviews and recommends policies and procedures governing recreation, park and 
community services for approval by the City Council; maintains relationships with schools, 
community and civic organizations; advocates for recreation and community services for 
the community; and collaborates with civic clubs, nonprofit organizations and citizen 
groups to provide funds, property and or volunteerism for the development and operation 
of parks and recreation facilities. 
 
Note:  The Community Services Commission was formally known as the Parks and Recreation Commission which was 


eliminated in 1988 due to a loss of funding generated by the Utilities Users Tax.  Ordinance 2008-01 repealed Chapter 


2.36 "Parks and Recreation Commission of the Pinole Municipal Code” and added Chapter 2.36 “Community Services 


Commission” (04/15/2008).  Resolution 2008-34 (03/04/2008)  was adopted and established the Community 


Services Commission. 


 
Planning Commission 
Codified in the Pinole Municipal Code, Chapter 2.40 
Created in 1958  
By: Ordinance 115   
 


227 of 273







City Council Report  
September 19, 2023  3 


Membership: 7 Member Body – Pinole Residents Appointed by the City Council 
Terms: 3 or 4 years 
Meetings: 4th Monday Each Month at 7:00p.m. and As Needed, in the Council Chambers 
 
Role and Scope of Work 
The Planning Commission assists with the preparation, adoption and maintenance of a 
long-range, General Plan for the physical growth and development of the city and areas 
related directly to the city. The General Plan shall reflect the future goals of the city after 
its adoption by the City Council and shall represent the city's policy on matters of physical 
development. It shall guide the general location of future public facilities and 
improvements and aid in the encouragement and regulation of private development.  
The Commission is considered quasi-judicial as it makes some standing decisions 
independent of the City Council as well as being advisory to it.  The City Council is the 
appellate body for decisions made by the Planning Commission and ultimately holds the 
final authority. 
 
Traffic and Pedestrian Safety Committee 
Created in 2007 
By: Resolution 2007-14 (Later superseded by Resolution 2007-61) 
 
Membership: 5 Member Body – Residents Appointed by the City Council 
Terms:  2 Years 
Meetings: 2nd Wednesday of Every Month at 6:00p.m. in the Council Chambers 
 
Role and Scope of Work 
The Pinole Traffic and Pedestrian Safety Committee recommends or reviews action on 
traffic safety, traffic control and planning, speed limits, parking and other traffic related 
matters. The committee makes recommendations to the City Council. 
 
 
 


Inactive Board and Commissions 
 
Cable Television Access Commission 
Codified in the Pinole Municipal Code, Chapter 2.58 
Created in 1997 
By:  Ordinance 97-112 
 
Membership:  5 Member Body – Pinole Residents Appointed by the City Council 
Terms: 2 Years 
 
Role and Scope of Work 
To provide a venue for city-wide planning, operation and coordination for individuals and 
groups wishing to use the cable access channel.  To advise the Pinole City Council on 
the channel's operation.  To give advice to station staff relative to management of the 
station.  To give advice and provide direction concerning program production for the 


228 of 273







City Council Report  
September 19, 2023  4 


station.  To review, define and recommend an annual budget for station operation. To 
assure that no censorship or control over program content for the channel exists, except 
as necessary to comply with Federal Communications Commission regulations 
concerning obscene material; to prohibit commercial advertising and lotteries from 
channel usage.   To assure that the channel is available to all residents of the city on a 
nondiscriminatory, first-come, first-served basis.  To administer all rules, regulations and 
procedures pertaining to the use and scheduling of the channel and to devise and 
establish such rules, regulations and procedures as necessary.  To prepare and/or 
review reports to the City Council, as necessary.  To review potential station purchases 
of materials and equipment to ensure compliance with the adopted budget.  To 
investigate additional sources of funding to further community programming, either 
through grants or donations.  To perform other functions related to the station/channel 
as appropriate. 
 
 
Commission on Aging 
Codified in the Pinole Municipal Code, Chapter 2.38 
Created: 1991 
By: Ordinance 540 
 
Membership: 7 Member Body - Pinole Residents Appointed by the City Council  
Terms:  3 Years 
 
Role and Scope of Work 
To act in an advisory capacity to the City Council and the City Manager in all matters 
pertaining to the senior center, senior activities and planning, cooperation and 
coordination for individuals and groups interested in improving and developing services 
and opportunities for the older residents of this city.  To provide leadership and 
advocacy on behalf of older persons and serve as a channel of communication and 
information on aging.  To advise the Pinole City Council on the county area plan based 
on the needs and priorities of older persons as may be determined by surveys of senior 
citizen groups and other organizations and to hold such public hearings as may be 
deemed advisable.  To continually evaluate the progress and accomplishments of the 
senior center and to prepare a report for evaluation at the annual meeting of the 
commission in May.  To prepare and recommend to the City Council adoption of a long 
range, comprehensive master plan for the growth, development and implementation of 
the Pinole Senior Center.  To prepare a proposed budget for each fiscal year to be 
reviewed by the City Council for approval. 
 
Sunsetted:  1998 – A portion of this scope of work is now addressed by the Pinole Senior 
Center Board of Directors.  Its membership is not appointed by the City Council. 
 
 
 
 
 


229 of 273







City Council Report  
September 19, 2023  5 


Design Review Board 
Created:1972 
By: City Council Resolution 843 (Superseded by City Council Resolution 1374 on 
January, 16,1978.  City Council Resolution 1374 was repealed and replaced in its entirety 
on February 6, 2001) 
 
Membership: 5 Member Body - Pinole Residents Appointed by the City Council 
Terms:  2 Years, Maximum 
 
Role and Scope of Work 
Make recommendations to the Planning Commission on all projects subject to design 
review as regulated by the Zoning Ordinance and any other projects referred by the 
Planning Commission and/or the City Council. 
 
Dissolved:  The Design Review Board was officially dissolved on May 20, 2008 by City 
Council Resolution 2008-78 
 
 
Economic Development and Advisory Housing Committee 
Created:  2008 
By: City Council Resolution 2008-308 and Redevelopment Agency Resolution 14-2008 
 
Membership:  9 Member Body  
Terms:  2 Year Terms (4 members) and 3 Year Terms (5 members) 
 
Role and Scope of Work 
The advisory body was designed to recommend policies and actions to improve the 
economic vitality and livability of Pinole and enhance pubic participation in crafting these 
recommendations. The role of the EDHAC was to take action and to provide 
recommendations to the City Council/RDA  which accomplish the following goals:  
a. Stimulate economic development in Pinole.  
b. Better manage Redevelopment Agency assets.  
c. Foster better public private partnerships.  
d. Enhance public participation and understanding of redevelopment and economic 
development. e. Invest in quality programs and projects that enhance the supply of 
affordable housing. 
 
Dissolved: March, 6, 2012 by Council action. This Committee was closed following the 
dissolution of the Redevelopment agency as it no longer had a charge or tasks. 
 
Human Relations Commission 
Codified in the Pinole Municipal Code, Chapter 2.56 
Created:1992 
By: Ordinance 557 
 
Membership: 7 Member Body - Pinole Residents Appointed by the City Council  


230 of 273







City Council Report  
September 19, 2023  6 


Terms:  4 Years 
Meetings:  4th Wednesday of Each Month at 5:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers 
 
Role and Scope of Work  
To develop positive human relations through education, encouragement of greater 
respect and understanding between people, their equal opportunity rights under the law 
and the recognition of the racial, ethnic, religious and cultural diversity of the Pinole 
community. The purpose of the human relations commission shall be to initiate 
educational and cultural programs, promote tolerance and mutual respect between all 
persons and evaluate and make recommendations regarding discrimination charges 
levied against the city, upon the direction of the Council. 
 
Youth Commission 
Created:  April 19, 1976  
By: Resolution 1207 
Reactivated in 1989 by City Council Resolution 2343 (Later Superseded by City Council 
Resolution 2535A, 3269 and 105-2001) 
 
Membership:  Up to 20 Youth Members Appointed at the Discretion of the City Council (3 
from Junior High School, 4 High School (one from each grade level, at minimum) 
 
Role and Scope of Work 
The primary duties of the Commission shall be to represent the youth of the City of Pinole, 
to review those municipal matters referred to it by the City Council and City staff, as well 
as to report its findings and recommendations to the City Council and staff.  The 
Commission may initiate proposals on its own motion to be forwarded to the City Council 
or staff for their consideration and action.   
 
Sunsetted – 2014 - Youth commission applications had decreased, and staff was looking 
to restructure to a Teen Committee rather than a Youth Commission. Staff would present 
this matter at a future meeting. Additional information on the restructure was not found. 
 
 
 
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 
Boards and Commissions can be a wonderful resource for City Staff and City Council.  By 
appointing resident volunteers to Boards and Commissions, the City has the opportunity 
to receive informed local input and collaborate with residents who have a vested interest 
in serving their hometown.  These residents offer their time on a volunteer basis; none of 
the board or commission positions currently provide a stipend to its members. 
 
Each body has a City staff person assigned to it so that there is oversight of the scope of 
work and assistance with meeting facilitation, agenda management and compliance with 
open meeting laws required for governing bodies such as the Ralph M. Brown Act. 
 


231 of 273







City Council Report  
September 19, 2023  7 


The City Council has the authority to create, dissolve or implement changes to City 
Boards & Commissions.  It may direct staff to work towards implementing changes to any 
of the active bodies, create new bodies, or review old bodies, as it sees appropriate. 
 
Staff is seeking direction from the City Council on the following questions: 
 


1) Would the Council like to consider providing a stipend to commission members? 
 


2) Would the Council like to refer the following inactive bodies that remain in the 
Municipal Code to the Municipal Code Ad Hoc Subcommittee for discussion of 
removal? 


 
Chapter 2.36 - Commission on the Aging 


Chapter 2.56 – Human Relations Commission 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 


 
There is no fiscal impact.  
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 


A. Community Services Commission 


B. Planning Commission 


C. Traffic and Pedestrian Safety Commission 


D. Cable Television Access Commission 


E. Commission on Aging 


F. Design Review Board 


G. Economic Development and Housing Advisory Committee 


H. Human Relations Commission 


I. Youth Commission 


232 of 273







Chapter 2.36


COMMUNITY SERVICES COMMISSION*


*   For statutory provisions regarding community recreation, see Education Code § 16651 et seq.


Sections:


   2.36.010   Creation – Membership.


   2.36.020   Election of officers – Meetings.


   2.36.030   Duties.


   2.36.040   Powers.


2.36.010 CREATION – MEMBERSHIP.


   A.   There is created a community services commission ("commission") whose members shall meet the following
requirements:


      1.   Residence in the city of Pinole;


      2.   Interest in and commitment to the importance and value of community services as well as parks and recreation,
including prior experience in community projects or activities; and


      3.   Ability to take an active role in commission meetings and projects.


   B.   Commission members shall be appointed as follows: Seven (7) regular members to be appointed by the city council
after first being nominated by the mayor.


   C.   Regular members of the commission shall serve for a period of two (2) years. The first members to be appointed shall,
at the commission's first meeting, classify members by lot that four (4) shall serve for two (2) years, and three (3) shall serve
for three (3) years. Terms of office shall expire on the first day of July of each year.


   D.   To aid the city council in selecting members for appointment, the commission may recommend qualified and
interested persons eligible for appointment and reappointment for each vacancy to be filled.


   E.   A vacancy shall be deemed to exist whenever a member dies, his or her term expires, he or she resigns, or he or she
is removed by the city council. A vacancy shall be filled for the unexpired term in the manner provided for original
appointment.


   F.   The city council, by a majority vote, may remove a commission member when that member is absent from three (3)
regular commission meetings within a period of one (1) year except when excused by permission of the commission. (Ord.
2008-01 § 2(part), 2008)


2.36.020 ELECTION OF OFFICERS – MEETINGS.


   A.   At its first regular meeting each July, the members of the commission shall meet in regular session and elect from their
members a chair and vice chair, whose duties shall be set forth in the bylaws. Officers shall hold office for one (1) year or
until their successors are elected.


   B.   The commission shall adopt rules and regulations to govern procedure and shall, by vote, set a time for regular
meetings which will be held at least once each month and shall determine the manner in which special meetings may be
held and the notice given. A majority of the regular members shall constitute a quorum.


   C.   Minutes of commission meetings shall be filed with the city clerk. (Ord. 2008-01 § 2(part), 2008)


2.36.030 DUTIES. 


   The duties of the commission shall include:


   A.   Principal advisor to the city council, recreation director, city manager and other boards, commissions, and city
departments in all matters pertaining to public recreation, parks, arts and cultural activities, historical activities, public access
television activities, senior and youth activities and community services;


   B.   Review and recommend policies and procedures governing recreation, park and community services for approval by
the city council;


   C.   Support and nurture relationships with schools, community and civic organizations;


   D.   Advocate for recreation and community services and liaison for improving the quality of life and recreational
opportunities for the community of Pinole;


   E.   Collaborate with individuals, civic clubs, nonprofit organizations and citizen groups to provide funds, property and/or
volunteerism for the development and operation of parks and recreation facilities. 233 of 273







   F.   Serve as a forum in introducing innovative and new ideas, concepts, programs, policies and procedures. (Ord. 2008-01
§ 2(part), 2008)


2.36.040 POWERS.


   The powers of the commission shall include:


   A.   The commission may establish sub-committees as deemed necessary. Appointment of sub-committee members will
be made by the chair. Sub-committees will be appointed either for single task force assignments or as an ongoing standing
sub-committee.


   B.   Commission will make recommendations to the city council, as approved by a majority of the commission. The
recreation director will present the committee's a report within sixty (60) days.


   C.   The commission bears no oversight authority over any city department, personnel, consultant or commission. The
commission has no authority to bind the city to any contractual agreements and may not, without authority, make any
decisions on behalf of the city. The committee's recommendations shall be advisory to the city council.


   D.   Commission shall establish annual goals and action plan consistent with city council policies and direction.


   E.   Members of the commission shall not participate, in any manner, or vote, except to abstain, upon any matter in which
they knowingly may have a conflict of interest. When commissioners determine they have a conflict of interest, a public
declaration to the effect shall be made or they may choose to absent themselves from that particular hearing. No member
shall act for any petitioner or applicant in any case before the commission. (Ord. 2008-01 § 2(part), 2008)


234 of 273







Chapter 2.40


PLANNING COMMISSION*


*   For statutory provisions on local planning commissions, see Gov. Code § 65100 et seq.


Sections:


   2.40.010   Membership.


   2.40.020   Election of officers – Meetings.


   2.40.030   Duties and procedures.


2.40.010 MEMBERSHIP.


   A.   There is hereby established a city planning commission for the City of Pinole. The commission shall consist of seven
(7) members who shall be appointed by the majority of the City Council. Appointed members shall serve staggered terms
effective May 1 as follows: Three (3) members shall serve a four (4)-year term expiring on even years and four (4) members
shall serve four (4) years expiring on odd years. Vacancies in which the member has not fulfilled their term shall be filled with
the newly appointed commissioners serving the remainder of the term of the vacant position.


   B.   Commission members shall serve at the pleasure of the City Council and may be removed at any time by a majority
vote of the entire City Council.


   C.   A vacancy in the office of commission member is deemed to exist whenever a member dies, his/her term expires,
he/she resigns, is removed or as otherwise provided by applicable law. A vacancy shall be filled for the unexpired term in the
manner provided for original appointment. Notwithstanding any provisions to the contrary herein, appointments made to fill
vacancies of unexpired terms shall become effective on the first Monday following the appointment.


   D.   All members shall serve without compensation, except that the Council may pay such expenses of the commission or
its members as the Council deems necessary. No person shall be appointed to serve on the commission who holds any
salaried public office of employment with the city. (Ord. 2013-02 § 2, 2013: Ord. 2011-03 § 1, 2011: Ord. 01-104 § 1, 2001:
Ord. 341 § 2, 1976: Ord. 115 § 1, 1958).


2.40.020 ELECTION OF OFFICERS – MEETINGS. 


The Commission shall elect a Chairperson and Vice Chairperson from among the appointed members for a term of one (1)
year, subject to other provisions of law, and may elect such other officers as it may determine. Prior to December 31 of each
year, the Planning Commission shall approve a schedule of regular meeting dates, location and times for the coming year.
The commission shall adopt Robert's Rules of Order, Revised, for the transaction of business, and shall keep a record of its
decisions, resolutions, transactions, findings and determination, which shall be a public record. The commission may appoint
officers and employees and contract for services, subject to the provisions of law, provided that all expenditures for the
commission, exclusive of gifts, shall be within the amount appropriated for the purpose by the City Council. The City
Manager shall designate a Planning Commission Secretary to provide staff support to the Commission. (Ord. 2013-02 §2,
2013: Ord. 115 § 2, 1958).


2.40.030 DUTIES AND PROCEDURES. 


   A.   The commission shall determine the order of business for the conduct of its meetings and shall meet in such regular
sessions as its rules or procedure may provide. Special meetings may be called as needed by the Chairperson or a majority
of the Commission. Four (4) members shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. The commission shall have
all the powers and shall perform all the duties conferred and imposed upon city planning commissions by the applicable
provisions of the Government Code of the state of California and, in addition, the commission shall:


      1.   Assist with the preparation, adoption and maintenance of a long-range, General Plan for the physical growth and
development of the city and areas related directly to the city. The General Plan shall reflect the future goals of the city after
its adoption by the City Council and shall represent the city's policy on matters of physical development. It shall guide the
general location of future public facilities and improvements and aid in the encouragement and regulation of private
development;


      2.   Consider as authorized by state law, requests for the development, rebuilding and redevelopment of areas within the
city;


      3.   Serve as an advisory body to the City Council on matters related to the city growth and development and on such
other matters as may be requested by the City Council;


      4.   Review capital improvement projects submitted by the various departments of the city and recommend to the City
Council those that are in conformity with the General Plan;


      5.   Promote public interest in planning and encourage citizen participation in the implementing of the General Plan;


      6.   Study and make recommendations on all annexations to the city;
235 of 273







      7.   Review and comment on selected public works projects at the request of the City Council;


      8.   Consider and take action on all subdivision map requests;


      9.   Recommend on ordinances dealing with planning, street name changes, zoning, subdivisions, off-street parking, and
public facilities;


      10.   Consider and take action on land use entitlement requests as required by Title 17.


   B.   The commission, by its staff appointed secretary, shall keep and prepare minutes of all meetings of the commission
and shall forward copies thereof to each member of the Council.


   C.   The commission shall also determine reasonable rules for the attendance of its members and shall notify the Council
when any member of the commission fails to abide by such rules. (Ord. 2013-02 § 2, 2013: Ord. 115 § 3, 1958).


236 of 273







237 of 273







238 of 273







239 of 273







240 of 273







241 of 273







242 of 273







243 of 273







244 of 273







245 of 273







246 of 273







247 of 273







248 of 273







249 of 273







Chapter 2.58


CABLE TELEVISION ACCESS COMMISSION


Sections:


   2.58.010   Title for citation.


   2.58.020   Purpose.


   2.58.030   Membership.


   2.58.040   Appointment.


   2.58.050   Term.


   2.58.060   Powers and duties.


   2.58.070   Removal of members from office.


   2.58.080   Quorum.


   2.58.090   Officers.


2.58.010 TITLE FOR CITATION.  


   This chapter shall be known as the “Cable Television Access Commission Ordinance.” (Ord. 97-112 (part), 1997).


2.58.020 PURPOSE.  


   The purpose of this chapter shall be to establish a cable television access commission in the city to oversee the operations
and recommend policy for community cable access and for the day-to-day operation of the station. (Ord. 97-112 (part),
1997).


2.58.030 MEMBERSHIP. 


   The cable television access commission shall consist of five members who shall be residents of the city. (Ord. 97-112
(part), 1997).


2.58.040 APPOINTMENT. 


   Members of the commission shall be appointed by majority vote of the entire City Council . (Ord. 97-112 (part), 1997).


2.58.050 TERM.  


   Members shall be appointed for a two-year term. Terms shall expire on November 30th. (Ord. 97-112 (part), 1997).


2.58.060 POWERS AND DUTIES.  


   The cable television access commission shall have the responsibilities as provided in this section and such other powers
and duties as the Council may, from time to time, decide:


   A.   To provide a venue for city-wide planning, operation and coordination for individuals and groups wishing to use the
cable access channel;


   B.   To advise the Pinole City Council on the channel's operation;


   C.   To give advice to station staff relative to management of the station;


   D.   To give advice and provide direction concerning program production for the station;


   E.   To review, define and recommend an annual budget for station operation;


   F.   To assure that no censorship or control over program content for the channel exists, except as necessary to comply
with Federal Communications Commission regulations concerning obscene material; to prohibit commercial advertising and
lotteries from channel usage;


   G.   To assure that the channel is available to all residents of the city on a nondiscriminatory, first-come, first-served basis;


   H.   To administer all rules, regulations and procedures pertaining to the use and scheduling of the channel and to devise
and establish such rules, regulations and procedures as necessary;


   I.   To prepare and/or review reports to the City Council , as necessary;


   J.   To review potential station purchases of materials and equipment to ensure compliance with the adopted budget;


   K.   To investigate additional sources of funding to further community programming, either through grants or donations;
251 of 273







   L.   To perform other functions related to the station/channel as appropriate. (Ord. 97-112 (part), 1997).


2.58.070 REMOVAL OF MEMBERS FROM OFFICE.  


   Members of the cable television access commission serve at the pleasure of the City Council and may be removed from
office by a majority vote of the entire Council. (Ord. 97-112 (part), 1997).


2.58.080 QUORUM.  


   For purposes of transacting business, a quorum of the cable television access commission shall consist of a simple
majority of the membership. (Ord. 97-112 (part), 1997).


2.58.090 OFFICERS.  


   At the annual business meeting conducted in December each year, the members of the cable television access
commission shall select its officers. Conduct of commission business shall otherwise be governed by by-laws adopted by the
commission and approved by the City Council . (Ord. 97-112 (part), 1997).


252 of 273







Chapter 2.38


COMMISSION ON AGING


Sections:


   2.38.010   Creation – Membership.


   2.38.020   Officers – Rules and regulations.


   2.38.030   Duties.


2.38.010 CREATION – MEMBERSHIP.  


   A.   There is created a commission on aging consisting of seven members. These members shall be residents of the city
and shall be appointed by the mayor subject to the approval of the City Council . Of the members first appointed under this
chapter, three members shall be appointed for three years, two members shall be appointed for two years, and two
members shall be appointed for one year. Thereafter, members shall be appointed for a term of three years commencing on
the first Monday of May in the year in which the term begins.


   B.   Commission members shall serve at the pleasure of the City Council and may be removed at any time by a majority
vote of the entire City Council .


   C.   A vacancy in the office of commission member is deemed to exist whenever a member dies, his/her term expires,
he/she resigns or is removed. A vacancy shall be filled for the unexpired term in the manner provided for original
appointment.


   D.   All members shall serve without compensation, except that the Council may pay such expenses of the commission or
its members as the Council deems necessary. No person shall be appointed to serve on the commission who holds any
salaried public office or employment with the city.   (Ord. 540 § 1(part), 1991).


2.38.020 OFFICERS – RULES AND REGULATIONS.


   A.   At its first meeting in May, the members of the commission shall meet in regular session and select from their
members a chair, a vice chair and a secretary. Their duties shall be such as are usually performed by such officers. Officers
shall hold office for one year, or until their successor is elected.


   B.   Subject to approval by resolution of the City Council , the commission shall adopt rules and regulations to govern its
procedures and meetings.


   C.   Minutes of commission meetings shall be filed with the City Clerk. (Ord. 540 § 1(part), 1991).


2.38.030 DUTIES.


   The duties of the commission shall be:


   A.   To act in an advisory capacity to the City Council and the City Manager in all matters pertaining to the senior center,
senior activities and planning, cooperation and coordination for individuals and groups interested in improving and
developing services and opportunities for the older residents of this city;


   B.   To provide leadership and advocacy on behalf of older persons and serve as a channel of communication and
information on aging;


   C.   To advise the Pinole City Council on the county area plan based on the needs and priorities of older persons as may
be determined by surveys of senior citizen groups and other organizations and to hold such public hearings as may be
deemed advisable;


   D.   To continually evaluate the progress and accomplishments of the senior center and to prepare a report for evaluation
at the annual meeting of the commission in May;


   E.   To prepare and recommend to the City Council adoption of a long range, comprehensive master plan for the growth,
development and implementation of the Pinole Senior Center;


   F.   To prepare a proposed budget for each fiscal year to be reviewed by the City Council for approval;


   G.   To comply with the Ralph M. Brown Open Meeting Law. (Ord. 540 § 1(part), 1991).


253 of 273







254 of 273







255 of 273







256 of 273







CITY COUNCIL RESOLUTION NO. 2008-38
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY RESOLUTION NO. 14-2008


A JOINT RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF PINOLE AND THE
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF THE CITY OF PINOLE, COUNTY OF
CONTRA COSTA, STATE OF CALIFORNIA ESTABLISHING THE
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING ADVISORY COMMITTEE
(EDHAC) OF THE CITY OF PINOLE AND IMPLEMENTING OTHER
RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE REDEVELOPMENT REVIEW


WHEREAS, the City and the Redevelopment Agency received on January 18,
2008 the Pinole Redevelopment Agency Program Review (the "Review") which
contained recommendations in six areas for improving asset management, planning for
the end of redevelopment, improving decisionmaking, establishing deal standards,
focusing on priority projects and enhancing management capacity, and


WHEREAS, there have been six public meetings, including two Redevelopment
Agency study sessions and a study session with the Planning Commission, to discuss the
recommendations of the Review and to receive public input on the implementation of the
recommendations, and


WHEREAS, in the area of improved decisionmaking, the Review recommended
creating a new advisory committee entitled the Economic Development and Housing
Advisory Committee (EDHAC) which would recommend policies and actions to improve
the economic vitality and livability of Pinole, and which would enhance public
participation in crafting these recommendations, and


WHEREAS, the Review also recommended the elimination of the
Redevelopment Agency Subcommittee, which has served as a gatekeeper for all agenda
items considered by the Redevelopment Agency Board, and


WHEREAS, the Review also recommended that the Planning Commission
become more active at earlier stages in redevelopment activities in providing strategic
guidance and stimulating early public participation in shaping project configurations, and


WHEREAS, the Review also recommended specific actions for improving the
management of assets and delegation of authority to the City Manager and Executive
Director to take specified actions related thereto.


NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED as follows:


That the City of Pinole and Redevelopment Agency of the City of Pinole do hereby
establish the Economic Development and Housing Advisory Committee (EDHAC) to be
comprised of nine (9) members representative of diverse community interests that would
assist the Committee in fulfilling its mission and achieving its goals. Not less than seven
(7) members shall be residents of Pinole.


257 of 273







1. The Agency Board/City Council shall make appointments of eligible citizens to
positions on the EDHAC. Applications shall be submitted not later than April, 10,
2008. Appointments shall be made as soon as practicable thereafter. The application
for appointment shall be in substantially the form of Attachment A to this resolution.


2. The role of the EDHAC shall be to take action and to provide recommendations to the
Agency Board and City Council which accomplish the following goals:


a. Stimulate economic development in Pinole.


b. Better manage Redevelopment Agency assets.


c. Foster better public private partnerships.


d. Enhance public participation and understanding of redevelopment and
economic development.


e. Invest in quality programs and projects that enhance the supply of affordable
housing.


3. Guidelines for the operation of the EDHAC are:


a. The City of Pinole City Manager or the Community Development Director
shall be responsible for preparing the agenda of EDHAC and facilitating
effective meetings.


b. The EDHAC shall meet twice each month and at such other times as may be
necessary for the purpose of reviewing proposed policies, projects or
programs and fulfilling its advisory role.


c. At its first meeting, the EDHAC will by lot determine the initial terms of its
members with four members having two-year terms and five members having
three-year terms. Succeeding appointees to the EDHAC shall have two-year
terms. Members who do not attend two consecutive meetings without reason
acceptable to the Board and Council may be removed from the EDHAC.


d. Within 3 months of its initial meeting, or as soon thereafter as practicable, the
EDHAC shall:


i. Approve a detailed goal statement reflective of the Committee's
mission statement provided by the City Council.


ii. Make recommendations to the Redevelopment Agency on establishing
deal standards for public private partnerships.


258 of 273







iii. Make recommendations to the Agency and City Council for a
community-based process that addresses the questions posed in the
Review for planning for the end of redevelopment; namely,


1. How should the large remaining funding capacity of
redevelopment be applied to public improvements and
economic development partnerships?


2. How will the City address the funding needs for those
functions and services currently funded by redevelopment after
the redevelopment funding expires?


3. How can redevelopment resources be used to support ongoing
municipal operations?


4. How will the Agency program the use of the approximately
$20 million of housing funds expected to be available through
2023?


4. The Redevelopment Agency Subcommittee is hereby terminated as a subcommittee
of the Agency Board.


5. The Planning Commission is requested to become more active at earlier stages in
redevelopment activities in providing strategic guidance and stimulating early public
participation in shaping project configurations. The Commission is requested to
respond to this request with a resolution establishing guidelines for its early
participation in redevelopment activities.


6. The Executive Director/City Manager is hereby authorized and directed to take the
following actions:


a. Provide quarterly status reports on payments on redevelopment loans to the
Agency Board/City Council.


b. To file notices of foreclosure on against property with delinquent payments in
excess of 90 days.


c. To engage the services of an outside monitor to provide effective monitoring
of compliance with affordable housing certification requirements as a result of
the requirements of an affordable housing loan covenant.


d. To file notices of foreclosure to recover affordable housing loans for
properties which fail to meet affordable housing certification requirements.


e. To seek in a timely manner the authority of the Agency Board to take legal
action to assume the property management of units failing to meet affordable
housing certification requirements and to recover City's legal fees for such
action..


259 of 273







f. To authorize funding in an amount not to exceed $50,000 for the initial
implementation of a document imaging/management component as part of
the existing Records Management Program for managing Agency / City
records. Annual supplemental funding is anticipated to maintain the
integrity of the system to fund maintenance contracts, training, and
enhancements.


PASSED AND ADOPTED this l8 day of March 2008 by the following vote:


AYES:
	


Council /Board Members: Fujita, Horton, Long, Murray, Swearingen
NOES: Council /Board Members None
ABSENT: Council /Board Members None
ABSTAIN: Council /Board Members None


Patricia Athenour
City Clerk/Agency Secretary


260 of 273







ATTACHMENT A


APPLICATION FOR APPOINTMENT TO


Economic Development and Housing Advisory Committee. (EDHAC)


NAME:


ADDRESS:


PHONE:
	


E-Mail


YEARS LIVING IN PINOLE:


OCCUPATION


COMMUNITY ACTIVITIES (Attach supplemental information if desired)


Why do you want to serve on the EDHAC? (Attach additional pages if desired)


What do you believe are the most significant economic development issues facing the
Pinole community in economic development? (Attach additional pages if desired)


261 of 273







What do you believe are the most significant housing issues facing Pinole? (Attach
additional pages if desired)


Do you have particular knowledge or expertise that you think would be helpful to the
Committee?


You may wish to attach letters of recommendation.


You may wish to address additional issues in written form attached to this application.


To be considered, applications are due at the Pinole City Clerk's office on April 10, 2008.


Thank you for your application.


Signature


Printed name


Date


262 of 273







Economic Development and Housing Advisory Committee 
Bylaws – Adopted 06/09/09 


s:\roxane\commissions\edhac\edhac bylaws060909adopted.doc 


 


Economic Development and Housing Advisory Committee 
Meeting Procedures and Bylaws  
 


Section 1. Regular Meetings 
1-1 Meeting Frequency and Purpose 
1-1.1 The Economic Development Advisory Committee (EDHAC) shall meet twice a month (Per 


City Resolution 2008-38 and RDA Resolution 14-2008) on the second and fourth Tuesday of 
the month.  The first meeting of the month will focus on action items for the EDHAC.  The 
second meeting of the month will be used to present background information and/or 
workshops on matters pertinent to the work of the committee.  (Per June 10, 2008 EDHAC 
meeting minutes)  
 


1-1.2 Meetings will be from 7p.m. – 9p.m. and may be extended upon consensus of members 
present. 


 
Section 2. Special Meetings 
2-1 Special Meeting Notice and Purpose 
2-1.1 EDHAC may hold special meetings as necessary for the purpose of reviewing proposed 


policies, projects or programs and fulfilling its advisory role. (Per City Resolution 2008-38 
and RDA Resolution 14-2008) Such special meetings shall be posted in the posting 
location identified by City Council for meeting notices at least 24 hours in advance of the 
meeting.   


 
Section 3. Agenda and Agenda Materials 
3-1.  Proposed agenda 
3-1.1 Establishing agenda for all regular EDHAC meetings and special meetings is the 


responsibility of Community Development Director or the City Manager (Per City 
Resolution 2008038 and RDA Resolution 14-2008).   


 
3-1.2 Meeting agendas and materials will be distributed by e-mail and by postal service.  (Per 


June 10, 2008 EDHAC meeting minutes)  Every effort will be made to e-mail and mail 
materials by close of business on the Thursday prior to a regular EDHAC meeting. 


 
3-1.3 Material necessary to make a recommendation for consideration by the City Council/ 


RDA Board will be sent to EDHAC prior to the meeting. 
 
Section 4. Membership and Quorum 
4-1 Membership 
4-1.1 The City Council shall appoint nine members to the EDHAC per the requirements of City 


Resolution 2008038 and RDA Resolution 14-2008.  
  
4-1.2 Terms of membership were determined at the first EDHAC meeting by lot, with four 


members having two-year terms and five members having three-year terms.  
Succeeding appointees shall have two-year terms.  (Per City Resolution 2008038 and 
RDA Resolution 14-2008) 


 
4-2 Quorum  
4-2.1 Five members constitute a quorum for EDHAC meetings. (Per June 10, 2008 EDHAC 


meeting minutes) 
 
 


263 of 273







Economic Development and Housing Advisory Committee 
Bylaws – Adopted 06/09/09 


s:\roxane\commissions\edhac\edhac bylaws060909adopted.doc 


 


Section 5. Open Meetings and Public Comment (Changed June 9, 2009 EDHAC meeting) 
5-1  Open meetings 
5-1.1 All EDHAC meetings are public and open to observers.   
5-1.2 Agendas shall provide time for the public to comment about any item pertinent to 


EDHAC matters as well as on items scheduled for EDHAC discussion. 
 
5-2 Public Comment on Agenda Items (Added per May 26, 2009 EDHAC Meeting) 
5-2.1 Agendized items will start with a presentation by staff, and, when applicable, 


presentation or comments by the representatives for the project.   
5-2.2 EDHAC questions and comment will follow the presentation by staff/project 


representatives. 
5-2.3 Public comment on agendized items will follow discussion by EDHAC.  A time limit of 


three minutes per speaker is recommended. 
5-2.4 Additional discussion and questions of staff and/or project representative by EDHAC 


may occur following public comment. 
5-2.5 The Chairperson will provide guidance how responses to questions or comments made 


during public comment will be made. 
 
Section 6. Discussion, Decision-making and Voting  
6-1 Discussion 
6-1.1 Discussions shall respect the 2-hour meeting timeframe as well as the each committee 


member’s desire to speak. 
 
6-2 Decision-making   
6-2.1 Decisions will be made by consensus using a “thumbs-up/thumbs-down” voting 


technique.  Those who are undecided may choose not to vote or to express a neutral 
opinion. (Per June 10, 2008 EDHAC meeting minutes) 


 
6-3  Voting 
6-3.1 After summarizing the discussion and prior to voting, the chairperson of the meeting will 


ask if there any more comments on the vote to be taken. (per January 27, 2009 EDHAC 
meeting) 


 
6-3.2 Voting will be on the basis of a majority of those present at the meeting. 
 
Section 7. Consensus at Meetings (Per June 10, 2008 EDHAC meeting minutes) 
7-1    Consensus 
7-1.1 Decisions shall be made using a consensus-seeking process as follows: 


a) Consensus is sought after discussion, including asking for and discussion of any 
unresolved concerns, within the time and content limits of the agenda.  


 
b)  The chairperson of the meeting will provide a summary at the end of the discussion 


of the agreements or recommendations for the vote.  This summary should be done 
after the dialogue on the item to be voted upon.  (per January 27, 2009 EDHAC 
meeting) 


 
c) In calling for a consensus, any unresolved concerns will be recorded. 


 
Section 8.  Officers  
8-1  Officers and Spokespersons 
8-1.1  Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson 


264 of 273







Economic Development and Housing Advisory Committee 
Bylaws – Adopted 06/09/09 


s:\roxane\commissions\edhac\edhac bylaws060909adopted.doc 


 


a) A chairperson will be elected at the 4th EDHAC meeting.  The role of chairperson is to run 
meetings and assist with handling meeting logistics.  (Per June 10, 2008 EDHAC meeting 
minutes)  


 
b) A vice or co-chairperson will be selected by EDHAC members to fill-in for the when the 


appointed chairperson is unable to attend a meeting.  (Per July 22, 2008 EDHAC meeting 
minutes)  


 
8-2    Term of Office  
8-2.1 Officers will serve for one (1) year.  (per January 27, 2009 EDHAC meeting) 
 
8-2.2 All members are eligible to serve as an officer.  (per January 27, 2009 EDHAC meeting) 
 
8-3  Spokespersons  
8-3.1 Spokespersons to represent the EDHAC will be selected and designated as necessary.  (Per 


June 10, 2008 EDHAC meeting minutes)  
 
Section 9.  Attendance 
9-1.1 On-going Membership:  A member will be asked if they are still interested in serving if they 


have three or more absences in a year.  (Per June 10, 2008 EDHAC meeting minutes)  
 
9-1.2 Members who do not attend two consecutive meetings without reason acceptable to the 


Board and Council may be removed from EDHAC. (Per City Resolution 2008038 and RDA 
Resolution 14-2008) 


 
Section 10.  Individual Meetings on EDHAC Matters 
10-1.1 EDHAC members will inform the committee with whom they met, the purpose for 


meeting, and the meeting outcome at the next scheduled meeting so that everyone is 
informed. 


 
 
 
 


265 of 273







266 of 273







267 of 273







268 of 273







269 of 273







Chapter 2.56


HUMAN RELATIONS COMMISSION


Sections:


   2.56.010   Title for citation.


   2.56.020   Purpose.


   2.56.030   Membership.


   2.56.040   Appointment to commission.


   2.56.050   Term.


   2.56.060   Powers and duties.


   2.56.070   Removal of members.


   2.56.080   Quorum.


   2.56.090   Officers.


2.56.010 TITLE FOR CITATION.


   This chapter shall be known as the “Human Relations Commission Ordinance.” (Ord. 557 § 2 (part), 1992).


2.56.020 PURPOSE. 


   The purpose of this chapter shall be to establish a human relations commission in the city to develop positive human
relations through education, encouragement of greater respect and understanding between people, their equal opportunity
rights under the law and the recognition of the racial, ethnic, religious and cultural diversity of the Pinole community. The
purpose of the human relations commission shall be to initiate educational and cultural programs, promote tolerance and
mutual respect between all persons and evaluate and make recommendations regarding discrimination charges levied
against the city, upon the direction of the Council. (Ord. 557 § 2 (part), 1992).


2.56.030 MEMBERSHIP.


   The human relations commission shall consist of seven members who shall be residents of the city. Commission members
shall be generally representative of the demographics of the city including the racial, religious, age, gender, ethnic,
physically challenged and cultural groups. (Ord. 557 § 2(part), 1992).


2.56.040 APPOINTMENT TO COMMISSION. 


   Members of the commission shall be appointed by majority vote of the entire Council. (Ord. 557 § 2(part), 1992).


2.56.050 TERM. 


   Members of the commission shall serve for a term of four years, or until their successors are appointed, unless removed
from office as specified in Section 2.56.070. However, for purposes of establishing staggered terms, the initial appointments
may be for terms varying between one and four years as the Council may decide. (Ord. 557 § 2(part), 1992).


2.56.060 POWERS AND DUTIES.


   The human relations commission shall have the responsibilities as provided in this section and such other powers and
duties as the Council may, from time to time, decide:


   A.   Upon request of the Council, to study and make recommendations regarding problems in the city which arise from
alleged discrimination prohibited by city, state and federal law;


   B.   Upon request of the Council, to study, evaluate and mediate, incidents of alleged discrimination arising in or
concerning the community and its citizens to the extent such functions are not preempted or prohibited by the Pinole
Municipal Code, the Personnel Rules and Regulations, the California Fair Employment and Housing Commission or any
other state or federal agency;


   C.   Evaluate and disseminate educational and informational material relating to the elimination of all forms of prejudice,
and discrimination and promotion of tolerance and understanding;


   D.   Initiate and encourage educational and other appropriate activities to seek to discourage or prevent discrimination
where possible;


   E.   Provide information and technical assistance to, and cooperate with, other public agencies, organizations, institutions
and persons engaged in activities and programs intended to eliminate prejudice and discrimination;


270 of 273







   F.   Consult and maintain contact with other public agencies, community organizations concerned with interracial,
interreligious and intercultural understanding, and such other private organizations and institutions to further the objective of
eliminating discrimination;


   G.   To review achievement of the city's equal opportunity program and provide an annual report to the City Council and
staff for any recommendations it may make to the Council;


   H.   Develop and recommend to the Council additional programs and practices designed to further commission objectives;


   I.   Perform such other duties as the Council may direct. (Ord. 557 § 2(part), 1992).


2.56.070 REMOVAL OF MEMBERS.  


   Members of the human relations commission serve at the pleasure of the Council and may be removed from office by a
majority vote of the entire Council. (Ord. 557 § 2(part), 1992).


2.56.080 QUORUM.  


   For the purpose of transacting business, a quorum of the human relations commission shall consist of a simple majority of
the members. (Ord. 557 § 2 (part), 1992).


2.56.090 OFFICERS.  


   At the first meeting of each calendar year, the members of the human relations commission shall select its officers.
Conduct of commission business shall otherwise be governed by rules of procedure adopted by the commission and
approved by the City Council . (Ord. 557 § 2 (part), 1992).


271 of 273







272 of 273







273 of 273





		2023-09-19 HYBRID AGENDA FINAL

		7B1

		9A

		9B

		9C

		Staffreport_NOC_EVStationFA2002

		DATE:   SEPTEMBER 19, 2023

		TO:    MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS

		SUBJECT: ADOPT A RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT THE ELECTRIC VEHICLE CHARGING STATIONS PROJECT (CIP PROJECT # FA2002) AS COMPLETE AND APPROVE FILING OF NOTICE OF COMPLETION

		Recommendation



		BACKGROUND

		REVIEW & ANALYSIS



		ATTACHMENT(S)



		AttachmentA_Reso_EVStationFA2002

		AttachmentB_NOC_forRecording_fa2002



		9D

		staffreport_cip_4qtr

		DATE:   SEPTEMBER 19, 2023

		TO:    MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS

		FROM: SANJAY MISHRA, PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

		MISHA DHILLON, CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROGRAM MANAGER

		SUBJECT: FISCAL YEAR (FY) 2022/23 FOURTH QUARTER REPORT ON STATUS OF CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (CIP) PROJECTS

		Recommendation



		BACKGROUND

		REVIEW & ANALYSIS



		ATTACHMENT(S)



		Attachment A_AdoptedCIP_FY22_23THRU26_27

		AttachmentB_CIP_QTR4_Update



		9E

		TO:  MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS

		FROM: ANDREW MURRAY, CITY MANAGER



		Recommendation

		BACKGROUND

		REVIEW & ANALYSIS



		FISCAL IMPACT

		ATTACHMENTS





		9F

		SR Interim CM Appointment_FINAL

		DATE:  SEPTEMBER 19, 2023

		TO:  MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS

		Recommendation



		BACKGROUND

		FISCAL IMPACT

		ATTACHMENTS





		RESO - Appoint Interim CM FINAL



		9G

		Staffreport_NOC_PerCapita

		DATE:   SEPTEMBER 19, 2023

		TO:    MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS

		SUBJECT: ADOPT A RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT THE PLAYGROUND RUBBERIZED SURFACE IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT (CIP PROJECT # PA2203) AS COMPLETE AND APPROVE FILING OF NOTICE OF COMPLETION

		Recommendation



		BACKGROUND

		REVIEW & ANALYSIS



		ATTACHMENT(S)



		AttachmentA_Reso_PerCapita

		AttachmentB_NOC_forRecording



		9H

		9I

		SR FY 2022-23 Q4 Financial Report(9-19-23) FINAL

		RESO Approving FY 2022-23 year-end adjustments 9-19-23 DRAFT

		A - 4th quarter Budget Report



		9J

		SR Qtrly Invest Report (Q4) 9-19-23 DRAFT

		DATE: SEPTEMBER 19, 2023

		TO:  MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS



		BACKGROUND

		REVIEW AND ANALYSIS



		FISCAL IMPACT

		ATTACHMENTS





		A-Investment Report Q4

		June 2023 Summary



		B-Section 115 Trust Investment Report

		Q4 PARS Summary





		9K

		ccsr 9-19-23 ClientFirst Amendment No. 5

		Attachment A ccreso - clientfirst amendment no. 5

		Attachment A Exhibit A ClientFirst Amendment No 5 - Exhibit A

		Attachment B



		9L

		SR Revised Appropriations Limit 9-19-23 DRAFT

		DATE:  SEPTEMBER 19, 2023

		TO:  MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS

		Recommendation



		BACKGROUND

		FISCAL IMPACT

		ATTACHMENTS





		RESO Correct Appropriations Limit (9-19-23) DRAFT



		9M

		Pinole - SR Declaring Faria House Surplus Property 9.6.23

		DATE:   SEPTEMBER 19, 2023

		TO:    MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS

		FROM: SANJAY MISHRA, PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

		SUBJECT: RESOLUTION DECLARING 2100 SAN PABLO AVENUE (THE FARIA HOUSE) SURPLUS LAND

		Recommendation



		BACKGROUND

		REVIEW & ANALYSIS

		FISCAL IMPACT



		ATTACHMENTS



		Pinole - Reso Declaring Faria House Surplus Property 9.6.23



		12A

		12B

		SR - Boards and Commissions_FINAL

		A. Community Services Commission

		B. Planning Commission

		C. TAPS Committee

		D. Cable Television Access Commission

		E. Commission on Aging

		Code Sections_Aging

		Ord 540



		F. EDHAC

		2008-38 CC RDA Jnt Reso Establishing EDHAC

		EDHAC BYLAWS060909Adopted

		2010-02 CC and RDA Jnt Reso Amending EDHAC Bylaws

		Agenda Packets - 11B-3 - Dissolution



		G. Human Relations Commission

		H. Youth Commission

		105-2001 CC Reso Amending and Replacing Resos for Appointment of Youth Comm







		Return to Agenda: 






